17 July 2019
At 5.00 pm

Local Planning Panel

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Agenda

1.

Disclosures of Interest

2.

Confirmation of Minutes

3.

Development Application: 810-812A George Street, Haymarket - D/2019/120

4.

Development Application: 208-218 Riley Street, Surry Hills - D/2018/1451

5.

Development Application: 208-218 Riley Street, Surry Hills - D/2018/1305

6.

Development Application: 306, 308, 310 and 312 Cleveland Street, Surry Hills D/2019/149

7.

Development Application: 117-119 Foveaux Street, Surry Hills - D/2018/761

8.

Development Application: Junction Street, Woolloomooloo - D/2019/467

Guidelines for Speakers
at Local Planning Panels

As part of our democratic process, the City invites members of the community to
speak directly to Members of the Local Planning Panel (LPP) about items on a
meeting agenda.
To enable the LPP to hear a wide range of views and concerns within the limited time
available, we encourage people interested in speaking at meetings to:
1.

Register to speak by calling Council’s Secretariat on 9265 9190 before 12.00
noon on the day of the meeting.

2.

Check the recommendation in the agenda report before speaking, as it may
address your concerns so that you just need to indicate your support for the
recommendation.

3.

Note that there is a three minute time limit for each speaker and prepare your
presentation to cover your major points within that time.

4.

Avoid repeating what previous speakers have said and focus on issues and
information that the LPP may not already know.

5.

If there is a large number of people interested in the same item as you, try to
nominate three representatives to speak on your behalf and to indicate how
many people they are representing.

6.

Before speaking, turn on the microphone by pressing the button next to it and
speak clearly so that everyone in the Council Chamber can hear.

7.

Be prepared to quickly return to the microphone and respond briefly to any
questions from LPP members, after all speakers on an item have made their
presentations.

At the start of each LPP meeting, the Chair may re-order agenda items so that those
items with speakers can be dealt with first.
LPP reports are on line at www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au, with printed copies
available at Sydney Town Hall immediately prior to the meeting. Council staff are
also available prior to the meeting to assist.

March 2018

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Item 1.
Disclosures of Interest
Pursuant to the provisions of Clause 15 of Schedule 4B of the Environmental Planning and
Assessment Act 1979, members of the Local Planning Panel are required to disclose
pecuniary interests in any matter on the agenda for this meeting of the Local Planning Panel.
Panel members are also required to disclose any non-pecuniary interests in any matter on
the agenda for this meeting of the Local Planning Panel.
In both cases, the nature of the interest must be disclosed.
In accordance with section 4.9 of the Code of Conduct for Local Planning Panel Members,
all Panel members are required to sign a declaration of interest in relation to each matter on
the agenda.

1

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Item 2.
Confirmation of Minutes
Minutes of the following meeting of the Local Planning Panel, which have been endorsed by
the Chair, are submitted for noting:
Meeting of 26 June 2019

1

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Item 3.
Development Application: 810-812A George Street Haymarket
File No.:

D/2019/120

Summary
Date of Submission:

11 February 2019

Applicant/Architect:

MKD Architects

Developer:

Bounce Hostel

Owner:

Fuqiang Investments Pty Ltd

Cost of Works:

$10,798,240

Zoning:

B8 - Metropolitan Centre zone. The proposed backpackers'
accommodation is permissible with consent.

Proposal Summary:

The application proposes partial demolition, renovation of
the front facade, excavation and construction of a 16
storey backpackers' accommodation with single level
basement. The backpackers would accommodate 291
dorm beds and 10 private rooms with a maximum capacity
of 311 guests. Communal facilities including laundry,
kitchen, outdoor pool, bar, cafe and living rooms are
included.
The application is reported to the Local Planning Panel for
determination as it is the subject of more than 25
submissions.
The development, by way of its height, bulk, appearance
and proximity, will have an adverse impact on the visual
setting and heritage significance of the adjacent Christ
Church St Laurence and accompanying buildings,
streetscape and Haymarket/Chinatown Special Character
Area. The design does not consider passive sun shading
and will contribute to adverse wind impacts on the
adjoining childcare centre. The development therefore
does not exhibit design excellence.

1

Local Planning Panel

Proposal Summary
(continued):

17 July 2019

At 52.2 metres tall, the development exceeds the
maximum 50 metre building height permitted pursuant to
Clause 4.3 of the Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012.
A request to vary the standard by 4.4% pursuant to Clause
4.6 accompanies the application. The variation is not in the
public interest as the extent of the variation contributes to
the cumulative adverse heritage impacts on the adjacent
Christ Church St Laurence and Haymarket/Chinatown
Special Character Area, contrary to the objectives of the
development standard. Furthermore the applicant has
failed to identify sufficient environmental planning grounds
to justify the variation. It is also noted that the internal floor
to ceiling heights are inadequate with regard to Council's
controls.
The development is located above an interim rail corridor
and requires the concurrence of Transport for NSW in
accordance with Clause 88 of the State Environmental
Planning Policy (Infrastructure) 2007. Transport for NSW
have requested additional information to ensure that
excavation and construction will not adversely impact the
future construction and operation of the rail corridor. The
applicant has failed to provide the information in the
requested time.
The development fails to provide a detailed environmental
site investigation as recommended by the applicant's
environmental consultant regarding potential remediation
of the site, contrary to State Environmental Planning Policy
55 - Remediation of Land.
The development does not provide for on-site loading and
waste collection, unduly burdening the surrounding streets.
The proposed hours of access to outdoor facilities to
midnight and inadequate provision of internal communal
facilities are contrary to Council's controls for backpackers
and may adversely impact the amenity of neighbouring
properties. The development also fails to contribute public
art, landscaping details and the proposed signage is
contrary to the character of the surrounding area.
The application was notified and advertised for 21 days
and received 76 unique objections. The concerns raised
are summarised below and addressed within the report:


heritage;



building height;



concentration of backpackers' accommodation;



transport, traffic and servicing;

2

Local Planning Panel

Proposal Summary
(continued):

17 July 2019



waste;



visual and acoustic privacy;



internal facilities;



accessibility;



construction impacts; and



overshadowing.

For the reasons listed above, the development is
recommended for refusal.
Summary Recommendation:

This proposal is recommended for refusal.

Development Controls:

(i)

State Environmental Planning Policy (Infrastructure)
2007

(ii)

Sydney Regional Environmental Plan (Sydney
Harbour Catchment) 2005 (Deemed SEPP)

(iii)

State Environmental Planning Policy No 55 Remediation of Land

(iv)

State Environmental Planning Policy 64 - Advertising
and Signage

(v)

Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012

(vi)

Sydney Development Control Plan 2012

A1.

Selected Drawings

A2.

Selected Drawings

B.

Clause 4.6 Variation Request

Attachments:

3

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Recommendation
It is resolved that consent be refused for Development Application No. D/2019/120 for the
following reasons:
(A)

The development, by way of its height, bulk, form, materials and location will have an
adverse impact on the visual setting and heritage significance of the Christ Church St
Laurence, associated buildings, streetscape and Haymarket/Chinatown Special
Character Area. The development is therefore contrary to the following planning
controls:
Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012
(i)

Clause 1.2(2)(k) - to conserve the environmental heritage of the City of Sydney

(ii)

Clause 5.10(4) - effect of proposed development on heritage significance

Sydney Development Control Plan 2012
(iii)

Section 2.1.3 - Haymarket/Chinatown Special Character Area

(iv)

Section 3.9.5 - Heritage items

(v)

Section 3.9.13 - Excavation in the vicinity of heritage items and in heritage
conservation areas

(B)

The development exceeds the maximum 50 metre height of buildings development
standard by 2.2 metres (4.4%) pursuant to Clause 4.3 of the Sydney Local
Environmental Plan 2012. A request to vary the development standard has been made
pursuant to Clause 4.6 of the Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012. The requested
variation is not supported, as the applicant's written request has not adequately
addressed the matters required to be addressed by Clause 4.6(3) of the Sydney Local
Environmental Plan 2012. The proposed development is not in the public interest
under Clause 4.6(4)(ii) because it is inconsistent with objectives (a), (b) and (c) of the
height of buildings development standard.

(C)

The development, by way of its height, bulk, form, landscape details, overshadowing
and location fails to achieve design excellence. In particular, the development will:


adversely impact the heritage significance of adjoining properties in this special
precinct of the Haymarket/Chinatown Special Character Area;



result in adverse wind effects and overshadowing on the adjoining childcare
centre;



not provide passive sun shading and passive natural ventilation within the
design;



not ensure the success of the proposed landscaping;



not include public art; and

4

Local Planning Panel



17 July 2019

fail to provide adequate floor to floor heights.

The development is therefore contrary to the following planning controls:
Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012
(i)

Clause 1.2(2)(c) - to promote ecologically sustainable development

(ii)

Clause 1.2(2)(j) - to achieve a high quality urban form by ensuring that new
development exhibits design excellence and reflects the existing or desired
future character of particular localities

(iii)

Clause 6.21(4)(a) - whether a high standard of architectural design, materials
and detailing appropriate to the building type and location will be achieved

(iv)

Clause 6.21(4)(b) - whether the form and external appearance of the proposed
development will improve the quality and amenity of the public domain

(v)

Clause 6.21(4)(c) - whether the proposed development detrimentally impacts on
view corridors

(vi)

Clause 6.21(4)(d)(i) - the suitability of the land for development

(vii) Clause 6.21(4)(d)(iii) - any heritage issues and streetscape constraints
(viii) Clause 6.21(4)(d)(v) - the bulk, massing and modulation of buildings
(ix)

Clause 6.21(4)(d)(vii) - environmental impacts, such as sustainable design,
overshadowing and solar access, visual and acoustic privacy, noise, wind and
reflectivity

(x)

Clause 6.21(4)(d)(viii) - the achievement of the principles of ecologically
sustainable development

(xi)

Clause 6.21(4)(d)(x) - the impact on, and any proposed improvements to, the
public domain

(xii) Clause 6.21(4)(d)(xi) - the impact on any special character area
(xiii) Clause 6.21(4)(d)(xiii) - excellence and integration of landscape design
Sydney Development Control Plan 2012
(xiv) Section 2.1.3 - Haymarket/Chinatown Special Character Area
(xv) Section 3.1.5 - Public art
(xvi) Section 3.2.6 - Wind effects
(xvii) Section 4.2.1.2 - Floor to ceiling and floor to floor heights
(xviii) Section 4.2.3.4 - Design features to manage solar access
(xix) Section 4.2.3.5 - Landscaping

5

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

(xx) Section 5.1.2.2 - Side and rear setbacks
(xxi) Section 5.1.2.3 - Setbacks for buildings adjoining or fronting lanes
(D)

The application is not accompanied by a detailed environmental site investigation as
recommended within the preliminary site investigation undertaken. The application
therefore fails to determine whether the site is contaminated and whether it is or can
be made suitable for the proposed use. The development is therefore contrary to
Clause 7 of the State Environmental Planning Policy 55 - Remediation of Land.

(E)

The application has not provided sufficient information to satisfy Transport for NSW (a
concurrent authority) that the development can be undertaken without adverse impacts
to the interim rail corridor located under the site. The development is therefore contrary
to Section 88 of the State Environmental Planning Policy (Infrastructure) 2007.

(F)

The development will not accommodate on-site servicing for waste collection,
deliveries. The development therefore externalises demand and burdens the
surrounding street network. The development is therefore contrary to the following
planning provisions:
Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012
(i)

Clause 1.2(2)(c) - to ensure that the pattern of land use and density in the City of
Sydney reflects the existing and future capacity of the transport network and
facilitates walking, cycling and the use of public transport

Sydney Development Control Plan 2012

(G)

(ii)

Section 3.11.6 - Service vehicle parking

(iii)

Section 3.14.1 - Waste and Recycling Management Plans

(iv)

Section 3.14.2 - Construction and demolition waste

(v)

Section 3.14.3 - Collection and minimisation of waste during occupation

(vi)

Section 4.2.3.6 - Waste and recycling management

The development fails to provide adequate communal facilities and management
practices to meet the demands of guests and protect the amenity of the surrounding
area. The development is therefore contrary to the following planning provisions:
Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012
(i)

Clause 1.2(2)(h) - to enhance the amenity and quality of life of local communities

Sydney Development Control Plan 2012

(H)

(ii)

Section 4.4.8.1 - Visitor accommodation - General

(iii)

Section 4.4.8.4 - Additional provisions for backpacker accommodation

The application does not adequately consider construction impacts in particular noise,
dust and traffic impacts. The development is therefore contrary to the following
planning provisions:

6

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979
(i)

(I)

Section 4.15(1)(b) - the likely impacts of that development, including
environmental impacts on both the natural and built environments, and social
and economic impacts in the locality

For the reasons above, the development is not in the public interest.

7

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Background
The Site and Surrounding Development
1.

A site visit was carried out by staff on 4 April 2019.

2.

The site is legally known as Lots 6 and 7 DP 978643 and has an area of 300.25sqm.
The primary frontage is to George Street (13.26 metres) with a secondary L-shaped
frontage to St Laurence Lane at the rear. A three-storey commercial building occupies
the entire site and is not a heritage item.

3.

The surrounding area is characterised by a mix of commercial, hotel and residential
buildings. The buildings the north at 800, 802, 804 and 806-808 and south at 812B
George Street are three storey commercial buildings. At 743-755 George Street
opposite the site is an 11-storey residential flat building, known as Capitol Terrace.
These buildings are not heritage items.

4.

At 757-759 and 761-763 George Street, opposite the site and on the corner of
Valentine Street, are two adjoining two storey commercial buildings, the latter being a
local heritage item known as the former Sutton Forest Meat building (item 843). As
discussed below, an extant approval for a 15 storey hotel applies to the sites.

5.

The Christ Church St Laurence and Parish Hall located at 814A George Street and
505 Pitt Street are to the east and south of the site. These sites are listed as a State
heritage item (item 849).

6.

Other heritage buildings within the vicinity of the site include the former Lottery Office
at 814 George Street (item 848) now occupied by the Wake Up! accommodation,
Station House at 790-798 George Street (item 846) now occupied by the 798
backpackers' accommodation and the former Daking House at 11-23 Rawson Place
(item 863) now occupied by the Sydney Central YHA.

7.

The site is located within the Haymarket/Chinatown Special Character Area. The CBD
and South East Light Rail is currently under construction to the north on Rawson Place
and George Street. Railway Square is located to the south of the former Lottery Office.

8.

Photos of the site and surrounds are provided below:

8

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Backpackers

Sutton
Forest Meat
Christ Church St Laurence

Figure 1: Aerial image of subject site and surrounding area

Figure 2: The subject site on George Street

9

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 3: Christ Church St Laurence

Figure 4: The site and Christ Church St Laurence viewed from George Street

10

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

site

Figure 5: The rear of the site viewed from St Laurence Lane

Proposal
9.

The application proposes retention and renovation of the front facade, demolition of
the existing buildings, and construction of a 16 storey backpackers' building with one
basement level. The building is proposed to be 52.2 metres tall and provide
2336.82sqm of gross floor area. The backpackers would accommodate 291 dorm beds
and 10 private rooms with a maximum capacity of 311 guests. Communal facilities
including laundry, kitchen, outdoor pool and living rooms are included.
(a)

Basement Level
(i)

60 bike spaces and end of trip facilities;

(ii)

laundry;

(iii)

services; and

(iv)

garbage.

11

Local Planning Panel

(b)

17 July 2019

Ground Floor
(i)

reception;

(ii)

seating area and computer area;

(iii)

office;

(iv)

ancillary shop/café;

(v)

new awning;

(vi)

one x above awning sign and one x under awning sign fronting George
Street, both illuminated; and

(vii) One x wall sign fronting St Laurence Lane.
(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Levels 1 - 2
(i)

dorm rooms; and

(ii)

communal bathrooms.

Level 3
(i)

communal area and bar; and

(ii)

rooftop pool and jacuzzi.

Levels 4-12
(i)

dorm rooms; and

(ii)

communal bathrooms.

Levels 13-14
(i)

(g)

(h)

10.

private rooms.

Level 15
(i)

communal kitchen; and

(ii)

balconies.

Roof
(i)

solar panels; and

(ii)

water tank.

Plans of the proposed development are provided below.

12

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 6: A photomontage of the proposed tower adjacent to Christ Church St Laurence

Figure 7: A photomontage of the proposed tower viewed from Railway Square

13

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 8: A photomontage of the proposed tower adjacent to Christ Church St Laurence viewed from
Pitt Street

Figure 9: A photomontage of the proposed tower viewed from the country trains entrance to Central
Station

14

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 10: A photomontage of the proposed tower viewed from St Laurence Lane

Figure 11: The proposed basement

15

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 12: The ground floor

Figure 13: Levels 1 and 2

16

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 14: Level 3

Figure 15: Levels 4-12

17

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 16: Levels 13 and 14

Figure 17: Level 15

18

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 18: George Street elevation (west)

Figure 19: St Laurence Lane elevation (north)

19

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 20: St Laurence Lane elevation (east)

Figure 21: South elevation

20

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 22: George Street streetscape

Figure 23: East-west section

History Relevant to the Development Application
11.

On 3 April 2019, Transport for NSW, in their role as a concurrence authority under
Clause 88 of the State Environmental Planning Policy (Infrastructure) 2007, requested
additional information from the applicant regarding the proximity of the site to, and
potential impacts of the development on an interim rail corridor. The request was sent
to the applicant on 4 April 2019, advising that the information was required to be
submitted by 24 May 2019. This information has not been submitted.

21

Local Planning Panel

12.

17 July 2019

On 17 April 2019, the applicant was requested to withdraw the application as the
application is not supported. The applicant was advised that amended plans would not
be accepted in accordance with Clause 55 of the Environmental Planning and
Assessment Regulation 2000.

Pre-DA discussions
13.

The applicant submitted a pre-DA request on 5 June 2018 to discuss the proposed
development, beginning with establishing an acceptable building envelope. At a
meeting with Council staff on 10 July 2019, the applicant was advised to consider the
impact on views of the Christ Church St Laurence and compliance with core controls.
Due to site constraints, the applicant was recommended to consider consolidating with
adjoining sites to the north to redistribute bulk away from the Church.

14.

Further draft designs were submitted and reviewed by Council staff. Concern was
raised by Council's Heritage officer regarding the form of the building, with a simple
design and material encouraged if the scheme was to be pursued. Again, the applicant
was encouraged to explore consolidation with properties to the north and to
incorporate passive sun shading and other sustainability initiatives in the design.

D/2016/117 - 505 Pitt Street
15.

On 15 August 2016, development consent D/2016/117 was granted at 505 Pitt Street
to convert the ground floor of the Parish building to a childcare centre. A portion of the
open space for the childcare centre adjoins the rear of the subject site. The site forms
part of the Christ Church St Laurence State heritage item.

site

Figure 24: The approved ground floor layout of the childcare centre, with the open space highlighted
adjoining the rear of the subject site

22

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

D/2017/353 - 757-759 and 761-763 George Street
16.

On 23 October 2017, development consent D/2017/353 was granted at 757-763
George Street for demolition of the existing building at 757-759 George St, retention
and adaptive re-use of the building at 761-763 George St, and construction of a 15
storey hotel building providing 174 hotel rooms and associated facilities including
bar/restaurant and function rooms.

Figure 25: A photomontage of the approved hotel looking north on George Street towards Valentine
Street

23

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 26: A photomontage of the approved hotel looking east on Valentine Street towards George
Street

Economic/Social/Environmental Impacts
17.

The application has been assessed under Section 4.15 of the Environmental Planning
and Assessment Act 1979, including consideration of the following matters:
(a)

Environmental Planning Instruments and DCPs.

State Environmental Planning Policy No 55 - Remediation of Land
18.

The aim of SEPP 55 is to ensure that a change of land use will not increase the risk to
health, particularly in circumstances where a more sensitive land use is proposed.

24

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

19.

A preliminary site investigation was undertaken and a report accompanies the
application. The report does not identify any historic uses of the site that would
contribute to site contamination, which has been confirmed by a search of the City's
archives. While no soil sampling has been undertaken, the report raises the possibility
(low risk) of contaminants on site, including asbestos, lead paint, metals associated
with vehicles and oil and potential for contaminated fill on site.

20.

Notwithstanding the low risk of contamination, the preliminary site investigation
recommends a detailed environmental site investigation (DESI) is undertaken to
ensure the site will be made suitable for the proposed use. A DESI has not been
undertaken and as such the applicant has not demonstrated that the site is/can be
made suitable for the proposed development.

State Environmental Planning Policy No 64 - Advertising and Signage
21.

The application proposes the following signage:


one x internally illuminated sign attached to the fascia and projecting above the
awning, fronting George Street;



one x internally illuminated under awning sign (double sided) fronting George
Street; and



one x cut out wall sign fronting St Laurence Lane.

22.

SEPP 64 was gazetted on 16 March 2001 and aims to ensure that outdoor advertising
is compatible with the desired amenity and visual character of an area, provides
effective communication in suitable locations and is of high quality design and finish.

23.

Clause 8 of SEPP64 states the following:
A consent authority must not grant development consent to an application to display
signage unless the consent authority is satisfied:
(a)

that the signage is consistent with the objectives of this Policy as set out in
clause 3 (1) (a), and

(b)

that the signage the subject of the application satisfies the assessment criteria
specified in Schedule 1.

Assessment Criteria
24.

The assessment criteria requires consideration of the signs as they relate to the
building, their surrounds, the extent of illumination and impacts on special character
areas, views, safety and landscaping. Council's signage and advertising controls align
with the assessment criteria and have been considered accordingly.

25.

The proposed under awning and wall signs comply with Council's controls under
Section 3.16.6 of the Sydney DCP 2012 and is compatible with the Chinatown signage
precinct under Section 3.16.12.9 of the Sydney DCP 2012.

26.

Section 3.16.6.6 of the Sydney DCP 2012 prohibits signs projecting above the awning
fascia as is proposed. There are no similar signs within the vicinity of the site.

27.

The level of illumination could be controlled by way of a condition.

25

Local Planning Panel

28.

17 July 2019

The proposed awning fascia sign is incompatible with the existing and desired future
character of the area and is not supported. The under awning and wall signs are
acceptable.

State Environmental Planning Policy (Infrastructure) 2007
29.

The provisions of SEPP (Infrastructure) 2007 have been considered in the assessment
of the development application.

Clause 88
30.

The site is located above the Interim Rail Corridor (Zone B known as the CBD Rail
Link). Pursuant to Clause 88, concurrence is required from Transport for NSW to
ensure that the proposed works will not have an adverse impact on the future viability
of the corridor.

31.

On 3 April 2019, Transport for NSW requested a "stop the clock" for additional
information to be provided by the applicant including a geotechnical report, structural
assessment, noise and vibration report and electrolysis report to assess the impact of
the proposal on the CBD Rail Link. The request was forwarded to the applicant on 4
April 2019, providing 50 days in which to submit the information.

32.

The requested information has not been submitted at the time of writing this report. As
such, the application fails to demonstrate that the development will not adversely
impact the future rail corridor and is inconsistent with Clause 88 of the SEPP.

Sydney Regional Environmental Plan (Sydney Harbour Catchment) 2005 (Deemed
SEPP)
33.

The site is located within the designated hydrological catchment of Sydney Harbour
and is subject to the provisions of the above SREP.

34.

The Sydney Harbour Catchment Planning Principles must be considered in the
carrying out of development within the catchment. The key relevant principles include:

35.

(a)

protect and improve hydrological, ecological and geomorphologic processes;

(b)

consider cumulative impacts of development within the catchment;

(c)

improve water quality of urban runoff and reduce quantity and frequency of urban
run-off; and

(d)

protect and rehabilitate riparian corridors and remnant vegetation.

The site is within the Sydney Harbour Catchment and eventually drains into the
Harbour. However, the site is not located in the Foreshores Waterways Area or
adjacent to a waterway and therefore, with the exception of the objective of improved
water quality, the objectives of the SREP are not applicable to the proposed
development. The development is consistent with the controls contained with the
deemed SEPP.

Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012
36.

The site is located within the B8 - Metropolitan Centre zone. The proposed
backpackers' accommodation is permissible with consent.

26

Local Planning Panel

37.

17 July 2019

The relevant matters to be considered under Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012
for the proposed development are outlined below.

Development Control

Compliance

Comment

4.3 Height of Buildings

No

The site is permitted a maximum
building height of 50 metres.

4.6 Exceptions to development
standards

No

The application proposes a maximum
building height of 52.2 metres. A request
to vary the maximum height of buildings
development standard accompanies the
application and is discussed under the
Issues heading.
The variation is not supported.

4.4 Floor Space Ratio

Yes

6.4 Accommodation floor
space

Yes

5.10 Heritage conservation

No

The site is permitted a maximum floor
space ratio of 9:1.
The development proposes a floor
space ratio of 7.89:1.
The site is not a heritage item, however
it is located within proximity of Christ
Church St Laurence (Church, former
school and rectory including interiors), a
State heritage item (item 849).
Other heritage buildings within the
vicinity of the site include the former
Lottery Office at 814 George Street (item
848) now occupied by the Wake Up!
accommodation, Station House at 790798 George Street (item 846) now
occupied by the 798 backpackers'
accommodation and the former Daking
House at 11-23 Rawson Place (item
863) now occupied by the Sydney
Central YHA.
At 757-759 and 761-763 George Street,
opposite the site and on the corner of
Valentine Street, are two adjoining two
storey commercial buildings, the latter
being a local heritage item known as the
former Sutton Forest Meat building (item
843). As discussed below, an extant
approval for a 15 storey hotel applies to
the sites.

27

Local Planning Panel

Development Control

17 July 2019

Compliance

Comment
A heritage impact statement
accompanies the subject application.
As discussed under the Issues heading,
the development will have an adverse
impact on the visual setting and heritage
significance of the adjacent Christ
Church St Laurence and surrounding
area and is not supported.

Part 6 Local Provisions Height and Floor Space

Compliance

Comment

6.21 Design excellence

No

As discussed under the Issues heading,
the development will have an adverse
impact on the visual setting and heritage
significance of the adjacent Christ
Church St Laurence and surrounding
area and is not supported.

Part 7 Local Provisions General

Compliance

Comment

7.15 Flood planning

Yes

Council's Flood Engineer has reviewed
the proposed development and is
satisfied that the development complies
with Council's Interim Floodplain
Management Policy.

Sydney Development Control Plan 2012
38.

The relevant matters to be considered under Sydney Development Control Plan 2012
for the proposed development are outlined below.

2.1.3 Haymarket/Chinatown Special Character Area
The subject site is located in the Haymarket/Chinatown Special Character Area. As an
area somewhat removed from the City Centre, it retains fine grained subdivision patterns,
narrow frontages, informal public spaces and generally low building heights. The
consistent low street wall, and the absence of the tower form, creates a pleasant
microclimate at street level, which is well sunlit and protected from winds.
A principle of the locality statement is to maintain and enhance the vista along Valentine
Street towards Christ Church St Laurence.

28

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

2.1.3 Haymarket/Chinatown Special Character Area
As discussed under the Issues heading, the development will have an adverse impact on
the visual setting and heritage significance of the adjacent Christ Church St Laurence and
Haymarket/Chinatown Special Character Area and is not supported.

3. General Provisions

Compliance

Comment

3.1.5 Public art

No

The estimated cost of development
exceeds $10 million and as such is
required to contribute public art.
The application is not accompanied by a
public art plan.

3.2.3 Active frontages

Yes

This section of George Street is
identified on the active frontages map.
The development provides an active
frontage to George Street.

3.2.4 Footpath awnings

Yes

This section of George Street is
identified on the footpath awnings map.
The development provides an awning in
accordance with the controls.

3.2.6 Wind effects

No

A wind effects report accompanies the
application as the proposed building
exceeds 45 metres in height.
The report does not address the impact
of the tower design on the podium
outdoor area and the outdoor play space
of the adjacent childcare centre.
Further discussion is provided under the
Issues heading.

3.2.7 Reflectivity

Yes

A reflectivity report accompanies the
application, demonstrating that the
materials will not exceed a reflectivity
score of 20%.

29

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

3. General Provisions

Compliance

Comment

3.6 Ecologically Sustainable
Development

Partial
compliance

The application has made some
commitments to reduce energy, water
and resource use, such as using an
electric heat pump rather than gas,
collecting rain water for the pool and spa
and committing to Forest Stewardship
Certified wood.
However the ESD statement makes
reference, rather than commitments, to
achieving a NABERS Hotel Energy
performance of 4.5-5 stars, and does not
address passive solar design and
providing natural ventilation to rooms.

3.7 Water and Flood
Management

Yes

Council's Flood Engineer has reviewed
the proposed development and is
satisfied that the development complies
with Council's Interim Floodplain
Management Policy.
The development would be required to
connect the Council's stormwater
drainage system.

3.9 Heritage

No

See further discussion under the Issues
heading.

3.11.3 Bike parking and
associated facilities

Yes

The development is required to provide
34 bike spaces.
60 bike spaces, two showers, change
rooms and lockers are provided in the
basement.

3.11.6 Service vehicle parking

No

Schedule 7.8.1 Service
vehicles

No

The development is required to provide
four service vehicle spaces. No vehicle
spaces are proposed, with servicing
proposed in St Laurence Lane.
The development seeks to significantly
intensify the use of the site and benefits
from rear lane access. It is therefore
unacceptable for the development to
burden surrounding streets for servicing.

3.11.8 Bus parking

No

30

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

3. General Provisions

Compliance

Comment

Schedule 7.8.3 Passenger pick
up and set down areas

No

The development is required to submit a
Parking and Access report which
assesses the provision of bus set-down
and parking. Three bus/coach parking
spaces are recommended.
The development does not provide onsite coach parking, and the
accompanying Traffic and Parking
Assessment Report does not discuss
accommodating visitors by bus/coach.

3.12 Accessible Design

Yes

The development provides appropriate
access and facilities for persons with
disabilities in accordance with the DCP
and the NCC.

3.13 Social and Environmental
Responsibilities

Yes

The development provides adequate
passive surveillance and is generally
designed in accordance with CPTED
principles.

3.14 Waste

No

A demolition and construction waste
management plan does not accompany
the application and as such the
application fails to demonstrate a
commitment to reducing waste in
accordance with the City's Guidelines for
Waste Management in New
Developments.

31

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

3. General Provisions

Compliance

Comment

3.15 Late Night Trading
Management

Partial
compliance

The site is located within the Late Night
management trading area which permits
24-hour internal trading and external
trading from 7am to 1am on a trial basis
for low impact premises.
The application proposes a 24 hour
reception and use of the ground floor
cafe/bar, level 3 internal and outdoor
pool area and level 15 kitchen in
accordance with the following hours:
Sunday - Thursday: 8am - 9pm
Friday - Saturday: 7am - midnight
A Plan of Management accompanies the
application.
In accordance with Section 4.4.8.4(4),
outdoor areas in backpacker premises
are recommended to be vacated by
10pm. Use of the outdoor pool area and
balconies past 10pm may adversely
impact the amenity of nearby residential
premises.

3.16 Signage and Advertising

Partial
compliance

The proposed under awning and wall
signs comply with Council's controls
under Section 3.16.6 of the Sydney DCP
2012 and is compatible with the
Chinatown signage precinct under
Section 3.16.12.9 of the Sydney DCP
2012.
Section 3.16.6.6 of the Sydney DCP
2012 prohibits signs projecting above
the awning fascia as is proposed. There
are no similar signs within the vicinity of
the site.
The level of illumination could be
controlled by way of a condition.
The proposed awning fascia sign is
incompatible with the existing and
desired future character of the area and
is not supported. The under awning and
wall signs are acceptable.

32

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

4.2 Residential flat,
commercial and mixed use
developments

Compliance

Comment

4.2.1.2 Floor to floor heights

No

The development is recommended to
provide the following floor to floor
heights:
Basement and Ground - 4.5 metres
First - 3.6 metres
Upper levels - 3.1 metres
The application proposes the following
floor to floor heights:
Basement - 3 metres
Ground - 4.5 metres
Upper levels - 3 metres
The development fails to provide
adequate floor to floor heights to allow
flexible use of the building in the future.

4.2.3.1 Solar access

No

The development has not considered
impacts to solar access to the adjoining
childcare centre.

4.2.3.4 Design features to
manage solar access

No

The development does not incorporate
passive solar design.

4.2.3.5 Landscaping

No

Insufficient information has been
provided to determine the viability of the
landscaping proposed to the podium,
including the size of planters and access
for maintenance.
A green wall is proposed on the
landscape plans but not shown on the
architectural plans.

33

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

4.2 Residential flat,
commercial and mixed use
developments

Compliance

Comment

4.2.3.11 Acoustic privacy

No

Council's Environmental Health officer
has reviewed the acoustic report
accompanying the application and
supports the recommendations
regarding the operation of the hotel, bar
and communal facilities.
However insufficient information is
provided to assess the acoustic impact
of the roof top plant.

4.2.4 Fine grain, architectural
diversity and articulation

Yes

The development respects the existing
fine grain subdivision pattern and active
street frontage.

4.2.6 Waste minimisation

No

An operational waste management plan
accompanies the application.
As previously discussed, the
development does not provide for onsite servicing which will unduly burden
surrounding streets. The plan and layout
also fail to provide sufficient storage for
bulk waste, cooking waste, a glass
crusher and manoeuvrability for
collection.

4.2.7 Heating and Cooling
Infrastructure

No

The plans do not identify the location of
heating and cooling infrastructure. It is
noted that the acoustic report has not
assessed the impact of plant on the
surrounding area.

4.4.8 Visitor accommodation

Compliance

Comment

Yes

The backpackers provides independent
access from George Street.

4.4.8.1 General
(1) New development must be
self-contained with no common
access ways with adjoining
properties.

34

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

4.4.8 Visitor accommodation

Compliance

Comment

(2) A site manager must be on
site when guests have access
to the premises. For premises
with fewer than 20 residents, a
resident caretaker may be
acceptable.

Yes

The Plan of Management states that a
manager will be on-site at all times. A
24-hour reception will be provided.

(3) For safety reasons,
sleeping rooms are not to
include triple-tier bunks and
cooking facilities in sleeping
rooms.

Yes

The rooms do not provide triple bunk
beds or cooking equipment.

(6) A Plan of Management and
a Noise Management Plan
must be submitted with the
development application.

Yes

A Plan of Management and acoustic
report accompany the application. The
management of patrons has been
adequately addressed.

4.4.8.4 Additional provisions for backpacker accommodation
(1) Backpacker
accommodation is to be
located within 400m of public
transport and within easy
access to facilities and
services.

Yes

Central Station, Railway Square and the
new CBD and South East Light Rail are
within 400 metres of the site.

35

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

4.4.8 Visitor accommodation

Compliance

Comment

(2) For sleeping rooms:

Yes

The development complies with the
relevant provisions.

(a) the maximum number of
persons to be accommodated
in a bedroom, or in a
dormitory, must be determined
on the basis of 3.25sqm per
person per sleeping room
(b) shared or dormitory-style
accommodation in a single
room must not accommodate
more than 8 guests
(c) the maximum length of stay
for guests is 28 consecutive
days
(d) individual, secure lockable
storage facilities of a minimum
capacity of 0.6 cubic metres
per person is to be provided to
allow guests to individually
store baggage and travel items
within the sleeping room
(e) where the premises
comprise more than 30 beds, a
range of room sizes and bed
types are to be provided

36

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

4.4.8 Visitor accommodation

Compliance

Comment

(3) Communal recreational
areas:

No

The development is required to provide
233sqm of internal communal areas.
223sqm is provided excluding the area
of kitchens and the bar.

(a) are to be provided within
the premises at a rate of
0.75sqm per person based on
the maximum number of
guests
(b) are to be a minimum total
floor area of 20sqm with a
minimum width of 3m where
the maximum number of
guests is less than 30
(c) are to be provided internally
where possible and in addition
to any outdoor communal
recreation area (dining areas
may be included as a
communal recreation area)
Note: The floor area of
bedrooms, bathrooms,
laundries, reception area,
storage, kitchens, car parking,
loading docks, driveways,
clothes drying areas, corridors
and the like do not count
towards the calculation of the
required communal recreation
area.

37

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

4.4.8 Visitor accommodation

Compliance

Comment

(4) Where communal outdoor
facilities are proposed:

No

The combined outdoor areas provided is
equal to 92.8sqm or 29% of the total
recreational area provided. The
application also proposes access on
Friday and Saturday night to midnight.

No

The kitchen and dining area can only
accommodate 24 people or 7% of the
total capacity of the accommodation.

(a) they should generally be no
greater than 20% of the total
communal recreational area
(b) the design and location is
to ensure that the noise impact
to surrounding property is
minimised
(c) the use should be restricted
to before 10pm, particularly if
there are residential uses
nearby
(d) details on the management
of the space including any
restricted hours of access are
to be included in the Plan of
Management
(5) For kitchen and dining
areas:
(a) an internal self-catering
kitchen and a separate dining
room for use by guests is to be
provided with capacity for at
least 15% of the maximum
number of guests to prepare
and consume meals at any
one time

Cooking facilities are not provided in the
bedrooms.

(b) cooking facilities or
kitchenettes are not permitted
in sleeping rooms

38

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

4.4.8 Visitor accommodation

Compliance

Comment

(6) For bathrooms:

No

Individual bathrooms are provided on
levels 2 and 3, with unisex facilities
provided on the floors above. However,
insufficient information has been
provided in the plans and within the SEE
regarding the form of the unisex facilities
to demonstrate compliance with the
control.

Yes

Laundry facilities are provided for guests
in the basement.

No

A staff room is not provided, and the
application does not commit to providing
accommodation for a resident caretaker.

(a) toilets are to be in a
separate compartment from
common showers and
bathrooms
(b) a minimum of one
bathroom for males and one
bathroom for females is to be
provided
(c) walls separating toilet and
shower compartments in single
sex facilities, must be a
minimum of 1.8m high and a
maximum 250mm off the
ground
(d) in unisex facilities,
partitions separating adjacent
compartments are to extend
from floor level to ceiling
(7) Provide the following
laundry facilities for every 50
occupants or part thereof:
(a) a washtub, clothes washing
machine
(b) a clothes dryer, or a
clothesline with a minimum
length of 20m and which can
be retractable in an outdoor
area or drying room
(8) Provide the following
additional rooms:
(a) a staff room
(b) a site manager’s office
(c) a sleeping room where
there is to be a resident and
caretaker and is not a shared
or dormitory room

39

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

5. Specific Areas

Compliance

Comment

5.1.2.2 Side and rear setbacks

No

Tourist and visitor accommodation are
required to provide a setback of 6
metres from primary windows to side
and rear boundaries. The proposed
building provides a zero setback to the
side and rear boundaries. While the
windows are the only source of light to
rooms, the development is nevertheless
contrary to the control.

5.1.2.3 Setbacks for buildings
adjoining or fronting lanes

No

Buildings are required to provide a
setback of 6 metres measured from the
centre of an adjoining lane. The
proposed building provides a setback of
between 3.2 and 4.8 metres on the east
elevation and a zero setback on the
north elevation.

5.1.3 Street frontage heights
and setbacks for Special
Character Areas

Yes

The development maintains the existing
facade and sets the tower back by 8
metres in accordance with the control.

5.1.6 Building exteriors

No

The building exterior including its form
and materials detract from the character
and appearance of the surrounding area
and is not supported. Further discussion
is provided under the Issues heading.

Issues
Heritage and Design Excellence
39.

The site is not identified as a heritage item, however it adjoins local and State heritage
items and is located with the Haymarket/Chinatown Special Character Area pursuant
to Section 2.1.3 of the Sydney DCP 2012. A heritage impact statement accompanies
the application as recommended by Clause 5.10 of the Sydney LEP 2012 and Section
3.9.1 of the Sydney DCP 2012.

Impact on Christ Church St Laurence
40.

The site is adjacent to the Christ Church St Laurence Anglican Church and Pipe
Organ, a State heritage item (item 849 under Schedule 5 of the Sydney LEP 2012). An
extract from the statement of significance listed on the Office of Heritage website is
summarised below:

40

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Principal Significance


Christ Church St Laurence, completed in 1845, has a distinctive place in the
history of the Australian Anglican Church as a parish church characterised by its
Anglo-Catholic identity at times to the point of acquiring national iconic status
within the Church.



Christ Church St Laurence group including the Church, church hall and rectory is
architecturally nationally significant as an ancient church group.



The Church a landmark, a building which carried/brought in the Victorian Gothic
Revival style, the early work of Edmund Blacket, the rectory and church
development. one of the best quality Edwardian city developments also intact
and part of one of the two earliest city blocks intact.

Other Significance

41.



The Church group has strong associations with important clergy and architects
among many others including William Horatio Walsh, Charles Frederick
Garnsey, Frederick John Albery and John Hope.



Christ Church St Laurence is a rare first-generation building in the city and as
such has archaeological potential to reveal evidence of Sydney's original land
form and pre-European culture. The Church retains the majority of all its
important liturgical fittings from the original work and its major changes.



Christ Church St Laurence due to its prominent history and strong support of
social causes maintains a high level of social significance. (Christ Church St
Laurence Conservation Management Plan, Clive Lucas Stapleton, 2001).

A Heritage Conservation Management Plan (CMP) for the Church by Clive Lucas
Stapleton and Partners (2001) defines the setting of the Church as the visual
catchment towards the Church, which extends beyond the site boundaries. The CMP
considers the setting corresponds to the primary significance of the place as a historic
landmark. Policy 9 of the CMP states that:
(a)

The following views to the place should be conserved:
East from Valentine Street, the axial view of west facade of the Church, including
the spire against the sky;
From Railway Square north towards site;
From George Street at Town Hall, the view of the tower and spire; and
From the concourse to the west of Central Railway Square west towards the site.

42.

The proposed new building will impact on the views towards the spire from Railway
Square, Central Station western court, Pitt Street, George Street and Valentine
Street. It appears behind or side-by-side with the spire in those views. Accordingly it
will disturb the setting of the landmark outlined in the CMP. Views of the spire will
therefore be detrimentally affected with the exception of views from north on George
Street. This is demonstrated by the montages (plans DA8.03—DA8.09) within
Attachment A.

41

Local Planning Panel

43.

17 July 2019

The following factors of the new building contribute its visual impact:
(a)

Proximity and height - The curtilage of the Church building and spire need to be
preserved to protect their landmark value. The proposed tower exceeds the
height of the spire and is significantly higher than the cornice line on the spire.
Council's Heritage officer has determined that a minimum distance of
approximately 18 metres, or equal to that between the spire and Lottery Office
building to the south, is required to protect the curtilage of the Church with regard
to the recommendations of the Conservation Management Plan. Any tall
buildings should therefore be set back beyond this distance to preserve the
setting of the spire, within which the proposed tower, at 11 metres away,
encroaches. The proposed new building is therefore within the area that is
considered to be the significant curtilage of the spire. In addition to the height of
the tower exceeding 50 metres, the new building will impose an unacceptable
impact on the visual setting of the Church.

(b)

Bulk - the proposed new building is also much larger than the spire. Along with
its proximity, it will dominate views of the Church.

(c)

Tower form - The new building is read as a tower when compared to the much
lower adjacent buildings. As previously discussed, the Haymarket/Chinatown
Special Character Area features a fine grained subdivision pattern, narrow street
frontages, low building height and absence of tower form. As was discussed with
the applicant during preliminary discussions, a tower cannot easily be built in
Haymarket due to the constraints of the lot sizes. In particular, it appears that the
block surrounded by George Street, Pitt Street and Rawson Place has not been
changed for the last 100 years. The large multistorey brick buildings at the three
block corners (11-23 Rawson Place, 790 George St and 814 George St), low
scale commercial terraces (800-808 George St) and Christ Church St Laurence
characterise this unique block formed by the extension of Pitt St and the
construction of Central Station in the early 20th and together contribute to the
Special Character Area. The Church tower is the only tower form in the block
and is accentuated by the low scale surrounding buildings. The new tower
building, which is higher and bulker, will eclipse the prominent church tower.

(d)

Facades and material - The facade treatment (arch forms, brick tiles and colour)
detracts from the Church tower and other heritage buildings within the block. The
superficial application of arches, while a periodic feature of historic buildings, is
inappropriate in this instance, particularly with regard to the use of modern
materials. The current design is neither quiet nor compatible but dominating and
overwhelming to the block. Its facade and materiality are poorly designed and
detract from the neighbouring heritage buildings.

(e)

Overshadowing - The stained glass windows on the northern elevation of the
Church appear to already be overshadowed by existing buildings which will be
compounded by the new proposed tower. The development will also overshadow
the Church tower in the morning - sunlight on the spire may be considered to
have spiritual significance to the Church.

Impact on other heritage buildings and local character
44.

The character statement for the Haymarket/Chinatown Special Character Area is as
follows:

42

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

The area is characterised by Victorian and Federation warehouses and commercial
buildings and service laneways associated with the market, commercial and retail uses
of the area and former wharfs of Darling Harbour, and evidence of development
following the opening of Central Railway Station in 1906. The area has fine grained
subdivision patterns, narrow frontages, informal public spaces and generally low
building heights. The consistent low street wall heights, the general absence of tower
forms create a pleasant microclimate at street level which is sunlit and protected from
winds.
45.

The building's scale, height, commercial use and inter-war Chicagoesque form
contribute to the character of the Haymarket/Chinatown Special Character Area and
neighbouring buildings. It complements Christ Church St Laurence and enhances the
streetscape. The development proposes renovating the existing building facade with a
limestone render. The tower above will be setback 8 metres from the front boundary in
accordance with Section 5.1.3 of the Sydney DCP 2012.

46.

The subject site and its northern neighbouring sites exemplify the character of the
Haymarket/Chinatown Special Character Area. The proposed new building conflicts
with the general absence of tower forms and, built on side and rear boundaries, will
encourage similar redevelopment of its northern neighbouring sites, creating a bank of
tall buildings without physical separation. Such a scenario would have a detrimental
impact on all heritage buildings contained within the block surrounded by George
Street, Rawson Place and Pitt Street.

47.

The new building will also appear in the current sky backdrop of the Church school
building (No 455 Pitt St) when being viewed from Pitt Street, where the intact form and
setting of the Church group have not been affected by the later developments in the
vicinity.

48.

The proposed building also affects the vistas towards the Central Station Clock Tower
and the Church tower, such as the vista along Valentine St shown on the photo below.

43

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 27: The intact building forms and their roofline setting as viewed from Pitt Street

Figure 28: The proposed tower, which is located to the north (left) of the Church and is higher that the
Church spore will impact on views of the Church and the Central Station Clock Tower along
Valentine Street.

44

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Excavation in vicinity of heritage buildings
49.

According to the geotechnical report, the extent of excavation is 3 metres deep and
piling is needed for the footings of the new building. There is uncertainty about the soil
condition and groundwater. Retaining supports are needed for the neighbouring
buildings and the use of excavation machines may cause major vibrations. Further
field investigations, including conditions of footings of the neighbouring buildings, are
needed in developing the construction methodologies.

50.

The risk caused the excavation would likely be manageable, subject to reducing its
scale to incorporate retention structures to support the retained facade and
neighbouring buildings.

Impact on the subject site
51.

Although the existing building on the subject site is not heritage listed Council's
Heritage officer has assessed the existing building as having considerable heritage
significance. The main building structures were built in 1868 and 1904. Any stonework,
brickwork and timber structure that dates from 1868 is rare in Central Sydney. That
internal early finishes may already have been lost does not substantially diminish the
early structure’s significance. As such, the existing early structure including the side
and rear walls and internal timber floors should be retained and adapted for any
proposed new uses, in addition to the front facade. The proposal for a new building
does not preclude options for retention of the majority of the original fabric and
structure and minimising any new structure’s impact to the existing building.

Clause 4.6 request to vary a development standard
52.

The site is subject to a maximum building height of 50 metres. The proposed
development has a building height of 52.2 metres. The development exceeds the
maximum height standard by 4.4%.

Figure 29: The rear elevation on St Laurence Lane, with the maximum 50 metre height of building
development standard in red

45

Local Planning Panel

53.

54.

17 July 2019

A written request has been submitted to Council in accordance with Clause 4.6(3)(a)
and (b) of the Sydney LEP 2012 seeking to justify the contravention of the
development standard by demonstrating:
(a)

that compliance with the development standard is unreasonable or unnecessary
in the circumstances of the case; and

(b)

that there are sufficient environmental planning grounds to justify contravening
the standard.

A copy of the applicant's written request is provided at Attachment B.

Applicants Written Request - Clause 4.6(3)(a) and (b)
55.

The applicant seeks to justify the contravention of the height of buildings development
standard on the following basis:
(a)

That compliance with the development standard is unreasonable or unnecessary
in the circumstances of the case:
(i)

The applicant has referred to Wehbe v Pittwater Council [2007] NSWLEC
827, whereby Preston CJ establishes the test for determining whether
compliance with a standard is unreasonable or unnecessary. A summary of
the applicant’s request and assessment is provided below.

(ii)

The applicant states that the development is consistent with the objectives
of Clause 4.3 – the height of buildings development standard,
notwithstanding non-compliance with the numerical standard, and
therefore satisfies the first test under Wehbe. The objectives of the clause
are provided below:
(a) to ensure the height of development is appropriate to the condition of
the site and its context,
(b) to ensure appropriate height transitions between new development and
heritage items and buildings in heritage conservation areas or special
character areas,
(c) to promote the sharing of views,
(d) to ensure appropriate height transitions from Central Sydney and
Green Square Town Centre to adjoining areas,
(e) in respect of Green Square:
(i) to ensure the amenity of the public domain by restricting taller buildings
to only part of a site, and
(ii) to ensure the built form contributes to the physical definition of the
street network and public spaces.

46

Local Planning Panel

(b)

17 July 2019

(iii)

With regard to (a) the applicant asserts that the extent of the variation will
be imperceptible from the public domain and neighbouring properties. The
contemporary infill design will contribute to the urban context and desired
future character of the locality having regard to both the current and
anticipated scale of development in the surrounding area. The
development has had consideration of the site constraints, surrounding
built form and provides for the commercial use proposed.

(iv)

With regard to (b) the applicant has drawn from the heritage impact
statement accompanying the application to affirm the appropriateness of
the development will regards to the adjacent Christ Church St Laurence. In
particular the building will not disrupt views of the Church spire, has regard
to the scale of development in the surrounding area and is designed "in the
round" to provide uniformity.

(v)

With regard to (c) the development does not obstruct views.

(i)

With regard to (d) the development is generally consistent with the
envisaged scale of development in the surrounding area. In terms of
materiality, height, setbacks and overall form and scale the proposal will
not adversely impact the locality while positively contributing to the diversity
of architectural styles and densities provided within the area.

(ii)

(e) is not relevant to the proposal as it not located within Green Square.

(iii)

The applicant has also addressed the remaining four tests within Wehbe
and stated that these are not relevant to the matter.

That there are sufficient environmental planning grounds to justify contravening
the standard:
(i)

The applicant has referred to Four2Five Pty Ltd v Ashfield Council [2015]
NSWLEC 90. A summary of the applicant’s request and assessment is
provided below.

(ii)

The development will facilitate greater amenity for future residents on a site
highly suited for the proposed use. The development will not detract from
existing and future developments in the surrounding area.

(iii)

The building parapets conceal services such as solar panels, the lift
overrun and water tank. The uppermost level also contains communal
facilities.

(iv)

Strict compliance would not result in material benefit to the surrounding
area and would hinder the provision of communal facilities.

(v)

The extent of the variation will be imperceptible from the public domain and
neighbouring properties such as overshadowing or loss of views.

(vi)

Strict compliance with the permissible height of buildings standard would
hinder the provision of the communal area to the uppermost building level
that would compromise on the ability to offer higher levels of building
amenity, including equitable building access to this level. In this regard, the
proposal is considered to provide a better environmental planning outcome
than if such elements were not provided.

47

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

(vii) The application represents the orderly and economic use and development
of the land.
Consideration of Applicants Written Request - Clause 4.6(4) (a) (i) and (ii)
56.

Development consent must not be granted unless the consent authority is satisfied
that:
(a)

The applicant’s written request has adequately addressed the matters required
to be demonstrated by subclause 3 of Clause 4.6 being that compliance with the
development standard is unreasonable or unnecessary in the circumstances of
the case, and that there are sufficient environmental planning grounds to justify
contravening the standard; and

(b)

The proposed development will be in the public interest because it is consistent
with the objectives of the particular standard and the objectives for development
within the zone in which the development is proposed to be carried out.

Does the written request adequately address those issues at Clause 4.6(3)(a)?
57.

The application correctly attempts to establish that compliance with the height of
buildings development standard is unreasonable or unnecessary having regard to the
objectives of the development standard. However, as previously discussed, the
proposal will have an adverse impact on the visual setting and heritage significance of
the adjacent Christ Church St Laurence and Haymarket/Chinatown Special Character
Area, due primarily to its height, bulk and the proximity of the tower to the Church
spire. The development therefore does not demonstrate adequate regard to those
matters identified in objectives (a), (b) and (c) and can therefore not be granted
development consent.

Does the written request adequately address those issues at clause 4.6(3)(b)?
58.

CJ Preston in Initial Action Pty Ltd v Woollahra Municipal Council [2018] NSWLEC 118
provides a comprehensive summary of those matters required to be addressed in the
construction of a request to vary a development standard pursuant to Clause 4.6. With
regard to Clause 4.6(3)(b):
The environmental planning grounds relied on in the written request under cl 4.6 must
be “sufficient”. There are two respects in which the written request needs to be
“sufficient”. First, the environmental planning grounds advanced in the written request
must be sufficient “to justify contravening the development standard”. The focus of cl
4.6(3)(b) is on the aspect or element of the development that contravenes the
development standard, not on the development as a whole, and why that
contravention is justified on environmental planning grounds. The environmental
planning grounds advanced in the written request must justify the contravention of the
development standard, not simply promote the benefits of carrying out the
development as a whole: see Four2Five Pty Ltd v Ashfield Council [2015] NSWCA 248
at [15]. Second, the written request must demonstrate that there are sufficient
environmental planning grounds to justify contravening the development standard so
as to enable the consent authority to be satisfied under cl 4.6(4)(a)(i) that the written
request has adequately addressed this matter: see Four2Five Pty Ltd v Ashfield
Council [2015] NSWLEC 90 at [31].

48

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

59.

The assertion that exceeding the height standard provides improved amenity to
occupants by locating communal facilities on the uppermost floor is not considered an
environmental planning ground sufficient to justify a variation, as these facilities could
be located one floor lower and provide the same amenity whilst achieving compliance.
It is noted that the development does not provide the minimum recommended
provision of communal facilities in accordance with Section 4.4.8.4 of the Sydney DCP
2012. The location of services, plant and lift overrun on the roof would also not be
compromised by reducing the height of the building by a storey to comply.

60.

As previously discussed, the development will have an adverse impact on views
towards, and the heritage significance of, the Christ Church St Laurence and the
Haymarket/Chinatown Special Character Area. As such, any additional height will
compound these impacts.

61.

The applicant's assertion that the development will not adversely overshadow
neighbouring properties has failed to consider overshadowing impacts on Christ
Church St Laurence as previously discussed.

62.

The application therefore has not provided sufficient environmental planning grounds
to justify varying the height of buildings development standard and cannot be granted
development consent.

Is the development in the public interest?
63.

With regard to varying development standards, the public interest is conceived as
being protected where a development meets the objectives of the zone and the
development standard sought to be varied. As has been discussed already, the
exceedance to the height of buildings standard does not accord with objectives (a), (b)
and (c). The development is therefore not in the public interest.

64.

For completeness, an assessment against the objectives of the B8 - Metropolitan
Centre zone is provided below. The objectives of the zone are as follows:

65.



To recognise and provide for the pre-eminent role of business, office, retail,
entertainment and tourist premises in Australia’s participation in the global
economy.



To provide opportunities for an intensity of land uses commensurate with
Sydney’s global status.



To permit a diversity of compatible land uses characteristic of Sydney’s global
status and that serve the workforce, visitors and wider community.



To encourage the use of alternatives to private motor vehicles, such as public
transport, walking or cycling.



To promote uses with active street frontages on main streets and on streets in
which buildings are used primarily (at street level) for the purposes of retail
premises.

The extent of the variation to the height of buildings development standard does not
raise any conflicts with the objectives of the B8 - Metropolitan Centre zone.

49

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Conclusion
66.

For the reasons provided above the requested variation to the height of buildings
development standard is not supported, as the applicant's written request has not
adequately addressed the matters required to be addressed by Clause 4.6(3) of the
Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012. The proposed development is not in the
public interest under Clause 4.6(4)(ii) because it is inconsistent with the objectives of
the height of buildings development standard.

Setback to St Laurence Lane and wind effects
67.

Section 3.2.6 of the Sydney DCP 2012 requires development to have consideration for
wind effects from buildings greater than 45 metres tall and be based on wind tunnel
testing such that development does not adversely impact public and private domains.

68.

The Haymarket/Chinatown locality statement at Section 2.1.3 of the Sydney DCP 2012
specifically notes the absence of negative wind impacts due to the relative absence of
tower forms.

69.

The application includes a wind report which is experience based rather than based
upon actual wind tunnel testing, contrary to the control.

70.

Given the immediate proximity of the proposed tower to 505 Pitt Street (Christ Church
St Laurence School), it is appropriate that wind impacts to outside areas are quantified
via wind tunnel testing. The site is currently approved for use as a childcare centre
(D/2016/117). In this approval, outdoor play areas and vegetable gardens are
proposed immediately adjacent to the 50m shear wall at the eastern boundary.

71.

The proposal includes a minimal setback at the shared eastern boundary with 505 Pitt
Street varying from zero to 2.187m. A vertical wall of approximately 50m in height
adjacent to open external areas will most likely have significant negative impacts on
the use of these external areas. Downwash from easterly winds without any podium
setback to reduce downwash will render this space unusable.

72.

As such the development is contrary to Section 3.2.6 of the Sydney DCP 2012.

Other Impacts of the Development
73.

The proposed development is capable of complying with the NCC..

Suitability of the site for the Development
74.

With regard to heritage impacts, the site is not considered suitable for the proposed
development.

Internal Referrals
75.

The application was discussed with the Heritage and Urban Design Specialists;
Building Services Unit; Environmental Health; Public Domain; Safe City; Surveyors;
Transport and Access; and Waste Management teams. Their responses are discussed
within the body of the report.

50

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

External Referrals
Office of Heritage
76.

77.

The Office of Heritage provided the following comments with regard to the proposal.
The first point differs to the assessment provided by Council's Heritage officer and is
included for completeness:


The proposed design of the tower uses architectural detailing, fenestration
patterns and proportions to respond to the character of the streetscape. In
addition, the retention of the façade of the existing building allows the
established character along George Street to be retained.



However, the proposed location and height of the tower will have a significant
impact on the prominence of the adjacent Christ Church St Laurence Anglican
Church spire, in particular when viewed looking north along George Street, and
looking west from Pitt Street.



Christ Church St Laurence Anglican Church is listed on the State Heritage
Register due to its social significance as well as its landmark value, including as
part of one of the two earliest city blocks intact. The proposed tower will impact
on the primacy of the spire and detract from its landmark qualities. We therefore
recommend that the height of the tower be reduced to match the height of the
cornice of the spire.

The application was referred to Transport for NSW, the Police, Sydney Trains,
WaterNSW and Ausgrid. Their responses where relevant are discussed within the
body of the report.

Notification, Advertising and Delegation
78.

In accordance with Schedule 1 the Sydney DCP 2012, the proposed development is
required to be notified and advertised. As such the application was notified and
advertised for a period of 21 days between 22 February 2019 and 16 March 2019. As
a result of this notification there were 76 unique objections received raising the
following concerns:
(a)

The development by way of its form, scale and setting will adversely affect the
heritage significance of the Christ Church St Laurence and surrounding Special
Character Area.
Response - As discussed above, the development will have an adverse heritage
impact and is not supported.

(b)

The development exceeds the maximum height of buildings development
standard and height in storeys controls for the site.
Response - The development fails to address the provisions of Clause 4.6 in
justifying the variation to the standard and is not supported.

(c)

The building height will overshadow neighbouring properties.
Response - Concern is raised regarding the impact of the tower on solar access
to the Church and adjoining childcare centre.

(d)

The development exceeds the maximum floor space ratio permitted for the site.

51

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Response - The development complies with the maximum floor space ratio for
the site and proposed uses.
(e)

The building will create adverse wind effects on the public domain and
neighbouring properties.
Response - Concern is raised regarding the impact of the tower on the amenity
of the adjoining childcare centre.

(f)

The development does not provide for on-site servicing and waste collection,
adversely impacting the surrounding street network.
Response - Agreed, the development does not comply with relevant planning
policies for waste collection and on-site servicing.

(g)

The development will adversely contribute to traffic, demand for local transport
services and on-street parking.
Response - The development is unlikely to result in private vehicular traffic and
burden public transport.

(h)

The use by way of the proposed outdoor spaces and nature of backpackers will
adversely impact the amenity of the surrounding area.
Response - The development does not comply with relevant planning policies
regarding the management of the premises and patrons. Concern is raised this
will adversely impact the amenity of the surrounding area.

(i)

Basement excavation may adversely impact the structural integrity of adjoining
properties.
Response - Concern is raised that insufficient information has been provided to
mitigate dilapidation of neighbouring properties during excavation.

(j)

The location of windows on the boundary will inhibit development of adjoining
properties.
Response - The location of windows on boundaries can be managed by way of
covenants on title.

(k)

The proposed laundry is not accessible to patrons with disability.
Response - The laundry could be made accessible.

(l)

The development does not contribute to the activation of St Laurence Lane.
Response - The development is not required to provide an active frontage to St
Laurence Lane.

(m)

Construction impacts.
Response - The development is not accompanied by a demolition, excavation
and construction noise and vibration management plan and construction traffic
management plan.

52

Local Planning Panel

(n)

17 July 2019

The development does not comply with the minimum setback requirements for
Central Sydney.
Response - Agreed the development will have an adverse impact on the public
domain and neighbouring properties as a result.

(o)

The development does not comply with relevant provisions for backpackers'
accommodation with regard to patron management and internal and external
amenity.
Response - Agreed, the development provides insufficient communal facilities
and management practices in accordance with Council's controls.

(p)

The surrounding area is over serviced by backpackers' accommodation.
Response - This is not a matter for consideration under current planning
controls.

(q)

The site is inappropriate for a backpackers having regard to complaints from
existing backpackers about the Church bells ringing on Sunday mornings.
Response - The noise from the bells does not render the site unsuitable for the
proposed development, notwithstanding complaints received in the past.

Public Interest
79.

It is considered that the proposal will have no detrimental effect on the public interest,
subject to appropriate conditions being proposed.

S61 Contribution
80.

The cost of the development is in excess of $200,000 and would be subject to a
Section 61 developer contribution.

Relevant Legislation
81.

The Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

Conclusion
82.

The application proposes partial demolition, renovation of the front facade, excavation
and construction of a 16 storey backpackers' accommodation with single level
basement. The backpackers will accommodate 291 dorm beds and 10 private rooms
with a maximum capacity of 311 guests. Communal facilities including laundry,
kitchen, outdoor pool, bar, cafe and living rooms are included.

53

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

83.

The development exceeds the 50 metre height of buildings development standard by
2.2 metres. A request to vary the standard does not adequately address the provisions
of Clause 4.6(3) and is not in the public interest. As such development consent must
not be granted.

84.

The development, by way of its height, bulk, appearance and proximity, will have an
adverse impact on the visual setting and heritage significance of the adjacent Christ
Church St Laurence and accompanying buildings, streetscape and
Haymarket/Chinatown Special Character Area. The design does not consider passive
sun shading and will contribute to adverse wind impacts on the adjoining childcare
centre. The development therefore does not exhibit design excellence.

85.

Inadequate information has been provided to receive the concurrence of Transport for
NSW in accordance with Clause 88 of the State Environmental Planning Policy
(Infrastructure) 2007.

86.

The development fails to provide a detailed environmental site investigation as
recommended by the applicant's environmental consultant regarding potential
remediation of the site, contrary to State Environmental Planning Policy 55 Remediation of Land.

87.

The development does not provide for on-site loading and waste collection, unduly
burdening the surrounding streets. The proposed hours of access to outdoor facilities
to midnight and inadequate provision of internal communal facilities are contrary to
Council's controls for backpackers and may adversely impact the amenity of
neighbouring properties. The development also fails to contribute public art,
landscaping details and the proposed signage is contrary to the character of the
surrounding area.

88.

The application was notified and advertised for 21 days and received 76 unique
objections. The concerns are discussed within the report.

89.

For the reasons above the development is not in the public interest and is
recommended for refusal.

GRAHAM JAHN, AM
Director City Planning, Development and Transport
David Zabell, Senior Planner

54

Attachment A1
Selected Drawings

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

Nominated Architect: Carl Salim 7498

68

mkdarchitects.com.au

THE BOUNCE

DA

Project Status:

Client:

Project Number:

18793

810 - 812A GEORGE STREET / SYDNEY

Project Address:

DA-6.05

Revision: A

STREETSCAPE ELEVATION

Drawing Scale @ A3: 1:500

Drawing Number:

Drawing Name:

(FEB 2019)

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES INTENDED AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF MKD ARCHITECTS. THIS DRAWING AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE AUTHOR. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED © 2018.

69

70







71

6KDGRZVIURPH[LVWLQJRUSURSRVHGYHJHWDWLRQKDYHQRWEHHQFRQVLGHUHG
6KDGRZVFDOFXODWHGDFFRUGLQJWRLQIRUPDWLRQSURYLGHGIURPVXUYH\DQG
DUFKLWHFWXUDOGUDZLQJV

127(6

1R$

1R%

1R$

1R

$GGLWLRQDOVKDGRZIURPSURSRVHGEXLOGLQJV

6KDGRZIURPH[LVWLQJEXLOGLQJV

*(25*(675((7

1(
/$

DP

6+

',*,7$//,1(3W\/WG
32%R[
1HXWUDO%D\16:
3KRQH  
)D[  

1R3,7767

0.'$UFKLWHFWV

$UFKLWHFWV

6+$'2:',$*5$0-81(VW

$SSUR[7UXH1RUWK

71

1&(
85(
67
/$

3URSRVHGGHYHORSPHQWDW
$*HRUJH6WUHHW
+D\PDUNHW16:

3URMHFW

SULQWHG#$

6FDOH



-RE16KBD







72

6KDGRZVIURPH[LVWLQJRUSURSRVHGYHJHWDWLRQKDYHQRWEHHQFRQVLGHUHG
6KDGRZVFDOFXODWHGDFFRUGLQJWRLQIRUPDWLRQSURYLGHGIURPVXUYH\DQG
DUFKLWHFWXUDOGUDZLQJV

127(6

1R$

1R%

1R$

1R

$GGLWLRQDOVKDGRZIURPSURSRVHGEXLOGLQJV

6KDGRZIURPH[LVWLQJEXLOGLQJV

*(25*(675((7

1(
/$

DP

6+

',*,7$//,1(3W\/WG
32%R[
1HXWUDO%D\16:
3KRQH  
)D[  

1R3,7767

0.'$UFKLWHFWV

$UFKLWHFWV

6+$'2:',$*5$0-81(VW

$SSUR[7UXH1RUWK

71

1&(
85(
67
/$

3URSRVHGGHYHORSPHQWDW
$*HRUJH6WUHHW
+D\PDUNHW16:

3URMHFW

SULQWHG#$

6FDOH



-RE16KBD







73

6KDGRZVIURPH[LVWLQJRUSURSRVHGYHJHWDWLRQKDYHQRWEHHQFRQVLGHUHG
6KDGRZVFDOFXODWHGDFFRUGLQJWRLQIRUPDWLRQSURYLGHGIURPVXUYH\DQG
DUFKLWHFWXUDOGUDZLQJV

127(6

1R$

1R%

1R$

1R

$GGLWLRQDOVKDGRZIURPSURSRVHGEXLOGLQJV

6KDGRZIURPH[LVWLQJEXLOGLQJV

*(25*(675((7

1(
/$

DP

6+

',*,7$//,1(3W\/WG
32%R[
1HXWUDO%D\16:
3KRQH  
)D[  

1R3,7767

0.'$UFKLWHFWV

$UFKLWHFWV

6+$'2:',$*5$0-81(VW

$SSUR[7UXH1RUWK

71

1&(
85(
67
/$

3URSRVHGGHYHORSPHQWDW
$*HRUJH6WUHHW
+D\PDUNHW16:

3URMHFW

SULQWHG#$

6FDOH



-RE16KBD







74

6KDGRZVIURPH[LVWLQJRUSURSRVHGYHJHWDWLRQKDYHQRWEHHQFRQVLGHUHG
6KDGRZVFDOFXODWHGDFFRUGLQJWRLQIRUPDWLRQSURYLGHGIURPVXUYH\DQG
DUFKLWHFWXUDOGUDZLQJV

127(6

1R$

1R%

1R$

1R

$GGLWLRQDOVKDGRZIURPSURSRVHGEXLOGLQJV

6KDGRZIURPH[LVWLQJEXLOGLQJV

*(25*(675((7

1(
/$

QRRQ

6+

',*,7$//,1(3W\/WG
32%R[
1HXWUDO%D\16:
3KRQH  
)D[  

1R3,7767

0.'$UFKLWHFWV

$UFKLWHFWV

6+$'2:',$*5$0-81(VW

$SSUR[7UXH1RUWK

71

1&(
85(
67
/$

3URSRVHGGHYHORSPHQWDW
$*HRUJH6WUHHW
+D\PDUNHW16:

3URMHFW

SULQWHG#$

6FDOH



-RE16KBD







75

6KDGRZVIURPH[LVWLQJRUSURSRVHGYHJHWDWLRQKDYHQRWEHHQFRQVLGHUHG
6KDGRZVFDOFXODWHGDFFRUGLQJWRLQIRUPDWLRQSURYLGHGIURPVXUYH\DQG
DUFKLWHFWXUDOGUDZLQJV

127(6

1R$

1R%

1R$

1R

$GGLWLRQDOVKDGRZIURPSURSRVHGEXLOGLQJV

6KDGRZIURPH[LVWLQJEXLOGLQJV

*(25*(675((7

1(
/$

SP

6+

',*,7$//,1(3W\/WG
32%R[
1HXWUDO%D\16:
3KRQH  
)D[  

1R3,7767

0.'$UFKLWHFWV

$UFKLWHFWV

6+$'2:',$*5$0-81(VW

$SSUR[7UXH1RUWK

71

1&(
85(
67
/$

3URSRVHGGHYHORSPHQWDW
$*HRUJH6WUHHW
+D\PDUNHW16:

3URMHFW

SULQWHG#$

6FDOH



-RE16KBD







76

6KDGRZVIURPH[LVWLQJRUSURSRVHGYHJHWDWLRQKDYHQRWEHHQFRQVLGHUHG
6KDGRZVFDOFXODWHGDFFRUGLQJWRLQIRUPDWLRQSURYLGHGIURPVXUYH\DQG
DUFKLWHFWXUDOGUDZLQJV

127(6

1R$

1R%

1R$

1R

$GGLWLRQDOVKDGRZIURPSURSRVHGEXLOGLQJV

6KDGRZIURPH[LVWLQJEXLOGLQJV

*(25*(675((7

1(
/$

SP

6+

',*,7$//,1(3W\/WG
32%R[
1HXWUDO%D\16:
3KRQH  
)D[  

1R3,7767

0.'$UFKLWHFWV

$UFKLWHFWV

6+$'2:',$*5$0-81(VW

$SSUR[7UXH1RUWK

71

1&(
85(
67
/$

3URSRVHGGHYHORSPHQWDW
$*HRUJH6WUHHW
+D\PDUNHW16:

3URMHFW

SULQWHG#$

6FDOH



-RE16KBD







77

6KDGRZVIURPH[LVWLQJRUSURSRVHGYHJHWDWLRQKDYHQRWEHHQFRQVLGHUHG
6KDGRZVFDOFXODWHGDFFRUGLQJWRLQIRUPDWLRQSURYLGHGIURPVXUYH\DQG
DUFKLWHFWXUDOGUDZLQJV

127(6

1R$

1R%

1R$

1R

$GGLWLRQDOVKDGRZIURPSURSRVHGEXLOGLQJV

6KDGRZIURPH[LVWLQJEXLOGLQJV

*(25*(675((7

1(
/$

SP

6+

',*,7$//,1(3W\/WG
32%R[
1HXWUDO%D\16:
3KRQH  
)D[  

1R3,7767

0.'$UFKLWHFWV

$UFKLWHFWV

6+$'2:',$*5$0-81(VW

$SSUR[7UXH1RUWK

71

1&(
85(
67
/$

3URSRVHGGHYHORSPHQWDW
$*HRUJH6WUHHW
+D\PDUNHW16:

3URMHFW

SULQWHG#$

6FDOH



-RE16KBD

78

79

80

81

82

83

FINISH

SCHEDULE OF FINISHES

AW

W, AP

ALUMINIUM FINISH
AAF ‘WHITE MATT’

ALUMINIUM FINISH
AAF ‘BOLD AS BRASS’

PT1

DULUX
PAINT FINISH
‘NATURAL WHITE’

PT2

FB1

BRICK TILES
AUSTRAL BRICKS
‘LA PALOMA MIRO’

DULUX
PAINT FINISH
‘ANTIQUE’

MB1

DRAWING CODE

MASONRY BLOCK
LIMESTONE ‘BISCUIT’
CLADDING

DESCRIPTION

810-812A GEORGE STREET,
HAYMARKET

X.

O

°

01

VC

A

BENCHMARK
RL 11.65 (AHD)

EET

STR

PR

RGE

GEO

A

15°48
' 7.37
5 (Su
15°48
rvey)
' 7.31
5 (Dee
d)

"X"

THREE STOREY
BRICK BUILDING
METAL ROOF
No. 812B

SANDSTONE & BRICK
BUILDING
TILE ROOF
No.814A
" CHRIST CHURCH ST LAURENCE "

15' 23
.305
286°
(Dee
15' 23
d)
.36 (S
urvey
)

286°

6
Sec 1
DP 978643

106°
21'
21.11
(Dee
d)

THREE STOREY
BRICK BUILDING
METAL ROOF
No. 810 - 812A

THREE STOREY
BRICK BUILDING
METAL ROOF
No. 806 - 808

286°2
8'40
"
4.785
(Dee
d)
106°2
8'40
"
6.305
6.375 (Deed)
(Surv
ey)

BENCHMARK
RL 10.62 (AHD)

"Y"

9.6
3

ST

NC

E
RE
LA
U

AP

20
3
213 °09'
°0
6
' 7 7.52
.58 (D
5 ( ee
Su d)
rve
y)

84

LA
NE
CL

BRICK BUILDING
METAL ROOF
No. 505 PITT ST.

TK

KERB TOP

BOUNDARY MGA DEFINITON
EASTING
NORTHING
"X" 333969.291 6249493.122
"Y" 333993.037 6249500.364

NORTHWEST

ADDED DIMENSIONS
ADDED MGA COORD.

C
D

AMENDMENTS
SECTION ADDED

B

No.

TH

TH

TH

DRAWN

22/01/2019

21/01/2019

18/01/2019

DATE:

D

AMENDMENT

1 : 100 @ A1 SCALE 1: 200 @ A3

1
ECP1578.D.01_REVD
DRAWING No.

SS/TH
SHEET

22/05/2018
DRAWN BY

SSM 168140

ORIGIN OF LEVELS

A.H.D.

HAYMARKET

LOCALITY

DATE

LOTS 6 & 7 DP 978643

PROPERTY

DATUM

SYDNEY
AUTHORITY

AUTHORISED:

CHECK:

SURVEYOR:

No. 810 - 812A George Street
Haymarket, NSW 2000

P.O. BOX 7388, BAULKHAM HILLS
N.S.W. 2153, Australia
Mob: 0408556914 or 0458957000
Email: info@ecpsurveyors.com.au

FILE NAME: ECP1578.D.01_REVD

2
6.2 13°
8 ( 05'
De
ed
)

15°48
'
5.955
(Dee
d)

85
TO INTS'N. OF
RAWSON PL.

THREE STOREY
BRICK BUILDING
METAL ROOF
No. 806 - 808

5.955 (Deed)

GEORGE

BOUNDARY
(Deed)

FL
11.30

7
Sec 1
DP 978643

BOUNDARY
(Deed)

A-A

FL
11.29

L1
15.33

FL
11.40

L2
18.74

7.315 (Deed)
7.375 (Survey)

6
Sec 1
DP 978643

BOUNDARY
(Deed)
BOUNDARY
(Survey)

STREET

TO INTS'N. OF
PITT ST.

AWNING BOT. 14.56

AWNING TOP 15.11

COLUMN 16.24
WIN SILL 16.19
PARAPET 16.00

WIN TOP 18.13

WIN SILL 19.52

PARAPET 22.21
COLUMN 21.85
WIN TOP 21.48

PARAPET 23.03

PARAPET 24.10

THREE STOREY
BRICK BUILDING
METAL ROOF
No. 812B

NORTHWEST

ADDED DIMESNIONS
ADDED MGA COORD.

C
D

AMENDMENTS
SECTION ADDED

B

No.

TH

TH

TH

DRAWN

DATE:

22/01/2019

21/01/2019

18/01/2019

1 : 100 @ A1 SCALE 1: 200 @ A3

D

SS/TH

AMENDMENT

22/05/2018
DRAWN BY

2

A.H.D.
DATE

ECP1578.D.01_REVD

SSM 168140
DATUM

DRAWING No.

HAYMARKET
ORIGIN OF LEVELS

SHEET

LOTS 6 & 7 DP 978643
LOCALITY

SYDNEY
PROPERTY

AUTHORITY

AUTHORISED:

CHECK:

SURVEYOR:

No. 810 - 812A George Street
Haymarket, NSW 2000

P.O. BOX 7388, BAULKHAM HILLS
N.S.W. 2153, Australia
Mob: 0408556914 or 0458957000
Email: info@ecpsurveyors.com.au

FILE NAME: ECP1578.D.01_REVD

Attachment A2
Selected Drawings

86

A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)

A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)

A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)

A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)

A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)

A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)

A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)

A (FEB 2019)

DA-2.00
DA-2.00 -- SITE
SITE ANALYSIS
ANALYSIS
DA-2.01 - SITE LOCATION PLAN
DA-2.02 - SITE CONTEXT & STREETSCAPE
DA-2.03 - SITE HERITAGE CONDITIONS
DA-2.04 - BUILDINGS HERITAGE CONDITIONS
DA-2.05 - PRECEDENTS 1
DA-2.06 - PRECEDENTS 2

DA-3.00 -- BUILDING
BUILDING ENVELOPE ANALYSIS
DA-3.00
ANALYSIS
DA-3.01 - EXISTING BUILDING ISOMETRIC
DA-3.02 - PERMISSIBLE BUILDING ENVELOPE ISOMETRIC
DA-3.03 - EXISTING BUILDING ELEVATION
DA-3.04 - PERMISSIBLE BUILDING ENVELOPE ELEVATION
DA-3.05 - PERMISSIBLE BUILDING ENVELOPE VIEW 1
DA-3.06 - PERMISSIBLE BUILDING ENVELOPE VIEW 2
DA-3.07 - PERMISSIBLE BUILDING ENVELOPE VIEW 3
DA-3.08 - PERMISSIBLE BUILDING ENVELOPE VIEW 4
DA-3.09 - PERMISSIBLE BUILDING ENVELOPE VIEW 5
DA-3.10 - PERMISSIBLE BUILDING ENVELOPE VIEW 6
DA-3.11 - PERMISSIBLE BUILDING ENVELOPE VIEW 7
DA-3.12 - PERMISSIBLE BUILDING ENVELOPE VIEW 8
DA-3.13 - PERMISSIBLE BUILDING ENVELOPE VIEW 9

DA-4.00 -- EXISTING
EXISTING CONDITIONS
DA-4.00
CONDITIONS&&SITE
SITEWORKS
WORKS
DA-4.01 - DEMOLITION WORKS
DA-4.02 - SITE MANAGEMENT PLAN

DA-5.00
PLAN
DA-5.00 -- GENERAL
GENERAL ARRANGEMENT
ARRANGEMENT PLANS
DA-5.01 - BASEMENT LEVEL PLAN
DA-5.02 - GROUND LEVEL PLAN
DA-5.03 - 1st & 2nd LEVEL PLAN
DA-5.04 - 3rd LEVEL PLAN
DA-5.05 - 4th - 12th LEVEL PLAN
DA-5.06 - 13th & 14th LEVEL PLAN
DA-5.07 - 15th LEVEL PLAN
DA-5.08 - ROOF LEVEL PLAN

DA-6.00 -- GENERAL
GENERAL ARRANGEMENT
ARRANGEMENT ELEVATIONS
DA-6.00
ELEVATIONS
DA-6.01 - WEST ELEVATION
DA-6.02 - NORTH ELEVATION
DA-6.03 - EAST ELEVATION
DA-6.04 - SOUTH ELEVATION
DA-6.05 - STREETSCAPE ELEVATION

DA-7.00
SECTIONS
DA-7.00 -- GENERAL
GENERAL ARRANGEMENT
ARRANGEMENT SECTIONS
DA-7.01 - SECTION 1
DA-7.02 - SECTION 2

DA-8.00
VIEWS
DA-8.00 -- PROPOSED BUILDING VIEWS
DA-8.01 - PROPOSED BUILDING VIEW 1
DA-8.02 - PROPOSED BUILDING VIEW 2
DA-8.03 - PROPOSED BUILDING VIEW 3
DA-8.04 - PROPOSED BUILDING VIEW 4
DA-8.05 - PROPOSED BUILDING VIEW 5
DA-8.06 - PROPOSED BUILDING VIEW 6
DA-8.07 - PROPOSED BUILDING VIEW 7
DA-8.08 - PROPOSED BUILDING VIEW 8
DA-8.09 - PROPOSED BUILDING VIEW 9

DA-9.00 -- BUILDING
BUILDING CALCULATIONS
CALCULATIONS
DA-9.00
DA-9.01 - CALCULATIONS

Nominated Architect: Carl Salim 7498

mkdarchitects.com.au

A (FEB 2019)
A (FEB 2019)

CURRENT REVISION

DA-1.00
DA-1.00 -- COVER &
& NOTES
DA-1.01 - DRAWING LIST
DA-1.02 - ENERGY COMMITMENTS & COMPL. MATRIX

SHEET DETAILS

DA - DRAWING LIST

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION - HOSTEL

DA

Project Status:

THE BOUNCE

18793

Project Number:

810 - 812A GEORGE STREET / SYDNEY

Client:

Project Address:

810-812A GEORGE STREET, HAYMARKET, NSW 2000

87

Revision: A

(FEB 2019)

DA-1.01
NTS

DRAWING LIST
Drawing Scale @ A3:

Drawing Number:

Drawing Name:

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES INTENDED AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF MKD ARCHITECTS. THIS DRAWING AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE AUTHOR. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED © 2018.

Nominated Architect: Carl Salim 7498

88

mkdarchitects.com.au

THE BOUNCE

DA

Project Status:

Client:

Project Number:

18793

810 - 812A GEORGE STREET / SYDNEY

Project Address:

COMPLIANCE MATRIX

DA-1.02

NTS

ENERGY COMMITMENTS & COMPL. MATRIX

Drawing Scale @ A3:

Drawing Number:

Drawing Name:

Revision: A

(FEB 2019)

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES INTENDED AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF MKD ARCHITECTS. THIS DRAWING AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE AUTHOR. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED © 2018.

FAC





/,3



6



/3

/,3

.2

 .,

 7.





 7.
 .,



/,3





 7.
 .,

12.00

(



:




3267

3$9(56





:





(



)/





5,'*(

*3



THE BOUNCE

DA

*0

6




  :7
:

Project Number:







&21
3$9 &
('

7+5((6725(<
%5,&.%8,/',1*
0(7$/522)
1R%



675

28
14.4 6°32'
55
(Dee
d)

106°
21'
21.11
(Dee
d)

7+5((6725(<
%5,&.%8,/',1*
0(7$/522)
1R$

7+5((6725(<
%5,&.%8,/',1*
0(7$/522)
1R

8'40

4.78
"
5 (D
eed)

286°2

&21
3$9 &
('

6$1'6721( %5,&.
%8,/',1*
7,/(522)
1R$
" CHRIST CHURCH ST LAURENCE "

6


  :7
:

%5,&
.:
$//



*3



5,'*(

286 °
15'
23.3
286 °
05 (D
15'
eed)
23.3
6 (Su
rvey
)

6


  :7
:



*3
675



TO B
AND E DEMO
LI
EXC
AVA SHED
TED
TO T
HE R
L

Project Status:




675



675

)/





5,'*(







)/







)/







(

7(/

)/



18793







 :0





)/

)/

3$9(56



+<'



5,'*(

;



5,'*(
)/





675



 *$6

 




(







(



Client:











)/

3267









*$6







$:1,1
*



10.50





3$9(56








756

 .,

 7.

6,*1

 .2

 .,

 7.





810 - 812A GEORGE STREET / SYDNEY









$:1,1
*



675



3$9(56

11.00

/3

(



 .2

/,3



/,3





756

7.
 .,

 .2
 .2





7(/

.00









10

7(/

M.G.A.
SCIMS

/,3

7(/



 7.
 .2





675

:



:





:

11.50

3$9(56

 

/3

Project Address:



6,*1

.2

 9&

 7.
 .,

9&

.2

 7.
 /,3







*3

/,3



(

 7.
 .2

/,3



$

 9&


 9&
 7.
 .,

/,3





675
((
7

&&6



/,3





/,3



$



%(1&+0$5.
5/ $+'



E RE
TAIN
ED

mkdarchitects.com.au

ADE
TO B

TO
INT
PIT S'N. O
TS
T. F






675


15°4
5.95 8'
5
(Dee
d)

 675


($*

)/



d)
75 (S
urve
y)

%(1&+0$5.
5/ $+'



3$5$
3(7
3(7



,

<




&/

6

*3

*3

&/





.,



3,7

6,/

.,














7.






3,7



%5,&.%8,/',1*
0(7$/522)
1R3,7767




.,



7.
9&
:
:,1
:0

.(5%723
9(+,&/(&5266,1*
:$7(5
:,1'2:
:$7(50(7(5

$:1 $:1,1*
%0
%(1&+0$5.
&&6
&&63,7
&/
$3352;52$'&(1(75/,1(
(
(/(&75,&,7<
)/
)/225/(9(/
*0
*$60(7(5
*3
*8//<3,7
+<'
+<'5$17
.,
.(5%,19(57
.2
.(5%287/(7
/,3
.(5%/,3
/3
/,*+732/(
3,7
3,781.12:1
6
6(:(5
6,/
6(:(5,163(&7,21/,'
675
67$,56
7(/
7(/675$

Drawing Scale @ A3:

Revision: A

(FEB 2019)

Drawing Number:







*3

&/



10.00

3$9(56




6,/





3,7








 


1 : 200







3$9(56





 .2



DA-4.01









675



*3

6



DEMOLITION WORKS











3$9(56

3$7,2







9&
 .,
 7.




&/



6

%281'$5<0*$'(),1,721
($67,1*
1257+,1*
;  

<
 

Drawing Name:


  :7
:





*3







 75


6



3$5$3(7


10.50
.2


+<'



6,/

.,

 7.
.2



 



675 

7.



)/
 10

6°28
7.
 
'40"
6.30
 :7

5
:

(D
6
ee
6.3

8000



3$5$

)/



 7.
 .,


6,*1

 ,/


T.M.
DP627053

EXIS
TING

*(
25
*(

.00
12

Nominated Architect: Carl Salim 7498

2
35
$3











21
.28 3° 0

TO
IN
RAW TS'N.
SON OF
PL.
$:1B
%27

$:1B
723

$:1B
723



7(/






6

.



;

7(/

15°4
8' 7
.375
15°4
(Surv
8' 7
ey)
.315
(Dee
d)






.,

9&




%5,&
.:
$//

$:1B
%27















 :

 : 7
 : 6

: 7
6 6
675

.50
11


 7.
 


(D 5'  
ee
 
d)  ::7

 : 6


: 7
6
.
,

7.





7. 

67





/



7.



 .,




  ($*
 
.

20
21 3°09
3° 0
'
6'
7
.58 (D 7.52
5 ( ee
Su d)
rve
y)

89




7. 



.00
11






 
7
,&
.:
$/
/
%5

$8
5
(1
&(



7.




/$
1(



.50
10
7.

7. 








THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES INTENDED AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF MKD ARCHITECTS. THIS DRAWING AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE AUTHOR. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED © 2018.

GEORGE STREET
(BELOW)

Nominated Architect: Carl Salim 7498

90

NOTE 1

HOARDING

SIGN 1

BOUNDARY

BOUNDARY

mkdarchitects.com.au

THE BOUNCE

DA

Project Status:

Client:

Project Number:

18793

810 - 812A GEORGE STREET / SYDNEY

Project Address:

THREE STOREY BRICK
BUILDING METAL ROOF
No. 812B
(BELOW)

TOOL
STORAGE
ROOM

SITE TOILET

NOTE 1

Revision: A

(FEB 2019)

DA-4.02
Drawing Scale @ A3:

Drawing Number:

SIGNAGE
•
SIGN 1 'UNAUTHORIZED ENTRY TO SITE PROHIBITED'
•
A SIGN MUST BE DISPLAYED IN A PROMINANT POSITION ON SITE
SHOWING DETAILS OF CERTIFYING AUTHORITY AND PRINCIPAL
CONTRACTOR.
•
A SIGN MUST BE DISPLAYED STATING THAT UNAUTORIZED ENTRY
TO SITE IS PROHIBITED.
•
ANY SUCH SIGNS TO BE MAINTAINED WHILE WORK IS BEING
CARRIED OUT AND MUST BE REMOVED ONCE WORK IS
COMPLETED.
•
1.8m HIGH SAFETY FENCE WITH DUST PROOF FABRIC.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY
•
ALL SITE WORKS MUST COMPLY WITH THE OCCUPATIONAL
HEALTH AND SAFETY REQUIREMENTS OF NEW SOUTH WALES
WORK COVER AUTHORITY.
•
IF SITE ACCESS IS DIFFICULT, LARGE TRUCKS AND SITE
MACHINERY MAY NEED TO DRIVE IN SEPERATELY.
THE USE OF TRAFFIC CONTROLLERS MAY BE REQUIRED.

SITE PROTECTION
•
TREE PROTECTION ZONES [TPZ] MUST BE FENCED USING 1.8m
HIGH CHAINWIRE MESH SUPPORTED BY ROBUST POSTS.
•
FENCING TO BE INSTALLED PRIOR TO DEMOLITION AND SHALL
REMAIN UNTIL THE COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION WORKS.
•
A SIGN SHALL BE PERNAMENTLY ATTACHED READING 'TREE
PROTECTION ZONE DO NOT REMOVE/ENTER'.
•
IN ORDER TO PREVENT SOIL/SEDIMENT BEING WASHED INTO TPZ,
AND OVER THEIR ROOT SYSTEMS, EROSION CONTROL
MEASURES SHALL BE PROVIDED AROUND THE PERIMETER OF THE
TPZ AT GROUND LEVEL.
•
WITHIN THE TPZ, THERE WILL BE NO STORAGE OF MATERIALS,
MACHINERY OR SITE OFFICE/ SHEDS, NOR IS CEMENT TO BE
MIXED OR CHEMICALS SPLIT/ DISPOSED OF AND NO
STOCKPILING OF SOIL OR RUBBLE, WITH ALL SITE MANAGEMENT
PLANS ACKNOWLEDGING THESE REQUIREMENTS.
•
DURING EXCAVATION, DEMOLITION AND CONSTRUCTION
PHASES, NOISE GENERATED FROM THE SITE MUST BE
CONTROLLED.
•
SEDIMENT AND EROSION CONTROL MEASURES TO BE IN PLACE
PRIOR TO COMMENCING WORK.
•
A DURABLE SIGN, AVAILABLE FROM COUNCIL MUST BE ERECTED
DURING THE WORKS IN A PROMINANT LOCATION ON SITE,
WARNING OF PENALTIES SHOULD APPROPRIATE MEASURES
REQUIRED BY THE SOIL AND WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN NOT BE
MAINTAINED.
•
DUST CONTROL MEASURES SUCH AS WATERING DOWN TO BE
USED DURING EARTHWORKS, DEMOLITION AND
CONSTRUCTION STAGE.

DEMOLITION WORKS
•
REFER TO WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN FOR DETAILS & METHODS
OF DISPOSAL OF DEMOLITION MATERIALS.
•
REFER TO ACOUSTIC NOISE AND VIBRATION MANAGEMENT
PLAN FOR NOISE AND VIBRATION CONTROL MEASURES.
•
REFER TO STORMWATER ENGINEERS DOCUMENTS FOR EROSION
CONTROL MEASURES & TEMPORARY STORMWATER DRAINAGE.

SITE MANAGEMENT PLAN

NOTE 1

NOTE 1
BOUNDARY

HOARDING

ST. LA
U
R
EN
(BELO CE LANE
W)

Drawing Name:

1 : 100

SKIP BIN

BRICK
STOCKPILE
AREA

SAND
STOCKPILE
AREA

V
E
H
LOA ICLE SH
D
IN
G/U AKER PA
N
D
ARE LOADIN
A
G

NOTE 1

THREE STOREY BRICK BUILDING
METAL ROOF No. 806-808
(BELOW)

RY
NDA
BOU

REMOVAL OF HAZARDOUS MATERIALS INCLUDING ASBESTOS
IF ANY HAZARDOUS MATERIALS (INCLUDING ABESTOS) ARE FOUND ON
SITE, THE FOLLOWING MEASURES ARE TO BE ADOPTED:
•
PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE DEMOLITION WORKS,
ALL HAZARDOUS MATERIALS - INCLUDING ASBESTOS IDENTIFIED ARE TO BE REMOVED BY A SUITABLY LICENCED
CONTRACTOR.
•
ANY ASBESTOS OR HAZARBOUS MATERIALS ARE TO BE
REMOVED BY A CONTRACTOR HOLDING A CLASS A LICENCE
FOR FRIABLE ASBESTOS REMOVAL OR A CLASS B LICENCE FOR
NON-FRIABLE ASBESTOS REMOVAL. A NOTIFICATION OF NONFRIABLE ASBESTOS REMOVAL IS TO BE SUBMITTED TO
WORKCOVER NSW BY THE LICENCED ASBESTOS REMOVAL
CONTRACTOR.
•
DURING ASBESTOS REMOVAL, A SIGN 'DANGER ASBESTOS
REMOVAL IN PROGRESS' MEASURING NOT LESS THAN 400mm x
300mm IS TO BE ERECTED IN A VISIBLE POSITION ON THE SITE
•
THE ASBESTOS REMOVAL CONTRACTOR IS TO COMPILE AN
ASBESTOS REMOVAL CONTROL PLAN AS PER SECTION 3.5 OF
THE ‘HOW TO SAFELY REMOVE ASBESTOS CODE OF PRACTICE’.
•
REMOVAL OF ASBESTOS CONTAINING MATERIALS IS TO BE
CARRIED OUT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE REGULATIONS AND
REQUIREMENTS OF THE NSW WORK HEALTH SAFETY REGULATION
2011 AND THE HOW TO SAFELY REMOVE ASBESTOS CODE OF
PRACTICE ISSUED BY SAFE WORK AUSTRALIA IN DECEMBER 2012.
•
AT THE COMPLETION OF ASBESTOS REMOVAL A VISUAL
CLEARANCE INSPECTION MUST BE CARRIED OUT PRIOR TO THE
ASBESTOS REMOVAL AREAS BEING OPENED FOR ACCESS
WITHOUT THE USE OF ASBESTOS PPE. WRITTEN CERTIFICATION
DETAILING THE RESULTS OF THE VISUAL CLEARANCE INSPECTION
IS TO BE PROVIDED.
•
ALL ASBESTOS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS ARE TO BE MOVED
TO A SUITABLY LICENCED LANDFILL ESTABLISHMENT.

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES INTENDED AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF MKD ARCHITECTS. THIS DRAWING AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE AUTHOR. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED © 2018.

BOUNDARY

Nominated Architect: Carl Salim 7498

91

mkdarchitects.com.au

THE BOUNCE

DA

Project Status:

Client:

Project Number:

18793

810 - 812A GEORGE STREET / SYDNEY

Project Address:

DA-2.01

NTS

SITE LOCATION PLAN

Drawing Scale @ A3:

Drawing Number:

Drawing Name:

Revision: A

(FEB 2019)

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES INTENDED AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF MKD ARCHITECTS. THIS DRAWING AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE AUTHOR. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED © 2018.

Nominated Architect: Carl Salim 7498

92

mkdarchitects.com.au

THE BOUNCE

DA

Project Status:

Client:

Project Number:

18793

810 - 812A GEORGE STREET / SYDNEY

Project Address:

NTS

SITE CONTEXT & STREETSCAPE

Drawing Scale @ A3:

Drawing Number:

DA-2.02

Drawing Name:

Revision: A

(FEB 2019)

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES INTENDED AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF MKD ARCHITECTS. THIS DRAWING AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE AUTHOR. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED © 2018.

Nominated Architect: Carl Salim 7498

93

mkdarchitects.com.au

THE BOUNCE

DA

Project Status:

Client:

Project Number:

18793

810 - 812A GEORGE STREET / SYDNEY

Project Address:

DA-2.03

NTS

SITE HERITAGE CONDITIONS

Drawing Scale @ A3:

Drawing Number:

Drawing Name:

Revision: A

(FEB 2019)

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES INTENDED AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF MKD ARCHITECTS. THIS DRAWING AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE AUTHOR. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED © 2018.

Nominated Architect: Carl Salim 7498

94

mkdarchitects.com.au

THE BOUNCE

DA

Project Status:

Client:

Project Number:

18793

810 - 812A GEORGE STREET / SYDNEY

Project Address:

NTS

BUILDINGS HERITAGE CONDITIONS

Drawing Scale @ A3:

Drawing Number:

DA-2.04

Drawing Name:

Revision: A

(FEB 2019)

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES INTENDED AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF MKD ARCHITECTS. THIS DRAWING AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE AUTHOR. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED © 2018.

Nominated Architect: Carl Salim 7498

95

mkdarchitects.com.au

THE BOUNCE

DA

Project Status:

Client:

Project Number:

18793

810 - 812A GEORGE STREET / SYDNEY

Project Address:

DA-2.05

Revision: A

PRECEDENTS 1

Drawing Scale @ A3:

Drawing Number:

Drawing Name:

(FEB 2019)

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES INTENDED AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF MKD ARCHITECTS. THIS DRAWING AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE AUTHOR. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED © 2018.

Nominated Architect: Carl Salim 7498

96

mkdarchitects.com.au

THE BOUNCE

DA

Project Status:

Client:

Project Number:

18793

810 - 812A GEORGE STREET / SYDNEY

Project Address:

DA-2.06

Revision: A

PRECEDENTS 2

Drawing Scale @ A3:

Drawing Number:

Drawing Name:

(FEB 2019)

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES INTENDED AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF MKD ARCHITECTS. THIS DRAWING AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE AUTHOR. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED © 2018.

Nominated Architect: Carl Salim 7498

97

mkdarchitects.com.au

THE BOUNCE

DA

Project Status:

Client:

Project Number:

18793

810 - 812A GEORGE STREET / SYDNEY

Project Address:

DA-8.01

NTS

PROPOSED BUILDING VIEW 1

Drawing Scale @ A3:

Drawing Number:

Drawing Name:

Revision: A

(FEB 2019)

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES INTENDED AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF MKD ARCHITECTS. THIS DRAWING AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE AUTHOR. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED © 2018.

Nominated Architect: Carl Salim 7498

98

mkdarchitects.com.au

THE BOUNCE

DA

Project Status:

Client:

Project Number:

18793

810 - 812A GEORGE STREET / SYDNEY

Project Address:

DA-8.02

NTS

PROPOSED BUILDING VIEW 2

Drawing Scale @ A3:

Drawing Number:

Drawing Name:

Revision: A

(FEB 2019)

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES INTENDED AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF MKD ARCHITECTS. THIS DRAWING AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE AUTHOR. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED © 2018.

Nominated Architect: Carl Salim 7498

99

mkdarchitects.com.au

THE BOUNCE

DA

Project Status:

Client:

Project Number:

18793

810 - 812A GEORGE STREET / SYDNEY

Project Address:

DA-8.03

NTS

PROPOSED BUILDING VIEW 3

Drawing Scale @ A3:

Drawing Number:

Drawing Name:

Revision: A

(FEB 2019)

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES INTENDED AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF MKD ARCHITECTS. THIS DRAWING AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE AUTHOR. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED © 2018.

Nominated Architect: Carl Salim 7498

100

mkdarchitects.com.au

THE BOUNCE

DA

Project Status:

Client:

Project Number:

18793

810 - 812A GEORGE STREET / SYDNEY

Project Address:

DA-8.04

NTS

PROPOSED BUILDING VIEW 4

Drawing Scale @ A3:

Drawing Number:

Drawing Name:

Revision: A

(FEB 2019)

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES INTENDED AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF MKD ARCHITECTS. THIS DRAWING AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE AUTHOR. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED © 2018.

Nominated Architect: Carl Salim 7498

101

mkdarchitects.com.au

THE BOUNCE

DA

Project Status:

Client:

Project Number:

18793

810 - 812A GEORGE STREET / SYDNEY

Project Address:

DA-8.05

NTS

PROPOSED BUILDING VIEW 5

Drawing Scale @ A3:

Drawing Number:

Drawing Name:

Revision: A

(FEB 2019)

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES INTENDED AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF MKD ARCHITECTS. THIS DRAWING AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE AUTHOR. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED © 2018.

Nominated Architect: Carl Salim 7498

102

mkdarchitects.com.au

THE BOUNCE

DA

Project Status:

Client:

Project Number:

18793

810 - 812A GEORGE STREET / SYDNEY

Project Address:

DA-8.06

NTS

PROPOSED BUILDING VIEW 6

Drawing Scale @ A3:

Drawing Number:

Drawing Name:

Revision: A

(FEB 2019)

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES INTENDED AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF MKD ARCHITECTS. THIS DRAWING AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE AUTHOR. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED © 2018.

Nominated Architect: Carl Salim 7498

103

mkdarchitects.com.au

THE BOUNCE

DA

Project Status:

Client:

Project Number:

18793

810 - 812A GEORGE STREET / SYDNEY

Project Address:

DA-8.07

NTS

PROPOSED BUILDING VIEW 7

Drawing Scale @ A3:

Drawing Number:

Drawing Name:

Revision: A

(FEB 2019)

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES INTENDED AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF MKD ARCHITECTS. THIS DRAWING AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE AUTHOR. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED © 2018.

Nominated Architect: Carl Salim 7498

104

mkdarchitects.com.au

THE BOUNCE

DA

Project Status:

Client:

Project Number:

18793

810 - 812A GEORGE STREET / SYDNEY

Project Address:

DA-8.08

NTS

PROPOSED BUILDING VIEW 8

Drawing Scale @ A3:

Drawing Number:

Drawing Name:

Revision: A

(FEB 2019)

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES INTENDED AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF MKD ARCHITECTS. THIS DRAWING AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE AUTHOR. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED © 2018.

Nominated Architect: Carl Salim 7498

105

mkdarchitects.com.au

THE BOUNCE

DA

Project Status:

Client:

Project Number:

18793

810 - 812A GEORGE STREET / SYDNEY

Project Address:

DA-8.09

NTS

PROPOSED BUILDING VIEW 9

Drawing Scale @ A3:

Drawing Number:

Drawing Name:

Revision: A

(FEB 2019)

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES INTENDED AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF MKD ARCHITECTS. THIS DRAWING AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE AUTHOR. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED © 2018.

Nominated Architect: Carl Salim 7498

106

mkdarchitects.com.au

THE BOUNCE

DA

Project Status:

Client:

Project Number:

18793

810 - 812A GEORGE STREET / SYDNEY

Project Address:

DA-3.01

NTS

EXISTING BUILDING ISOMETRIC

Drawing Scale @ A3:

Drawing Number:

Drawing Name:

Revision: A

(FEB 2019)

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES INTENDED AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF MKD ARCHITECTS. THIS DRAWING AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE AUTHOR. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED © 2018.

Nominated Architect: Carl Salim 7498

107

mkdarchitects.com.au

THE BOUNCE

DA

Project Status:

Client:

Project Number:

18793

810 - 812A GEORGE STREET / SYDNEY

Project Address:

Drawing Scale @ A3:

NTS

PERMISSIBLE BUILDING ENVELOPE ISOMETRIC DA-3.02

Drawing Name:

Revision: A

(FEB 2019)

Drawing Number:
THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES INTENDED AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF MKD ARCHITECTS. THIS DRAWING AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE AUTHOR. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED © 2018.

Nominated Architect: Carl Salim 7498

108

mkdarchitects.com.au

THE BOUNCE

DA

Project Status:

Client:

Project Number:

18793

810 - 812A GEORGE STREET / SYDNEY

Project Address:

DA-3.03

Revision: A

EXISTING BUILDING ELEVATION

Drawing Scale @ A3: 1:500

Drawing Number:

Drawing Name:

(FEB 2019)

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES INTENDED AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF MKD ARCHITECTS. THIS DRAWING AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE AUTHOR. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED © 2018.

Nominated Architect: Carl Salim 7498

109

mkdarchitects.com.au

THE BOUNCE

Project Status:

Client:

DA

Project Number:

18793

810 - 812A GEORGE STREET / SYDNEY

Project Address:

Drawing Scale @ A3: 1:500
Revision: A

(FEB 2019)

Drawing Number:

PERMISSIBLE BUILDING ENVELOPE ELEVATION DA-3.04

Drawing Name:
THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES INTENDED AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF MKD ARCHITECTS. THIS DRAWING AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE AUTHOR. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED © 2018.

Nominated Architect: Carl Salim 7498

110

mkdarchitects.com.au

THE BOUNCE

Project Status:

Client:

DA

Project Number:

18793

810 - 812A GEORGE STREET / SYDNEY

Project Address:

DA-3.05

NTS

PERMISSIBLE BUILDING ENVELOPE VIEW 1

Drawing Scale @ A3:

Drawing Number:

Drawing Name:

Revision: A

(FEB 2019)

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES INTENDED AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF MKD ARCHITECTS. THIS DRAWING AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE AUTHOR. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED © 2018.

Nominated Architect: Carl Salim 7498

111

mkdarchitects.com.au

THE BOUNCE

Project Status:

Client:

DA

Project Number:

18793

810 - 812A GEORGE STREET / SYDNEY

Project Address:

DA-3.06

NTS

PERMISSIBLE BUILDING ENVELOPE VIEW 2

Drawing Scale @ A3:

Drawing Number:

Drawing Name:

Revision: A

(FEB 2019)

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES INTENDED AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF MKD ARCHITECTS. THIS DRAWING AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE AUTHOR. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED © 2018.

Nominated Architect: Carl Salim 7498

112

mkdarchitects.com.au

THE BOUNCE

Project Status:

Client:

DA

Project Number:

18793

810 - 812A GEORGE STREET / SYDNEY

Project Address:

DA-3.07

NTS

PERMISSIBLE BUILDING ENVELOPE VIEW 3

Drawing Scale @ A3:

Drawing Number:

Drawing Name:

Revision: A

(FEB 2019)

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES INTENDED AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF MKD ARCHITECTS. THIS DRAWING AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE AUTHOR. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED © 2018.

Nominated Architect: Carl Salim 7498

113

mkdarchitects.com.au

THE BOUNCE

Project Status:

Client:

DA

Project Number:

18793

810 - 812A GEORGE STREET / SYDNEY

Project Address:

DA-3.08

NTS

PERMISSIBLE BUILDING ENVELOPE VIEW 4

Drawing Scale @ A3:

Drawing Number:

Drawing Name:

Revision: A

(FEB 2019)

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES INTENDED AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF MKD ARCHITECTS. THIS DRAWING AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE AUTHOR. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED © 2018.

Nominated Architect: Carl Salim 7498

114

mkdarchitects.com.au

THE BOUNCE

Project Status:

Client:

DA

Project Number:

18793

810 - 812A GEORGE STREET / SYDNEY

Project Address:

DA-3.09

NTS

PERMISSIBLE BUILDING ENVELOPE VIEW 5

Drawing Scale @ A3:

Drawing Number:

Drawing Name:

Revision: A

(FEB 2019)

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES INTENDED AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF MKD ARCHITECTS. THIS DRAWING AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE AUTHOR. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED © 2018.

Nominated Architect: Carl Salim 7498

115

mkdarchitects.com.au

THE BOUNCE

Project Status:

Client:

DA

Project Number:

18793

810 - 812A GEORGE STREET / SYDNEY

Project Address:

DA-3.10

NTS

PERMISSIBLE BUILDING ENVELOPE VIEW 6

Drawing Scale @ A3:

Drawing Number:

Drawing Name:

Revision: A

(FEB 2019)

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES INTENDED AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF MKD ARCHITECTS. THIS DRAWING AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE AUTHOR. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED © 2018.

Nominated Architect: Carl Salim 7498

116

mkdarchitects.com.au

THE BOUNCE

Project Status:

Client:

DA

Project Number:

18793

810 - 812A GEORGE STREET / SYDNEY

Project Address:

DA-3.11

NTS

PERMISSIBLE BUILDING ENVELOPE VIEW 7

Drawing Scale @ A3:

Drawing Number:

Drawing Name:

Revision: A

(FEB 2019)

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES INTENDED AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF MKD ARCHITECTS. THIS DRAWING AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE AUTHOR. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED © 2018.

Nominated Architect: Carl Salim 7498

117

mkdarchitects.com.au

THE BOUNCE

Project Status:

Client:

DA

Project Number:

18793

810 - 812A GEORGE STREET / SYDNEY

Project Address:

DA-3.12

NTS

PERMISSIBLE BUILDING ENVELOPE VIEW 8

Drawing Scale @ A3:

Drawing Number:

Drawing Name:

Revision: A

(FEB 2019)

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES INTENDED AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF MKD ARCHITECTS. THIS DRAWING AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE AUTHOR. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED © 2018.

Nominated Architect: Carl Salim 7498

118

mkdarchitects.com.au

THE BOUNCE

Project Status:

Client:

DA

Project Number:

18793

810 - 812A GEORGE STREET / SYDNEY

Project Address:

DA-3.13

NTS

PERMISSIBLE BUILDING ENVELOPE VIEW 9

Drawing Scale @ A3:

Drawing Number:

Drawing Name:

Revision: A

(FEB 2019)

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSES INTENDED AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF MKD ARCHITECTS. THIS DRAWING AND RELATED DOCUMENTATION SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE AUTHOR. THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED © 2018.

Attachment B
Clause 4.6 Variation Request

119

Annexure A
Clause 4.6 Variation
Building Height

120

65

Clause 4.6 Variation Statement –
maximum height (clause 4.3)
1.0

Introduction

This Clause 4.6 Exceptions to Development Standards request has been prepared by
Bernard Moroz & Associates Pty Ltd – (hereafter referred to as BMA Urban) on behalf of MKD architects
to accompany a development application for a sixteen (16) storey building over single level basement
proposed to be used for visitor and tourist accommodation (backpackers) for up to 311 guests.
The purpose of this report is to seek a variation to the development standard at Clause 4.3 of the LEP,
relating to height of buildings and is to be considered in conjunction with the Statement of Environmental
Effects (SEE) accompanying the development application for the proposed development. The Clause
4.6 Exceptions to Development Standards request relates to the height of buildings principal
development standard prescribed under subclause 4.3(2) of Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012.
Subclause 4.3(2) states:
“The height of a building on any land is not to exceed the maximum height shown for the land on the
Height of Buildings Map”.
The Height of Buildings Map indicates a maximum building height of 50m applies to the site (refer to
Figure 45).

Figure 45: Extract from the Height of Buildings Map
Source: Sydney LEP 2012

The following definition under Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 is important in considering the
proposed variation:

121

66

building height (or height of building) means:
The definition of building height (or height of building) is contained at the Dictionary to the LEP and
states as follows:
•
•
•

in relation to the height of a building in metres—the vertical distance from ground level (existing) to
the highest point of the building, or
in relation to the RL of a building—the vertical distance from the Australian Height Datum to the
highest point of the building,
including plant and lift overruns, but excluding communication devices, antennae, satellite dishes,
masts, flagpoles, chimneys, flues and the like.

Having regard to the above definition, the non-compliance to the standard relates to the topmost part
of the of the proposed building parapet. The extent of non-compliance is depicted on the architectural
drawings to have an RL’s of 61.850m or maximum height of 52.2m representing a non-compliance of
4.4%.
Figures 46 and 47 below most clearly indicate the extent of non-compliance along the building
elevations.

Figure 46: Extent of non-compliance (Section 1)
Source: MKD Architects

122

67

Figure 47: Extent of non-compliance (Section 2)
Source: MKD Architects

2.0

The Effect of Clause 4.6 Exception to Development Standards

Clause 4.6 of Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 states (in part):
(1) The objectives of this clause are as follows:
(a) to provide an appropriate degree of flexibility in applying certain development standards to
particular development,
(b) to achieve better outcomes for and from development by allowing flexibility in particular
circumstances.
(2) Development consent may, subject to this clause, be granted for development even though the
development would contravene a development standard imposed by this or any other environmental
planning instrument. However, this clause does not apply to a development standard that is expressly
excluded from the operation of this clause.
(3) Development consent must not be granted for development that contravenes a development
standard unless the consent authority has considered a written request from the applicant that seeks
to justify the contravention of the development standard by demonstrating:

123

68

(a) that compliance with the development standard is unreasonable or unnecessary in the
circumstances of the case, and
(b) that there are sufficient environmental planning grounds to justify contravening the
development standard.
(4) Development consent must not be granted for development that contravenes a development
standard unless:
(a) the consent authority is satisfied that:
(i) the applicant’s written request has adequately addressed the matters required to be
demonstrated by subclause (3), and
(ii) the proposed development will be in the public interest because it is consistent with the
objectives of the particular standard and the objectives for development within the zone in which
the development is proposed to be carried out, and
(b) the concurrence of the Director-General has been obtained.
(5) In deciding whether to grant concurrence, the Director-General must consider:
(a) whether contravention of the development standard raises any matter of significance for
State or regional environmental planning, and
(b) the public benefit of maintaining the development standard, and
(c) any other matters required to be taken into consideration by the Director-General before
granting concurrence.
(6) Development consent must not be granted under this clause for a subdivision of land in Zone RU1
Primary Production, Zone RU2 Rural Landscape, Zone RU3 Forestry, Zone RU4 Primary Production
Small Lots, Zone RU6 Transition, Zone R5 Large Lot Residential, Zone E2 Environmental
Conservation, Zone E3 Environmental Management or Zone E4 Environmental Living if:
(a) the subdivision will result in 2 or more lots of less than the minimum area specified for such
lots by a development standard, or
(b) the subdivision will result in at least one lot that is less than 90% of the minimum area
specified for such a lot by a development standard.
Note.
When this Plan was made it did not include Zone RU1 Primary Production, Zone RU2 Rural
Landscape, Zone RU3 Forestry, Zone RU4 Primary Production Small Lots, Zone RU6 Transition,
Zone R5 Large Lot Residential, Zone E2 Environmental Conservation, Zone E3 Environmental
Management or Zone E4 Environmental Living.
(7) After determining a development application made pursuant to this clause, the consent authority
must keep a record of its assessment of the factors required to be addressed in the applicant’s written
request referred to in subclause (3).

124

69

(8) This clause does not allow development consent to be granted for development that would
contravene any of the following:
(a) a development standard for complying development,
(b) a development standard that arises, under the regulations under the Act, in connection
with a commitment set out in a BASIX certificate for a building to which State Environmental
Planning Policy (Building Sustainability Index: BASIX) 2004 applies or for the land on which
such a building is situated,
(c) clause 5.4,
(ca) clause 6.6.”
The development standards in clause 4.3 are not “expressly excluded” from the operation of clause 4.6.
Objective 1(a) of Clause 4.6 is satisfied by the discretion granted to a consent authority by virtue of
Subclause 4.6(2) and the limitations to that discretion contained in subclauses (3) to (8). This
submission will address the requirements of Subclauses 4.6(3) & (4). In this regard, the extent of the
discretion afforded by Subclause 4.6(2) is not numerically limited, in contrast with the development
standards referred to in, Subclause 4.6(6).
As described at Section 2 of this written request, the proposal has a maximum building height of 52.2m.
It is hereby requested that a variation to this development standard be granted pursuant to Clause 4.6
so as to permit a maximum numerical variation of 2.2m which equates to a percentage variation of
4.4%.
This request has been prepared having regard to the latest authority on Clause 4.6, contained in the
following guideline judgements:
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

Winten Property Group Limited v North Sydney Council [2001] NSWLEC 46
Wehbe v Pittwater Council [2007] NSWLEC 827
Four2Five Pty Ltd v Ashfield Council [2015] NSWLEC 1009 (‘Four2Five No 1’)
Four2Five Pty Ltd v Ashfield Council [2015] NSWLEC 90 (‘Four2Five No 2’)
Four2Five Pty Ltd v Ashfield Council [2015] NSWCA 248 (‘Four2Five No 3’)

In summary, the principles arising from the above matters are:
(i) That the relevant objectives are those stated in the controls not unidentified underlying
objectives at [57] in Four2Five No. 1;
(ii) That the environmental planning grounds must be particular to the circumstances of the
proposed development and/or the site at [60] in Four2Five No. 1; and
(iii) The five methods of establishing that compliance is unreasonable or unnecessary identified
by Preston J in Wehbe remain relevant. However, in order to satisfy the unreasonable and
unnecessary test in Clause 4.6(3)(a), you need something more than way 1 in Wehbe, because
that test is now encompassed in Clause 4.6(4)(a)(ii) where consistency with the objectives of
the standard is a mandatory precondition.
In relation to (iii) above, Method 1 in Wehbe requires an applicant to demonstrate that the objectives of
the relevant development standard will be achieved, despite the non-compliance with the numerical
standard.

125

70

However, as a result of Four2Five, it is now necessary to demonstrate something more than simply
achieving the objective of the standard. In this regard, a proposed development that contravenes the
development standard, but as a result, achieves the objective of the development standard to a greater
degree than a development that complied with the standard, would suffice.
3.0

Justification for Variation

What is the context of the variation?
Development surrounding the site is representative of a mix of architectural styles, density, and land
uses. Figure 48 below most clearly defines the range in built form and scales within both the immediate
and broader context.

Figure 48: Permissible Building Envelope Isometric
Source: MKD Architects

Objectives of the Standard
The objectives of the height of buildings principal development standard are:
(a) to ensure the height of development is appropriate to the condition of the site and its context,
(b) to ensure appropriate height transitions between new development and heritage items and
buildings in heritage conservation areas or special character areas,
(c) to promote the sharing of views,
(d) to ensure appropriate height transitions from Central Sydney and Green Square Town Centre to
adjoining areas,
(e) in respect of Green Square:
(i) to ensure the amenity of the public domain by restricting taller buildings to only part of a site, and
(ii) to ensure the built form contributes to the physical definition of the street network and public
spaces.

126

71

It is considered that the proposed development achieves the objectives of the standard for the following
reasons:
Objective (a) seeks to ensure that buildings are compatible with the condition of the site and its context.
The proposal is almost at compliance along the George Street frontage where the 410mm to 730mm
extent of non-compliance would be unimpressible from both neighbouring buildings or the public
domain. The proposed design seeks to provide a contemporary built form which will contribute to the
immediate urban context of the neighbourhood and the desired future character of the locality. As
outlined previously, the proposal has had regard for both the current and anticipated scale of
development envisaged for this locality. The proposed development has been designed with
consideration of the surrounding development, the unique constraints of the site, and the commercial
requirements for this use.
Objective (b) seeks to ensure appropriate height transitions between new development and heritage
items and buildings in heritage conservation areas or special character areas. In order to address this
objective, it is most appropriate to directly reference the development summary detailed within the
Heritage Impact Statement prepared by NBRS architecture.
“The form and height of the tower have been developed in line with the existing building controls, and
with an understanding of the issues around heritage items in the vicinity.
Those sensitivities include:

• Views of the spire of Christ Church St Lawrence; primarily along George, from
Valentine Street and from the rear of the site in the general area of Central Station.

• Retention and conservation of the scale, form and character of the two and three
storey historic buildings to the north of the site, as well as on the western side of
George Street flanking Valentine Street;
• Retention of the character of the rear St Lawrence Lane; and
• The relationship of the tower form with the multistorey historic buildings on the
block within which the site sites, and the broader urban context.
The façade has been designed ‘in the round’ using proportions and forms taken from the nearby historic
multi storey buildings; this approach gives each of the facade’s equal prominence. In this way the
building reads as a single element from all view points, and importantly creates a consistent visual
element amongst the surrounding historic and more recent multi storey buildings in the immediate and
further vicinity of the site. Most importantly, this approach to the design of the tower as a single design
element does not alter how the adjacent spire of Christ Church St Lawrence is understood”.
On this basis, the proposal is consistent with objective (b).
Objective (c) seeks to promote the sharing of views.
The extent of non-compliance does not result in any further impact to the views enjoyed across the
site.
On this basis, the proposal is consistent with objective (c).
In relation to objective (d), this proposal seeks to ensure appropriate height transitions from Central
Sydney and Green Square Town Centre to adjoining areas.
The proposed building has been designed to be consistent with the envisaged scale of development
for this precinct. In terms of materiality, height, setbacks and overall form and scale the proposal will

127

72

not adversely impact the locality while positively contributing to the diversity of architectural styles and
densities provided within the area.
On this basis, the proposal is consistent with objective (d).
Given that the subject site is not located within the Green Square precinct, objective (e) is not relevant
to this application.
The proposed development is therefore consistent with the objectives for maximum height, despite
the numeric non- compliance.
Objectives of the Zone
Clause 4.6(4) also requires consideration of the relevant zone objectives. The objectives of the B8 –
Centre Zone as follows:
• To recognise and provide for the pre-eminent role of business, office, retail, entertainment and
tourist premises in Australia’s participation in the global economy.
• To provide opportunities for an intensity of land uses commensurate with Sydney’s global status.
• To permit a diversity of compatible land uses characteristic of Sydney’s global status and that serve
the workforce, visitors and wider community.
• To encourage the use of alternatives to private motor vehicles, such as public transport, walking or
cycling.
• To promote uses with active street frontages on main streets and on streets in which buildings are
used primarily (at street level) for the purposes of retail premises.
The proposed development provides for visitor and tourist accommodation (backpackers) which is a
permissible use within the zone and is compatible with the surrounding land uses. The location of the
site includes an eclectic mixture of commercial, retail, entertainment and residential uses and the
proposed use will add to this range by providing temporary and affordable accommodation for visitors
who wish to make use of the surrounding facilities and businesses.
The site is well served by a range of public transport options including Central railway station which is
located approximately 350 metres to the south east of the site and a new light rail stop located on
Rawson Place 150m to the north of the site. Accordingly, the proposal seeks to provide backpackers
accommodation in a location which will maximise public transport patronage and the increased tourists
and visitors in the locality. Furthermore, the proposal will serve to support the viability of nearby
business and retail uses.
Strict Compliance is unreasonable or unnecessary in the circumstance of the case
As described earlier, the topmost building parapet breaches the 50m height limit by up to 2.2m
representing a maximum variation of 4.4% to the building height standard. It is worth noting that this
breach is most evident within the south-eastern corner of building where the drop off in land levels are
most pronounced. Figure 49 below provides a clearer appreciation of the extent of non-compliance
across the building. As can be evidenced, the height breach is far less appreciable along the George
Street frontage where it ranges from 410mm-730mm above the 50m height standards equating to a
maximum percentage variation of 1.4%.

128

73

Figure 49: Roof plan indication extent of height breach
Source: MKD Architects

In consideration of the above, Council’s attention is also drawn to the Department of Planning and
Environment’s publication “Varying development standards: A Guide” (August 2011), which outlines the
matters that must be considered when varying a development standard.
The Guide has essentially adopted the 5 point test for consideration set out by the Land & Environment
Court in Wehbe v Pittwater Council (2001) NSW LEC 827, specifically that there are five different ways
in which compliance with a development standard can be considered unreasonable or unnecessary,
namely:
•

the objectives of the standard are achieved notwithstanding non-compliance with the standard;
Comment: As discussed above, the proposal is considered to be consistent with the objectives
of the building height standard, notwithstanding the numerical variation.

•

the underlying objective or purpose of the standard is not relevant to the development and
therefore compliance is unnecessary;
Comment: The objectives of the building height standard remain relevant and the proposal is
consistent with, or at least is not antipathetic to the objectives of the building height standard,
notwithstanding the numerical variation.

•

the underlying object of purpose would be defeated or thwarted if compliance was required and
therefore compliance is unreasonable;
Comment: The proposal is consistent with the objectives of the building height standard,
notwithstanding the numerical variation, and it would not defeat the purpose of the standard.

129

74

•

the development standard has been virtually abandoned or destroyed by the Council's own
actions in granting consents departing from the standard and hence compliance with the
standard is unnecessary and unreasonable;
Comment: The building height standard has not been abandoned by Council through its actions
in granting consent for other buildings in the vicinity that depart from the standard.

•

the zoning of the particular land is unreasonable or inappropriate so that a development
standard appropriate for that zoning is also unreasonable and unnecessary as it applies to the
land and compliance with the standard would be unreasonable or unnecessary. That is, the
particular parcel of land should not have been included in the particular zone.
Comment: “Backpackers Accommodation” is a permissible land use and the zoning of the site
is considered to be appropriate in this location and in context of the surrounding land uses and
built form.

In light of the above, it has been demonstrated that the first test under the Wehbe method has been
met, such that the requirement to strictly adhere to the numerical development standard for building
height is considered to be unreasonable and unnecessary in this instance.
There are sufficient environmental planning grounds to justify contravening the development
standard.
Having regard to Clause 4.6(3)(b) and the need to demonstrate that there are sufficient environmental
planning grounds to justify contravening the development standard, as discussed above it is considered
that there is an absence of significant impacts of the proposed non-compliance on the amenity of future
building occupants, on area character and on neighbouring properties. The assessment of this
numerical non-compliance is guided by the decision of the NSW LEC Four2Five Pty Ltd v Ashfield
Council [2015] NSWLEC 90 whereby Justice Pain ratified the decision of Commissioner Pearson.
On “planning grounds” and in order to satisfy that the proposal meets objective 1(b) of Clause 4.6 in
that allowing flexibility in the particular circumstances of this development will achieve “a better outcome
for and from development”, it is considered that the current proposal will facilitate greater amenity for
future residents on a site that is highly suited for such purposes and in a configuration that will not
detract from the existing approved developments or future anticipated development on neighbouring
properties.
In this regard, the perimeter building parapets conceal the core service elements of the building being
the lift over run, solar panels and water tank located on the roof of the development. Furthermore, the
uppermost level of the building (level 15) consists of a building communal area containing dining,
kitchen, terrace and cool room facilities.
There are sufficient environmental planning grounds to justify the variation of the height control,
particularly given that:
•

strict compliance with the building height standard would result in no material built form benefits
and subsequent loss of building amenity;

•

the proposed height non-compliance relates to parts of the building that will be imperceptible to the
casual observer when viewed from public and private domains;

•

The non-compliant parts of the building do not appreciably contribute to overshadowing or loss of
privacy and;

130

75

•

Strict compliance with the permissible height of buildings standard would hinder the provision of the
communal area to the uppermost building level that would compromise on the ability to offer higher
levels of building amenity, including equitable building access to this level. In this regard, the
proposal is considered to provide a better environmental planning outcome than if such elements
were not provided.

•

The proposal represents the orderly and economic use and development of the land.

The desire to achieve additional levels of communal amenity on the uppermost level provides clear
amenity benefits to the future visitors of this development, but not to detriment of the amenity of
adjoining buildings or to area character. If Council was to insist on strict compliance in this instance, it
would require removal or considerable reconfiguration of the uppermost building level resulting in an
unreasonable burden on the development that is to be balanced with the impacts, or lack thereof,
resulting from the non-compliance.
Non-Compliance does not hinder the attainment of the Objects of the Environmental Planning
and Assessment Act 1979
The Wehbe decision identifies that in assessing a variation to a development standard, consideration
must be given to Objects (a)(i) and (a)(ii) in Section 5 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment
Act 1979 is necessary. These are:
(i) the proper management, development and conservation of natural and artificial resources,
including agricultural land, natural areas, forests, minerals, water, cities, towns and villages for
the purpose of promoting the social and economic welfare of the community and a better
environment,
(ii) the promotion and co-ordination of the orderly and economic use and development of land.
The proposed variation to the building height standard will not contravene either of these objects. The
proper management of the existing urban environment in order to achieve better social and community
outcomes, as well as the orderly and economic use and development of land, will be realised through
the provision of high quality tourist and visitor accommodation in the form of “backpackers
accommodation” in a location with good access to public transport options and in proximity to shops,
services and recreational facilities and educational establishments.
Director General
Clause 4.6(4)(b) requires the concurrence of the Director-General to be obtained prior to granting
consent to a development that contravenes a development standard. However, as advised in Planning
Circular PS 18-003, The Secretary’s concurrence may not be assumed by a delegate of council if:
§

the development contravenes a numerical standard by greater than 10%; or

§

the variation is to a non-numerical standard.

This restriction does not apply to decisions made by the Local Planning Panels, who exercise consent
authority functions on behalf of councils, but are not legally delegates of the council. In this case, the
Local Planning Panel will have the ability to assume concurrence and determine this application.
Notwithstanding, provided below is a discussion on the matters under subclause 4.6(5) that the
Director- General must consider in deciding whether to grant concurrence:

131

76

Whether contravention of the development standard raises any matter of significance for State
or regional environmental planning.
The variation to the height of buildings principal development standard under Sydney Local
Environmental Plan 2012 will not give rise to any environmental planning matter which could be deemed
to have either State or Regional significance. The variation to the development standard being sought
will not have any effects outside the immediate area of the site.
The public benefit of maintaining the development standard.
No substantive public benefit would be realised by maintaining the development standard. Reducing
the height of the building to strictly comply with the 50m height limit would not alter the outcome for the
site and would not realise a significant improvement to the relationship between the site, the adjoining
buildings and the surrounding area.
Any other matters required to be taken into consideration by the Director-General before
granting concurrence.
Despite exceeding the statutory maximum building height, the proposed redevelopment of the site will
facilitate the orderly and economic redevelopment of the site positively contributing to the achievement
of the objectives of Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012.
5.0

Conclusion

Based on the discussion provided above, it can be concluded that:
Strict compliance with the height of buildings principal development standard under Sydney Local
Environmental Plan 2012 is unreasonable or unnecessary in the circumstances of the case where:
§

the extent of the non-compliance is relatively minor and will not result in any perceivable
increase in impacts on the adjoining land uses with respect to overshadowing, loss of privacy,
inappropriate scale etc.

§

the proposed design solution is considered to represent an appropriate development outcome
for the site, displaying a high-quality design, whilst ensuring that a high standard of amenity for
tourists/visitors will be achieved.

§

there are sufficient environmental planning grounds having regard to the Court matters
Four2Five v Ashfield Council and Wehbe v Pittwater Council to justify the contravention to the
development standard as the objectives of the building height standard are still met, despite
the non-compliance;

§

the non-compliance does not directly result in any adverse environmental impacts in terms of
the building being out of context with the anticipated future bulk and scale of development in
the locality;

§

the proposal will provide additional high quality “backpackers accommodation” in response to
Sydney's Sustainable Sydney 2030 Strategic Plan, Economic Development Strategy and
Tourism Action Plan

§

the scale and nature of the non-compliance does not give rise to any matter of State or Regional
significance, nor does it adversely affect the public interest.

132

77

Having regard to the circumstances of this case where:
§

the overall style, scale and built form of the building is commensurate with the likely future ‘built
environment’ and desired character of the area;

§

the proposal is consistent with the aims and objectives of Sydney Local Environmental Plan
2012; and

§

the proposal is generally consistent with the objects of the Environmental Planning &
Assessment Act 1979, in particular, the orderly and economic use and development of land
and ecologically sustainable development,

It is submitted that this Clause 4.6 Exceptions to Development Standards request is well founded. As
such, strict compliance with the height of buildings principal development standard prescribed in Clause
4.3 of Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 is unreasonable and unnecessary having regard to the
circumstances of the case. Accordingly, having regard to the assessment and justification contained in
this Clause 4.6 Exceptions to Development Standards submission, it is requested that Council support
the proposed variation and the development in its proposed form.

133

78

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Item 4.
Development Application: 208-218 Riley Street, Surry Hills
File No.:

D/2018/1451

Summary
Date of Submission:

30 November 2018
Amended plans received 13 June 2019

Applicant/Developer/Owner:

Cienna Group

Architect:

Tzannes

Cost of Works:

$39,270,000

Zoning:

B4 - Mixed Use. The proposed hotel is permissible with
consent.

Proposal Summary:

The application proposes the construction of an 11-storey
hotel with five levels of basement accommodating car
parking, back-of-house services and facilities. The
application also includes alterations to the existing
Cambridge Hotel on the site. The new building will
accommodate 95 rooms, increasing the number of hotel
rooms within the Cambridge Hotel from 173 to 244. The
number of car spaces will reduce from 60 to 52 and
provide 24 bike parking spaces.
This is a detailed design application following the approval
of a concept DA (D/2016/1177) and in association with an
early works development application D/2018/1305
presented concurrently to the Local Planning Panel. The
development applications are consistent with concept
approval D/2016/1177 and amended on 17 June 2019.
As D/2018/1305 received more than 25 submissions both
applications are being reported to the Local Planning
Panel for determination.
The development complies with the maximum 38 metre
height of building envelope approved under the concept
DA D/2016/1177, which is below the maximum 45 metre
height of building development standard applicable to the
site. The development also complies with the maximum 8:1
floor space ratio for the site. The bulk of the building
complies with the approved building envelope and will
therefore not further reduce solar access to neighbours
than was previously approved.

1

Local Planning Panel

Proposal Summary
(continued):

17 July 2019

The development achieves a high standard of architectural
design, materials and landscaping, contributing positively
to the public domain with a contemporary and distinct
choice of brick to reference the character of the
surrounding area. The development will improve the
presentation of the ground floor facade of the existing
Cambridge Hotel and be complemented by public art,
details to be confirmed prior to the issue of a Construction
Certificate. The development achieves the principles of
ecologically sustainable development and has an
acceptable environmental impact with regard to the
amenity of the surrounding area and future occupants. The
development therefore achieves design excellence.
A draft Construction Traffic Management Plan and
Construction Noise and Vibration Management Plan
accompany the application. Subject to conditions in
Attachment A, construction can occur without
unreasonable impacts to neighbouring properties in
accordance with relevant policies.
The application was notified and advertised for 21 days
and received 18 objections and 11 submissions in support
(5 unique). The concerns raised are summarised as
follows:


construction impacts;



bulk and scale;



privacy;



traffic and parking;



underquoting cost of development; and



signs.

The concerns are addressed within the report.
Summary Recommendation:

The development application is recommended for
approval, subject to conditions.

Development Controls:

(i)

State Environmental Planning Policy 55 Remediation of Land

(ii)

Sydney Regional Environmental Plan (Sydney
Harbour Catchment) 2005 (Deemed SEPP)

(iii)

Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012

(iv)

Sydney Development Control Plan 2012

2

Local Planning Panel

Attachments:

17 July 2019

A.

Recommended Conditions of Consent

B.

Selected Drawings

C.

Competitive Design Process Selection Panel
Recommendations

3

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Recommendation
It is resolved that consent be granted to Development Application No. D/2018/1451 subject
to the conditions set out in Attachment A to the subject report.
Reasons for Recommendation
The application is recommended for approval for the following reasons:
(A)

The development is permissible in the B4 – Mixed Use zone and consistent with the
zone objectives.

(B)

The development achieves a high standard of architectural design, materials and
landscaping, contributing positively to the public domain with a contemporary and
distinct choice of brick to reference the character of the surrounding area. The
development will improve the presentation of the ground floor facade of the existing
Cambridge Hotel and be complemented by public art, to be confirmed prior to the
issue of a Construction Certificate. The development achieves the principles of
ecologically sustainable development and has an acceptable environmental impact
with regard to the amenity of the surrounding area and future occupants. The
development therefore achieves design excellence.

(C)

The development is consistent with the concept approval granted under D/2016/1177.

(D)

Subject to conditions, construction impacts can be managed to mitigate impacts on the
amenity of neighbouring properties.

(E)

For the reasons above, the development is in the public interest.

4

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Background
The Site and Surrounding Development
1.

The application site has an area of 1,087sqm with a primary frontage to Riley Street
(west) and secondary frontages to Lower Campbell Street (north and east). A part four,
part 14 storey hotel with five levels of basement parking known as the Cambridge
Hotel occupies the site. The hotel contains 137 guest rooms, a restaurant, pool,
conference rooms and loading dock.

2.

Adjoining the application site to the south is No. 220-222 Riley Street, a 10 storey
building with ground floor cafe and 12 serviced apartments above. The serviced
apartments are operated by the applicant, Nuova Surry Hills. Adjoining the serviced
apartments to the south at No. 224 Riley Street is a building with shop-top housing.

3.

To the north of the site and opposite on Lower Campbell Street is a part three, part 16
storey residential flat building at No. 251-263 Goulburn Street (known as The Darling).
The building contains apartments with balconies overlooking the subject site. A semidetached pair of dwellings is situated on Little Campbell Street to the east of the
apartment building at Nos. 58-60 Lower Campbell Street.

4.

A five storey residential flat building with basement level parking is located to the east
of the site on Lower Campbell Street, at No. 265-271 Crown Street. The apartments
have balconies overlooking the application site. Adjoining this building to the south is a
three storey rear wing extension to a commercial terrace. The terrace is occupied by a
commercial premise known as Headquarters. The rear of the building accommodates
a loading dock and the windows are internally screened.

5.

A three storey mixed use building with basement car parking occupies the lot to the
southeast of the application site, known as No. 277-285 Crown Street. The site
contains commercial uses at ground floor level fronting Crown Street and residential
apartments throughout the remainder of the building. A communal pool is located on
the roof.

6.

The following properties adjoin the southern boundary of the four storey component of
the site - a two storey mixed use building with first floor residential is located at No.
166-168 Campbell Street; a pair of two storey sandstone terrace dwellings are located
at Nos. 170-172 Campbell Street; and a three storey commercial building is located at
174-176 Campbell Street with a secondary frontage to Little Campbell Street.

7.

To the west of the site is the Surry Hills Police Station, a prominent pre-cast concrete
building.

8.

The surrounding area is characterised by a mix of commercial and residential
development. The site is not a heritage item and is not located within a heritage
conservation area. The site is located within proximity to the former Crown Street
reservoir to the south on Campbell Street (No. 285A Crown Street item 1490); the
Oxford Street conservation area to the east of the site (C17) and the Reservoir Street
and Fosterville conservation area (C66) to the south.

9.

Photos of the site and surrounds are provided below:

5

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 1: Aerial image of subject site and surrounding area

Figure 2: Aerial view of the subject site and surrounding area with the area of the proposed new
tower outlined in blue

6

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 3: The existing Cambridge Hotel tower on Riley Street

7

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 4: The four storey building on Lower Campbell Street to be demolished and replaced by the
proposed tower. The existing driveway will be retained.

8

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 5: The existing part of the building to be demolished viewed from Campbell Street

Figure 6: A residential apartment and commercial building to the east on Lower Campbell Street

9

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 7: The Darling Apartments to the north on Lower Campbell Street

10

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 8: Two semi-detached dwellings to the north on Lower Campbell Street

11

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 9: View of the roof and communal open space at 277-285 Crown Street from an existing east
facing room in the Cambridge Hotel tower

Proposal
10.

The application seeks approval for construction of a new 11 storey tower adjoining the
existing Cambridge Hotel. The new building will accommodate 95 rooms, loading dock
on Lower Campbell Street and swimming pool within the basement. The new building
will be connected internally to the existing building at the ground floor and basement
levels.

11.

Alterations to the existing Cambridge Hotel include facade upgrades to the ground
floor, new restaurant, lobby, meeting space and landscaping. The number of car
spaces will decrease from 60 to 52, with the provision of 24 bike spaces in the
basement.

12.

The maximum height of the new tower is 37.16 metres and result in 8,608sqm of gross
floor area. The number of hotel rooms on the site will increase from 173 to 244.

13.

Amended plans were received on 13 June 2019 adding sun shades to windows.

14.

Plans of the proposed development are provided below.

12

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 10: An artist's render of the proposed tower on Lower Campbell Street

13

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 11: An artist's render of the Riley Street frontage

Figure 12: The proposed ground floor

14

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 13: Typical podium levels 2-3

Figure 14: Typical tower levels 4-6

15

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 15: Typical tower levels 7-10

16

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 16: North elevation (Lower Campbell Street)

Figure 17: South elevation (viewed from Campbell Street)

17

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 18: East elevation (Lower Campbell Street)

Figure 19: North-south section

Figure 20: West-east section

18

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

History Relevant to the Development Application
15.

On 11 December 2017, development consent D/2016/1177 granted concept approval
for a 12 storey tower and podium fronting Lower Campbell Street and adjoining the
existing Cambridge Hotel. Works to the lower levels of the Cambridge Hotel facade
formed part of the concept approval.

Figure 21: A model of the approved tower and podium envelope (northeast corner on Lower
Campbell Street). The maximum 45 metre height plane is illustrated

19

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 22: A model of the approved tower and podium envelope (southeast corner on Lower
Campbell Street and as viewed from Campbell Street)

16.

The application was substantially amended during the assessment of the application,
reducing the maximum height of the tower from 45 metres and 15 storeys to 38 metres
and 12 storeys; relocating the pedestrian entrance from Lower Campbell Street to
Riley Street; and removing the proposal to convert Lower Campbell Street to a shared
zone.

17.

The applicant has undertaken a competitive design alternatives process prior to
submitting the subject application in accordance with Clause 6.21 of the Sydney Local
Environmental Plan 2012, the Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 and the City's
Competitive Design Policy 2013. The competition was held in accordance with the
design excellence strategy approved under D/2016/1177. Of the three firms
participating in the competition, Tzannes was announced as the winner.

18.

A copy of the competitive design alternatives report, including the selection panel
recommendations, is provided at Attachment C.

20

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 23: An artist's render of the proposed building submitted during the competition

19.

Development application D/2018/1305 seeks permission for early works including
demolition of the existing four storey building at the rear of the Cambridge Hotel and
excavation to accommodate the proposed basement. The application is presented to
the Local Planning Panel for determination concurrently.

20.

On 17 June 2019, Section 4.55(1A) application D/2016/1177/A was approved to
modify the concept approval to accommodate the lift shaft on the western elevation.

21

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 24: A model of the rear of the proposed tower, with the additional height for the lift core on the
west elevation in orange

21.

The site has been used as a hotel (currently the Cambridge Hotel) with ancillary
restaurant and function spaces since 1979.

Economic/Social/Environmental Impacts
22.

The application has been assessed under Section 4.15 of the Environmental Planning
and Assessment Act 1979, including consideration of the following matters:
(a)

Environmental Planning Instruments and DCPs.

State Environmental Planning Policy No 55 - Remediation of Land
23.

The aim of SEPP 55 is to ensure that a change of land use will not increase the risk to
health, particularly in circumstances where a more sensitive land use is proposed.

24.

The aim of SEPP 55 is to ensure that a change of land use will not increase the risk to
health, particularly in circumstances where a more sensitive land use is proposed.

25.

An archival search of the site’s history does not reveal a risk of contamination as the
site has been used for a hotel since c.1979 and for residential premises prior to that.
There is therefore no requirement for a preliminary site investigation in accordance
with Clause 7.

26.

Council’s Environmental Health officer has raised no objections to the proposal with
regard to the SEPP. As such the site is considered to be suitable for the proposed
development and satisfies the provisions of the SEPP.

22

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Sydney Regional Environmental Plan (Sydney Harbour Catchment) 2005 (Deemed
SEPP)
27.

The site is located within the designated hydrological catchment of Sydney Harbour
and is subject to the provisions of the above SREP.

28.

The Sydney Harbour Catchment Planning Principles must be considered in the
carrying out of development within the catchment. The key relevant principles include:

29.

(a)

protect and improve hydrological, ecological and geomorphologic processes;

(b)

consider cumulative impacts of development within the catchment;

(c)

improve water quality of urban runoff and reduce quantity and frequency of urban
run-off; and

(d)

protect and rehabilitate riparian corridors and remnant vegetation.

The site is within the Sydney Harbour Catchment and eventually drains into the
Harbour. However, the site is not located in the Foreshores Waterways Area or
adjacent to a waterway and therefore, with the exception of the objective of improved
water quality, the objectives of the SREP are not applicable to the proposed
development. The development is consistent with the controls contained with the
deemed SEPP.

Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012
30.

The site is located within the B4 - Mixed Use zone. The proposed hotel use is
permissible in the zone with consent.

31.

The relevant matters to be considered under Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012
for the proposed development are outlined below.

Compliance Tables
Development Control

Compliance

Comment

4.3 Height of Buildings

Yes

The site is permitted a maximum height
of 45 metres.
The maximum proposed building height
is 37.16 metres.

4.4 Floor Space Ratio

Yes

A maximum FSR of 8:1 is permitted.
A FSR of 7.89:1 is proposed.

23

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Part 6 Local Provisions Height and Floor Space

Compliance

Comment

6.21 Design excellence

Yes

The development is located outside of
Central Sydney, exceeds 25 metres in
height and follows the granting of a
concept approval under Clause 7.20.
A competitive design process has been
held with the winning scheme designed
by Tzannes Architects, who were
engaged to design the building proposed
under the subject application. The
proposal is generally consistent with the
winning scheme and has adequately
addressed the recommendations of the
competitive design selection panel.
The development achieves a high
standard of architectural design,
materials and landscaping, contributing
positively to the public domain with a
contemporary and distinct choice of
brick to reference the character of the
surrounding area. The development will
improve the presentation of the ground
floor facade of the existing Cambridge
Hotel and be complemented by public
art, details to be confirmed prior to the
issue of a Construction Certificate. The
development achieves the principles of
ecologically sustainable development
and has an acceptable environmental
impact with regard to the amenity of the
surrounding area and future occupants.
The development therefore achieves
design excellence.
A condition is recommended requiring
Tzannes to be employed during further
design and construction.

24

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Part 7 Local Provisions General

Compliance

Comment

7.9 Car parking other land
uses

Yes

The development and existing
Cambridge Hotel are permitted a
maximum of 56 car spaces.
The development reduces the existing
number of car spaces from 60 to 52 and
complies.

7.15 Flood planning

Yes

Amended plans have been received
demonstrating that the site complies with
the City's Interim Floodplain
Management Policy.

7.19 Demolition must not result
in long term adverse visual
impact

Yes

The concurrent proposal of early works
and construction of a replacement
building satisfies the control.

7.20 Development requiring
preparation of a development
control plan

Yes

The proposed building is located outside
Central Sydney and exceeds 25 metres
in height.
This is a detailed design application
submitted in accordance with concept
approval D/2016/1177. Pursuant to
Section 4.23 of the EP&A Act, the
concept application was approved in lieu
of a site specific development control
plan to satisfy the control.
The development is consistent with the
concept approval and therefore satisfies
the provisions of the control.

Sydney Development Control Plan 2012
32.

The relevant matters to be considered under Sydney Development Control Plan 2012
for the proposed development are outlined below.

2.11.3 Surry Hills North Locality
The subject site is located in the Surry Hills North locality. The proposed tower is
compatible with the tower form that characterises the northern section of the locality and
the retail and commercial setting.

25

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

3. General Provisions

Compliance

Comment

3.1.5 Public art

Yes

A public art strategy has been reviewed
by Council's Public Art team and is
supported, subject to a condition
requiring a detailed public art plan prior
to the issue of any Construction
Certificate.

3.2 Defining the Public Domain

Yes

The renovated ground floor facade to
Riley Street will improve the
presentation and to the street, provide
passive surveillance and street
activation.

3.2.4 Footpath awnings

No

Footpath awnings are to be between 3.2
and 4.2 metres above the footpath. The
site is not identified on the footpath
awnings map and as such is not
required to contribute to a consistent
awning along the full extent of the
frontage.
Two separate awnings are proposed on
the Riley Street frontage above the
entrance to the restaurant and the hotel
lobby. The awning to the restaurant
entrance will be approximately 3.3
metres above the footpath and complies.
Due to the gradient along this section of
Riley Street the awning to the hotel
lobby will be between 2.4 and 2.6
metres above the footpath and does not
comply.
A variation to the control is acceptable in
this instance as the awning is small (2
metres wide) and no under awning signs
are proposed. Sufficient clearance is
provided so as not to obstruct
pedestrians, and will provide weather
protection to guests.

3.2.6 Wind effects

Yes

A pedestrian wind environment
statement was submitted with the
application, having subjected the
proposed building to wind tunnel testing.
The development complies with the
provisions for wind effects on
pedestrians on Lower Campbell Street,
Campbell Street and Riley Street.

26

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

3. General Provisions

Compliance

Comment

3.2.7 Reflectivity

Yes

A condition of consent is recommended
limiting reflectivity to below 20% in
accordance with the control.

3.3 Design Excellence and
Competitive Design Processes

Yes

The development is consistent with the
winning scheme of the competitive
design process and has generally
addressed the recommendations of the
selection panel, a copy of which is
provided at Attachment C.

3.5 Urban Ecology

Partial
compliance

The development covers the extent of
the site and as such does not provide a
tree canopy equal to 15% of the site
area. A variation to the control is
acceptable in this instance as the
existing site does not provide any
vegetation and deep soil.
Landscaping will be provided to the
podium and balconies, consistent with
the winning competitive design process
scheme and contributing to increased
greenery on the site.

27

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

3. General Provisions

Compliance

Comment

3.6 Ecologically Sustainable
Development

Yes

Condition 9 requires the detailed design
development application to be
accompanied by details demonstrating
that the sustainability initiatives and
environmental performance aspects set
out in the Design Excellence Strategy
have been incorporated into the design.
The recommendations of the selection
panel also requested sustainable design
elements be investigated - see
Attachment C.
An ESD report accompanies the
application and addresses issues
regarding occupant comfort, energy and
water efficiency, materials selection and
waste reduction. It is noted that
amended plans submitted include sun
shades which doubled the energy
efficiency gains of high performance
double glazing. The development has
adequately incorporated sustainable
design provisions.
It is noted that the applicant has not
applied for a NABERS Green Star
rating. Council is currently encouraging
hotel developers to commit to a
minimum Green Star energy rating of
4.5, however it is noted that recent
updates to the National Construction
Code will require the development to
achieve energy efficiency equivalent to 5
star.

3.7 Water and Flood
Management

Yes

Conditions of consent are recommended
to manage stormwater drainage.

28

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

3. General Provisions

Compliance

Comment

3.8 Subdivision, Strata
Subdivision and Consolidation

Yes

Part of the new works for the hotel will
encroach over the common (northsouth) boundary between the subject
property and 200-222 Riley Street. Both
properties are in the same ownership. A
condition is recommended requiring a
boundary adjustment to take place so
that all of the new development is wholly
contained within the 208-218 Riley
Street property. The adjustment is minor
and will not affect the floor space ratio
for the sites.

3.11.3 Cycle parking

Yes

The development is required to provide
23 bike parking spaces.
Bike racks and accompanying lockers
are provided to accommodate 24 bikes.
Three showers and change rooms are
provided adjacent to the bike racks.

3.11.6 Service vehicle parking

Partial
compliance

The development is required to provide
three service vehicle spaces. One
loading bay is provided accommodating
a medium rigid vehicle.

(Schedule 7.8.1)

A variation to the control is supported
subject to the preparation of a Loading
Management Plan. A condition of
consent is recommended limiting access
to the loading dock to between 8am and
6pm Monday to Saturday.
3.12 Accessible Design

Yes

A condition has been recommended for
the proposed development to provide
appropriate access and facilities for
persons with disabilities in accordance
with the DCP and the NCC.

3.13 Social and Environmental
Responsibilities

Yes

The proposed development provides
adequate passive surveillance and is
generally designed in accordance with
the CPTED principles. A condition is
recommended requiring the installation
of sensor lights to alcoves to deter
loitering.

29

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

3. General Provisions

Compliance

Comment

3.14 Waste

No

A waste management plan for
demolition and construction has not
been submitted.
A condition of consent is recommended
requiring a demolition and construction
waste management plan in accordance
with the City of Sydney Guidelines for
Waste Management in New
Developments.

3.15 Late Night Trading
Management

Yes

The application proposes the restaurant
and bar to operate from 6am to midnight
every day. The capacity and fit-out of the
restaurant and bar are not provided.
The site is not located within a
designated late night trading
management area and the proposed use
is low impact (Category B). As such the
controls do not specify recommended
trading hours. A revised Plan of
Management was submitted during the
course of the assessment with specific
actions to monitor and mitigate patron
behaviour, particularly with regard to the
use of the existing balconies.
Permanent trading is permitted from
7am to 10pm, with extended trading
from 6am to midnight permitted for a one
year trial. A condition of consent is
recommended requiring the submission
of a Plan of Management prior to the
issue of an Occupation Certificate.

4.2 Residential flat,
commercial and mixed use
developments

Compliance

Comment

4.2.1 Building height

Yes

The site is permitted more than 15
storeys with a podium height of four
storeys.
The development provides a four storey
podium and is overall 11 storeys.

30

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

4.2 Residential flat,
commercial and mixed use
developments

Compliance

Comment

4.2.2 Building setbacks

Yes

The development provides a 3 metre
setback above the podium as required.

4.2.3.1 Solar access

Yes

Condition 10 of the concept approval
required consideration of neighbour's
solar access at 277-285 Crown Street
and where possible to reduce
overshadowing caused by the approved
envelope. The building complies with the
approved building envelope and as such
will not overshadow neighbouring
properties any greater than was given
with the concept approval.
The window hoods will not contribute to
overshadowing of neighbouring
properties and are supported.

4.2.3.4 Design features to
manage solar access

Yes

The development has been amended to
incorporate sun shades which are
projected to double the energy efficiency
gains of high performance double
glazing

4.2.3.5 Landscaping

Yes

The development incorporates
landscaping to the podium and
balconies of the existing and proposed
buildings. This should be further
developed by condition. A condition of
consent is recommended regarding
access and maintenance.

31

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

4.2 Residential flat,
commercial and mixed use
developments

Compliance

Comment

4.2.3.6 Deep soil

No

The site is required to allocate 10% of
the site area to deep soil. The
development does not provide a deep
soil area.
The objectives of the control are to
provide for tree planting and drainage.
The existing site provides no deep soil
and is constrained by large buildings to
the north, east and west. The site cannot
therefore reasonably accommodate a
mature tree at ground level, and
landscaping is provided on the building
as an alternative. The development will
not adversely impact Council’s
stormwater system. As such a variation
to the control is acceptable.

4.2.3.11 Acoustic privacy

Yes

An acoustic report accompanies the
application and demonstrates that the
operation of the new hotel can be
undertaken without adverse impacts to
neighbouring properties. In particular it is
noted that the new hotel rooms do not
have openable windows or balconies.

4.2.4 Fine grain, architectural
diversity and articulation

Yes

4.2.5.1 Tall buildings

Yes

The combined frontage to Lower
Campbell Street is less than 40 metres
and as such the towers do not need to
be separated. However, the towers are
distinct in form, materials and scale and
do not each exceed 25 metres in length
as required. The proposed tower is
vertically proportioned, will not adversely
impact views and is consistent with the
urban structure and street hierarchy.

4.2.6 Waste minimisation

Yes

An operational waste management plan
accompanies the application and has
been assessed by Council's Waste
Management team. The plan complies
with the City's Guidelines for Waste
Management in New Developments
2018.

32

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

4.2 Residential flat,
commercial and mixed use
developments

Compliance

Comment

4.2.7 Heating and Cooling
Infrastructure

Partial
compliance

Plant will be located within the basement
and on the roof. Noise impacts have
been considered and subject to
recommendations within the acoustic
report are acceptable.

4.2.9 Non-residential
development in the B4 - Mixed
Use zone

Yes

Condition 10 of the concept approval
required consideration of neighbour's
visual privacy. The development is
designed to mitigate acoustic and visual
privacy impacts on neighbouring
properties. The pedestrian entrance and
pick-up and drop-off are located on Riley
Street, away from the adjoining
residential properties on Lower
Campbell Street.

4.4.8 Visitor accommodation

Compliance

Comment

(1) New development must be
self-contained with no common
access ways with adjoining
properties.

Yes

The development has a self-contained
entrance.

(2) A site manager must be on
site when guests have access
to the premises. For premises
with fewer than 20 residents, a
resident caretaker may be
acceptable.

Yes

24-hour reception will be provided with a
manager on site at all times.

(6) A Plan of Management and
a Noise Management Plan
must be submitted with the
development application.

Yes

A revised Plan of Management has been
prepared and covers the operation of the
hotel, bar and restaurant. In particular
the revised Plan of Management
includes measures to monitor and
mitigate patron behaviour particularly as
it regards the use of the existing
balconies.

4.4.8.1 General

33

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

4.4.8.3 Additional provisions for hotels
(1) The maximum number of
persons accommodated in a
bedroom or dormitory is to be
determined on the basis of a
minimum of:

Yes

The development complies with the
control.

(2) The maximum permitted
length of stay is 3 months.

Partial
compliance

The application states that the
development will comply with the
control. The Plan of Management is to
be updated to identify the maximum
length of stay in accordance with the
control.

(3) Where accommodation is
provided for more than 28
consecutive days, no more
than two adults and one child
are permitted per room.

Yes

The application states that the
development will comply with the
control. The Plan of Management is to
be updated to include references to the
control.

(a) 3.25sqm per person per
sleeping room; and
(b) 5.5sqm per person for
rooms occupied by guests
staying longer than 28 days.

Issues
Construction
33.

A construction noise and vibration management plan prepared by Acoustic Group
accompanies the application and has been drafted in accordance with Council's
standard condition for such plans. The plan has been reviewed by Council's
Environmental Health officer and identifies the use of high powered machinery during
Council's standard construction hours.

34.

It is noted that Council's standard hours differ to those recommended under the NSW
Interim Construction Noise Guideline as shown below:
ICNG

Council

Monday to Friday

7am - 6pm

7.30am - 5.30pm

Saturday

8am - 1pm

7.30am - 3.30pm

Sunday

No work

34

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

35.

Council's standard construction hours have been applied consistently across the City
(outside of Central Sydney) and are appropriate in this instance. It is noted that the
City's controls provide two fewer hours of construction during the week.

36.

Furthermore, the use of heavy machinery is recommended to be restricted to between
8am and 3pm Monday to Saturday (within Council's standard hours of construction),
with a one hour respite period from 11am to midday.

37.

Council's Traffic Operations Unit reviewed the Construction Traffic Management Plan
accompanying the application and raised concerns with medium rigid vehicles
obstructing access on Lower Campbell Street. A revised CTMP was submitted during
the assessment of the application which proposes work zones on Riley Street and a
loading platform on the site so as to not obstruct traffic on Lower Campbell Street. A
condition of consent is recommended requiring the CTMP to be resubmitted prior to
the issue of any Construction Certificate once construction traffic management is
confirmed.

38.

A condition of consent is recommended requiring a permit for any crane to be used,
which will be assessed by Council's Construction Regulation Unit to ensure the
protection of the surrounding area.

39.

It is acknowledged that the development will impact on residential amenity, however
the recommended conditions ensure that the impacts are reasonable with regard to
the scale of development. Reducing the hours in which construction is undertaken will
lengthen the overall time it will take for the development to be completed.

Other Impacts of the Development
40.

The proposed development is capable of complying with the NCC.

41.

The proposal will have no significant detrimental effect relating to environmental, social
or economic impacts on the locality, subject to appropriate conditions being imposed.

Suitability of the site for the Development
42.

The proposal is of a nature in keeping with the overall function of the site. The
premises are in a mixed surrounding and amongst similar uses to that proposed.

Internal Referrals
43.

Council's Urban Designer, Landscape Specialist, Public Domain team and Transport
Planner reviewed the application and recommended conditions, which have been
included in the Attachment A.

44.

The Design Advisory Panel reviewed the application and recommended additional
information regarding the entrance to Riley Street, basement pool and spa, sun
shading and materials. The matters have either been addressed through amended
plans or by condition.

35

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

External Referrals
NSW Police
45.

The NSW Police raised no objections to the proposal subject to appropriate CPTED
provisions being incorporated. Conditions are recommended accordingly.

Notification, Advertising and Delegation
46.

In accordance with Schedule 1 the Sydney DCP 2012, the proposed development is
required to be notified and advertised. As such the application was notified and
advertised for a period of 21 days between 7 December 2018 and 18 January 2019.
As a result of this notification there were 18 objections and 11 submissions in support
(five unique) received. The submissions objecting to the proposal raised the following
concerns:
(a)

The proposed works with regard to construction hours, dust and noise will
adversely impact the amenity of neighbouring properties.
Response - The development is required to comply with Council's standard
hours of construction, which are consistent across the city with the exception of
Central Sydney. As discussed above, Council's Environmental Health Officer has
reviewed the construction noise and vibration management plan and
recommended respite periods from the use of heavy machinery during the day.
The development will be required to comply with construction standards for
managing dust.

(b)

What monitoring procedures will be in place to ensure compliance with stated
mitigation measures during construction?
Response - The construction noise and vibration management plan states that
ongoing noise and vibration monitoring will be undertaken during works. Council
officers will be able to request proof of this ongoing monitoring and results and
review the impact of development on neighbours.

(c)

The development will increase the frequency of waste truck movements,
disturbing residential amenity.
Response - The development is required to comply with Council's Guidelines for
Waste Management in New Developments and will limit the hours in which
collections may be undertaken to protect residential amenity. A loading dock
management plan is required.

(d)

The proposed works must not adversely obstruct vehicular and bicycle access
on Lower Campbell surrounding streets.
Response - A revised Construction Traffic Management Plan is required to be
submitted, prohibiting vehicles from parking and obstructing traffic on Lower
Campbell Street. The majority of deliveries are to be undertaken from Riley
Street.

(e)

The acoustic report incorrectly states that residences at 277-285 Crown Street
are 10 metres from the site, when they are actually 7.7 metres away.

36

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Response - The difference of 2.3 metres is not anticipated to adversely affect
the results of the acoustic monitoring. As previously discussed, Council's
Environmental Health officer has reviewed the construction noise and vibration
management plan and is satisfied that residential amenity will be reasonably
maintained.
(f)

The building height and scale are excessive and should be reduced.
Response - The development is below the maximum permitted height for the
site, is below the height of the existing Cambridge Hotel and complies with the
minimum setback requirements above the podium. The building is articulated
with recesses to provide interest.

(g)

If approved, a condition of consent should be imposed requiring a dilapidation
report for neighbouring properties.
Response - A condition of consent is recommended accordingly.

(h)

Concern is raised that the applicant has underquoted the cost of development to
avoid the application/s being presented to the Central Sydney Planning
Committee.
Response - The QS report for the detailed design was peer reviewed and found
to be accurate.

(i)

The development will result in financial hardship for adjoining properties.
Response - This is not a matter for consideration under Section 4.15(1) of the
Act.

(j)

Concern is raised regarding the swing of the crane over neighbouring properties.
Response - Council's Construction Regulation team have reviewed the
application and advised that a Luffing crane, rather than a Hammerhead crane,
can be used to avoid swinging over neighbouring buildings. This will be
investigated further when the applicant seeks a crane permit.

(k)

The developer should be required to pay for the cleaning of dust incurred by
neighbouring properties.
Response - The applicant will be required to comply with standards to mitigate
dust during construction. However, it is reasonable to anticipate that some dust
may reach neighbouring properties when living beside a construction site.

(l)

The development will result in loss of views to the Crown Street reservoir.
Response - The development complies with the approved building envelope,
which discussed view loss and impacts on outlook at the concept stage. The
impact to neighbour's outlook is acceptable.

(m)

The development will not improve pedestrian access on Lower Campbell Street.

37

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Response - The development does not propose pedestrian access from Lower
Campbell Street, and as such is not required to upgrade the kerbs into footpaths.
It is noted that widening the footpaths would impact on vehicular
manoeuvrability, and that the community previously objected to upgrading Lower
Campbell Street.
(n)

The development will contribute to rodent issues in the surrounding area.
Response - The development is required to comply with the Council's
Guidelines for Waste Management in New Developments which includes
provisions to mitigate rodents.

(o)

The development will exacerbate anti-social behaviour from the existing hotel
and surrounding area.
Response - A Plan of Management has been submitted to discuss managing
patron behaviour from the new hotel and is supported. It is noted that the new
hotel will not provide balconies and external spaces for guests.

(p)

The development will result in a loss of sunlight to neighbouring properties.
Response - The development complies with the approved building envelope,
which discussed overshadowing and impacts on solar access at the concept
stage. The development complies with the approved building envelope and
therefore has an acceptable impact.

(q)

The development will result in a loss of visual privacy.
Response - The existing building is built to the street boundary and provides
hotel room windows looking out towards neighbouring properties. As such the
design will not have any greater impact on visual privacy than is currently
experienced. The upper levels are sufficiently setback from neighbours and
angled to avoid adverse overlooking.

(r)

Insufficient time was provided for neighbours to review the documentation over
the holiday period and make submissions.
Response - In accordance with Schedule 1 of the Sydney DCP 2012, the
exhibition period was extended to provide adjoining property owners and
occupiers the opportunity to review the application. All submissions received up
to the date this report was written were considered as part of the assessment.

(s)

Top of building signs should not be permitted to protect wildlife.
Response - The application does not propose top of building signs.

(t)

The provision of a rooftop bar will adversely impact the acoustic amenity of
neighbours.
Response - The application does not propose a rooftop bar.

47.

The submissions in support raised the following reasons which are noted:
(a)

The development will contribute to the vitality of Surry Hills' economy and
atmosphere.

38

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

(b)

The development will provide passive surveillance and activity in the immediate
vicinity.

(c)

The development is consistent with the concept approval.

Public Interest
48.

The proposal will have no detrimental effect on the public interest, subject to
appropriate conditions being proposed.

S7.11 Contribution
49.

The development is not subject to a S7.11 development contribution as it is for a hotel
with an average floor area below 45sqm/room key which is a type of development
listed in Table 2 of the City of Sydney Development Contributions Plan 2015 and is
excluded from the need to pay a contribution. A contribution is therefore not payable.

Relevant Legislation
50.

The Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

Conclusion
51.

The application proposes the construction of an 11-storey tower containing hotel
rooms with five levels of basement accommodating car parking, back-of-house
services and facilities, and alterations to the existing Cambridge Hotel. The new
building will accommodate 95 rooms, increasing the number of hotel rooms within the
Cambridge Hotel from 173 to 244. The number of car spaces will reduce from 60 to 52
and provide 24 bike parking spaces.

52.

This is a detailed design application following the approval of a concept DA
(D/2016/1177) and in association with an early works development application
D/2018/1305 presented concurrently to the Local Planning Panel. The development
applications are consistent with concept approval D/2016/1177.

53.

The development complies with the maximum 38 metre height of building envelope
approved under the concept DA D/2016/1177, which is below the maximum 45 metre
height of building development standard applicable to the site. The development also
complies with the maximum 8:1 floor space ratio for the site. The bulk of the building
complies with the approved building envelope and will therefore not further reduce
solar access to neighbours than was previously approved.

54.

The development achieves a high standard of architectural design, materials and
landscaping, contributing positively to the public domain with a contemporary and
distinct choice of brick to reference the character of the surrounding area. The
development achieves the principles of ecologically sustainable development and has
an acceptable environmental impact with regard to the amenity of the surrounding area
and future occupants. The development therefore achieves design excellence.

39

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

55.

Construction impacts have been reviewed and, subject to conditions can be managed
to prevent adverse impacts to the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance
relevant policies.

56.

The application was notified and advertised for 21 days and received 18 objections
and 11 submissions in support (five unique). The concerns have been addressed and
resolved within the report.

57.

The development is therefore acceptable and recommended for approval.

GRAHAM JAHN, AM
Director City Planning, Development and Transport
David Zabell, Senior Planner

40

Attachment A
Recommended Conditions of Consent

41

CONDITIONS OF CONSENT
SCHEDULE 1
APPROVED DEVELOPMENT/DESIGN MODIFICATIONS/COVENANTS AND
CONTRIBUTIONS/USE AND OPERATION
(1)

APPROVED DEVELOPMENT
(a)

Development must be in accordance with Development Application No.
D/2018/1451 dated 30 November 2018 and the following drawings
prepared by Tzannes:
Drawing Number

Plan Name

Date

1100 Rev B

Basement 5 Plan

16 November
2018

1101 Rev B

Basement 4 Plan

16 November
2018

1102 Rev B

Basement 3 Plan

16 November
2018

1103 Rev B

Basement 2 Plan

16 November
2018

1104 Rev B

Basement 1 Plan

16 November
2018

1105 Rev B

Lower Ground Plan

16 November
2018

1106 Rev C

Ground Floor Plan

12 June 2019

1107 Rev B

Podium Level 1

16 November
2018

1108 Rev B

Podium Level 2&3

16 November
2018

1109 Rev C

Typical Tower Level 46

12 June 2019

1110 Rev C

Typical Tower Level 710

12 June 2019

42

Drawing Number

Plan Name

Date

1111 Rev A

Level 11 Plan

16 November
2018

1112 Rev A

Roof Plan

16 November
2018

2000 Rev B

Elevation (North)

12 June 2019

2001 Rev B

Elevation (South)

12 June 2019

2002 Rev B

Elevation (East)

12 June 2019

2003 Rev B

Elevation (West)

12 June 2019

3000 Rev B

Section

12 June 2019

3001 Rev B

Section

12 June 2019

and as amended by the conditions of this consent.
(b)

(2)

In the event of any inconsistency between the approved plans and
supplementary documentation, the drawings will prevail.

DESIGN QUALITY EXCELLENCE
(a)

The design architect comprising Tzannes is to have direct involvement
in the design documentation, contract documentation and construction
stages of the project including signing off any required certifications at
DA, S4.55 applications, Construction Certificate and Occupation
Certificate stages.

(b)

The design architect is to have full access to the site and is to be
authorised by the applicant to respond directly to Council where
information or clarification is required in resolving design issues
throughout the life of the project.

(c)

Evidence of the design architect’s commission must be provided to the
Council prior to release of the Construction Certificate.

(b)

The design architect of the project is not to be changed without prior
notice and approval of the Council’s Director Planning, Development and
Transport.

The Principle Certifying Authority must be satisfied that the above matters are
complied with prior to the issue of a relevant Construction and Occupation
Certificates, in accordance with written confirmation from Council.

43

(3)

ACCOMMODATION - REGISTRATION AND CARETAKER
Prior to the issuing of an Occupation Certificate or occupation with an Interim
Occupation Certificate (whichever is earlier), Council's Health and Building
Unit must be advised in writing of the business name, address, owner or
company name, 24 hour contact details for the site manager, and the number
of occupants approved for the premises. A caretaker/manager must be
contactable 24 hours a day.

(4)

(5)

VISITOR AND TOURIST ACCOMMODATION - USE AND OPERATION
(a)

The use and operation of the premises must comply with the
requirements of Schedule 2 (Standards for Places of Shared
Accommodation) of the Local Government (General) Regulation, 2005
under the Local Government Act 1993, the Public Health Act, 2010 and
regulations thereunder and Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 –
4.4.8.

(b)

Guests are not permitted to stay more than 3 months.

(c)

No more than two adults and two children are permitted in each hotel
room.

PHYSICAL MODELS
(a)

Prior to a final Occupation Certificate being issued, an accurate 1:500
scale model of the development as constructed must be submitted to
Council for the City Model in Town Hall House.

Note:

(6)

(i)

The models must be constructed in accordance with the Model
Specifications
available
online
at
http://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/development/applicationguide/application-process/model-requirements
Council’s
modellers must be consulted prior to construction of the model.

(ii)

The models are to comply with all of the conditions of the
Development Consent.

(iii)

The models must be amended to reflect any further modifications
to the approval (under Section 4.55 of the Environmental Planning
and Assessment Act) that affect the external appearance of the
building.

SUBMISSION OF ELECTRONIC CAD MODELS PRIOR TO OCCUPATION
CERTIFICATE
(a)

Prior to an Occupation Certificate being issued, an accurate 1:1
electronic CAD model of the completed development must be submitted
to Council for the electronic Visualisation City Model.

(b)

The data required to be submitted within the surveyed location must
include and identify:

44

(i)

building design above and below ground in accordance with the
development consent;

(ii)

all underground services and utilities, underground structures and
basements, known archaeological structures and artefacts;

(iii)

a current two points on the site boundary clearly marked to show
their Northing and Easting MGA (Map Grid of Australia)
coordinates, which must be based on Established Marks
registered in the Department of Lands and Property Information’s
SCIMS Database with a Horizontal Position Equal to or better than
Class C.

The data is to be submitted as a DGN or DWG file on a Compact Disc.
All modelling is to be referenced to the Map Grid of Australia (MGA)
spatially located in the Initial Data Extraction file.
(c)

(7)

The electronic model must be constructed in accordance with the City’s
3D CAD electronic model specification. The specification is available
online at http://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/development/applicationguide/application-process/model-requirements Council’s Modelling staff
should be consulted prior to creation of the model. The data is to comply
with all of the conditions of the Development Consent.

PUBLIC ART
Public art work must be installed to the City's satisfaction prior to the issue of
any Occupation Certificate.
The public artwork must be in accordance with the Sydney DCP 2012, the
Public Art Policy, and the Interim guidelines: public art in private developments.
Final details of the proposed public art work must be submitted to and
approved by Council’s Area Coordinator Planning Assessments/Area Planning
Manager prior to issue of any Construction Certificate for above ground works.
Note: Public Art must be reviewed and endorsed by the City’s Public Art
Team and/or the Public Art Advisory Panel prior to submission for Council
approval. Further information is available online at
http://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/explore/arts-and-culture/public-art
Please contact the Public Art Team at
publicartreferrals@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au for further information.

(8)

MATERIALS AND SAMPLES BOARD
(a)

A physical material sample board which specifies all proposed materials,
finishes and colours, (including visible rainwater goods and services)
keyed to each building elevation must be submitted to and approved by
Council’s Area Coordinator Planning Assessments/Area Planning
Manager prior to any Construction Certificate being issued. The
materials and samples board must not include generic material or colour
descriptions, or use terminology such as ‘or similar’.

45

(b)

(9)

A sample panel of the brickwork is to be constructed on site and made
available for Council staff to view prior to the commencement of above
ground works.

COMPLIANCE WITH SUBMITTED MATERIALS AND SAMPLES BOARD
The design details of the proposed building facade including all external
finishes, colours and glazing must be in accordance with the materials
schedule and sample board, and specifications approved under condition 8.

(10) BICYCLE PARKING AND END OF TRIP FACILITIES
(a)

The minimum number of bicycle parking spaces and end of trip facilities
to be provided for the development must comply with the table below.
Bicycle Parking Type

Number Requirements

Hotel patrons

13

Class 2

Retail/Commercial
staff

10

Class 2

End of Trip Facility
Type

Number

Showers with change
area
Personal lockers

10

For staff

Notes:
(i)

(b)

If a basement storage area on title that is large enough to store a
bike and is no smaller than a class 1 bike locker this can be
counted as a space.

The layout, design and security of bicycle facilities must comply with the
minimum requirements of Australian Standard AS 2890.3 Parking
Facilities Part 3: Bicycle Parking Facilities. The details must be submitted
to and approved by the Principal Certifier confirming prior to the
Construction Certificate being issued.

(11) ALLOCATION OF ACCESSIBLE CAR PARKING SPACES
The car park includes the provision of 1 accessible car parking space and the
space shall be provided in accordance with AS2890.6.2009 which requires an
accessible space dimension of 2.4 X 5.4 metres with a shared space of 2.4
metres width adjacent to any space.

46

(12) ASSOCIATED ROADWAY COSTS
All costs associated with the construction of any new road works including kerb
and gutter, road pavement, drainage system and footway shall be borne by
the developer. The new road works must be designed and constructed in
accordance with the City’s “Sydney Streets Technical Specification” including
amendments and “Sydney Streets Design Code”.
(13) CAR SHARE SPACES
(a)

One car parking spaces for the exclusive use of car share scheme
vehicles is to be provided. A revised plan showing this space must be
submitted to and approved by the Principal Certifier prior to the issue of
any Construction Certificate.

(b)

The spaces must be retained as common property of the Owners
Corporation of the site, and not sold or leased to an individual
owner/occupier at any time.

(c)

The spaces must be made available to car share operators without a fee
or charge.

(d)

The spaces must be sign posted for use only by car share vehicles and
well lit.

(e)

The spaces must be accessible to members of the car share scheme at
all times.

(f)

The car share spaces are to be available at the same time that the car
park commences operation.

(14) RESTRICTION ON USE OF CAR SPACES - HOTEL
The following conditions apply to car parking:
(a)

The on-site car parking spaces are not to be used other than by hotel
guests, function patrons and staff of the subject building.

(b)

Car parking spaces used in connection with hotel function areas are to
be available only to patrons while using the function facilities and must
not be used for public car parking.

(c)

Prior to an Occupation Certificate being issued or the use commencing,
whichever is earlier, a documentary restrictive covenant is to be
registered on the Title of the development site pursuant to Section 88E
of the Conveyancing Act 1919, to the effect of (a), above. The covenant
is to be created appurtenant to Council, at no cost to Council.

47

(15) CHANGES TO KERB SIDE PARKING RESTRICTIONS
A separate submission must be made to the Local Pedestrian, Cycling and
Traffic Calming Committee via the City Infrastructure and Traffic Operations
Unit seeking the City’s approval for any changes to kerb side parking
arrangements. There is no guarantee kerb side parking will be changed, or
that any change will remain in place for the duration of the development use.
The submission must include two plans. One showing the existing kerb side
parking restriction signs and stems, the second showing the proposed kerb
side parking restriction signs and stems. Both plans must include chainages
to all signs and stems from the kerb line of the nearest intersection.
All costs associated with the parking proposal will be borne by the developer.
Note: As parking in the LGA is at a premium, it is recommended that the
applicant should approach the Area Traffic Engineer to discuss the proposal
before making a submission.
(16) COST OF SIGNPOSTING
All costs associated with signposting for any kerbside parking restrictions and
traffic management measures associated with the development shall be borne
by the developer.
(17) ON SITE LOADING AREAS AND OPERATION
(a)

Loading and servicing of the site during operation is permitted between
8am and 6pm Monday to Saturday.

(b)

All loading and unloading operations associated with servicing the site
must be carried out within the confines of the site, at all times and must
not obstruct other properties/units or the public way.

(c)

At all times the service vehicle docks, car parking spaces and access
driveways must be kept clear of goods and must not be used for storage
purposes, including garbage storage.

(18) LOADING DOCK MANAGEMENT PLAN
A loading dock management plan detailing the expected times of loading and
unloading activities that are to take place in the Loading Dock area must be
submitted to and approved by Council’s Area Planning Coordinator/Area
Planning Manager prior to the issue of any Construction Certificate.
(19) PARKING DESIGN
The design, layout, signage, line marking, lighting and physical controls of all
off-street parking facilities must comply with the minimum requirements of
Australian Standard AS/NZS 2890.1 Parking facilities Part 1: Off-street car
parking, AS/NZS 2890.2 Parking facilities Part 2: Off-commercial vehicle
facilities and AS/NZS 2890.6 Parking facilities Part 6: Off-street parking for
people with disabilities. The details must be submitted to and approved by the
Principal Certifier prior to a Construction Certificate being issued.

48

(20) TRAFFIC WORKS
Any proposals for alterations to the public road, involving traffic and parking
arrangements, must be designed in accordance with RMS Technical
Directives and must be referred to and agreed to by the Local Pedestrian,
Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee prior to any work commencing on site.
(21) ALCOVE LIGHTING
The proposed alcoves shall be fitted with a sensor-activated vandal proof
security light. The light shall be maintained in good working order to Council's
satisfaction. The intensity, colour, and illumination must be varied if, at any
time in the opinion of the consent authority, adverse impact or Obtrusive Light
in accordance with the definition in Australian Standard AS4282-1997 Control
of the obtrusive effects of outdoor is being caused to the amenity of the area.
(22) UNDER AWNING LIGHTING
Illumination from the under awning lighting, when measured from any place in
the public domain, must comply with the following:
(a)

the horizontal luminance level must not exceed 200 lux (including
reflectivity from exterior finishes). The lux level may be increased to 220
lux in some areas in Central Sydney CBD;

(b)

the horizontal illuminance uniformity ratio (Eavg/Emin) must not exceed
4:1 to ensure safe movement of pedestrians;

(c)

the intensity, colour, period of intermittency and hours of illumination
must be varied if, at any time in the opinion of the Council, adverse
impact or Obtrusive Light in accordance with the definition in Australian
Standard AS4282-1997 Control of the obtrusive effects of outdoor
lighting is being caused to the amenity of the area;

(d)

where nearby residents are located above the level of the under awning
lighting, details are to be provided to show that light is not directed
upwards toward such residences; and

(e)

batten type fluorescent lighting is not permitted to be used for under
awning lighting.

(23) HOURS OF OPERATION - RESTAURANT
The hours of operation are regulated as follows:
(a)

The hours of operation must be restricted to between 7am and 10
Monday to Sunday.

(b)

Notwithstanding (a) above, the restaurant may operate between 6am
and 12 midnight for a trial period of one year from the date of issue of
the Occupation Certificate. Council’s Health and Building Unit is to be
informed in writing of the date of commencement of the trial hours. Email
notification is to be sent to liquor@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au

49

(c)

A further application may be lodged to continue the operating hours
outlined in (b) above not less than 30 days before the end of the trial
period. Council’s consideration of a proposed continuation and/or
extension of the hours permitted by the trial will be based on, among
other things, the performance of the operator in relation to the
compliance with development consent conditions, any substantiated
complaints received and any views expressed by the Police.

(24) NO SPEAKERS OR MUSIC OUTSIDE
Speakers and/or noise amplification equipment must not be installed and
music must not be played in any of the outdoor areas associated with the
premises including the public domain. Speakers located within the premises
must not be placed so as to direct the playing of music towards the outdoor
areas associated with the premises.
(25) NO SPRUIKING NOISE
No persons (such as those commonly known as spruikers) or recordings or
other devices which have the effect of spruiking are to be located on Council
owned property. Furthermore, the sound level of any spruiking generated
within privately owned land must not be audible on any adjacent property with
a shared boundary.
(26) NOISE FROM GLASS REMOVAL
Glass must not be emptied or transferred from one receptacle to another
anywhere in a public place. All glass must be emptied / transferred inside of
the building on the premises and removed in containers.
(27) SIGN ILLUMINATION
(a)

At no time is the intensity, period of intermittency and hours of
illumination of the sign to cause objectionable glare or injury to the
amenity of the neighbourhood and as such must be designed, installed
and used in accordance with AS4282-1997 Control of Obtrusive Effects
of Outdoor Lighting.

(b)

The sign(s) must not flash. Signs with flashing, chasing, pulsating or
flickering lights are not permitted.

(c)

The maximum night time luminance of any sign is not to exceed 300
cd/sqm.

(d)

Signage is only permitted to be illuminated while a premises is open.

(e)

Upward facing light sources onto the signage is not permitted.

50

(28) PLAN OF MANAGEMENT
(a)

The Plan of Management prepared by Urbis and accompanying the
application is to be updated to address the use of all hotel rooms. The
Plan must restrict access to the balconies to between 7am and 10pm
and specify the necessary management procedures. The revised Plan
is to be submitted to and approved by Council’s Area Planning
Manager/Area Planning Coordinator prior to the issue of any Occupation
Certificate.

(b)

The use must always be operated / managed in accordance with the
Plan of Management approved under (a). In the event of any
inconsistency, the conditions of this consent will prevail over the Plan of
Management.

(29) INCIDENTS
The manager/licensee must ensure that all incidents involving staff members
(including security personnel) are recorded in the incident register maintained
on site, including incidents involving physical contact between staff and
patrons, physical restraint of patrons and/or the ejection of patrons from the
premises.
(30) SURVEILLANCE CAMERAS
(a)

CCTV surveillance cameras shall be strategically installed, operated and
maintained throughout the premises where members of the general
public have access to the premises with particular coverage to:
(i)

principal entrance/s and exits;

(ii)

all areas within the premise occupied by the public (excluding
toilets);

(iii)

staircases in multilevel premises; and

(iv)

the area within a 10m radius external to the public entrance(s) to
the premise.

(b)

Suitable and clearly visible signage shall be displayed at the principal
entrance(s) to the premise and in a prominent position on each floor
accessible to the public, in lettering not less than 50mm in height with
the words “Closed Circuit Television in use on these premises”.

(c)

All CCTV recording equipment and cameras shall be of high grade digital
quality capable of establishing the population and identification of
patrons, offenders and incidents within the depth of field view of the
cameras. In this respect each surveillance camera shall be capable of
recording a minimum rate of 10 frames per second and at high
resolution.

51

(d)

CCTV recording discs or hard drive recordings shall be retained for 28
days before being re-used, destroyed or deleted. Time and date shall be
auto recorded on the disc or hard drive. The CCTV recording equipment
shall be capable of reproducing a CD, DVD, USB or other appropriate
digital copy of recorded footage on demand of Council or Police Officers
either immediately or within 12 hours of the request being made. Copy
discs must be handed to Council, Police Officer or Special Inspectors as
required.

(e)

All CCTV recording devices and cameras shall be checked daily to
ensure the equipment is operating correctly. The Licensee shall record
this daily checking activity in the security/incident register book that
meets the standards required by the Licensing Police and Council. If it is
discovered at any time that the equipment is not in full operating order
all reasonable steps must be taken to repair the system as soon as
practicable. Where the system will not be functioning in full operating
order for a period of longer than 24 hours the manager/licensee is to
notify the relevant Local Area Commander of the NSW Police.

(f)

All CCTV recording devices and cameras shall be operated at all times
when the premises are open to the public and, where premises do not
operate 24 hours a day, continuously for at least 1 hour prior to opening
and closing times of the premises.

(g)

The CCTV recording device shall be secured within the premises and
only be accessible to senior management personnel so as to maintain
the integrity of the recorded footage. When the premises is operating
there must be at least one staff member present at the premises who is
authorised to access the CCTV system and able to immediately review
recordings and produce copies.

(h)

Camera views are not to be obstructed by temporary or permanent
structures, signage or other impediments.

(31) WASTE AND RECYCLING MANAGEMENT - COMMERCIAL
(a)

A Waste and Recycling Management Plan is to be submitted to and
approved by Council’s Area Planning Manager/Area Planning
Coordinator prior to any Construction Certificate being issued. The plan
must comply with the Council's Guidelines for Waste Management in
New Developments 2018. All requirements of the approved Building
Waste and Recycling Management Plan must be implemented during
construction of the development.

UPON COMPLETION OF THE DEVELOPMENT
(b)

Prior to an Occupation Certificate being issued or the use commencing,
whichever is earlier, the Principal Certifier must ensure that waste
handling works have been completed in accordance with: the Waste and
Recycling Management Plan; other relevant development consent
conditions; and Council's Guidelines for Waste Management in New
Developments 2018.

52

(32) REMOVAL OF GLASS
Patrons must be prevented from removing glasses, opened cans, bottles or
alcohol from the premises (except from any approved bottle shop area) or
approved outdoor dining area included in the boundaries of the licensed
premises.
(33) LANDSCAPED (GREEN) ROOFS
(a)

Details of the green roof, drawn to scale, by a qualified landscape
architect or landscape designer, must be submitted to and approved by
Director City Planning Development & Transport prior to the issue of a
Construction Certificate. The details must include:
(i)

Location of existing and proposed structures, services and hard
landscaping on the rooftop, roof fixings and other structural
elements that may interrupt waterproofing, including crosssectional details of all components.

(ii)

Details of earthworks including mounding and retaining walls and
planter boxes. All planter boxes to private balconies must be able
to be fully maintained from standing on the finished floor level of
the adjacent balcony.

(iii)

Details of the location, sizes and numbers of plants used with
reference to Australian Standards, with preference for drought
resistant species.

(iv)

Details of the soil media/substrate type and depth.

(v)

Details of planting procedure and maintenance, including a
landscape specification, detailed maintenance strategy and
installation methodology e.g. safety considerations for working at
height, location of maintenance hooks (if applicable) transport
materials etc. All access openings (doors or operable windows)
and davit arm locations must be shown on the architectural plans.

(vi)

Details of accessible and inaccessible areas on the Green Roof.
Where proposed to be inaccessible, Green Roofs are required to
remain such during occupation of the property.

(vii) Details of drainage and irrigation systems, including overflow
provisions and water retention cells in the drainage layer (if
applicable).
(b)

Prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate, the following details are
to be submitted to and approved by the Principal Certifier:
(i)

Evidence the green roof has been assessed as part of the
structural certification provided for the development; and

(ii)

Evidence the green roof has been assessed as part of the
waterproofing certification provided for the development.

53

(c)

All landscaping in the approved plan is to be completed prior to the issue
of an Occupation Certificate.

(d)

Prior to the issue of an Occupation Certificate, a maintenance plan is to
be submitted and approved by the Principal Certifier. A copy of the
maintenance plan is to be kept on site at all times during construction
and shall be produced to Council on request following completion. The
Maintenance Manual shall include as a minimum:

(e)

(i)

Frequency and methodology of different maintenance
requirements including the removal of green waste.

(ii)

Details of safety procedures.

(iii)

Laminated copies of ‘As Built’ drawings.

(iv)

Manufacturer’s contact details and copies of manufacturers’ typical
details and specification;

(v)

Copies of warranties and guarantees relating to all materials and
plant used in construction; and

(vi)

Decommissioning procedures.

Inaccessible green roofs are required to remain inaccessible during
occupation of the property.

(34) LANDSCAPED (GREEN) WALLS
A proposal and details for vertical planting and green wall(s) is to be submitted.
The design of the green wall(s) must demonstrate the response to site
conditions, including in particular light availability, sun and wind impacts.
(a)

(b)

Prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate, the following design
details of the proposed green wall must be submitted to, and approved
by the Director City Planning, Development & Transport:
(i)

Detailed drawings demonstrating how the green wall(s) is
constructed, including proposed materials, planter dimensions,
and integration into the wall structure;

(ii)

Details of the proposed growing medium, including soil depth and
type;

(iii)

Location, numbers, type and size of plant species selected (with
plants being selected on the basis of the site conditions);

(iv)

Drainage, irrigation and waterproofing details (as applicable); and

(v)

Details of any additional lighting (where applicable).

Prior to the issuing of a Construction Certificate a maintenance plan is to
be submitted to, and approved by Council. The maintenance plan is to
include information on:

54

(i)

How access will be provided to the plants, soil and structural
elements for installation and maintenance; and

(ii)

Details outlining the intended strategy for decommissioning the
planting works should plants fail. This strategy is to ensure that the
finish to the wall is well maintained throughout its life.

(35) CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT PLAN
(a)

The Construction Traffic Management Plan submitted during the
assessment of the application has not been approved by this consent.

(b)

A Construction Traffic Management Plan must be submitted to and
approved by Council’s Area Planning Manager/Area Planning
Coordinator prior to the issue of any Construction Certificate. The CTMP
must be prepared in accordance with Council’s requirements, located at
–
http://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/business/businessresponsibilities/traffic-management/construction-traffic-managementplans
and in consultation with the Transport for NSW Sydney Coordination
Office.

(c)

The CTMP must not permit vehicles parking on Lower Campbell Street
that will inhibit vehicular ingress and egress from neighbouring
properties.

(d)

The development must be undertaken in accordance with the CTMP
approved under (b) above.

(36) DILAPIDATION REPORT
(a)

Subject to the receipt of permission of the affected landowner,
dilapidation report/s, including a photographic survey of the properties
adjoining the site to the south, 277-285 Crown Street, 261-265 Crown
Street, 58 and 60 Lower Campbell Street are to be prepared by an
appropriately qualified structural engineer prior to commencement of
demolition/excavation works. A copy of the dilapidation report/s together
with the accompanying photographs must be given to the above property
owners, and a copy lodged with the Principal Certifier and the Council
prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate.

UPON COMPLETION OF EXCAVATION/DEMOLITION
(b)

A second Dilapidation Report/s, including a photographic survey must
then be submitted at least one month after the completion of
demolition/excavation works. A copy of the second dilapidation report/s,
together with the accompanying photographs must be given to the above
property owners, and a copy lodged with the Principal Certifier and the
Council prior to the issue of an Occupation Certificate.

55

Any damage to buildings, structures, lawns, trees, sheds, gardens and the like
must be fully rectified by the applicant or owner, at no cost to the affected
property owner.
Note: Prior to the commencement of the building surveys, the applicant/owner
must advise (in writing) all property owners of buildings to be surveyed of what
the survey will entail and of the process for making a claim regarding property
damage. A copy of this information must be submitted to Council.
(37) TREES THAT MUST BE RETAINED
The existing trees detailed in Table 1 below must be retained and protected in
accordance with eth conditions of consent throughout the construction and
development.
Table 1 – Tree Retention:
Tree No
1

Botanical/Common Name

Location

Lophostemon confertus (Brush
Box)

Riley Street

(38) TREE PROTECTION PLANS
All detailed architectural, building, engineering (structural, stormwater and
drainage services) and landscape documentation submitted for the
Construction Certificate shall clearly show on all drawings the retention of trees
as required by these conditions of consent, the position of their trunks, full
diameter of their canopies, Structural Root Zones (SRZs) and Tree Protection
Zones (TPZs).
(39) TREE PRUNING SPECIFICATION
(a)

A ‘Pruning Specification Report’ prepared by a qualified Arborist
(minimum AQF Level 5) must be submitted to and approved by Council’s
Area Planning Manager prior to the issuing of the Construction
Certificate. The report must include:Number of branches and orientation,
branch diameter, percentage of canopy to be pruned/removed.Photos
with individual branches which are recommended for pruning/removal to
be clearly marked. (Please note reports which include photos with a
single vertical line as the area recommended for pruning will not be
accepted).A maximum of 5% canopy removal and maximum of 100mm
diameter branches will be permitted by Council.Pruning work must be
specified in accordance with Australian Standard 4373–2007, Pruning of
Amenity Trees.Tree removal must not be recommended in this report.All
approved tree pruning works must be carried out by a qualified Arborist,
with a minimum Level 3 AQF in arboriculture and in accordance with
WorkCover’s Code of Practice – Amenity Tree Industry.Any pruning
works carried out under this consent must not result in the death of the
tree, the creation of a hazard or in excessive or inappropriate amounts
of pruning, which result in the overall shape of the tree becoming
unbalanced and/or unstable.This consent does not authorise the

56

applicant, or the contractor engaged to do the tree works to enter a
neighbouring property.All tree works must be undertaken from within the
subject property unless consent from the neighbour is obtained to enter
their property.The consent from Council’s Tree Management Officer
must be obtained prior to the undertaking of any additional tree pruning
works or pruning of any tree roots greater than 30mm in diameter.
STREET TREE PROTECTION
Street trees must be protected in accordance with the Australian Standard
4970 Protection of Trees on Development Sites. All street trees must be
protected during the construction works as follows:
(a)

Tree trunk and major limb protection shall be undertaken prior to the
issuing of the Construction Certificate. The protection shall be installed
by a qualified Arborist (AQF 2 or 3) and must include;
(i)

An adequate clearance, minimum 250mm, must be provided
between the structure and tree branches, limbs and trunk at all
times,

(ii)

Tree trunk/s and major branches must be protected by wrapped
hessian or similar material to limit damage, and

(iii)

Timber planks (50mm x 100mm or similar) shall be placed around
tree trunk/s. The timber planks shall be spaced at 100mm intervals,
and must be fixed against the trunk with tie wire, or strapping. The
hessian and timber planks must not be fixed to the tree in any
instance, or in any fashion.

(iv)

Tree trunk and major branch protection is to remain in place for the
duration of construction and development works, and shall be
removed at the completion of the project.

(b)

All hoarding support columns are to be placed a minimum of 300mm
from the edge of the existing tree pits/setts, so that no sinking or damage
occurs to the existing tree setts. Supporting columns must not be placed
on any tree roots that are exposed.

(c)

Materials or goods, including site sheds, must not be stored or placed:
(i)

Around or under the tree canopy; or

(ii)

Within two (2) metres of the trunks or branches of any street trees.

(d)

Protective fencing (1.8 metre chain wire mesh fencing) must be erected
on top of the hoarding to protect branches during the construction works.

(e)

Temporary signs, or any other items, shall not be fixed or attached to
any street tree.

(f)

Any excavation within in any area known to, or suspected of having
street tree roots greater than 40mm diameter must be undertaken by
hand.

(g)

Any trenching works for services / hydraulics / drainage etc must not be
undertaken within 3 metres of any street tree. Alternative installation

57

methods for services, such as directional boring/drilling, or redirection of
services shall be employed where large woody roots greater than 40mm
diameter are encountered during the installation of any services.
(h)

Any damage sustained to street tree/s as a result of construction
activities (including demolition) must be immediately reported to the
Council's Street Tree Contract Coordinator on 9265 9333. Any damage
to street trees as a result of construction activities may result in a
prosecution under the Local Government Act 1993 and/or the
Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

(41) BCA COMPLIANCE – BCA REPORT HAS BEEN PROVIDED
Prior to Construction Certificate approval attention is drawn to the compliance
matters identified in Design Specification Report – NCC 2016 ref J18115-3 and
Design Specification Accessibility ref J18115(a)- 4 dated 20/11/18 by Trevor
R Howse:
(a)

Pursuant to Clause 94(1)(b)(i) of the Environmental Planning and
Assessment Regulation 2000, the fire safety deficiencies identified in
Section 5.2: Part C.1 items (a),(b) and (c), Part C3 and Part D2 – items
(a),(c) and (e) of Design Specification Report – NCC 2016 ref J18115-3
dated 20/11/18 by Trevor R Howse shall be actioned to the satisfaction
of the Principal Certifying Authority prior to the issue of an Occupation
Certificate.

(b)

If compliance with the requirements listed above cannot be achieved
through the deemed-to-satisfy pathway, performance solution(s) in
accordance with Part A0 of the BCA must be prepared and submitted to
the Certifying Authority / Principal Certifying Authority illustrating how the
relevant performance provisions are to be satisfied.

(42) EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL
Prior to the commencement of demolition/excavation/construction work, an
Erosion and Sediment Control Plan (ESCP) must be submitted to and be
approved by the Principal Certifier. The ESCP must:
(a)

Conform to the specifications and standards contained in Managing
Urban Stormwater: Soils and Construction (Landcom, 2004); the
Guidelines for Erosion and Sediment Control on Building Sites (City of
Sydney, 2004); and the NSW Protection of the Environment Operations
Act 1997.

(b)

Include a drawing(s) that clearly shows:
(i)

location of site boundaries and adjoining roads

(ii)

approximate grades and indications of direction(s) of fall

(iii)

approximate location of trees and other vegetation, showing items
for removal or retention

(iv)

location of site access, proposed roads and other impervious areas

58

(c)

(v)

existing and proposed drainage patterns with stormwater
discharge points

(vi)

north point and scale

Specify how soil conservation measures will be conducted on site
including:
(i)

timing of works

(ii)

locations of lands where a protective ground cover will, as far as is
practicable, be maintained

(iii)

access protection measures

(iv)

nature and extent of earthworks, including the amount of any cut
and fill

(v)

where applicable, the diversion of runoff from upslope lands
around the disturbed areas

(vi)

location of all soil and other material stockpiles including topsoil
storage, protection and reuse methodology

(vii) procedures by which stormwater is to be collected and treated prior
to discharge including details of any proposed pollution control
device(s)
(viii) frequency and nature of any maintenance program
(ix)

other site-specific soil or water conservation structures.

59

(43) CONSULTATION WITH THE COMMUNITY
EXCAVATION AND CONSTRUCTION

DURING

DEMOLITION,

A consultation strategy is to be submitted to and approved by Council’s Area
Planning Manager prior to the issue of any Construction Certificate
demonstrating a commitment to ongoing and regular consultation with
adjoining residents and businesses prior to and during demolition, excavation
and construction. The strategy is to be in the form of a newsletter identifying
upcoming and ongoing works that may disrupt the amenity and operation of
neighbouring premises including traffic and parking impacts, installation of
hoardings, use of noisy machinery and the like. The strategy must include
one or more of the following consultation methods:
a)
b)
c)
d)

Letterbox drop
Regular updates on company website/s
Social media posts
Regular email

The newsletter must also contain information about ongoing communication
strategies and details for registering to receive electronic newsletters (if these
are to be used) throughout a project.
(44) COMPLIANCE WITH DEMOLITION, EXCAVATION & CONSTRUCTION
NOISE AND VIBRATION MANAGEMENT PLAN
(a)

All works conducted on site which form part of this development must be
carried out in accordance with the submitted Construction and Vibration
Management Plan prepared by Acoustic Studio dated 20 November
2018 (Council reference 2018/616263).

(b)

Where all such control measures have been implemented and the
resultant noise and/ or vibration levels at any sensitive receiver still
exceed the council’s applicable criteria stated in the Construction
Hours/Noise Code 1992 and are giving rise to sustained complaints then
the contractor must provide regular, appropriate and sustained periods
of respite in consultation with Council’s Health and Building unit.
Approval to vary the authorised noise and vibration levels must be
received in writing by the proponent from Council prior to activities being
undertaken that exceed sanctioned emission levels.

(45) COMPLIANCE WITH
THE
ACOUSTIC
REPORT
CONSTRUCTION AND OR OCCUPATION CERTIFICATES
(a)

PRIOR

TO

All performance parameters, requirements, engineering assumptions
and recommendations contained in the acoustic report prepared by
Acoustic report prepared by Acoustic Studio dated 20 November 2018
(Council reference 2018/616242) must be implemented as part of the
detailed design assessment and implemented into the design drawings
prior to the commencement of the use of the premises in accordance
with the requirements of (b) and (c) below and to the satisfaction of the
Principal Certifier.

60

(b)

Prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate, the construction drawings
and construction methodology must be assessed and certified by a
suitably qualified acoustic consultant* (see definition below) to be in
accordance with the requirements of the DA acoustic report set out
below. Specifically, the consultant will prepare a written Acoustic
Certification Report with reference to drawings, to the satisfaction of the
Principal Certifier.

(c)

Prior to the issue of an Occupation Certificate, a suitable qualified
acoustic consultant is to provide a written Acoustic Verification Report to
the satisfaction of the Principal Certifier that the development complies
with the requirements set out in the Report and in (a) and (b) above.
Note: Suitably qualified Acoustic Consultant means a consultant who
possesses the qualifications to render them eligible for membership of
the Australian Acoustics Society, Institution of Engineers Australia or the
Association of Australian Acoustic Consultants at the grade of member.

(46) NOISE – COMMERCIAL PLANT / INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT
(a)

(b)

(c)

Noise from commercial plant and industrial development must not
exceed a project amenity/intrusiveness noise level or maximum noise
level in accordance with relevant requirements of the NSW EPA Noise
Policy for Industry 2017 (NPfI) unless agreed to by the City’s Area
Planning Manager. Further:
(i)

Background noise monitoring must be carried out in accordance
with the long-term methodology in Fact Sheet B of the NPfI unless
otherwise agreed by the City’s Area Planning Manager.

(ii)

Commercial plant is limited to heating, ventilation, air conditioning,
refrigeration and energy generation equipment.

An LAeq,15 minute (noise level) emitted from the development must not
exceed the LA90, 15 minute (background noise level) by more than 3dB when
assessed inside any habitable room of any affected residence or noise
sensitive commercial premises at any time. Further:
(i)

The noise level and the background noise level shall both be
measured with all external doors and windows of the affected
residence closed.

(ii)

Background noise measurements must not include noise from the
development but may include noise from necessary ventilation at
the affected premise.

Corrections in Fact Sheet C of the NPfI are applicable to relevant noise
from the development measured in accordance with this condition,
however duration corrections are excluded from commercial noise.

61

(47) WASTE STORAGE AREA
(a)

To ensure the adequate storage and collection of waste from the food
premises, all garbage and recyclable materials emanating from the
premises must be stored in a designated waste storage area. The waste
storage area must be designed and constructed in accordance with AS
4674 – Design, Construction and Fit-out of Food Premises, Australia
New Zealand Food Standards Code 3.2.3 – Food Premises and
Equipment and comply with the Council Policy for Waste Minimisation in
New Developments, and must be:
(i)

Provided with a hose tap connected to the water supply.

(ii)

Paved with impervious floor materials.

(iii)

Coved at the intersection of the floor and walls.

(iv)

Graded and drained to a waste disposal system in accordance with
the requirements of the relevant regulatory authority (Sydney
Water).

(v)

Adequately ventilated (mechanically or naturally) so that odour
emissions do not cause offensive odour or air pollution as defined
by the Protection of the Environment Operations Act 1997 or a
nuisance.

(vi)

Fitted with appropriate interventions to meet fire safety standards
in accordance with the Building Code of Australia.

(vii) Provided with the appropriate number and size of bins adequate
for the storage of waste generated by the business, including
recycling.
(viii) Appropriately managed so that it does not attract pests or create
litter.
(b)

Detailed plans and specifications for the construction of the waste
storage area must be submitted to and approved by the Principal
Certifier prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate and must be
constructed in accordance with such plans and specifications prior to the
issuance of an Occupation Certificate.

(48) ALIGNMENT LEVELS - PUBLIC DOMAIN
(a)

Proposed building floor levels, basement levels, basement car park entry
levels and ground levels shown on the approved Development
Application plans are indicative only and have not been approved by this
consent.

62

(b)

Prior to a Construction Certificate being issued for any excavation, civil
construction, drainage or building work (whichever is earlier), excluding
approved preparatory or demolition work, alignment levels for the
building and site frontages must be submitted to and approved by
Council. The submission must be prepared by a Registered Surveyor
and designed by a suitably qualified engineer, must be in accordance
with the City of Sydney's Public Domain Manual and must be submitted
with a completed and Levels and Gradients Approval Application form
(available on the City’s website).

(c)

These alignment levels, as approved by Council, are to be incorporated
into the plans submitted with the application for a Construction Certificate
for any civil, drainage and public domain work as applicable under this
consent. If the proposed detailed design of the public domain requires
changes to any previously approved Alignment Levels, then an amended
Alignment Levels submission must be submitted to and approved by
Council to reflect these changes prior to a Construction Certificate being
issued for public domain work.

(49) PHOTOGRAPHIC RECORD / DILAPIDATION REPORT - PUBLIC DOMAIN
Prior to an approval for demolition being granted or a Construction Certificate
being issued, whichever is earlier, a photographic recording of the public
domain site frontages is to be prepared and submitted to Council's satisfaction.
The recording must include clear images of the building facade adjoining the
footpath, the footpath, nature strip, kerb and gutter, driveway crossovers and
laybacks, kerb ramps, road carriageway, street trees and plantings, parking
restriction and traffic signs, and all other existing infrastructure along the street.
The form of the recording is to be as follows:(a)

A PDF format report containing all images at a scale that clearly
demonstrates the existing site conditions;

(b)

Each image is to be labelled to identify the elements depicted, the
direction that the image is viewed towards, and include the name of the
relevant street frontage;

(c)

Each image is to be numbered and cross referenced to a site location
plan;

(d)

A summary report, prepared by a suitable qualified professional, must
be submitted in conjunction with the images detailing the project
description, identifying any apparent existing defects, detailing the date
and authorship of the photographic record, the method of documentation
and limitations of the photographic record;

(e)

Include written confirmation, issued with the authority of both the
applicant and the photographer that the City of Sydney is granted a
perpetual non-exclusive license to make use of the copyright in all
images supplied, including the right to make copies available to third
parties as though they were Council images. The signatures of both the
applicant and the photographer must be included.

63

Any damage to the public way including trees, footpaths, kerbs, gutters, road
carriageway and the like must immediately be made safe and functional by the
applicant. Damage must be fully rectified by the applicant in accordance with
the City’s standards prior to a Certificate of Completion being issued for Public
Domain Works or before an Occupation Certificate is issued for the
development, whichever is earlier.
(50) PRESERVATION OF SURVEY MARKS
All works in City streets must ensure the preservation of existing permanent
survey marks (a brass bolt, or a lead plug holding a brass tack, covered by a
cast iron box). At least forty-eight hours prior to the commencement of any
works in the public way within 1 metre of a permanent survey mark contact
must be made with the City's Project Manager Survey / Design Services to
arrange for the recovery of the mark.
Prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate, a survey plan, clearly showing
the location of all permanent survey marks fronting the site and within 5 metres
on each side of the frontages must be submitted to Council.
At least forty-eight hours prior to the commencement of any works in the public
way within 1 metre of a permanent survey mark contact must be made with
the City’s Senior Surveyor to arrange for the recovery of the mark.
A fee must be paid to the Council for the replacement of any permanent survey
mark removed or damaged in accordance with the City's Schedule of Fees
and Charges (Reinstatement of Survey Box).
(51) PROTECTION OF SURVEY INFRASTRUCTURE
Prior to the commencement of any work on site, a statement prepared by a
Surveyor registered under the Surveying and Spatial Information Act 2002
must be submitted to Council verifying that a survey has been carried out in
accordance with the Surveyor General’s Direction No. 11 – Reservation of
Survey Infrastructure. Any Permanent Marks proposed to be or have been
destroyed must be replaced, and a "Plan of Survey Information" must be
lodged at the NSW Land Registry Services.
Reason: To ensure that the survey control infrastructure and cadastral
framework are preserved for the public benefit and in accordance with the
Surveying and Spatial Information Act 2002.
(52) PUBLIC DOMAIN PLAN
(a)

A detailed Public Domain Plan must be prepared by a suitably qualified
architect, urban designer, landscape architect or engineer and must be
lodged with Council’s Public Domain Section and be approved by
Council prior to a Construction Certificate being issued for public domain
work or above ground building work, whichever is later.

64

(b)

The Public Domain Plan must document all works required to ensure
that the public domain complies with the City of Sydney’s Public Domain
Manual, Sydney Streets Code and Sydney Streets Technical
Specification, including requirements for road pavement, traffic
measures, footway pavement, kerb and gutter, drainage, vehicle
crossovers, pedestrian ramps, lighting, street trees and landscaping,
signage and other public domain elements. If an Alignment Levels
condition applies to the development, the Public Domain Plan
submission must incorporate the approved Alignment Levels. If the
proposed detailed design of the public domain requires changes to any
previously approved Alignment Levels, then an amended Alignment
Levels submission must be submitted to and approved by Council to
reflect these changes prior to a Construction Certificate being issued for
public domain work.

(c)

The works to the public domain are to be completed in accordance with
the approved Public Domain Plan and Alignment Levels plans and the
Public Domain Manual before any Occupation Certificate is issued in
respect of the development or before the use commences, whichever is
earlier.

(53) PUBLIC DOMAIN WORKS BOND
Public Domain Works Deposit will be required as security for the public domain
works and for repairing damage that may be caused to the public domain in
the vicinity of the site, in accordance with the City of Sydney’s adopted fees
and charges and the Public Domain Manual. The Public Domain Works
Deposit must be submitted as an unconditional bank guarantee or insurance
bond as per the Council’s Performance Bond Policy in favour of Council as
security for completion of the obligations under this consent (Guarantee).
Council's Public Domain section must be contacted to determine the
guarantee amount prior to lodgement of the guarantee. The guarantee must
be lodged with Council prior to a Construction Certificate being issued.
The Guarantee will be retained in full until all Public Domain works, including
rectification of damage to the public domain, are completed to City of Sydney
standards and approval and the required certifications, warranties and worksas-executed documentation are submitted and approved by Council in writing.
On satisfying the above requirements, 90% of the security will be released.
The remaining 10% will be retained for the duration of the specified Defects
Liability Period.
(54) PUBLIC DOMAIN WORKS – HOLD POINTS AND HANDOVER
(a)

Prior to a Construction Certificate being issued for public domain work,
including civil, drainage and subsurface works, , a set of hold points for
approved public domain, civil and drainage work is to be determined
with and approved by the City's Public Domain section in accordance
with the City of Sydney's Public Domain Manual and Sydney Streets
Technical Specification.

65

(b)

Prior to a Certificate of Completion being issued for public domain works
and before the issue of any Occupation Certificate for the development
or before the use commences, whichever is earlier, electronic works-asexecuted (as-built) plans and documentation, certified by a suitably
qualified, independent professional must be submitted to and accepted
by Council for all public domain works. Completion and handover of the
constructed public domain works must be undertaken in accordance with
the City of Sydney's Public Domain Manual and Sydney Streets
Technical Specification, including requirements for as-built
documentation, certification, warranties and the defects liability period.

(55) STORMWATER AND DRAINAGE
(a)

(b)

Prior to an approval or Construction Certificate being issued for
excavation, civil construction, drainage or building work (whichever is
earlier), excluding approved preparatory or demolition work a detailed
drainage engineering design, calculations and design for the stormwater
overland flow path for the development must be:
(i)

prepared by a suitably qualified hydraulic or civil engineer to show
the proposed method of collection and disposal of stormwater; and

(ii)

prepared in accordance with the City of Sydney’s Stormwater
Drainage Manual, technical specifications, standards and policies,
as amended from time to time; and

(iii)

submitted to and be approved by the City of Sydney and a copy of
the City’s letter of approval must be provided to the Principal
Certifying Authority.

For approval of a connection into the City of Sydney’s drainage system
an “Application for Approval of Stormwater Drainage Connections" must
be submitted to the City, together with an application fee in accordance
with the City of Sydney’s adopted Schedule of Fees and Charges.
(i)

The application must be approved by the City of Sydney prior to
an approval or Construction Certificate being issued for
excavation, civil construction, drainage or building work (whichever
is earlier), excluding approved preparatory or demolition work.

(ii)

All proposed connections to the City's underground drainage
system require the owner to enter into a Deed of Agreement with
the City of Sydney and obtain registration on Title of a Positive
Covenant prior to an Occupation Certificate being issued, including
an Interim Occupation Certificate.

On-site Detention
(c)

The requirements of Sydney Water with regard to the on-site detention
of stormwater must be ascertained and complied with.

66

(i)

Evidence of the approval by Sydney Water of the detailed design
of the on-site detention must be submitted to and be accepted by
the City of Sydney and a copy of the City’s letter of acceptance
must be provided to the Principal Certifying Authority prior to a
Construction Certificate being issued, excluding for any approved
preparatory, demolition or excavation works.

(ii)

Prior to the issue of an Occupation Certificate, including an Interim
Occupation Certificate, a Positive Covenant must be registered on
the property title for all drainage systems involving On-Site
Detention (OSD) to ensure maintenance of the approved OSD
system regardless of the method of connection.

Stormwater Quality Assessment
(d)

Prior to a Construction Certificate being issued for any excavation, civil
construction, drainage or building work (whichever is earlier), but
excluding approved preparatory or demolition work, a stormwater quality
assessment must be undertaken and must be approved by City of
Sydney and a copy of the City’s letter of approval must be provided to
the Principal Certifying Authority.
(i)

The stormwater quality assessment must:

(i)

be prepared by a suitably qualified hydraulic engineer with
experience in Water Sensitive Urban Design as per approved
MUSIC Link report prepared by Warren Smith & Partners, project
details Cambridge Hotel Redevelopment MUSIC Model, dated 12
June 2019;

(ii)

use modelling from an industry-standard water quality model (e.g.
MUSIC Model or equivalent); and

(iii)

demonstrate through reports, design plans and calculations, what
water sensitive urban design and other drainage measures will be
used to ensure that the development will achieve the following
post-development pollutant loads:

(iv)

a.

reduce the baseline annual pollutant load for litter and
vegetation larger than 5mm by 90%;

b.

reduce the baseline annual pollutant load for total suspended
solids by 85%;

c.

reduce the baseline annual pollutant load for total
phosphorous by 65%;

d.

reduce the baseline annual pollutant load for total nitrogen
by 45%.

include certification from a suitably qualified practicing professional
that the requirements of parts d) (i), (ii) and (iii) of this condition
have been met.

67

Prior to the issue of an Occupation Certificate, maintenance schedules
of the proposed water sensitive urban design and drainage measures
must be submitted to and be approved by the Principal Certifying
Authority and a copy provided to the City of Sydney.
Completion / Works-as-Executed Documentation
(f)

(g)

Prior to a Certificate of Completion being issued by the City of Sydney
for stormwater drainage works:
(ii)

All works for the disposal of stormwater and drainage are to be
implemented in accordance with the approved plans, City of
Sydney technical specifications. Standards and policies, approval
letters and the requirements of this consent.

(iii)

a Works-As-Executed survey, prepared, signed and dated by a
Registered Surveyor, must be submitted to and be accepted by the
City of Sydney. The plan must be overlaid on a copy of the
approved stormwater drainage plans issued with the Construction
Certificate, with variations to locations, dimensions, levels and
storage volumes clearly marked.

(iv)

Electronic works-as-executed (as-built) details, certifications,
warranties, inspection reports (including Closed Circuit Television
reports) and associated documentation for the completed work
must be prepared and certified by a suitably qualified hydraulic
engineer, in accordance with the requirements of the City of
Sydney’s technical specifications, the Public Domain Manual, the
Stormwater Drainage Manual, the conditions of this consent and
all letters of approval issued by the City of Sydney for works in the
public domain, and must be submitted to and be accepted by the
City of Sydney.

Prior to the issue of the first Occupation Certificate, including an Interim
Occupation Certificate, or before the use commences (whichever is
earlier):
(i)

A copy of the City’s Certificate of Completion for all stormwater and
drainage work undertaken in the public domain must be provided
to the Principal Certifying Authority;

(ii)

a Works-As-Executed survey, must be prepared, signed, dated
and certified by a Registered Surveyor and must be submitted to
and be accepted by the Principal Certifying Authority. The Worksas-Executed plan must be overlaid on a copy of the approved
stormwater drainage plans issued with the Construction
Certificate, with variations to locations, dimensions, levels and
storage volumes clearly marked;

(iii)

a Hydraulic Compliance Certificate and Calculation Sheet must be
prepared by a suitably qualified hydraulic engineer (minimum
NER), showing approved versus installed hydraulic calculations,
and must be submitted to and be accepted by the Principal
Certifying Authority;

68

(iv)

evidence of Sydney Water’s acceptance of the Works-AsExecuted documentation, certification and Hydraulic Compliance
Certificate and Calculation Sheet must be provided to the Principal
Certifying Authority;

The Principal Certifying Authority must submit a copy of the Works-AsExecuted plans, certifications, Hydraulic Compliance Certificate and
Calculation Sheet to the City of Sydney.
(56) DEFECTS LIABILITY PERIOD – PUBLIC DOMAIN WORKS
All works to the City’s public domain, including rectification of identified defects,
are subject to a 6 month defects liability period from the date of final
completion. The date of final completion will be nominated by Council on the
Certificate of Practical Completion for public domain works.
(57) DRAINAGE AND SERVICE PIT LIDS DRAINAGE AND SERVICE PIT LIDS
Drainage and service pit lids throughout the public domain shall be heelguard
and bicycle safe, finish flush with the adjacent pavement to avoid trip hazards
and be clear of obstructions for easy opening and cleaning. Pit lids shall be in
accordance with the City of Sydney’s Sydney Streets Design Code and
Sydney Streets Technical Specification. Details of drainage and service pit lids
shall be submitted and approved by Council prior to a Construction Certificate
being issued for the relevant stage of work.
(58) PUBLIC DOMAIN DAMAGE DEPOSIT
(a)

A Public Domain Damage Deposit calculated on the basis of 30 lineal
metres of asphalt site frontage on Riley Street and 63 lineal metres of
concrete site frontage on Lower Campbell Street must be lodged with
Council in accordance with the City of Sydney’s adopted Schedule of
Fees and Charges. The Public Domain Damage Deposit must be
submitted as an unconditional bank guarantee or insurance bond as per
the Council’s Performance Bond Policy in favour of Council as security
for repairing any damage to the public domain in the vicinity of the site
(Guarantee).

(b)

The Guarantee must be lodged with Council prior to an approval for
demolition being granted or a Construction Certificate being issued,
whichever is earlier.

(c)

The Guarantee in this condition will be retained in full until the Public
Domain Works Deposit Guarantee required by this consent is lodged
with Council. Upon lodgement of the Public Domain Works Deposit
Guarantee, the Guarantee in this condition will be released.

69

(59) PUBLIC DOMAIN LIGHTING
(a)

(b)

Prior to a Construction Certificate for public domain works or above
ground building works being issued, whichever is later, a detailed Public
Domain Lighting Plan for pedestrian and street lighting in the public
domain must be prepared by a suitably qualified, practicing lighting
engineer or lighting designer and must be submitted to and approved by
Council. The Lighting Plan must be prepared in accordance with the City
of Sydney’s Sydney Lights Design Code, Sydney Streets Code, Sydney
Streets Technical Specification and Public Domain Manual and must
include the following:
(i)

Vertical and horizontal illuminance plots for the public domain
lighting design to demonstrate compliance with all relevant
Australian Standards and to meet the lighting categories and
requirements specified by the City;

(ii)

The location, type and category of existing and proposed lights,
including details of luminaire specifications, required to ensure
compliance with City policies and Australian Standards;

(iii)

Footing locations and structural details;

(iv)

Location and details of underground electrical reticulation,
connections and conduits;

(v)

Certification by a suitably qualified, practicing lighting engineer or
lighting designer to certify that the design complies with City
policies and all relevant Australian Standards including AS 1158,
AS 3000 and AS4282;

(vi)

Structural certification for footing designs by a suitably qualified,
practicing engineer to certify that the design complies with City of
Sydney policies and Australian Standards.

The public domain lighting works are to be completed in accordance with
the approved plans and the City of Sydney's Public Domain Manual
before any Occupation Certificate is issued in respect of the
development or before the use commences, whichever is earlier.

(60) TACTILE GROUND SURFACE INDICATORS AND HANDRAILS
All tactile ground surface indicators, handrails and other elements required to
provide access into the building / property must be located entirely within the
private property boundary.
(61) ENCROACHMENTS – PUBLIC WAY
No portion of the proposed structure, including gates and doors during opening
and closing operations, shall encroach upon Council’s footpath area.

70

(62) DEMOLITION, EXCAVATION AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT
(a)

Prior to the commencement of demolition and/or excavation work the
following details must be submitted to and be approved by the Principal
Certifier:
(i)

Plans and elevations showing distances of the subject building
from the location of adjoining and common/party walls, and (where
applicable) the proposed method of facade retention.

(ii)

A Demolition Work Method Statement prepared by a licensed
demolisher who is registered with the Work Cover Authority. (The
demolition by induced collapse, the use of explosives or on-site
burning is not permitted.)

(iii)

An Excavation Work Method Statement prepared by an
appropriately qualified person.

(iv)

A Waste Management Plan for the demolition and or excavation of
the proposed development.

(v)

Plans and elevations showing the location, construction and
installation of temporary site fencing and any temporary structures
used in connection with the construction of the development.

Note: Temporary structures, including hoardings and scaffolding,
proposed for erection on City-owned and controlled land (footways and
roadways), must comply with the City’s Guidelines for Hoardings and
Scaffolding and be approved by Council under the provisions of the
Local Government Act 1993 and the Roads Act 1993 prior to installation.
(b)

Such statements must, where applicable, be in compliance with AS26012001 Demolition of Structures, the Work, Health and Safety Act 2011
and Regulation; Council’s Policy for Waste Minimisation in New
Developments 2005, the Waste Avoidance and Resource Recovery Act
2001, and all other relevant acts and regulations and must include
provisions for:
(i)

A Materials Handling Statement for the removal of refuse from the
site in accordance with the Waste Avoidance and Resource
Recovery Act 2001.

(ii)

The name and address of the company/contractor undertaking
demolition/excavation works.

(iii)

The name and address of the company/contractor undertaking off
site remediation/disposal of excavated materials.

(iv)

The name and address of the transport contractor.

(v)

The type and quantity of material to be removed from site.

(vi)

Location and method of waste disposal and recycling.

(vii) Proposed truck routes, in accordance with this development
consent.

71

(viii) Procedures to be adopted for the prevention of loose or
contaminated material, spoil, dust and litter from being deposited
onto the public way from trucks and associated equipment and the
proposed method of cleaning surrounding roadways from such
deposits. (Note: With regard to demolition of buildings, dust
emission must be minimised for the full height of the building. A
minimum requirement is that perimeter scaffolding, combined with
chain wire and shade cloth must be used, together with continuous
water spray during the demolition process. Compressed air must
not be used to blow dust from the building site).
(ix)

Measures to control noise emissions from the site.

(x)

Measures to suppress odours.

(xi)

Enclosing and making the site safe.

(xii) Induction training for on-site personnel.
(xiii) Written confirmation that an appropriately qualified Occupational
Hygiene Consultant has inspected the building/site for asbestos,
contamination and other hazardous materials, in accordance with
the procedures acceptable to Work Cover Authority.
(xiv) An Asbestos and Hazardous Materials Clearance Certificate by a
person approved by the Work Cover Authority.
(xv) Disconnection of utilities.
(xvi) Fire Fighting. (Fire fighting services on site are to be maintained at
all times during demolition work. Access to fire services in the
street must not be obstructed).
(xvii) Access and egress. (Demolition and excavation activity must not
cause damage to or adversely affect the safe access and egress
of the subject building or any adjacent buildings).
(xviii) Waterproofing of any exposed surfaces of adjoining buildings.
(xix) Control of water pollution and leachate and cleaning of vehicles
tyres (proposals must be in accordance with the Protection of the
Environmental Operations Act 1997).
(xx) Working hours, in accordance with this development consent.
(xxi) Any Work Cover Authority requirements.
(c)

The approved work method statements and a waste management plan
as required by this condition must be implemented in full during the
period of construction.

72

(63) CONSTRUCTION AND FITOUT OF FOOD PREMISES
The construction, fitout and finishes of the food premises must comply with
Standard 3.2.3 of the Australian and New Zealand Food Standards Code
under the Food Act 2003 and AS 4674 – 2004 Design, Construction and Fitout
of Food Premises.
Note: Copies of AS 4674-2004 may be obtained from the Standards Australia
Customer Service on telephone 1300 65 46 46 or by visiting the website
www.standards.com.au.
Copies of the Food Standards Code (Australia) may be obtained by contacting
the Food Standards Australia and New Zealand Authority on telephone (02)
6271 2222, email info@foodstandards.gov.au or by visiting the website
www.foodstandards.gov.au.
(64) TEMPORARY GROUND ANCHORS, TEMPORARY SHORING AND
PERMANENT BASEMENT/RETAINING WALLS AFFECTING THE ROAD
RESERVE
For temporary shoring including ground anchors affecting the road reserve, a
separate application under Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993 must be lodged
with Council.
(65) TEMPORARY STRUCTURES (HOARDINGS, SCAFFOLDING AND OTHER
STRUCTURES) INSTALLED ON PUBLIC ROADS THAT REQUIRE
DEVELOPMENT CONTENT
The following forms of temporary structures (hoardings, scaffolding and other
structures) proposed for installation on public roads and in connection with the
construction of the approved development require Council approval
(development consent):
(a)

Type B hoardings that span over roads such as laneways;

(b)

Type B hoardings that propose more than a single storey of site sheds
installed on a hoarding deck;

(c)

Type A and Type B hoardings with or without scaffolding that project
beyond the side boundaries of adjoining properties;

(d)

fenced work compounds at roadway/footway level;

(e)

hoardings/scaffolding associated with works on heritage-listed buildings;
or

(f)

any other large and/or potentially high environmental impact temporary
structures, as determined by Council.

A separate development application must be submitted and approved by
Council prior to the installation of any temporary structure listed above.

73

(66) APPLICATION FOR HOARDINGS AND SCAFFOLDING INSTALLED ON
OR ABOVE A PUBLIC ROAD AND OPERATING HOISTING DEVICES
INCLUDING BUILDING MAINTENANCE UNITS OVER A PUBLIC ROAD
(a)

A separate application under Section 68 of the Local Government Act
1993 and Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993 is to be made to Council to
erect a hoarding and/or scaffolding (temporary structures) on or above a
public road (footway and/or roadway).

(b)

Where an approval (Permit) is granted allowing the placement of
temporary structures on or above a public road the structures must
comply fully with Council’s Hoarding and Scaffolding Policy; Guidelines
for Hoardings and Scaffolding; and the conditions of approval (Permit)
granted including:
(i)

maintaining a current and valid approval for the full duration that
the temporary structure/s is in place;

(ii)

maintaining temporary structure/s in a structurally sound and
stable condition for the full duration of installation (Clause 2.11.1);

(iii)

bill posters and graffiti being removed within 24 hours of their
placement (Clause 2.11.2);

(iv)

maintaining temporary structures and the public place adjoining
the work site in a clean and tidy condition including repainting
and/or repair of graphics (Clauses 2.11.1, 2.11.4, 2.14.1 and
3.9.3);

(v)

maintaining a watertight deck (Type B hoardings) to prevent liquids
including rainwater, falling onto the footway/roadway surfaces
(Clauses 3.9.1 and 3.9.4);

(vi)

approved site sheds on the decks of a Type B hoarding being fully
screened from the public place (Clause 3.9.5);

(vii) material and equipment not being placed or stored on the deck of
Type B hoardings, unless specifically approved by Council (Clause
3.9.4);
(viii) providing and maintaining operational artificial lighting systems
under Type B hoardings including at high-bay truck entry points
(Clause 3.9.9); and
(ix)

ensuring all required signage is provided and maintained (Clauses
3.9.3, 3.9.6, 3.9.8, 3.10.1 and 4.2).

If it is proposed to operate a hoisting device including a building maintenance
unit above a public road which swings, hoists material/equipment and/or slews
any part of the device over the public road, a separate application under
Section 68 of the Local Government Act 1993 and Section 138 of the Roads
Act 1993 must be made to Council to obtain approval.

74

Note: 'Building maintenance unit' means a power-operated suspended
platform and associated equipment on a building specifically designed to
provide permanent access to the faces of the building for maintenance (Work
Health and Safety Regulation 2011).
(67) HOURS OF WORK AND NOISE
The hours of construction and work on the development must be as follows:
(a)

All work, including building/demolition and excavation work, and
activities in the vicinity of the site generating noise associated with
preparation for the commencement of work (eg. loading and unloading
of goods, transferring of tools etc) in connection with the proposed
development must only be carried out between the hours of 7.30am and
5.30pm on Mondays to Fridays, inclusive, and 7.30am and 3.30pm on
Saturdays, with safety inspections being permitted at 7.00am on work
days, and no work must be carried out on Sundays or public holidays.

(b)

All work, including demolition, excavation and building work must comply
with the City of Sydney Code of Practice for Construction Hours/Noise
1992 and Australian Standard 2436 - 2010 Guide to Noise Control on
Construction, Maintenance and Demolition Sites.

(c)

Notwithstanding the above, the use of a crane for special operations,
including the delivery of materials, hoisting of plant and equipment and
erection and dismantling of on site tower cranes which warrant the onstreet use of mobile cranes outside of above hours can occur, subject to
a permit being issued by Council under Section 68 of the Local
Government Act 1993 and/or Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993.

Note: Works may be undertaken outside of hours, where it is required to avoid
the loss of life, damage to property, to prevent environmental harm and/or to
avoid structural damage to the building. Written approval must be given by the
Construction Regulation Unit, prior to works proceeding
The City of Sydney Code of Practice for Construction Hours/Noise 1992 allows
extended working hours subject to the approval of an application in
accordance with the Code and under Section 4.55 of the Environmental
Planning and Assessment Act 1979.
(68) USE OF HIGH NOISE EMISSION APPLIANCES / PLANT
(a)

The operation of high noise emission appliances, plant and/or machinery
such as pile – drivers, rock breakers and hydraulic hammers and those
which are not listed in Groups B, C, D, E or F of Schedule 1 of the City
of Sydney Code of Practice for Construction Hours/Noise 1992 and
Australian Standard 2436-2010 Guide to Noise Control on Construction,
Maintenance and Demolition Sites is restricted to the hours of (EHO to
specify hours)


8:00am to 11:00am Monday to Friday



12:00pm to 3:00pm Monday to Friday

75

(b)



8:00am to 11:00am Saturday



12.00pm to 3.00pm Saturday

All reasonable and feasible steps must be undertaken to ensure that the
work, including demolition, excavation and building complies with the
City of Sydney Code of Practice for Construction Hours/Noise 1992 and
Australian Standard 2436- 2010 Guide to Noise Control on Construction,
Maintenance and Demolition Sites.

(69) NOTIFICATION OF EXCAVATION WORKS OR USE OF HIGH NOISE
EMISSION APPLIANCES/PLANT
The immediately adjoining neighbours must be given a minimum of 48 hours
notice that excavation, shoring or underpinning works or use of high noise
emission appliances / plant are about to commence.
(70) HAZARDOUS AND INDUSTRIAL WASTE
Hazardous and/or industrial waste arising from the demolition/operational
activities must be removed and/or transported in accordance with the
requirements of the NSW Work Cover Authority pursuant to the provisions of
the following:
(a)

Protection of the Environment Operations Act 1997

(b)

Protection of the Environment Operations (Waste) Regulation 2005

(c)

Waste Avoidance and Resource Recovery Act 2001

(d)

Work Health and Safety Act 2011

(e)

Work Health and Safety Regulation 2011.

(71) COVERING OF LOADS
All vehicles involved in the excavation and/or demolition process and departing
the property with demolition materials, spoil or loose matter must have their
loads fully covered before entering the public roadway.
(72) RESTRICTION ON STRATA SUBDIVISION
Any strata subdivision of the hotel to create individual lots for hotel rooms is
not permitted.
(73) ROAD OPENING PERMIT
A separate Road Opening Permit under Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993
must be obtained from Council prior to the commencement of any:
(a)

Excavation in or disturbance of a public way, or

76

(b)

Excavation on land that, if shoring were not provided, may disturb the
surface of a public road (including footpath).

(74) TEMPORARY GROUND ANCHORS, TEMPORARY SHORING AND
PERMANENT BASEMENT/RETAINING WALLS AFFECTING THE ROAD
RESERVE
For temporary shoring including ground anchors affecting the road reserve, a
separate application under Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993 must be lodged
with Council.
(75) ELECTRICITY SUBSTATION
If required by the applicable energy supplier, the owner must dedicate to the
applicable energy supplier, free of cost, an area of land within the development
site, but not in any landscaped area or in any area visible from the public
domain, to enable an electricity substation to be installed. The size and
location of the substation is to be submitted for approval of Council and
Ausgrid, prior to a Construction Certificate being issued or the commencement
of the use, whichever is earlier.
(76) UTILITY SERVICES
To ensure that utility authorities are advised of the development:
(a)

Prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate a survey is to be carried
out of all utility services within and adjacent to the site including relevant
information from utility authorities and excavation if necessary, to
determine the position and level of services.

(b)

Prior to the commencement of work the applicant is to obtain written
approval from the utility authorities (e.g. Energy Australia, Sydney Water,
and Telecommunications Carriers) in connection with the relocation
and/or adjustment of the services affected by the construction of the
underground structure. Any costs in the relocation, adjustment or
support of services are to be the responsibility of the developer.

(77) WASTE AND RECYCLING COLLECTION CONTRACT
Prior to an Occupation Certificate being issued and/or commencement of the
use, whichever is earlier, the building owner must ensure that there is a
contract with a licensed contractor for the removal of all waste. No garbage is
to be placed on the public way, e.g. footpaths, roadways, plazas, reserves, at
any time.
(78) WASTE/RECYCLING COLLECTION
(a)

The collection of waste and recycling must only occur during the
designated zone collection times as outlined in the City’s Waste Policy –
Local Approvals Policy for Managing Waste in Public Places 2017.

77

(b)

Garbage and recycling must not be placed on the street for collection
more than half an hour before the scheduled collection time. Bins and
containers are to be removed from the street within half an hour of
collection.

(79) ENCROACHMENTS – NEIGHBOURING PROPERTIES
No portion of the proposed structure shall encroach onto the adjoining
properties.
(80) SURVEY
All footings, walls and floor slabs adjacent to a boundary must be set out by a
registered surveyor. On commencement of brickwork or wall construction a
survey and report, prepared by a Registered Surveyor, must be submitted to
the Principal Certifier indicating the position of external walls in relation to the
boundaries of the allotment. Any encroachments by the subject building over
adjoining boundaries or roads must be removed prior to continuation of
building construction work.
(81) SURVEY CERTIFICATE AT COMPLETION
A Survey Certificate prepared by a Registered Surveyor must be submitted at
the completion of the building work certifying the location of the building in
relation to the boundaries of the allotment.
(82) EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL
The Soil and Water Management Plan (SWMP) or Erosion and Sediment
Control Plan (ESCP) which has been approved by the Principal Certifier must
be implemented in full during the construction period.
During the construction period;
(a)

erosion and sediment controls must be regularly inspected, repaired and
maintained in working order sufficient for a 10 year Average Recurrence
Interval (ARI) rainfall event;

(b)

erosion and sediment control signage available from Council must be
completed and attached to the most prominent structure visible at all
times when entering the site for the duration of construction; and

(c)

building operations and stockpiles must not be located on the public
footway or any other locations which could lead to the discharge of
materials into the stormwater system.

(83) VEHICLE CLEANSING
Prior to the commencement of work, suitable measures are to be implemented
to ensure that sediment and other materials are not tracked onto the roadway
by vehicles leaving the site. It is an offence to allow, permit or cause materials
to pollute or be placed in a position from which they may pollute waters.

78

(84) SYDNEY WATER CERTIFICATE
A Section 73 Compliance Certificate under the Sydney Water Act 1994 must
be obtained from Sydney Water Corporation.
Application must be made through an authorised Water Servicing Coordinator.
Please refer to the Building Developing and Plumbing section on the web site
www.sydneywater.com.au then refer to “Water Servicing Coordinator” under
“Developing Your Land” or telephone 13 20 92 for assistance.
Following application a “Notice of Requirements” will advise of water and
sewer infrastructure to be built and charges to be paid. Please make early
contact with the Coordinator, since building of water/sewer infrastructure can
be time consuming and may impact on other services and building, driveway
or landscape design.
The Section 73 Certificate must be submitted to Council or the Principal
Certifier prior to an Occupation Certificate or subdivision/strata certificate
being issued.
(85) ACCESS DRIVEWAYS TO BE CONSTRUCTED
Approved driveways are to be constructed for all vehicular access to the
construction site in accordance with the requirements of Council's “Driveway
Specifications” to the satisfaction of Council.
(86) LOADING AND UNLOADING DURING CONSTRUCTION
The following requirements apply:
(a)

All loading and unloading associated with construction activity must be
accommodated on site, where possible.

(b)

If, it is not feasible for loading and unloading to take place on site, a
Works Zone on the street may be considered by Council.

(c)

A Works Zone may be required if loading and unloading is not possible
on site. If a Works Zone is warranted an application must be made to
Council at least 8 weeks prior to commencement of work on the site. An
approval for a Works Zone may be given for a specific period and certain
hours of the days to meet the particular need for the site for such facilities
at various stages of construction. The approval will be reviewed
periodically for any adjustment necessitated by the progress of the
construction activities.

(d)

Where hoisting activity over the public place is proposed to be
undertaken including hoisting from a Works Zone, a separate approval
under Section 68 of the Local Government Act 1993 must be obtained.

(87) NO OBSTRUCTION OF PUBLIC WAY
The public way must not be obstructed by any materials, vehicles, refuse, skips
or the like, under any circumstances. Non-compliance with this requirement
will result in the issue of a notice by Council to stop all work on site.

79

(88) USE OF MOBILE CRANES
The following requirements apply:
(a)

Mobile cranes operating from the road must not be used as a method of
demolishing or constructing a building.

(b)

For special operations including the delivery of materials, hoisting of
plant and equipment and erection and dismantling of on site tower
cranes which warrant the on-street use of mobile cranes, permits must
be obtained from Council for the use of a mobile crane. The permits must
be obtained 48 hours beforehand for partial road closures which, in the
opinion of Council will create minimal traffic disruptions and 4 weeks
beforehand in the case of full road closures and partial road closures
which, in the opinion of Council, will create significant traffic disruptions.

(c)

The use of a crane for special operations, including the delivery of
materials, hoisting of plant and equipment and erection and dismantling
of on site tower cranes which warrant the on-street use of mobile cranes
outside of approved hours of construction can occur, subject to a permit
being issued by Council under Section 68 of the Local Government Act
1993 and/or Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993.

80

SCHEDULE 2
PRESCRIBED CONDITIONS
The prescribed conditions in accordance with Division 8A of the Environmental
Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000 apply:
Clause 98

Compliance with Building Code of Australia and insurance requirements
under the Home Building Act 1989

Clause 98A

Erection of signs

Clause 98B

Notification of Home Building Act 1989 requirements

Clause 98C

Conditions relating to entertainment venues

Clause 98D

Conditions relating to maximum capacity signage

Clause 98E

Conditions relating to shoring and adequacy of adjoining property

Refer to the NSW State legislation for full text of the clauses under Division 8A of the
Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000. This can be accessed at:
http://www.legislation.nsw.gov.au

81

$WWDFKPHQW%
6HOHFWHG'UDZLQJV

82

Revision

A
A
B
B
B
B
B
B
B
B
B
B
B
A
A
A
A
A
A
A
A
A
A
A
A

Description

Polished Dark Brick
Polished Light Brick
Matte Light Brick
Concrete
Downpipe
Glass
Louvres
Dark Grey Metal
Perforated Roller
Door

Proposed

Existing

Demolished

Existing Building

New Work

DRAWING LEGEND

BK1
BK2
BK3
CON1
DP
GL1
LVR1
MTL1
PFR

Code

Cover Sheet and Site Plan
Site Analysis - Environmental Analysis
Basement 5 Plan
Basement 4 Plan
Basement 3 Plan
Basement 2 Plan
Basement 1 Plan
Lower Ground Plan
Ground Floor Plan
Podium Level 1
Podium Level 2 & 3
Typical Tower Level 4-6
Typical Tower Level 7-10
Level 11 Plan
Roof Plan
Elevation (North)
Elevation (South)
Elevation (East)
Elevation (West)
Section
Section
GFA Calculation
Shadow Diagrams - 21 June
Shadow Diagrams - 21 June
Shadow Diagrams - 21 June

Drawing Number Drawing Title

0000
0100
1100
1101
1102
1103
1104
1105
1106
1107
1108
1109
1110
1111
1112
2000
2001
2002
2003
3000
3001
8000
8100
8101
8102

KEYNOTE LEGEND

LOCATION PLAN

CAMPBELL ST

RILEY ST
RILEY ST

DRAWING LIST

ER
CA
MP
BEL

PROPOSED SITE

LOW

ULB

L S
T

GO
URN
ST

CAMPBELL ST

LOWER CAMPBELL ST

208-218 RILEY ST., SURRY HILLS NSW 2010
DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION

CROWN ST
CROWN ST

CAMBRIDGE HOTEL

83

Suit 5, level 5
2-12 Foveaux Surry Hills
NSW 2010 Sydney Australia

A

For

WT Partnership
02 9929 7422
shensley@wtpartnership.com.au

Surveyor

Veris
02 9212 4655
m.andrew@veris.com.au

Wind Engineer

Windtech
02 9503 0300
simon@windtechglobal.com

Waste Management Consultant

Elephants Foot
02 9780 3500
ashleigh.armstrong@elephantsfoot.com.au

02 9251 7077
lsjogren@fjmtstudio.com

Geotechnical Engineer

JK Geotechnics
02 9888 5000
pstubbs@jkgeotechnics.com.au

Flood Management

GRC Hydro
0413 631 447
gray@grchydro.com.au

Landscape Designer

Junglefly
1300 535 644
andrewb@junglefly.com.au

Drawn

TZ
Drawing No.

0000

Date Created

15/11/18
Project No.

18024

Cover Sheet and Site Plan

Drawing

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION

Status

A

Revision

CM

Checked

208-218 RILEY ST, SURRY HILLS

Address

Cambridge Hotel

Project

As indicated @ A1

North

Quantity Surveyor

FJMT

Scale

02 95576421
jason.cameron@acousticstudio.com.au

Acoustic Studio

Aecom

Interior Designer

Acoustics

Vertical Transport Engineer
02 8934 0000

paul.yannoulatos@ttw.com.au

grahame@warrensmith.com.au
david@warrensmith.com.au

adam.magee@aecom.com

02 9439 7288

02 9299 1312

Warren Smith & Partner TTW

Traffic Engineer

Steensen Varming
02 9967 2200

Mechanical/ Electrical Engineer

Trevor R Howse

michael.fearnley@steensenvarming.com
george.mikolajczyk@steensenvarming.com

viktor.mateffy@mpn.com.au

BCA & Access Consultant

Hydraulic/ Fire Engineer

02 9929 7144
tblythe@urbis.com.au

0430 123 611

MPN Group
02 8233 9959

hayden@trevorhowse.com.au

Structural Engineer

Urbis

Development Application

Notes Regarding
“For Construction Documents”
Tzannes Associates (TZ) believes
that the information shown on this
drawing (when read with the
applicable specification) is
sufficient for a reasonably
competent and experienced builder
to understand the design intent;
understand the process of
construction required to achieve a
finished product conforming with
the design intent and understand
what building materials, techniques
and methods are required to
achieve that finished product

Urban Planner

Cienna Group

Client & Developer

Date
16.11.18

Rev

General Notes
Verify dimensions on site prior to
commencement of work. Check
existing RL’s on site. Advise
Architect of any discrepancies
before commencement. Allow for
adjustments to suit discrepancies.
Comply with relevant authorities
requirements. Comply with
Building Code of Australia
requirements. Comply with
relevant Australian Standards for
materials and construction
practice. Comply with Basix
Certificate. Do not scale from
drawings.

Copyright owned by Tzannes.
Rights to this document are subject
to payment in full of all Tzannes
fees. This document may only be
used for the express purpose for
which it has been created and any Nominated Architects
unauthorised use is at the user’s
Alec Tzannes 4174
sole risk and without limiting
Tzannes’ rights the user releases Jonathan Evans 6613
and indemnifies Tzannes from and Mladen Prnjatovic 7468
Ben Green 7066
against all loss so arising
Chi Melhem 7754

Copyright

W. tzannes.com.au
T. 61 2 9319 3744
E. tzannes@tzannes.com.au

SURRY HILLS
POLICE STATION

NO 233
RILEY ST

CAMPBELL S
T

PREDOMINANTLY
STRONG WINDS

ER
M R
M TE
U
S IN
IN W
S IN
D
S
IN D
W IN
T W
O
H OLD
C

RILEY ST

NO 224
RILEY ST

NO 220-222
RILEY ST

UNS
ET

G
HO UST
CO T IN Y W
LD SU IND
IN MM S
W
INT ER
ER

ER
MM
SU

ET

ER S

NS
SU

WINT

WE
R C
A
MP
BEL

CAMPBELL S
T

NT
WI

ER

NO 174-176
CAMPBELL ST

ISE
NR
U
S

SUM

SO

NO 277
CROWN ST

SUN
RISE

NO 275
CROWN ST

NO 265
GOULBURN ST

DS
ER I N
M W
M
Y
SU ERL
H
T
U

ME R

NO 58-60
LOWER CAMPBELL ST

FLOO
D ZO
NE

NO 172
CAMPBELL ST

L S
T

NO 170
CAMPBELL ST

NO 166-168
CAMPBELL ST

LO

N

NO 208-218
RILEY ST

NO 56
LOWER CAMPBELL ST

NO 200
RILEY ST

P LE
A
CO SANT
L
B
WA D IN S REEZ
U
RM
E
I N W M ME R
INT
ER

FLOOD ZONE
LOWER CAMPBELL ST

84

NO 285A
CROWN ST

Suit 5, level 5
2-12 Foveaux Surry Hills
NSW 2010 Sydney Australia

A

For

m.andrew@veris.com.au

Wind Engineer

Windtech
02 9503 0300
simon@windtechglobal.com

Flood Management

GRC Hydro
0413 631 447
gray@grchydro.com.au

North

Drawn

Author
Drawing No.

0100

Date Created

11/14/18
Project No.

18024

A

Revision

CM

Checked

Site Analysis - Environmental Analysis

Drawing

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION

Status

208-218 RILEY ST, SURRY HILLS

Address

Cambridge Hotel

Project

As indicated @ A1

Scale

ashleigh.armstrong@elephantsfoot.com.au

02 9212 4655
pstubbs@jkgeotechnics.com.au

02 9780 3500

Veris
02 9888 5000

Elephants Foot

Surveyor

JK Geotechnics

andrewb@junglefly.com.au

shensley@wtpartnership.com.au

Geotechnical Engineer

Waste Management Consultant

02 9929 7422
lsjogren@fjmtstudio.com

1300 535 644

WT Partnership
02 9251 7077

Junglefly

Quantity Surveyor

FJMT

Landscape Designer

02 95576421
jason.cameron@acousticstudio.com.au

Interior Designer

Acoustic Studio
02 8934 0000
adam.magee@aecom.com

Acoustics

paul.yannoulatos@ttw.com.au

Aecom

02 9439 7288
grahame@warrensmith.com.au
david@warrensmith.com.au

Vertical Transport Engineer

02 9299 1312

Warren Smith & Partner TTW

Traffic Engineer

02 9967 2200
michael.fearnley@steensenvarming.com
george.mikolajczyk@steensenvarming.com

Hydraulic/ Fire Engineer

0430 123 611
hayden@trevorhowse.com.au

Steensen Varming

viktor.mateffy@mpn.com.au

Mechanical/ Electrical Engineer

02 9929 7144
tblythe@urbis.com.au

Trevor R Howse

MPN Group
02 8233 9959

BCA & Access Consultant

Structural Engineer

Urbis

Development Application

Notes Regarding
“For Construction Documents”
Tzannes Associates (TZ) believes
that the information shown on this
drawing (when read with the
applicable specification) is
sufficient for a reasonably
competent and experienced builder
to understand the design intent;
understand the process of
construction required to achieve a
finished product conforming with
the design intent and understand
what building materials, techniques
and methods are required to
achieve that finished product

Urban Planner

Cienna Group

Client & Developer

Date
16.11.18

Rev

General Notes
Verify dimensions on site prior to
commencement of work. Check
existing RL’s on site. Advise
Architect of any discrepancies
before commencement. Allow for
adjustments to suit discrepancies.
Comply with relevant authorities
requirements. Comply with
Building Code of Australia
requirements. Comply with
relevant Australian Standards for
materials and construction
practice. Comply with Basix
Certificate. Do not scale from
drawings.

Copyright owned by Tzannes.
Rights to this document are subject
to payment in full of all Tzannes
fees. This document may only be
used for the express purpose for
which it has been created and any Nominated Architects
unauthorised use is at the user’s
Alec Tzannes 4174
sole risk and without limiting
Tzannes’ rights the user releases Jonathan Evans 6613
and indemnifies Tzannes from and Mladen Prnjatovic 7468
Ben Green 7066
against all loss so arising
Chi Melhem 7754

Copyright

W. tzannes.com.au
T. 61 2 9319 3744
E. tzannes@tzannes.com.au

85

1
3001

1

2

Lift 01

EX RL 24.800

B5

3

Pit

Lift 05

1

2

Goods
Lift 06

3

Plant/Store

RL 23.500

Basement 5

Subsoil pump
out pit

5

Sewer
pump out pit

6

6

B

A

E

Dash green line denotes
proposed extent under
modification

RL 24.000

E

D

Plant/Store

Stair 03

UP

RL 23.500

5

D

EX RL 23.38

EX RL 24.800

3

C

Lift 04

5

2

C

Dash green line denotes
proposed extent under
modification

Lift 02

4

Lift 03

1

1
3000

Suit 5, level 5
2-12 Foveaux Surry Hills
NSW 2010 Sydney Australia

A
B

For

02 9929 7144
viktor.mateffy@mpn.com.au

tblythe@urbis.com.au

Traffic Engineer

Surveyor

Veris
02 9212 4655
m.andrew@veris.com.au

Wind Engineer

Windtech

JK Geotechnics
02 9888 5000
pstubbs@jkgeotechnics.com.au

Flood Management

GRC Hydro

02 9780 3500
ashleigh.armstrong@elephantsfoot.com.au

1300 535 644
andrewb@junglefly.com.au

Drawn

TZ
Drawing No.

1100

Date Created

08/08/18
Project No.

18024

Basement 5 Plan

Drawing

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION

Status

B

Revision

CM

Checked

208-218 RILEY ST, SURRY HILLS

Address

Cambridge Hotel

Project

1 : 100 @ A1

North

Elephants Foot

Junglefly

Scale

Waste Management Consultant

Landscape Designer

simon@windtechglobal.com

shensley@wtpartnership.com.au

Geotechnical Engineer

02 9503 0300

02 9929 7422
lsjogren@fjmtstudio.com

gray@grchydro.com.au

WT Partnership
02 9251 7077

0413 631 447

Quantity Surveyor

FJMT

02 95576421

Interior Designer

jason.cameron@acousticstudio.com.au

Acoustic Studio
02 8934 0000
adam.magee@aecom.com

Acoustics

paul.yannoulatos@ttw.com.au

Aecom

02 9439 7288
grahame@warrensmith.com.au
david@warrensmith.com.au

Vertical Transport Engineer

02 9299 1312

Warren Smith & Partner TTW

02 9967 2200
michael.fearnley@steensenvarming.com
george.mikolajczyk@steensenvarming.com

Hydraulic/ Fire Engineer

Steensen Varming
0430 123 611
hayden@trevorhowse.com.au

Trevor R Howse

Mechanical/ Electrical Engineer

MPN Group
02 8233 9959

BCA & Access Consultant

Structural Engineer

Urbis

For Information
Development Application

Notes Regarding
“For Construction Documents”
Tzannes Associates (TZ) believes
that the information shown on this
drawing (when read with the
applicable specification) is
sufficient for a reasonably
competent and experienced builder
to understand the design intent;
understand the process of
construction required to achieve a
finished product conforming with
the design intent and understand
what building materials, techniques
and methods are required to
achieve that finished product

Urban Planner

Cienna Group

Client & Developer

Date
19.10.18
16.11.18

Rev

General Notes
Verify dimensions on site prior to
commencement of work. Check
existing RL’s on site. Advise
Architect of any discrepancies
before commencement. Allow for
adjustments to suit discrepancies.
Comply with relevant authorities
requirements. Comply with
Building Code of Australia
requirements. Comply with
relevant Australian Standards for
materials and construction
practice. Comply with Basix
Certificate. Do not scale from
drawings.

Copyright owned by Tzannes.
Rights to this document are subject
to payment in full of all Tzannes
fees. This document may only be
used for the express purpose for
which it has been created and any Nominated Architects
unauthorised use is at the user’s
Alec Tzannes 4174
sole risk and without limiting
Tzannes’ rights the user releases Jonathan Evans 6613
and indemnifies Tzannes from and Mladen Prnjatovic 7468
Ben Green 7066
against all loss so arising
Chi Melhem 7754

Copyright

W. tzannes.com.au
T. 61 2 9319 3744
E. tzannes@tzannes.com.au

86

1
3001

17

16

6

15

7

14

B4
RL 25.800

Lift 01

8
B4A

13

E

M1

Dash green line denotes
proposed extent under
modification

Lift 02

RL 27.400

9

Dash green line denotes
proposed extent under
modification

Lift 04

Lift 03

Lift 05

10

1

1

12

11

20

2

21

2

RL 25.800

Carpark

Riser

Goods
Lift 06

22

Basement 4

Stair 03

1
3000

3

3

Elec

4

4

Plant

23

18

5

24

19

5

6

6

E

D

C

B

A

Suit 5, level 5
2-12 Foveaux Surry Hills
NSW 2010 Sydney Australia

A
B

For

Traffic Engineer

Hydraulic/ Fire Engineer

m.andrew@veris.com.au

02 9780 3500
ashleigh.armstrong@elephantsfoot.com.au

1300 535 644
andrewb@junglefly.com.au

Drawn

TZ
Drawing No.

1101

Date Created

08/08/18
Project No.

18024

Basement 4 Plan

Drawing

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION

Status

B

Revision

CM

Checked

208-218 RILEY ST, SURRY HILLS

Address

Cambridge Hotel

Project

1 : 100 @ A1

North

Elephants Foot

Junglefly

Scale

Waste Management Consultant

Landscape Designer

simon@windtechglobal.com

02 9212 4655
pstubbs@jkgeotechnics.com.au

02 9503 0300

Veris
02 9888 5000

Windtech

Surveyor

JK Geotechnics

Wind Engineer

shensley@wtpartnership.com.au

Geotechnical Engineer

gray@grchydro.com.au

02 9929 7422
lsjogren@fjmtstudio.com

0413 631 447

WT Partnership
02 9251 7077

GRC Hydro

Quantity Surveyor

FJMT

Flood Management

02 95576421
jason.cameron@acousticstudio.com.au

Acoustic Studio

Aecom

Interior Designer

Acoustics

Vertical Transport Engineer
02 8934 0000

paul.yannoulatos@ttw.com.au

grahame@warrensmith.com.au
david@warrensmith.com.au

adam.magee@aecom.com

02 9439 7288

02 9299 1312

Warren Smith & Partner TTW

02 9967 2200
michael.fearnley@steensenvarming.com
george.mikolajczyk@steensenvarming.com

0430 123 611
hayden@trevorhowse.com.au

Steensen Varming

viktor.mateffy@mpn.com.au

Mechanical/ Electrical Engineer

02 9929 7144
tblythe@urbis.com.au

Trevor R Howse

MPN Group
02 8233 9959

BCA & Access Consultant

Structural Engineer

Urbis

For Information
Development Application

Notes Regarding
“For Construction Documents”
Tzannes Associates (TZ) believes
that the information shown on this
drawing (when read with the
applicable specification) is
sufficient for a reasonably
competent and experienced builder
to understand the design intent;
understand the process of
construction required to achieve a
finished product conforming with
the design intent and understand
what building materials, techniques
and methods are required to
achieve that finished product

Urban Planner

Cienna Group

Client & Developer

Date
19.10.18
16.11.18

Rev

General Notes
Verify dimensions on site prior to
commencement of work. Check
existing RL’s on site. Advise
Architect of any discrepancies
before commencement. Allow for
adjustments to suit discrepancies.
Comply with relevant authorities
requirements. Comply with
Building Code of Australia
requirements. Comply with
relevant Australian Standards for
materials and construction
practice. Comply with Basix
Certificate. Do not scale from
drawings.

Copyright owned by Tzannes.
Rights to this document are subject
to payment in full of all Tzannes
fees. This document may only be
used for the express purpose for
which it has been created and any Nominated Architects
unauthorised use is at the user’s
Alec Tzannes 4174
sole risk and without limiting
Tzannes’ rights the user releases Jonathan Evans 6613
and indemnifies Tzannes from and Mladen Prnjatovic 7468
Ben Green 7066
against all loss so arising
Chi Melhem 7754

Copyright

W. tzannes.com.au
T. 61 2 9319 3744
E. tzannes@tzannes.com.au

87

1
3001

37

36

25

35

B3

EX RL 28.300

26

34

Lift 01

27

B3A
EX RL 29.900

33

E

M2

Dash green line denotes
proposed extent under
modification

Lift 02

28

Dash green line denotes
proposed extent under
modification

Lift 04

Lift 03

Lift 05

29

1

1

32

31

30

WC

RL 28.300

Staff Change

2

2

WC

RL 28.300

Staff Change

RL 28.300

Plant

3

RL 28.300

Staff Area

RL 28.300

6

E

D

WT Partnership
02 9929 7422

02 9251 7077

Drawn

TZ
Drawing No.

1102

Date Created

08/09/18
Project No.

18024

Basement 3 Plan

Drawing

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION

Status

B

Revision

CM

Checked

208-218 RILEY ST, SURRY HILLS

Address

Cambridge Hotel

Project

1 : 100 @ A1

North

ashleigh.armstrong@elephantsfoot.com.au

andrewb@junglefly.com.au

Scale

02 9780 3500

1300 535 644

Elephants Foot

simon@windtechglobal.com

Waste Management Consultant

02 9503 0300

Junglefly

Windtech

Landscape Designer

Wind Engineer

gray@grchydro.com.au

m.andrew@veris.com.au

pstubbs@jkgeotechnics.com.au

0413 631 447

02 9212 4655

02 9888 5000

GRC Hydro

Veris

JK Geotechnics

Flood Management

Surveyor

Geotechnical Engineer

shensley@wtpartnership.com.au

Quantity Surveyor

FJMT
lsjogren@fjmtstudio.com

02 95576421
jason.cameron@acousticstudio.com.au

Acoustic Studio

Interior Designer

Acoustics
02 8934 0000
adam.magee@aecom.com

paul.yannoulatos@ttw.com.au

02 9439 7288

Warren Smith & Partner TTW

Traffic Engineer

Steensen Varming

Trevor R Howse

02 9967 2200

Mechanical/ Electrical Engineer

BCA & Access Consultant

michael.fearnley@steensenvarming.com
george.mikolajczyk@steensenvarming.com

viktor.mateffy@mpn.com.au

tblythe@urbis.com.au

Hydraulic/ Fire Engineer

02 9929 7144

02 8233 9959

0430 123 611

MPN Group

Urbis

hayden@trevorhowse.com.au

Structural Engineer

Urban Planner

Cienna Group

For
For Information
Development Application

Aecom

C

B

A

A
B

Client & Developer

Date
19.10.18
16.11.18

Rev

Vertical Transport Engineer

5

6

grahame@warrensmith.com.au
david@warrensmith.com.au

Pool
undercroft
/ Plant

5

Notes Regarding
“For Construction Documents”
Tzannes Associates (TZ) believes
that the information shown on this
drawing (when read with the
applicable specification) is
sufficient for a reasonably
competent and experienced builder
to understand the design intent;
understand the process of
construction required to achieve a
finished product conforming with
the design intent and understand
what building materials, techniques
and methods are required to
achieve that finished product

02 9299 1312

4

4

General Notes
Verify dimensions on site prior to
commencement of work. Check
existing RL’s on site. Advise
Architect of any discrepancies
before commencement. Allow for
adjustments to suit discrepancies.
Comply with relevant authorities
requirements. Comply with
Building Code of Australia
requirements. Comply with
relevant Australian Standards for
materials and construction
practice. Comply with Basix
Certificate. Do not scale from
drawings.

RL 28.300

3

Suit 5, level 5
2-12 Foveaux Surry Hills
NSW 2010 Sydney Australia
Copyright owned by Tzannes.
Rights to this document are subject
to payment in full of all Tzannes
fees. This document may only be
used for the express purpose for
which it has been created and any Nominated Architects
unauthorised use is at the user’s
Alec Tzannes 4174
sole risk and without limiting
Tzannes’ rights the user releases Jonathan Evans 6613
and indemnifies Tzannes from and Mladen Prnjatovic 7468
Ben Green 7066
against all loss so arising
Chi Melhem 7754

Copyright

W. tzannes.com.au
T. 61 2 9319 3744
E. tzannes@tzannes.com.au

Plant/Store

RL 28.300

Goods
Lift 06

Basement 3

Stair 03

1
3000

Elec

1
3001

38

39

47

40

EX RL 30.800

B2

Shared
Zone

41

Lift 01

42
M3

Dash green line denotes
proposed extent under
modification

Lift 02

EX RL 32.400

B2A

Shared
Zone

Dash green line denotes
proposed extent under
modification

Lift 04

Lift 05

45

1

43

44

RL 30.800

Change/
WC

WC

2

2

Change/
WC

RL 30.800

RL 30.800

Plant

Goods
Lift 06

Plant

3

3

RL 30.800

RL 30.800

Store

Basement 2

Stair 03

1
3000

RL 30.800

Elec

46

Lift 03

1

4

4

r
void
ove

88

Spa

id

ov

er

5

20m Lap
Pool

SK

o
Lv

5

6

6

E

D

C

B

A

Suit 5, level 5
2-12 Foveaux Surry Hills
NSW 2010 Sydney Australia

A
B

For

MPN Group
02 9929 7144

Traffic Engineer

Windtech
02 9503 0300
simon@windtechglobal.com

Waste Management Consultant

Elephants Foot

gray@grchydro.com.au

Landscape Designer

Junglefly

North

Drawn

TZ
Drawing No.

1103

Date Created

08/09/18
Project No.

18024

Basement 2 Plan

Drawing

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION

Status

B

Revision

CM

Checked

208-218 RILEY ST, SURRY HILLS

Address

Cambridge Hotel

Project

1 : 100 @ A1

Scale

ashleigh.armstrong@elephantsfoot.com.au

Wind Engineer
0413 631 447

02 9780 3500

m.andrew@veris.com.au

GRC Hydro

andrewb@junglefly.com.au

02 9212 4655

Flood Management

1300 535 644

Veris
pstubbs@jkgeotechnics.com.au

shensley@wtpartnership.com.au

Surveyor

02 9929 7422
lsjogren@fjmtstudio.com

02 9888 5000

WT Partnership
02 9251 7077

JK Geotechnics

Quantity Surveyor

FJMT

Geotechnical Engineer

02 95576421
jason.cameron@acousticstudio.com.au

Acoustic Studio

Aecom

Interior Designer

Acoustics

Vertical Transport Engineer
02 8934 0000

paul.yannoulatos@ttw.com.au

grahame@warrensmith.com.au
david@warrensmith.com.au

adam.magee@aecom.com

02 9439 7288

02 9299 1312

Warren Smith & Partner TTW

Hydraulic/ Fire Engineer

02 9967 2200

Steensen Varming
michael.fearnley@steensenvarming.com
george.mikolajczyk@steensenvarming.com

Mechanical/ Electrical Engineer
0430 123 611

Trevor R Howse
hayden@trevorhowse.com.au

BCA & Access Consultant

viktor.mateffy@mpn.com.au

Structural Engineer
02 8233 9959
tblythe@urbis.com.au

Urbis

For Information
Development Application

Notes Regarding
“For Construction Documents”
Tzannes Associates (TZ) believes
that the information shown on this
drawing (when read with the
applicable specification) is
sufficient for a reasonably
competent and experienced builder
to understand the design intent;
understand the process of
construction required to achieve a
finished product conforming with
the design intent and understand
what building materials, techniques
and methods are required to
achieve that finished product

Urban Planner

Cienna Group

Client & Developer

Date
19.10.18
16.11.18

Rev

General Notes
Verify dimensions on site prior to
commencement of work. Check
existing RL’s on site. Advise
Architect of any discrepancies
before commencement. Allow for
adjustments to suit discrepancies.
Comply with relevant authorities
requirements. Comply with
Building Code of Australia
requirements. Comply with
relevant Australian Standards for
materials and construction
practice. Comply with Basix
Certificate. Do not scale from
drawings.

Copyright owned by Tzannes.
Rights to this document are subject
to payment in full of all Tzannes
fees. This document may only be
used for the express purpose for
which it has been created and any Nominated Architects
unauthorised use is at the user’s
Alec Tzannes 4174
sole risk and without limiting
Tzannes’ rights the user releases Jonathan Evans 6613
and indemnifies Tzannes from and Mladen Prnjatovic 7468
Ben Green 7066
against all loss so arising
Chi Melhem 7754

Copyright

W. tzannes.com.au
T. 61 2 9319 3744
E. tzannes@tzannes.com.au

1
3001

48

Shared
Zone

Shared
Zone

New Switch Room

EX RL 33.300

B1

Shared
Zone

Lift 01

EX Elec

B1A

49
M4

Dash green line denotes
proposed extent under
modification

Lift 02

EX RL 35.100

Dash green line denotes
proposed extent under
modification

Lift 04

Lift 5
DW

Lift 03

Lift 05

RL 35.100

1

1

RL 34.700

Store

RL 34.700

Storage

Low ceiling height
under entry ramp

EX Plant

2

2

RL 33.300

Store/Plant

RL 33.300

4

SK

id

er

6

Structural Engineer

MPN Group
02 9929 7144
viktor.mateffy@mpn.com.au

Urban Planner

Urbis
02 8233 9959
tblythe@urbis.com.au

Cienna Group

For
For Information
Development Application

5

E

D

C

Traffic Engineer

Hydraulic/ Fire Engineer

shensley@wtpartnership.com.au

ashleigh.armstrong@elephantsfoot.com.au

Drawn

TZ
Drawing No.

1104

Date Created

30/08/18
Project No.

18024

Basement 1 Plan

Drawing

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION

Status

B

Revision

CM

Checked

208-218 RILEY ST, SURRY HILLS

Address

Cambridge Hotel

Project

1 : 100 @ A1

North

02 9780 3500

Scale

Elephants Foot

simon@windtechglobal.com

gray@grchydro.com.au

andrewb@junglefly.com.au

02 9503 0300

0413 631 447

Waste Management Consultant

Windtech

GRC Hydro

1300 535 644

Wind Engineer

Flood Management

Junglefly

m.andrew@veris.com.au

pstubbs@jkgeotechnics.com.au

Landscape Designer

02 9212 4655

02 9888 5000

Veris

02 9929 7422
lsjogren@fjmtstudio.com

Surveyor

WT Partnership
02 9251 7077

JK Geotechnics

Quantity Surveyor

FJMT

Geotechnical Engineer

02 95576421
jason.cameron@acousticstudio.com.au

Acoustic Studio

Aecom

Interior Designer

Acoustics

Vertical Transport Engineer
02 8934 0000

paul.yannoulatos@ttw.com.au

grahame@warrensmith.com.au
david@warrensmith.com.au

adam.magee@aecom.com

02 9439 7288

02 9299 1312

Warren Smith & Partner TTW

02 9967 2200
michael.fearnley@steensenvarming.com
george.mikolajczyk@steensenvarming.com

0430 123 611
hayden@trevorhowse.com.au

Steensen Varming
B

A

A
B

Client & Developer

Date
19.10.18
16.11.18

Rev

Mechanical/ Electrical Engineer

ov

6

Notes Regarding
“For Construction Documents”
Tzannes Associates (TZ) believes
that the information shown on this
drawing (when read with the
applicable specification) is
sufficient for a reasonably
competent and experienced builder
to understand the design intent;
understand the process of
construction required to achieve a
finished product conforming with
the design intent and understand
what building materials, techniques
and methods are required to
achieve that finished product

RL 33.700

o
Lv

5

General Notes
Verify dimensions on site prior to
commencement of work. Check
existing RL’s on site. Advise
Architect of any discrepancies
before commencement. Allow for
adjustments to suit discrepancies.
Comply with relevant authorities
requirements. Comply with
Building Code of Australia
requirements. Comply with
relevant Australian Standards for
materials and construction
practice. Comply with Basix
Certificate. Do not scale from
drawings.

Trevor R Howse

3

4

Suit 5, level 5
2-12 Foveaux Surry Hills
NSW 2010 Sydney Australia
Copyright owned by Tzannes.
Rights to this document are subject
to payment in full of all Tzannes
fees. This document may only be
used for the express purpose for
which it has been created and any Nominated Architects
unauthorised use is at the user’s
Alec Tzannes 4174
sole risk and without limiting
Tzannes’ rights the user releases Jonathan Evans 6613
and indemnifies Tzannes from and Mladen Prnjatovic 7468
Ben Green 7066
against all loss so arising
Chi Melhem 7754

Copyright

W. tzannes.com.au
T. 61 2 9319 3744
E. tzannes@tzannes.com.au

Kitchen

Basement 1

Stair 03

3

Elec

BCA & Access Consultant

Goods
Lift 06

1
3000

w
belo
o ol
to P
Void

Shared
Zone

89

1
3001

EX Gas
meter

50
Service
Vehicle

51
Car
Share

Shared
Zone

EX RL 36.100

Lower Ground

52

E

M5

Dash green line denotes
proposed extent under
modification

Existing Stair

Dash green line denotes
proposed extent under
modification

Lift 04

Lift 05

1

Lockers

Ex. Vehicle Ramp

WC

Stair 03
EX RL 36.100

2

Bike Store
RL 36.100

RL 36.100

Lower Ground Floor

Double tier bike storage

Lift 02

RL 37.325

Shower/
Change

Shower/
Change

Double tier bike storage

Lift 01

2

Lockers

Basement 1
shown on 1104

1

DDA
TurnAound
Zone

Shared
Zone

90
Goods
Lift 06

Mechanical
riser
transfer

1
3000

3

55 sqm

Bins
RL 36.100

3

4

RL 36.100

5

l

5

Plant/Store
RL 36.100

o
Po
to
id low
vo b e

Hydrant Booster
Backflow Assembly

Loading Dock Structure

Plant/Store

4

6

6

E

D

C

B

A

Suit 5, level 5
2-12 Foveaux Surry Hills
NSW 2010 Sydney Australia

A
B

For

Traffic Engineer

Hydraulic/ Fire Engineer

02 9929 7422
shensley@wtpartnership.com.au

02 9251 7077
lsjogren@fjmtstudio.com

02 9503 0300
simon@windtechglobal.com

Waste Management Consultant

Elephants Foot
02 9780 3500
ashleigh.armstrong@elephantsfoot.com.au

Landscape Designer

Junglefly
1300 535 644
andrewb@junglefly.com.au

Drawn

TZ
Drawing No.

1105

Date Created

08/09/18
Project No.

18024

Lower Ground Plan

Drawing

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION

Status

B

Revision

CM

Checked

208-218 RILEY ST, SURRY HILLS

Address

Cambridge Hotel

Project

1 : 100 @ A1

North

Windtech
gray@grchydro.com.au

Scale

Wind Engineer
0413 631 447

m.andrew@veris.com.au

pstubbs@jkgeotechnics.com.au

GRC Hydro

02 9212 4655

02 9888 5000

Flood Management

Veris

JK Geotechnics

Surveyor

WT Partnership

FJMT

Geotechnical Engineer

Quantity Surveyor

Interior Designer

02 95576421

Acoustic Studio

Aecom

jason.cameron@acousticstudio.com.au

Acoustics

Vertical Transport Engineer
02 8934 0000

paul.yannoulatos@ttw.com.au

grahame@warrensmith.com.au
david@warrensmith.com.au

adam.magee@aecom.com

02 9439 7288

02 9299 1312

Warren Smith & Partner TTW

02 9967 2200
michael.fearnley@steensenvarming.com
george.mikolajczyk@steensenvarming.com

0430 123 611
hayden@trevorhowse.com.au

Steensen Varming

viktor.mateffy@mpn.com.au

Mechanical/ Electrical Engineer

02 9929 7144
tblythe@urbis.com.au

Trevor R Howse

MPN Group
02 8233 9959

BCA & Access Consultant

Structural Engineer

Urbis

For Information
Development Application

Notes Regarding
“For Construction Documents”
Tzannes Associates (TZ) believes
that the information shown on this
drawing (when read with the
applicable specification) is
sufficient for a reasonably
competent and experienced builder
to understand the design intent;
understand the process of
construction required to achieve a
finished product conforming with
the design intent and understand
what building materials, techniques
and methods are required to
achieve that finished product

Urban Planner

Cienna Group

Client & Developer

Date
19.10.18
16.11.18

Rev

General Notes
Verify dimensions on site prior to
commencement of work. Check
existing RL’s on site. Advise
Architect of any discrepancies
before commencement. Allow for
adjustments to suit discrepancies.
Comply with relevant authorities
requirements. Comply with
Building Code of Australia
requirements. Comply with
relevant Australian Standards for
materials and construction
practice. Comply with Basix
Certificate. Do not scale from
drawings.

Copyright owned by Tzannes.
Rights to this document are subject
to payment in full of all Tzannes
fees. This document may only be
used for the express purpose for
which it has been created and any Nominated Architects
unauthorised use is at the user’s
Alec Tzannes 4174
sole risk and without limiting
Tzannes’ rights the user releases Jonathan Evans 6613
and indemnifies Tzannes from and Mladen Prnjatovic 7468
Ben Green 7066
against all loss so arising
Chi Melhem 7754

Copyright

W. tzannes.com.au
T. 61 2 9319 3744
E. tzannes@tzannes.com.au

91


5),





5,/(<675((7

$ZQLQJ
DERYH

&

6LJQDJH
DERYH

(;WUHHWREH
UHWDLQHG

$ZQLQJ
DERYH

6LJQDJH
DERYH

&

)LUH6WDLUV

5/

5HVWDXUDQW

&

5/


5),

1HZWRSSLQJWRH[LVWLQJVODE

&

([LVWLQJ
6XEVWDWLRQ

/LIW

&

)LUH

$FFHVVLEOH
:&

5/

(

'DVKJUHHQOLQHGHQRWHV
SURSRVHGH[WHQWXQGHU
PRGLILFDWLRQ

([LVWLQJ6WDLUVWR
%DVHPHQW

/LIW

5HFHSWLRQ/REE\

5/

5HVWDXUDQW


5),



/LIW



5LVHU

:&

(5
&$0
3%(
//
6

&RQQHFWLRQWR
$GJH
'DVKJUHHQOLQHGHQRWHV
SURSRVHGH[WHQWXQGHU
PRGLILFDWLRQ

/LIW

/LIW
':

/LIW

/2:

7(;

5LVHU

6HFXULW\2IILFH

(;
9HKLFXODU
5DPS

:&



6WRUH

75(
(7



3ODQW

&

6WDLU





*RRGV
/LIW

6WDLU


3XUSOHGDVKOLQH
GHQRWHVIXWXUHKRWHO
ZHWEDU

6WDLU


5/







&





&

&



5/

/RXQJH

5/7.

(OHF





H

6N\OLJKW9RLGWR
3RRO%HORZ

ERY
6N\OLJKW$

5/

/RDGLQJ'RFN

%ULGJH$ERYHVKRZQGDVKHG

&RPPV

5/7.

1HZVWRUPZDWHU
GLVFKDUJHFRQWUROSLW







(




'

&

%

$

/2:(5&$03%(//675((7
+\GUDQW%RRVWHU

6XLWOHYHO
)RYHDX[6XUU\+LOOV
16:6\GQH\$XVWUDOLD

$
%
&

)RU

031*URXS

YLNWRUPDWHII\#PSQFRPDX

0HFKDQLFDO(OHFWULFDO(QJLQHHU

6WHHQVHQ9DUPLQJ

PLFKDHOIHDUQOH\#VWHHQVHQYDUPLQJFRP
JHRUJHPLNRODMF]\N#VWHHQVHQYDUPLQJFRP

7UDIILF(QJLQHHU


WEO\WKH#XUELVFRPDX

%&$ $FFHVV&RQVXOWDQW

7UHYRU5+RZVH

KD\GHQ#WUHYRUKRZVHFRPDX

+\GUDXOLF)LUH(QJLQHHU

:73DUWQHUVKLS

VKHQVOH\#ZWSDUWQHUVKLSFRPDX

)-07

OVMRJUHQ#IMPWVWXGLRFRP


DVKOHLJKDUPVWURQJ#HOHSKDQWVIRRWFRPDX

5HYLVLRQ

'UDZLQJ1R



3URMHFW1R



&

7=



&KHFNHG

&0

'UDZQ

'DWH&UHDWHG

*URXQG)ORRU3ODQ

'UDZLQJ

'(9(/230(17$33/,&$7,21

6WDWXV

5,/(<676855<+,//6

$GGUHVV

&DPEULGJH+RWHO

3URMHFW

#$

1RUWK

(OHSKDQWV)RRW
DQGUHZE#MXQJOHIO\FRPDX

6FDOH

:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RQVXOWDQW

VLPRQ#ZLQGWHFKJOREDOFRP





-XQJOHIO\

:LQGWHFK
JUD\#JUFK\GURFRPDX

/DQGVFDSH'HVLJQHU

:LQG(QJLQHHU


PDQGUHZ#YHULVFRPDX

SVWXEEV#MNJHRWHFKQLFVFRPDX

*5&+\GUR





)ORRG0DQDJHPHQW

9HULV

-.*HRWHFKQLFV

6XUYH\RU

4XDQWLW\6XUYH\RU

,QWHULRU'HVLJQHU

*HRWHFKQLFDO(QJLQHHU


DGDPPDJHH#DHFRPFRP

$FRXVWLF6WXGLR
MDVRQFDPHURQ#DFRXVWLFVWXGLRFRPDX



$FRXVWLFV

SDXO\DQQRXODWRV#WWZFRPDX

$HFRP


JUDKDPH#ZDUUHQVPLWKFRPDX
GDYLG#ZDUUHQVPLWKFRPDX

9HUWLFDO7UDQVSRUW(QJLQHHU



:DUUHQ6PLWK 3DUWQHU 77:

6WUXFWXUDO(QJLQHHU

8UELV

)RU,QIRUPDWLRQ
'HYHORSPHQW$SSOLFDWLRQ
)ORRG3ODQH/HYHO$GMXVWHG

1RWHV5HJDUGLQJ
Ú)RU&RQVWUXFWLRQ'RFXPHQWVÛ
7]DQQHV$VVRFLDWHV 7= EHOLHYHV
WKDWWKHLQIRUPDWLRQVKRZQRQWKLV
GUDZLQJ ZKHQUHDGZLWKWKH
DSSOLFDEOHVSHFLILFDWLRQ LV
VXIILFLHQWIRUDUHDVRQDEO\
FRPSHWHQWDQGH[SHULHQFHGEXLOGHU
WRXQGHUVWDQGWKHGHVLJQLQWHQW
XQGHUVWDQGWKHSURFHVVRI
FRQVWUXFWLRQUHTXLUHGWRDFKLHYHD
ILQLVKHGSURGXFWFRQIRUPLQJZLWK
WKHGHVLJQLQWHQWDQGXQGHUVWDQG
ZKDWEXLOGLQJPDWHULDOVWHFKQLTXHV
DQGPHWKRGVDUHUHTXLUHGWR
DFKLHYHWKDWILQLVKHGSURGXFW

8UEDQ3ODQQHU

&LHQQD*URXS

&OLHQW 'HYHORSHU

'DWH





5HY

*HQHUDO1RWHV
9HULI\GLPHQVLRQVRQVLWHSULRUWR
FRPPHQFHPHQWRI ZRUN&KHFN
H[LVWLQJ5/ØVRQVLWH$GYLVH
$UFKLWHFWRIDQ\GLVFUHSDQFLHV
EHIRUHFRPPHQFHPHQW$OORZIRU
DGMXVWPHQWVWRVXLWGLVFUHSDQFLHV
&RPSO\ZLWKUHOHYDQWDXWKRULWLHV
UHTXLUHPHQWV&RPSO\ZLWK
%XLOGLQJ&RGHRI$XVWUDOLD
UHTXLUHPHQWV&RPSO\ZLWK
UHOHYDQW$XVWUDOLDQ6WDQGDUGVIRU
PDWHULDOVDQGFRQVWUXFWLRQ
SUDFWLFH&RPSO\ZLWK%DVL[
&HUWLILFDWH'RQRWVFDOHIURP
GUDZLQJV

&RS\ULJKWRZQHGE\7]DQQHV
5LJKWVWRWKLVGRFXPHQWDUHVXEMHFW
WRSD\PHQWLQIXOORIDOO7]DQQHV
IHHV7KLVGRFXPHQWPD\RQO\EH
XVHGIRUWKHH[SUHVVSXUSRVHIRU
ZKLFKLWKDVEHHQFUHDWHGDQGDQ\ 1RPLQDWHG$UFKLWHFWV
XQDXWKRULVHGXVHLVDWWKHXVHUØV
$OHF7]DQQHV
VROHULVNDQGZLWKRXWOLPLWLQJ
7]DQQHVØULJKWVWKHXVHUUHOHDVHV -RQDWKDQ(YDQV
DQGLQGHPQLILHV7]DQQHVIURPDQG 0ODGHQ3UQMDWRYLF
%HQ*UHHQ
DJDLQVWDOOORVVVRDULVLQJ
&KL0HOKHP

&RS\ULJKW

: W]DQQHVFRPDX
7 
( W]DQQHV#W]DQQHVFRPDX

92

1
3001

1
2003

E

Dash green line denotes
proposed extent under
modification

Existing Hotel

Dash green line denotes
proposed extent under
modification

Lift 04

Privacy Screen

Lift 03

Lift 05

1

New Landscape Roof Slab

1

Stairs
02

2

2

Stairs
01

DDA WC

6

1
2001

3

3

Fire

RL 42.700

Goods
Lift 06

1
3000

1
2000

Vo

n
Lou
id to

4

e

low

5

b
ge

4

1

2

3

4

5

Hit and Miss Brick

5

6

6

E

1
2002

D

C

B

A

Suit 5, level 5
2-12 Foveaux Surry Hills
NSW 2010 Sydney Australia

A
B

For

02 9780 3500
ashleigh.armstrong@elephantsfoot.com.au

Drawn

TZ
Drawing No.

1107

Date Created

08/08/18
Project No.

18024

Podium Level 1

Drawing

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION

Status

B

Revision

CM

Checked

208-218 RILEY ST, SURRY HILLS

Address

Cambridge Hotel

Project

1 : 100 @ A1

North

Elephants Foot
andrewb@junglefly.com.au

Scale

Waste Management Consultant
1300 535 644

simon@windtechglobal.com

Junglefly

02 9503 0300

Landscape Designer

gray@grchydro.com.au

Windtech
0413 631 447

Wind Engineer

Veris
m.andrew@veris.com.au

Surveyor

JK Geotechnics

GRC Hydro

shensley@wtpartnership.com.au

Geotechnical Engineer

02 9212 4655

02 9929 7422
lsjogren@fjmtstudio.com

Flood Management

WT Partnership
02 9251 7077

pstubbs@jkgeotechnics.com.au

Quantity Surveyor

FJMT

02 9888 5000

02 95576421
jason.cameron@acousticstudio.com.au

Interior Designer

Acoustic Studio
02 8934 0000
adam.magee@aecom.com

Acoustics

paul.yannoulatos@ttw.com.au

Aecom

02 9439 7288
grahame@warrensmith.com.au
david@warrensmith.com.au

Vertical Transport Engineer

02 9299 1312

Warren Smith & Partner TTW

Traffic Engineer

Steensen Varming
02 9967 2200

Mechanical/ Electrical Engineer

Trevor R Howse

michael.fearnley@steensenvarming.com
george.mikolajczyk@steensenvarming.com

viktor.mateffy@mpn.com.au

BCA & Access Consultant

Hydraulic/ Fire Engineer

02 9929 7144
tblythe@urbis.com.au

0430 123 611

MPN Group
02 8233 9959

hayden@trevorhowse.com.au

Structural Engineer

Urbis

For Information
Development Application

Notes Regarding
“For Construction Documents”
Tzannes Associates (TZ) believes
that the information shown on this
drawing (when read with the
applicable specification) is
sufficient for a reasonably
competent and experienced builder
to understand the design intent;
understand the process of
construction required to achieve a
finished product conforming with
the design intent and understand
what building materials, techniques
and methods are required to
achieve that finished product

Urban Planner

Cienna Group

Client & Developer

Date
19.10.18
16.11.18

Rev

General Notes
Verify dimensions on site prior to
commencement of work. Check
existing RL’s on site. Advise
Architect of any discrepancies
before commencement. Allow for
adjustments to suit discrepancies.
Comply with relevant authorities
requirements. Comply with
Building Code of Australia
requirements. Comply with
relevant Australian Standards for
materials and construction
practice. Comply with Basix
Certificate. Do not scale from
drawings.

Copyright owned by Tzannes.
Rights to this document are subject
to payment in full of all Tzannes
fees. This document may only be
used for the express purpose for
which it has been created and any Nominated Architects
unauthorised use is at the user’s
Alec Tzannes 4174
sole risk and without limiting
Tzannes’ rights the user releases Jonathan Evans 6613
and indemnifies Tzannes from and Mladen Prnjatovic 7468
Ben Green 7066
against all loss so arising
Chi Melhem 7754

Copyright

W. tzannes.com.au
T. 61 2 9319 3744
E. tzannes@tzannes.com.au

93

1
3001

1
2003

Dash green line denotes
proposed extent under
modification

Existing Hotel

Lobby

Dash green line denotes
proposed extent under
modification

Lift 04

Privacy Screen

Lift 03

Lift 05

1

1

1

Stairs
02

2

2

2

Stairs
01

ST

2252

13

3

1
2001

Goods
Lift 06

4

3

RL 45.400

3

Skylights to
Lounge below

DDA
TurnAound
Zone

DDA ROOM

1
3000

1
2000

DDA
TurnAound
Zone

4

4

5

12

8

9

6

10

11

5

Hit and Miss Brick

5

7

6

6

E

1
2002

D

C

B

A

Suit 5, level 5
2-12 Foveaux Surry Hills
NSW 2010 Sydney Australia

A
B

For

WT Partnership
02 9929 7422
shensley@wtpartnership.com.au

Surveyor

02 9251 7077
lsjogren@fjmtstudio.com

Geotechnical Engineer

02 9780 3500
ashleigh.armstrong@elephantsfoot.com.au

1300 535 644
andrewb@junglefly.com.au

Drawn

TZ
Drawing No.

1108

Date Created

09/17/18
Project No.

18024

Podium Level 2 & 3

Drawing

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION

Status

B

Revision

CM

Checked

208-218 RILEY ST, SURRY HILLS

Address

Cambridge Hotel

Project

1 : 100 @ A1

North

Elephants Foot

Junglefly

Scale

Waste Management Consultant

Landscape Designer

simon@windtechglobal.com

Windtech

GRC Hydro

02 9503 0300

Wind Engineer

Flood Management

gray@grchydro.com.au

m.andrew@veris.com.au

pstubbs@jkgeotechnics.com.au

0413 631 447

02 9212 4655

02 9888 5000

Veris

Quantity Surveyor

FJMT

JK Geotechnics

02 95576421
jason.cameron@acousticstudio.com.au

Acoustic Studio

Aecom

Interior Designer

Acoustics

Vertical Transport Engineer
02 8934 0000

paul.yannoulatos@ttw.com.au

grahame@warrensmith.com.au
david@warrensmith.com.au

adam.magee@aecom.com

02 9439 7288

02 9299 1312

Warren Smith & Partner TTW

Traffic Engineer

Steensen Varming
02 9967 2200

Mechanical/ Electrical Engineer

Trevor R Howse

michael.fearnley@steensenvarming.com
george.mikolajczyk@steensenvarming.com

viktor.mateffy@mpn.com.au

BCA & Access Consultant

Hydraulic/ Fire Engineer

02 9929 7144
tblythe@urbis.com.au

0430 123 611

MPN Group
02 8233 9959

hayden@trevorhowse.com.au

Structural Engineer

Urbis

For Information
Development Application

Notes Regarding
“For Construction Documents”
Tzannes Associates (TZ) believes
that the information shown on this
drawing (when read with the
applicable specification) is
sufficient for a reasonably
competent and experienced builder
to understand the design intent;
understand the process of
construction required to achieve a
finished product conforming with
the design intent and understand
what building materials, techniques
and methods are required to
achieve that finished product

Urban Planner

Cienna Group

Client & Developer

Date
19.10.18
16.11.18

Rev

General Notes
Verify dimensions on site prior to
commencement of work. Check
existing RL’s on site. Advise
Architect of any discrepancies
before commencement. Allow for
adjustments to suit discrepancies.
Comply with relevant authorities
requirements. Comply with
Building Code of Australia
requirements. Comply with
relevant Australian Standards for
materials and construction
practice. Comply with Basix
Certificate. Do not scale from
drawings.

Copyright owned by Tzannes.
Rights to this document are subject
to payment in full of all Tzannes
fees. This document may only be
used for the express purpose for
which it has been created and any Nominated Architects
unauthorised use is at the user’s
Alec Tzannes 4174
sole risk and without limiting
Tzannes’ rights the user releases Jonathan Evans 6613
and indemnifies Tzannes from and Mladen Prnjatovic 7468
Ben Green 7066
against all loss so arising
Chi Melhem 7754

Copyright

W. tzannes.com.au
T. 61 2 9319 3744
E. tzannes@tzannes.com.au







(

'DVKJUHHQOLQHGHQRWHV
SURSRVHGH[WHQWXQGHU
PRGLILFDWLRQ

([LVWLQJ+RWHO

'DVKJUHHQOLQHGHQRWHV
SURSRVHGH[WHQWXQGHU
PRGLILFDWLRQ

/LIW

/REE\

/LIW

3ULYDF\6FUHHQ



94








6WDLUV






6WDLUV


&






*RRGV
/LIW











5/













+LWDQG0LVV%ULFN





&











(




'

&

%

$

6XLWOHYHO
)RYHDX[6XUU\+LOOV
16:6\GQH\$XVWUDOLD

$
%
&

)RU

6WHHQVHQ9DUPLQJ

PLFKDHOIHDUQOH\#VWHHQVHQYDUPLQJFRP
JHRUJHPLNRODMF]\N#VWHHQVHQYDUPLQJFRP

7UDIILF(QJLQHHU

+\GUDXOLF)LUH(QJLQHHU

:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RQVXOWDQW

(OHSKDQWV)RRW

DVKOHLJKDUPVWURQJ#HOHSKDQWVIRRWFRPDX

-XQJOHIO\

DQGUHZE#MXQJOHIO\FRPDX

5HYLVLRQ

'UDZLQJ1R



3URMHFW1R



&

7=



&KHFNHG

&0

'UDZQ

'DWH&UHDWHG

7\SLFDO7RZHU/HYHO

'UDZLQJ

'(9(/230(17$33/,&$7,21

6WDWXV

5,/(<676855<+,//6

$GGUHVV

&DPEULGJH+RWHO

3URMHFW

#$

1RUWK

VLPRQ#ZLQGWHFKJOREDOFRP

/DQGVFDSH'HVLJQHU

6FDOH


JUD\#JUFK\GURFRPDX

:LQGWHFK


:LQG(QJLQHHU

9HULV
PDQGUHZ#YHULVFRPDX

6XUYH\RU

-.*HRWHFKQLFV

*5&+\GUR

VKHQVOH\#ZWSDUWQHUVKLSFRPDX

*HRWHFKQLFDO(QJLQHHU




OVMRJUHQ#IMPWVWXGLRFRP

)ORRG0DQDJHPHQW

:73DUWQHUVKLS


SVWXEEV#MNJHRWHFKQLFVFRPDX

4XDQWLW\6XUYH\RU

)-07





$FRXVWLF6WXGLR

,QWHULRU'HVLJQHU

$FRXVWLFV

$HFRP

MDVRQFDPHURQ#DFRXVWLFVWXGLRFRPDX

9HUWLFDO7UDQVSRUW(QJLQHHU

DGDPPDJHH#DHFRPFRP

SDXO\DQQRXODWRV#WWZFRPDX

JUDKDPH#ZDUUHQVPLWKFRPDX
GDYLG#ZDUUHQVPLWKFRPDX







:DUUHQ6PLWK 3DUWQHU 77:

0HFKDQLFDO(OHFWULFDO(QJLQHHU

KD\GHQ#WUHYRUKRZVHFRPDX

YLNWRUPDWHII\#PSQFRPDX




WEO\WKH#XUELVFRPDX

7UHYRU5+RZVH

031*URXS


%&$ $FFHVV&RQVXOWDQW

6WUXFWXUDO(QJLQHHU

8UELV

)RU,QIRUPDWLRQ
'HYHORSPHQW$SSOLFDWLRQ
6KDGLQJ'HYLFH$GGHG

1RWHV5HJDUGLQJ
Ú)RU&RQVWUXFWLRQ'RFXPHQWVÛ
7]DQQHV$VVRFLDWHV 7= EHOLHYHV
WKDWWKHLQIRUPDWLRQVKRZQRQWKLV
GUDZLQJ ZKHQUHDGZLWKWKH
DSSOLFDEOHVSHFLILFDWLRQ LV
VXIILFLHQWIRUDUHDVRQDEO\
FRPSHWHQWDQGH[SHULHQFHGEXLOGHU
WRXQGHUVWDQGWKHGHVLJQLQWHQW
XQGHUVWDQGWKHSURFHVVRI
FRQVWUXFWLRQUHTXLUHGWRDFKLHYHD
ILQLVKHGSURGXFWFRQIRUPLQJZLWK
WKHGHVLJQLQWHQWDQGXQGHUVWDQG
ZKDWEXLOGLQJPDWHULDOVWHFKQLTXHV
DQGPHWKRGVDUHUHTXLUHGWR
DFKLHYHWKDWILQLVKHGSURGXFW

8UEDQ3ODQQHU

&LHQQD*URXS

&OLHQW 'HYHORSHU

'DWH





5HY

*HQHUDO1RWHV
9HULI\GLPHQVLRQVRQVLWHSULRUWR
FRPPHQFHPHQWRI ZRUN&KHFN
H[LVWLQJ5/ØVRQVLWH$GYLVH
$UFKLWHFWRIDQ\GLVFUHSDQFLHV
EHIRUHFRPPHQFHPHQW$OORZIRU
DGMXVWPHQWVWRVXLWGLVFUHSDQFLHV
&RPSO\ZLWKUHOHYDQWDXWKRULWLHV
UHTXLUHPHQWV&RPSO\ZLWK
%XLOGLQJ&RGHRI$XVWUDOLD
UHTXLUHPHQWV&RPSO\ZLWK
UHOHYDQW$XVWUDOLDQ6WDQGDUGVIRU
PDWHULDOVDQGFRQVWUXFWLRQ
SUDFWLFH&RPSO\ZLWK%DVL[
&HUWLILFDWH'RQRWVFDOHIURP
GUDZLQJV

&RS\ULJKWRZQHGE\7]DQQHV
5LJKWVWRWKLVGRFXPHQWDUHVXEMHFW
WRSD\PHQWLQIXOORIDOO7]DQQHV
IHHV7KLVGRFXPHQWPD\RQO\EH
XVHGIRUWKHH[SUHVVSXUSRVHIRU
ZKLFKLWKDVEHHQFUHDWHGDQGDQ\ 1RPLQDWHG$UFKLWHFWV
XQDXWKRULVHGXVHLVDWWKHXVHUØV
$OHF7]DQQHV
VROHULVNDQGZLWKRXWOLPLWLQJ
7]DQQHVØULJKWVWKHXVHUUHOHDVHV -RQDWKDQ(YDQV
DQGLQGHPQLILHV7]DQQHVIURPDQG 0ODGHQ3UQMDWRYLF
%HQ*UHHQ
DJDLQVWDOOORVVVRDULVLQJ
&KL0HOKHP

&RS\ULJKW

: W]DQQHVFRPDX
7 
( W]DQQHV#W]DQQHVFRPDX

95







(

'DVKJUHHQOLQHGHQRWHV
SURSRVHGH[WHQWXQGHU
PRGLILFDWLRQ

([LVWLQJ+RWHO

'DVKJUHHQOLQHGHQRWHV
SURSRVHGH[WHQWXQGHU
PRGLILFDWLRQ

/LIW

/REE\

/LIW

3ULYDF\6FUHHQ









6WDLUV






6WDLUV


&






*RRGV
/LIW















&









+LWDQG0LVV%ULFN





&









(




'

&

%

$

6XLWOHYHO
)RYHDX[6XUU\+LOOV
16:6\GQH\$XVWUDOLD

$
%
&

)RU

6WHHQVHQ9DUPLQJ

PLFKDHOIHDUQOH\#VWHHQVHQYDUPLQJFRP
JHRUJHPLNRODMF]\N#VWHHQVHQYDUPLQJFRP

7UDIILF(QJLQHHU

+\GUDXOLF)LUH(QJLQHHU


DVKOHLJKDUPVWURQJ#HOHSKDQWVIRRWFRPDX

5HYLVLRQ

'UDZLQJ1R



3URMHFW1R



&

7=



&KHFNHG

&0

'UDZQ

'DWH&UHDWHG

7\SLFDO7RZHU/HYHO

'UDZLQJ

'(9(/230(17$33/,&$7,21

6WDWXV

5,/(<676855<+,//6

$GGUHVV

&DPEULGJH+RWHO

3URMHFW

#$

1RUWK

(OHSKDQWV)RRW
DQGUHZE#MXQJOHIO\FRPDX

6FDOH

:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RQVXOWDQW


VLPRQ#ZLQGWHFKJOREDOFRP

-XQJOHIO\



/DQGVFDSH'HVLJQHU

JUD\#JUFK\GURFRPDX

:LQGWHFK


:LQG(QJLQHHU

9HULV
PDQGUHZ#YHULVFRPDX

6XUYH\RU

-.*HRWHFKQLFV

*5&+\GUR

VKHQVOH\#ZWSDUWQHUVKLSFRPDX

*HRWHFKQLFDO(QJLQHHU




OVMRJUHQ#IMPWVWXGLRFRP

)ORRG0DQDJHPHQW

:73DUWQHUVKLS


SVWXEEV#MNJHRWHFKQLFVFRPDX

4XDQWLW\6XUYH\RU

)-07





$FRXVWLF6WXGLR

,QWHULRU'HVLJQHU

$FRXVWLFV

$HFRP

MDVRQFDPHURQ#DFRXVWLFVWXGLRFRPDX

9HUWLFDO7UDQVSRUW(QJLQHHU

DGDPPDJHH#DHFRPFRP

SDXO\DQQRXODWRV#WWZFRPDX

JUDKDPH#ZDUUHQVPLWKFRPDX
GDYLG#ZDUUHQVPLWKFRPDX







:DUUHQ6PLWK 3DUWQHU 77:

0HFKDQLFDO(OHFWULFDO(QJLQHHU

KD\GHQ#WUHYRUKRZVHFRPDX

YLNWRUPDWHII\#PSQFRPDX




WEO\WKH#XUELVFRPDX

7UHYRU5+RZVH

031*URXS


%&$ $FFHVV&RQVXOWDQW

6WUXFWXUDO(QJLQHHU

8UELV

)RU,QIRUPDWLRQ
'HYHORSPHQW$SSOLFDWLRQ
6KDGLQJ'HYLFH$GGHG

1RWHV5HJDUGLQJ
Ú)RU&RQVWUXFWLRQ'RFXPHQWVÛ
7]DQQHV$VVRFLDWHV 7= EHOLHYHV
WKDWWKHLQIRUPDWLRQVKRZQRQWKLV
GUDZLQJ ZKHQUHDGZLWKWKH
DSSOLFDEOHVSHFLILFDWLRQ LV
VXIILFLHQWIRUDUHDVRQDEO\
FRPSHWHQWDQGH[SHULHQFHGEXLOGHU
WRXQGHUVWDQGWKHGHVLJQLQWHQW
XQGHUVWDQGWKHSURFHVVRI
FRQVWUXFWLRQUHTXLUHGWRDFKLHYHD
ILQLVKHGSURGXFWFRQIRUPLQJZLWK
WKHGHVLJQLQWHQWDQGXQGHUVWDQG
ZKDWEXLOGLQJPDWHULDOVWHFKQLTXHV
DQGPHWKRGVDUHUHTXLUHGWR
DFKLHYHWKDWILQLVKHGSURGXFW

8UEDQ3ODQQHU

&LHQQD*URXS

&OLHQW 'HYHORSHU

'DWH





5HY

*HQHUDO1RWHV
9HULI\GLPHQVLRQVRQVLWHSULRUWR
FRPPHQFHPHQWRI ZRUN&KHFN
H[LVWLQJ5/ØVRQVLWH$GYLVH
$UFKLWHFWRIDQ\GLVFUHSDQFLHV
EHIRUHFRPPHQFHPHQW$OORZIRU
DGMXVWPHQWVWRVXLWGLVFUHSDQFLHV
&RPSO\ZLWKUHOHYDQWDXWKRULWLHV
UHTXLUHPHQWV&RPSO\ZLWK
%XLOGLQJ&RGHRI$XVWUDOLD
UHTXLUHPHQWV&RPSO\ZLWK
UHOHYDQW$XVWUDOLDQ6WDQGDUGVIRU
PDWHULDOVDQGFRQVWUXFWLRQ
SUDFWLFH&RPSO\ZLWK%DVL[
&HUWLILFDWH'RQRWVFDOHIURP
GUDZLQJV

&RS\ULJKWRZQHGE\7]DQQHV
5LJKWVWRWKLVGRFXPHQWDUHVXEMHFW
WRSD\PHQWLQIXOORIDOO7]DQQHV
IHHV7KLVGRFXPHQWPD\RQO\EH
XVHGIRUWKHH[SUHVVSXUSRVHIRU
ZKLFKLWKDVEHHQFUHDWHGDQGDQ\ 1RPLQDWHG$UFKLWHFWV
XQDXWKRULVHGXVHLVDWWKHXVHUØV
$OHF7]DQQHV
VROHULVNDQGZLWKRXWOLPLWLQJ
7]DQQHVØULJKWVWKHXVHUUHOHDVHV -RQDWKDQ(YDQV
DQGLQGHPQLILHV7]DQQHVIURPDQG 0ODGHQ3UQMDWRYLF
%HQ*UHHQ
DJDLQVWDOOORVVVRDULVLQJ
&KL0HOKHP

&RS\ULJKW

: W]DQQHVFRPDX
7 
( W]DQQHV#W]DQQHVFRPDX

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

522) ))/P

/RDGLQJ ))/P

* ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

96

%

%.

%.

%

07/

*/ */ */

%.

07/

%.

+LWDQGPLVVEULFN

%.

&21

%.

*/

*/

%.

%.

%.

3)5

%.

07/

%.

%.

*/

*/

%.

%.

07/

%.

%.

%.

*/

%.

%.

*/

%.

5/

%.

5/

&21

%.

([LVWLQJ6XEVWDWLRQ

/2:(5&$03%(//675((7

%.

07/

07/

07/

07/

07/

07/

'3

07/

%.

&21
*/

07/

5,/(<67

%.
%.
%.
%.
&21
'3
/95
3)5
*/
07/

'$5.32/,6+('%5,&.
/,*+732/,6+('%5,&.
/,*+70$77%5,&.
%5,&.720$7&+(;,67,1*
2)))250&21&5(7(
'2:13,3(
/289(56
3(5)25$7('52//(5'225
*/$66
0(7$/

0DWHULDO$EEUHYLDWLRQ

1HZ$ZQLQJ

1HZ6LJQDJH

6XLWOHYHO
)RYHDX[6XUU\+LOOV
16:6\GQH\$XVWUDOLD

$
%

)RU

6WHHQVHQ9DUPLQJ

PLFKDHOIHDUQOH\#VWHHQVHQYDUPLQJFRP
JHRUJHPLNRODMF]\N#VWHHQVHQYDUPLQJFRP

7UDIILF(QJLQHHU

+\GUDXOLF)LUH(QJLQHHU

9HULV

PDQGUHZ#YHULVFRPDX

:LQG(QJLQHHU

:LQGWHFK


-.*HRWHFKQLFV

SVWXEEV#MNJHRWHFKQLFVFRPDX

)ORRG0DQDJHPHQW

*5&+\GUR


5HYLVLRQ

'UDZLQJ1R



3URMHFW1R



%

7=



&KHFNHG

&0

'UDZQ

'DWH&UHDWHG

(OHYDWLRQ 1RUWK

'UDZLQJ

'(9(/230(17$33/,&$7,21

6WDWXV

5,/(<676855<+,//6

$GGUHVV

&DPEULGJH+RWHO

3URMHFW

#$

1RUWK

DVKOHLJKDUPVWURQJ#HOHSKDQWVIRRWFRPDX

DQGUHZE#MXQJOHIO\FRPDX

6FDOH





(OHSKDQWV)RRW

6XUYH\RU

*HRWHFKQLFDO(QJLQHHU

:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RQVXOWDQW

VKHQVOH\#ZWSDUWQHUVKLSFRPDX

OVMRJUHQ#IMPWVWXGLRFRP

-XQJOHIO\





VLPRQ#ZLQGWHFKJOREDOFRP

:73DUWQHUVKLS

)-07

/DQGVFDSH'HVLJQHU

4XDQWLW\6XUYH\RU

,QWHULRU'HVLJQHU

JUD\#JUFK\GURFRPDX


DGDPPDJHH#DHFRPFRP

$FRXVWLF6WXGLR
MDVRQFDPHURQ#DFRXVWLFVWXGLRFRPDX



$FRXVWLFV

SDXO\DQQRXODWRV#WWZFRPDX

$HFRP


JUDKDPH#ZDUUHQVPLWKFRPDX
GDYLG#ZDUUHQVPLWKFRPDX

9HUWLFDO7UDQVSRUW(QJLQHHU



:DUUHQ6PLWK 3DUWQHU 77:

0HFKDQLFDO(OHFWULFDO(QJLQHHU

KD\GHQ#WUHYRUKRZVHFRPDX

YLNWRUPDWHII\#PSQFRPDX




WEO\WKH#XUELVFRPDX

7UHYRU5+RZVH

031*URXS


%&$ $FFHVV&RQVXOWDQW

6WUXFWXUDO(QJLQHHU

8UELV

'HYHORSPHQW$SSOLFDWLRQ
)ORRG3ODQH/HYHO$GMXVWHG6KDGLQJ
'HYLFH$GGHG

1RWHV5HJDUGLQJ
Ú)RU&RQVWUXFWLRQ'RFXPHQWVÛ
7]DQQHV$VVRFLDWHV 7= EHOLHYHV
WKDWWKHLQIRUPDWLRQVKRZQRQWKLV
GUDZLQJ ZKHQUHDGZLWKWKH
DSSOLFDEOHVSHFLILFDWLRQ LV
VXIILFLHQWIRUDUHDVRQDEO\
FRPSHWHQWDQGH[SHULHQFHGEXLOGHU
WRXQGHUVWDQGWKHGHVLJQLQWHQW
XQGHUVWDQGWKHSURFHVVRI
FRQVWUXFWLRQUHTXLUHGWRDFKLHYHD
ILQLVKHGSURGXFWFRQIRUPLQJZLWK
WKHGHVLJQLQWHQWDQGXQGHUVWDQG
ZKDWEXLOGLQJPDWHULDOVWHFKQLTXHV
DQGPHWKRGVDUHUHTXLUHGWR
DFKLHYHWKDWILQLVKHGSURGXFW

8UEDQ3ODQQHU

&LHQQD*URXS

&OLHQW 'HYHORSHU

'DWH




5HY

*HQHUDO1RWHV
9HULI\GLPHQVLRQVRQVLWHSULRUWR
FRPPHQFHPHQWRI ZRUN&KHFN
H[LVWLQJ5/ØVRQVLWH$GYLVH
$UFKLWHFWRIDQ\GLVFUHSDQFLHV
EHIRUHFRPPHQFHPHQW$OORZIRU
DGMXVWPHQWVWRVXLWGLVFUHSDQFLHV
&RPSO\ZLWKUHOHYDQWDXWKRULWLHV
UHTXLUHPHQWV&RPSO\ZLWK
%XLOGLQJ&RGHRI$XVWUDOLD
UHTXLUHPHQWV&RPSO\ZLWK
UHOHYDQW$XVWUDOLDQ6WDQGDUGVIRU
PDWHULDOVDQGFRQVWUXFWLRQ
SUDFWLFH&RPSO\ZLWK%DVL[
&HUWLILFDWH'RQRWVFDOHIURP
GUDZLQJV

&RS\ULJKWRZQHGE\7]DQQHV
5LJKWVWRWKLVGRFXPHQWDUHVXEMHFW
WRSD\PHQWLQIXOORIDOO7]DQQHV
IHHV7KLVGRFXPHQWPD\RQO\EH
XVHGIRUWKHH[SUHVVSXUSRVHIRU
ZKLFKLWKDVEHHQFUHDWHGDQGDQ\ 1RPLQDWHG$UFKLWHFWV
XQDXWKRULVHGXVHLVDWWKHXVHUØV
$OHF7]DQQHV
VROHULVNDQGZLWKRXWOLPLWLQJ
7]DQQHVØULJKWVWKHXVHUUHOHDVHV -RQDWKDQ(YDQV
DQGLQGHPQLILHV7]DQQHVIURPDQG 0ODGHQ3UQMDWRYLF
%HQ*UHHQ
DJDLQVWDOOORVVVRDULVLQJ
&KL0HOKHP

&RS\ULJKW

: W]DQQHVFRPDX
7 
( W]DQQHV#W]DQQHVFRPDX

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

522) ))/P

* ))/P

%

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

97

5LOH\6W

07/

07/

07/

07/

07/

5LOH\6W

5,/(<67

5,/(<67

*/

%.

%.

*/

5/

/95

%.
*/

%.

*/

5/

%.

&21

%.

5/

%.

5/

*/

%.
*/

%.
*/

5/

%.

%.

%

/RZHU
&DPSEHOO6W

%.
%.
%.
%.
&21
'3
/95
3)5
*/
07/

'$5.32/,6+('%5,&.
/,*+732/,6+('%5,&.
/,*+70$77%5,&.
%5,&.720$7&+(;,67,1*
2)))250&21&5(7(
'2:13,3(
/289(56
3(5)25$7('52//(5'225
*/$66
0(7$/

0DWHULDO$EEUHYLDWLRQ

6XLWOHYHO
)RYHDX[6XUU\+LOOV
16:6\GQH\$XVWUDOLD

'DWH




)RU

6WHHQVHQ9DUPLQJ

PLFKDHOIHDUQOH\#VWHHQVHQYDUPLQJFRP
JHRUJHPLNRODMF]\N#VWHHQVHQYDUPLQJFRP

7UDIILF(QJLQHHU

+\GUDXOLF)LUH(QJLQHHU

:73DUWQHUVKLS

VKHQVOH\#ZWSDUWQHUVKLSFRPDX

6XUYH\RU

9HULV

PDQGUHZ#YHULVFRPDX

:LQG(QJLQHHU

:LQGWHFK

VLPRQ#ZLQGWHFKJOREDOFRP

:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RQVXOWDQW

(OHSKDQWV)RRW

DVKOHLJKDUPVWURQJ#HOHSKDQWVIRRWFRPDX

)-07

OVMRJUHQ#IMPWVWXGLRFRP

*HRWHFKQLFDO(QJLQHHU

-.*HRWHFKQLFV

SVWXEEV#MNJHRWHFKQLFVFRPDX

)ORRG0DQDJHPHQW

*5&+\GUR

JUD\#JUFK\GURFRPDX

/DQGVFDSH'HVLJQHU

-XQJOHIO\

DQGUHZE#MXQJOHIO\FRPDX

5HYLVLRQ

'UDZLQJ1R



3URMHFW1R



%

7=



&KHFNHG

&0

'UDZQ

'DWH&UHDWHG

(OHYDWLRQ 6RXWK

'UDZLQJ

'(9(/230(17$33/,&$7,21

6WDWXV

5,/(<676855<+,//6

$GGUHVV

&DPEULGJH+RWHO

3URMHFW

#$

1RUWK

4XDQWLW\6XUYH\RU

,QWHULRU'HVLJQHU

6FDOH


DGDPPDJHH#DHFRPFRP

$FRXVWLF6WXGLR
MDVRQFDPHURQ#DFRXVWLFVWXGLRFRPDX



$FRXVWLFV

SDXO\DQQRXODWRV#WWZFRPDX

$HFRP


JUDKDPH#ZDUUHQVPLWKFRPDX
GDYLG#ZDUUHQVPLWKFRPDX

9HUWLFDO7UDQVSRUW(QJLQHHU



:DUUHQ6PLWK 3DUWQHU 77:

0HFKDQLFDO(OHFWULFDO(QJLQHHU

KD\GHQ#WUHYRUKRZVHFRPDX

YLNWRUPDWHII\#PSQFRPDX




WEO\WKH#XUELVFRPDX

7UHYRU5+RZVH

031*URXS


%&$ $FFHVV&RQVXOWDQW

6WUXFWXUDO(QJLQHHU

8UELV

'HYHORSPHQW$SSOLFDWLRQ
)ORRG3ODQH/HYHO$GMXVWHG6KDGLQJ
'HYLFH$GGHG

1RWHV5HJDUGLQJ
Ú)RU&RQVWUXFWLRQ'RFXPHQWVÛ
7]DQQHV$VVRFLDWHV 7= EHOLHYHV
WKDWWKHLQIRUPDWLRQVKRZQRQWKLV
GUDZLQJ ZKHQUHDGZLWKWKH
DSSOLFDEOHVSHFLILFDWLRQ LV
VXIILFLHQWIRUDUHDVRQDEO\
FRPSHWHQWDQGH[SHULHQFHGEXLOGHU
WRXQGHUVWDQGWKHGHVLJQLQWHQW
XQGHUVWDQGWKHSURFHVVRI
FRQVWUXFWLRQUHTXLUHGWRDFKLHYHD
ILQLVKHGSURGXFWFRQIRUPLQJZLWK
WKHGHVLJQLQWHQWDQGXQGHUVWDQG
ZKDWEXLOGLQJPDWHULDOVWHFKQLTXHV
DQGPHWKRGVDUHUHTXLUHGWR
DFKLHYHWKDWILQLVKHGSURGXFW

8UEDQ3ODQQHU

&LHQQD*URXS

&OLHQW 'HYHORSHU

$
%

5HY

*HQHUDO1RWHV
9HULI\GLPHQVLRQVRQVLWHSULRUWR
FRPPHQFHPHQWRI ZRUN&KHFN
H[LVWLQJ5/ØVRQVLWH$GYLVH
$UFKLWHFWRIDQ\GLVFUHSDQFLHV
EHIRUHFRPPHQFHPHQW$OORZIRU
DGMXVWPHQWVWRVXLWGLVFUHSDQFLHV
&RPSO\ZLWKUHOHYDQWDXWKRULWLHV
UHTXLUHPHQWV&RPSO\ZLWK
%XLOGLQJ&RGHRI$XVWUDOLD
UHTXLUHPHQWV&RPSO\ZLWK
UHOHYDQW$XVWUDOLDQ6WDQGDUGVIRU
PDWHULDOVDQGFRQVWUXFWLRQ
SUDFWLFH&RPSO\ZLWK%DVL[
&HUWLILFDWH'RQRWVFDOHIURP
GUDZLQJV

&RS\ULJKWRZQHGE\7]DQQHV
5LJKWVWRWKLVGRFXPHQWDUHVXEMHFW
WRSD\PHQWLQIXOORIDOO7]DQQHV
IHHV7KLVGRFXPHQWPD\RQO\EH
XVHGIRUWKHH[SUHVVSXUSRVHIRU
ZKLFKLWKDVEHHQFUHDWHGDQGDQ\ 1RPLQDWHG$UFKLWHFWV
XQDXWKRULVHGXVHLVDWWKHXVHUØV
$OHF7]DQQHV
VROHULVNDQGZLWKRXWOLPLWLQJ
7]DQQHVØULJKWVWKHXVHUUHOHDVHV -RQDWKDQ(YDQV
DQGLQGHPQLILHV7]DQQHVIURPDQG 0ODGHQ3UQMDWRYLF
%HQ*UHHQ
DJDLQVWDOOORVVVRDULVLQJ
&KL0HOKHP

&RS\ULJKW

: W]DQQHVFRPDX
7 
( W]DQQHV#W]DQQHVFRPDX

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

522) ))/P

/* ))/P

/RDGLQJ ))/P

* ))/P

%

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

98

&$03%(//67

%.

%.

%.

*/

%.

'DVKJUHHQOLQHGHQRWHV
SURSRVHGH[WHQWXQGHU
PRGLILFDWLRQ

(

5/

%.

%.

+LWDQGPLVVEULFN

'

*/

&21

&

%

%.

%.

%.

07/

07/

*/

%.

%.

07/

%.

*/

%

%.

%.

*/

$

*/

%.

3)5

%.

07/

%.

5/

%.

07/

07/

07/

'3

07/

%.
%.
%.
%.
&21
'3
/95
3)5
*/
07/

'$5.32/,6+('%5,&.
/,*+732/,6+('%5,&.
/,*+70$77%5,&.
%5,&.720$7&+(;,67,1*
2)))250&21&5(7(
'2:13,3(
/289(56
3(5)25$7('52//(5'225
*/$66
0(7$/

0DWHULDO$EEUHYLDWLRQ

*28/%85167

6XLWOHYHO
)RYHDX[6XUU\+LOOV
16:6\GQH\$XVWUDOLD

'DWH




)RU

6WHHQVHQ9DUPLQJ

PLFKDHOIHDUQOH\#VWHHQVHQYDUPLQJFRP
JHRUJHPLNRODMF]\N#VWHHQVHQYDUPLQJFRP

7UDIILF(QJLQHHU

KD\GHQ#WUHYRUKRZVHFRPDX

+\GUDXOLF)LUH(QJLQHHU

:LQGWHFK


*5&+\GUR


1RUWK

'UDZLQJ1R





7=


3URMHFW1R

'UDZQ

'DWH&UHDWHG

(OHYDWLRQ (DVW

'UDZLQJ

'(9(/230(17$33/,&$7,21

6WDWXV

%

5HYLVLRQ

&0

&KHFNHG

5,/(<676855<+,//6

$GGUHVV

&DPEULGJH+RWHO

3URMHFW

#$

6FDOH

DVKOHLJKDUPVWURQJ#HOHSKDQWVIRRWFRPDX

:LQG(QJLQHHU

)ORRG0DQDJHPHQW



PDQGUHZ#YHULVFRPDX

SVWXEEV#MNJHRWHFKQLFVFRPDX

(OHSKDQWV)RRW





DQGUHZE#MXQJOHIO\FRPDX

9HULV

-.*HRWHFKQLFV

:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RQVXOWDQW

6XUYH\RU

*HRWHFKQLFDO(QJLQHHU



VKHQVOH\#ZWSDUWQHUVKLSFRPDX

OVMRJUHQ#IMPWVWXGLRFRP

-XQJOHIO\





VLPRQ#ZLQGWHFKJOREDOFRP

:73DUWQHUVKLS

)-07

/DQGVFDSH'HVLJQHU

4XDQWLW\6XUYH\RU

,QWHULRU'HVLJQHU

JUD\#JUFK\GURFRPDX


DGDPPDJHH#DHFRPFRP

$FRXVWLF6WXGLR
MDVRQFDPHURQ#DFRXVWLFVWXGLRFRPDX



$FRXVWLFV

SDXO\DQQRXODWRV#WWZFRPDX

$HFRP


JUDKDPH#ZDUUHQVPLWKFRPDX
GDYLG#ZDUUHQVPLWKFRPDX

9HUWLFDO7UDQVSRUW(QJLQHHU



:DUUHQ6PLWK 3DUWQHU 77:

0HFKDQLFDO(OHFWULFDO(QJLQHHU


YLNWRUPDWHII\#PSQFRPDX

7UHYRU5+RZVH


WEO\WKH#XUELVFRPDX

%&$ $FFHVV&RQVXOWDQW

031*URXS


6WUXFWXUDO(QJLQHHU

'HYHORSPHQW$SSOLFDWLRQ
)ORRG3ODQH/HYHO$GMXVWHG6KDGLQJ
'HYLFH$GGHG

1RWHV5HJDUGLQJ
Ú)RU&RQVWUXFWLRQ'RFXPHQWVÛ
7]DQQHV$VVRFLDWHV 7= EHOLHYHV
WKDWWKHLQIRUPDWLRQVKRZQRQWKLV
GUDZLQJ ZKHQUHDGZLWKWKH
DSSOLFDEOHVSHFLILFDWLRQ LV
VXIILFLHQWIRUDUHDVRQDEO\
FRPSHWHQWDQGH[SHULHQFHGEXLOGHU
WRXQGHUVWDQGWKHGHVLJQLQWHQW
XQGHUVWDQGWKHSURFHVVRI
FRQVWUXFWLRQUHTXLUHGWRDFKLHYHD
ILQLVKHGSURGXFWFRQIRUPLQJZLWK
WKHGHVLJQLQWHQWDQGXQGHUVWDQG
ZKDWEXLOGLQJPDWHULDOVWHFKQLTXHV
DQGPHWKRGVDUHUHTXLUHGWR
DFKLHYHWKDWILQLVKHGSURGXFW

8UELV

8UEDQ3ODQQHU

&LHQQD*URXS

&OLHQW 'HYHORSHU

$
%

5HY

*HQHUDO1RWHV
9HULI\GLPHQVLRQVRQVLWHSULRUWR
FRPPHQFHPHQWRI ZRUN&KHFN
H[LVWLQJ5/ØVRQVLWH$GYLVH
$UFKLWHFWRIDQ\GLVFUHSDQFLHV
EHIRUHFRPPHQFHPHQW$OORZIRU
DGMXVWPHQWVWRVXLWGLVFUHSDQFLHV
&RPSO\ZLWKUHOHYDQWDXWKRULWLHV
UHTXLUHPHQWV&RPSO\ZLWK
%XLOGLQJ&RGHRI$XVWUDOLD
UHTXLUHPHQWV&RPSO\ZLWK
UHOHYDQW$XVWUDOLDQ6WDQGDUGVIRU
PDWHULDOVDQGFRQVWUXFWLRQ
SUDFWLFH&RPSO\ZLWK%DVL[
&HUWLILFDWH'RQRWVFDOHIURP
GUDZLQJV

&RS\ULJKWRZQHGE\7]DQQHV
5LJKWVWRWKLVGRFXPHQWDUHVXEMHFW
WRSD\PHQWLQIXOORIDOO7]DQQHV
IHHV7KLVGRFXPHQWPD\RQO\EH
XVHGIRUWKHH[SUHVVSXUSRVHIRU
ZKLFKLWKDVEHHQFUHDWHGDQGDQ\ 1RPLQDWHG$UFKLWHFWV
XQDXWKRULVHGXVHLVDWWKHXVHUØV
$OHF7]DQQHV
VROHULVNDQGZLWKRXWOLPLWLQJ
7]DQQHVØULJKWVWKHXVHUUHOHDVHV -RQDWKDQ(YDQV
DQGLQGHPQLILHV7]DQQHVIURPDQG 0ODGHQ3UQMDWRYLF
%HQ*UHHQ
DJDLQVWDOOORVVVRDULVLQJ
&KL0HOKHP

&RS\ULJKW

: W]DQQHVFRPDX
7 
( W]DQQHV#W]DQQHVFRPDX

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

522) ))/P

%$[ ))/P

/* ))/P

/RDGLQJ ))/P

* ))/P

%

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

99

/2:(5
&$03%(//
675((7

&21

07/

*/

5/WRPDWFKH[LVWLQJ
5/

1HZ6LJQDJH

%. %.

07/$ZQLQJ

*/

07/

%. %. */

07/

07/

07/

07/

07/

07/

'3

07/

%.

07/

07/

07/

07/

07/

07/

'3

07/

&21
%.

07/ $ZQLQJ

%

07/

07/

07/

07/

07/

07/

'3

07/

*/

07/

%. */

1HZ
6LJQDJH

07/

%. */

07/

07/

07/

07/

07/

07/

'3

07/

%.

&21

5,/(<67

'$5.32/,6+('%5,&.
/,*+732/,6+('%5,&.
/,*+70$77%5,&.
%5,&.720$7&+(;,67,1*
2)))250&21&5(7(
'2:13,3(
/289(56
3(5)25$7('52//(5'225
*/$66
0(7$/

&$03%(//
675((7

%.
%.
%.
%.
&21
'3
/95
3)5
*/
07/

0DWHULDO$EEUHYLDWLRQ
6XLWOHYHO
)RYHDX[6XUU\+LOOV
16:6\GQH\$XVWUDOLD

'DWH




)RU

6WHHQVHQ9DUPLQJ

PLFKDHOIHDUQOH\#VWHHQVHQYDUPLQJFRP
JHRUJHPLNRODMF]\N#VWHHQVHQYDUPLQJFRP

7UDIILF(QJLQHHU

+\GUDXOLF)LUH(QJLQHHU

PDQGUHZ#YHULVFRPDX

:LQG(QJLQHHU

:LQGWHFK

VLPRQ#ZLQGWHFKJOREDOFRP

SVWXEEV#MNJHRWHFKQLFVFRPDX

)ORRG0DQDJHPHQW

*5&+\GUR

JUD\#JUFK\GURFRPDX

1RUWK

5HYLVLRQ

'UDZLQJ1R



3URMHFW1R



%

7=



&KHFNHG

&0

'UDZQ

'DWH&UHDWHG

(OHYDWLRQ :HVW

'UDZLQJ

'(9(/230(17$33/,&$7,21

6WDWXV

5,/(<676855<+,//6

$GGUHVV

&DPEULGJH+RWHO

3URMHFW

#$

6FDOH

DVKOHLJKDUPVWURQJ#HOHSKDQWVIRRWFRPDX







9HULV

-.*HRWHFKQLFV

(OHSKDQWV)RRW

6XUYH\RU

*HRWHFKQLFDO(QJLQHHU

DQGUHZE#MXQJOHIO\FRPDX

VKHQVOH\#ZWSDUWQHUVKLSFRPDX

OVMRJUHQ#IMPWVWXGLRFRP

:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RQVXOWDQW







:73DUWQHUVKLS

)-07

-XQJOHIO\

4XDQWLW\6XUYH\RU

,QWHULRU'HVLJQHU

/DQGVFDSH'HVLJQHU


DGDPPDJHH#DHFRPFRP

$FRXVWLF6WXGLR
MDVRQFDPHURQ#DFRXVWLFVWXGLRFRPDX



$FRXVWLFV

SDXO\DQQRXODWRV#WWZFRPDX

$HFRP


JUDKDPH#ZDUUHQVPLWKFRPDX
GDYLG#ZDUUHQVPLWKFRPDX

9HUWLFDO7UDQVSRUW(QJLQHHU



:DUUHQ6PLWK 3DUWQHU 77:

0HFKDQLFDO(OHFWULFDO(QJLQHHU

KD\GHQ#WUHYRUKRZVHFRPDX

YLNWRUPDWHII\#PSQFRPDX




WEO\WKH#XUELVFRPDX

7UHYRU5+RZVH

031*URXS


%&$ $FFHVV&RQVXOWDQW

6WUXFWXUDO(QJLQHHU

8UELV

'HYHORSPHQW$SSOLFDWLRQ
)ORRG3ODQH/HYHO$GMXVWHG

1RWHV5HJDUGLQJ
Ú)RU&RQVWUXFWLRQ'RFXPHQWVÛ
7]DQQHV$VVRFLDWHV 7= EHOLHYHV
WKDWWKHLQIRUPDWLRQVKRZQRQWKLV
GUDZLQJ ZKHQUHDGZLWKWKH
DSSOLFDEOHVSHFLILFDWLRQ LV
VXIILFLHQWIRUDUHDVRQDEO\
FRPSHWHQWDQGH[SHULHQFHGEXLOGHU
WRXQGHUVWDQGWKHGHVLJQLQWHQW
XQGHUVWDQGWKHSURFHVVRI
FRQVWUXFWLRQUHTXLUHGWRDFKLHYHD
ILQLVKHGSURGXFWFRQIRUPLQJZLWK
WKHGHVLJQLQWHQWDQGXQGHUVWDQG
ZKDWEXLOGLQJPDWHULDOVWHFKQLTXHV
DQGPHWKRGVDUHUHTXLUHGWR
DFKLHYHWKDWILQLVKHGSURGXFW

8UEDQ3ODQQHU

&LHQQD*URXS

&OLHQW 'HYHORSHU

$
%

5HY

*HQHUDO1RWHV
9HULI\GLPHQVLRQVRQVLWHSULRUWR
FRPPHQFHPHQWRI ZRUN&KHFN
H[LVWLQJ5/ØVRQVLWH$GYLVH
$UFKLWHFWRIDQ\GLVFUHSDQFLHV
EHIRUHFRPPHQFHPHQW$OORZIRU
DGMXVWPHQWVWRVXLWGLVFUHSDQFLHV
&RPSO\ZLWKUHOHYDQWDXWKRULWLHV
UHTXLUHPHQWV&RPSO\ZLWK
%XLOGLQJ&RGHRI$XVWUDOLD
UHTXLUHPHQWV&RPSO\ZLWK
UHOHYDQW$XVWUDOLDQ6WDQGDUGVIRU
PDWHULDOVDQGFRQVWUXFWLRQ
SUDFWLFH&RPSO\ZLWK%DVL[
&HUWLILFDWH'RQRWVFDOHIURP
GUDZLQJV

&RS\ULJKWRZQHGE\7]DQQHV
5LJKWVWRWKLVGRFXPHQWDUHVXEMHFW
WRSD\PHQWLQIXOORIDOO7]DQQHV
IHHV7KLVGRFXPHQWPD\RQO\EH
XVHGIRUWKHH[SUHVVSXUSRVHIRU
ZKLFKLWKDVEHHQFUHDWHGDQGDQ\ 1RPLQDWHG$UFKLWHFWV
XQDXWKRULVHGXVHLVDWWKHXVHUØV
$OHF7]DQQHV
VROHULVNDQGZLWKRXWOLPLWLQJ
7]DQQHVØULJKWVWKHXVHUUHOHDVHV -RQDWKDQ(YDQV
DQGLQGHPQLILHV7]DQQHVIURPDQG 0ODGHQ3UQMDWRYLF
%HQ*UHHQ
DJDLQVWDOOORVVVRDULVLQJ
&KL0HOKHP

&RS\ULJKW

: W]DQQHVFRPDX
7 
( W]DQQHV#W]DQQHVFRPDX

100

% ))/P

% ))/P

% ))/P

% ))/P

% ))/P

/* ))/P

/RDGLQJ ))/P

* ))/P

%

/(9(/ ))/P

12
/2:(5&$03%(//67

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

522) ))/P

/95

3ODQW

3ODQW

3ODQW

.LWFKHQ

3ODQW6WRUH

3ODQW

6WDLU

+RWHO5RRP7\SH''$

5LVHU

5LVHU
+RWHO5RRP7\SH''$

+RWHO5RRP7\SH''$

+RWHO5RRP7\SH''$

+RWHO5RRP7\SH

+RWHO5RRP7\SH

+RWHO5RRP7\SH

+RWHO5RRP7\SH''$

SOHQXP

%
5/

+RWHO5RRP7\SH

+RWHO5RRP7\SH''$

5/

%

$

5LVHU

5LVHU

/RDGLQJ'RFN

6WDLU

6WDLU

6WDLU

6WDLU

/REE\

/REE\

/REE\

/REE\

/REE\

/REE\

/REE\

/REE\

/REE\

/REE\

3ODQW

/95

*RRGV/LIW

&

%2+

%2+

%2+

%2+

/RXQJH

/REE\

/REE\

/REE\

/REE\

/REE\

/REE\

/REE\

/REE\

/REE\

/REE\

3ODQW

/95

+RWHO5RRP7\SH

%2+

6WRUH

&DU3DUNLQJ

6WDII&KDQJH

%2+

3ODQW6WRUH

%LQV

/RXQJH

+LWDQGPLVVEH\RQG

+RWHO5RRP7\SH

+RWHO5RRP7\SH

+RWHO5RRP7\SH

+RWHO5RRP7\SH

+RWHO5RRP7\SH

+RWHO5RRP7\SH

+RWHO5RRP7\SH

+RWHO5RRP7\SH

5/

'

(

3ODQW6WRUH

5/

$SSURYHGEXLOGLQJHQYHORSH'$12
'$VKRZQGDVKHGUHG

5/

12
&$03%(//67

12
&$03%(//67

6XLWOHYHO
)RYHDX[6XUU\+LOOV
16:6\GQH\$XVWUDOLD

$
%

)RU

6WHHQVHQ9DUPLQJ

PLFKDHOIHDUQOH\#VWHHQVHQYDUPLQJFRP
JHRUJHPLNRODMF]\N#VWHHQVHQYDUPLQJFRP

KD\GHQ#WUHYRUKRZVHFRPDX

PDQGUHZ#YHULVFRPDX

SVWXEEV#MNJHRWHFKQLFVFRPDX

5HYLVLRQ

'UDZLQJ1R



3URMHFW1R



%

7=



&KHFNHG

&0

'UDZQ

'DWH&UHDWHG

6HFWLRQ

'UDZLQJ

'(9(/230(17$33/,&$7,21

6WDWXV

5,/(<676855<+,//6

$GGUHVV

&DPEULGJH+RWHO

3URMHFW

#$

1RUWK

DVKOHLJKDUPVWURQJ#HOHSKDQWVIRRWFRPDX

6FDOH



(OHSKDQWV)RRW
DQGUHZE#MXQJOHIO\FRPDX

:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RQVXOWDQW

-XQJOHIO\


/DQGVFDSH'HVLJQHU

VLPRQ#ZLQGWHFKJOREDOFRP







9HULV

-.*HRWHFKQLFV

:LQGWHFK

6XUYH\RU

*HRWHFKQLFDO(QJLQHHU

:LQG(QJLQHHU

VKHQVOH\#ZWSDUWQHUVKLSFRPDX

OVMRJUHQ#IMPWVWXGLRFRP

JUD\#JUFK\GURFRPDX







:73DUWQHUVKLS

)-07

*5&+\GUR

4XDQWLW\6XUYH\RU

,QWHULRU'HVLJQHU

)ORRG0DQDJHPHQW


DGDPPDJHH#DHFRPFRP

$FRXVWLF6WXGLR
MDVRQFDPHURQ#DFRXVWLFVWXGLRFRPDX



$FRXVWLFV

SDXO\DQQRXODWRV#WWZFRPDX

$HFRP


JUDKDPH#ZDUUHQVPLWKFRPDX
GDYLG#ZDUUHQVPLWKFRPDX

9HUWLFDO7UDQVSRUW(QJLQHHU



:DUUHQ6PLWK 3DUWQHU 77:

7UDIILF(QJLQHHU

0HFKDQLFDO(OHFWULFDO(QJLQHHU


+\GUDXOLF)LUH(QJLQHHU

YLNWRUPDWHII\#PSQFRPDX



7UHYRU5+RZVH

031*URXS

%&$ $FFHVV&RQVXOWDQW

6WUXFWXUDO(QJLQHHU

WEO\WKH#XUELVFRPDX

8UELV

'HYHORSPHQW$SSOLFDWLRQ
)ORRG3ODQH/HYHO$GMXVWHG6KDGLQJ
'HYLFH$GGHG

1RWHV5HJDUGLQJ
Ú)RU&RQVWUXFWLRQ'RFXPHQWVÛ
7]DQQHV$VVRFLDWHV 7= EHOLHYHV
WKDWWKHLQIRUPDWLRQVKRZQRQWKLV
GUDZLQJ ZKHQUHDGZLWKWKH
DSSOLFDEOHVSHFLILFDWLRQ LV
VXIILFLHQWIRUDUHDVRQDEO\
FRPSHWHQWDQGH[SHULHQFHGEXLOGHU
WRXQGHUVWDQGWKHGHVLJQLQWHQW
XQGHUVWDQGWKHSURFHVVRI
FRQVWUXFWLRQUHTXLUHGWRDFKLHYHD
ILQLVKHGSURGXFWFRQIRUPLQJZLWK
WKHGHVLJQLQWHQWDQGXQGHUVWDQG
ZKDWEXLOGLQJPDWHULDOVWHFKQLTXHV
DQGPHWKRGVDUHUHTXLUHGWR
DFKLHYHWKDWILQLVKHGSURGXFW

8UEDQ3ODQQHU

&LHQQD*URXS

&OLHQW 'HYHORSHU

'DWH




5HY

*HQHUDO1RWHV
9HULI\GLPHQVLRQVRQVLWHSULRUWR
FRPPHQFHPHQWRI ZRUN&KHFN
H[LVWLQJ5/ØVRQVLWH$GYLVH
$UFKLWHFWRIDQ\GLVFUHSDQFLHV
EHIRUHFRPPHQFHPHQW$OORZIRU
DGMXVWPHQWVWRVXLWGLVFUHSDQFLHV
&RPSO\ZLWKUHOHYDQWDXWKRULWLHV
UHTXLUHPHQWV&RPSO\ZLWK
%XLOGLQJ&RGHRI$XVWUDOLD
UHTXLUHPHQWV&RPSO\ZLWK
UHOHYDQW$XVWUDOLDQ6WDQGDUGVIRU
PDWHULDOVDQGFRQVWUXFWLRQ
SUDFWLFH&RPSO\ZLWK%DVL[
&HUWLILFDWH'RQRWVFDOHIURP
GUDZLQJV

&RS\ULJKWRZQHGE\7]DQQHV
5LJKWVWRWKLVGRFXPHQWDUHVXEMHFW
WRSD\PHQWLQIXOORIDOO7]DQQHV
IHHV7KLVGRFXPHQWPD\RQO\EH
XVHGIRUWKHH[SUHVVSXUSRVHIRU
ZKLFKLWKDVEHHQFUHDWHGDQGDQ\ 1RPLQDWHG$UFKLWHFWV
XQDXWKRULVHGXVHLVDWWKHXVHUØV
$OHF7]DQQHV
VROHULVNDQGZLWKRXWOLPLWLQJ
7]DQQHVØULJKWVWKHXVHUUHOHDVHV -RQDWKDQ(YDQV
DQGLQGHPQLILHV7]DQQHVIURPDQG 0ODGHQ3UQMDWRYLF
%HQ*UHHQ
DJDLQVWDOOORVVVRDULVLQJ
&KL0HOKHP

&RS\ULJKW

: W]DQQHVFRPDX
7 
( W]DQQHV#W]DQQHVFRPDX

101

% ))/P

% ))/P

% ))/P

% ))/P

% ))/P

/* ))/P

/RDGLQJ ))/P

* ))/P

%

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

/(9(/ ))/P

522) ))/P

1HZ$ZQLQJ

1HZ6LJQDJH

07/

07/

07/

07/

07/

07/

07/

([LVWLQJ%DVHPHQW

5HFHSWLRQ/REE\

/LIW





%2+

%2+

%2+

%2+

/RXQJH

/REE\

/REE\

/REE\

/REE\

/REE\

/REE\

/REE\

/REE\

/REE\

/REE\

3ODQW



/95



&DU3DUNLQJ

3RRO3ODQW

/REE\

/REE\

3RRO

7UDIILF(QJLQHHU

9RLG

PLFKDHOIHDUQOH\#VWHHQVHQYDUPLQJFRP
JHRUJHPLNRODMF]\N#VWHHQVHQYDUPLQJFRP

/REE\



+\GUDXOLF)LUH(QJLQHHU

$FRXVWLF6WXGLR

:LQG(QJLQHHU

:LQGWHFK


DVKOHLJKDUPVWURQJ#HOHSKDQWVIRRWFRPDX


DQGUHZE#MXQJOHIO\FRPDX

5HYLVLRQ

'UDZLQJ1R



3URMHFW1R



%

7=



&KHFNHG

&0

'UDZQ

'DWH&UHDWHG

6HFWLRQ

'UDZLQJ

'(9(/230(17$33/,&$7,21

6WDWXV

5,/(<676855<+,//6

$GGUHVV

&DPEULGJH+RWHO

3URMHFW

#$

1RUWK

(OHSKDQWV)RRW

-XQJOHIO\

6FDOH

:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RQVXOWDQW

/DQGVFDSH'HVLJQHU

VLPRQ#ZLQGWHFKJOREDOFRP

PDQGUHZ#YHULVFRPDX

*5&+\GUR





)ORRG0DQDJHPHQW

JUD\#JUFK\GURFRPDX

9HULV
SVWXEEV#MNJHRWHFKQLFVFRPDX



6XUYH\RU

VKHQVOH\#ZWSDUWQHUVKLSFRPDX

OVMRJUHQ#IMPWVWXGLRFRP







-.*HRWHFKQLFV

:73DUWQHUVKLS

)-07

*HRWHFKQLFDO(QJLQHHU

4XDQWLW\6XUYH\RU

,QWHULRU'HVLJQHU



$FRXVWLFV

$HFRP

MDVRQFDPHURQ#DFRXVWLFVWXGLRFRPDX

9HUWLFDO7UDQVSRUW(QJLQHHU

DGDPPDJHH#DHFRPFRP

SDXO\DQQRXODWRV#WWZFRPDX

JUDKDPH#ZDUUHQVPLWKFRPDX
GDYLG#ZDUUHQVPLWKFRPDX







:DUUHQ6PLWK 3DUWQHU 77:

6WHHQVHQ9DUPLQJ

/REE\

0HFKDQLFDO(OHFWULFDO(QJLQHHU

YLNWRUPDWHII\#PSQFRPDX

WEO\WKH#XUELVFRPDX

KD\GHQ#WUHYRUKRZVHFRPDX







031*URXS

8UELV

/REE\

6WUXFWXUDO(QJLQHHU

8UEDQ3ODQQHU

&LHQQD*URXS

)RU

'HYHORSPHQW$SSOLFDWLRQ
)ORRG3ODQH/HYHO$GMXVWHG6KDGLQJ
'HYLFH$GGHG

1RWHV5HJDUGLQJ
Ú)RU&RQVWUXFWLRQ'RFXPHQWVÛ
7]DQQHV$VVRFLDWHV 7= EHOLHYHV
WKDWWKHLQIRUPDWLRQVKRZQRQWKLV
GUDZLQJ ZKHQUHDGZLWKWKH
DSSOLFDEOHVSHFLILFDWLRQ LV
VXIILFLHQWIRUDUHDVRQDEO\
FRPSHWHQWDQGH[SHULHQFHGEXLOGHU
WRXQGHUVWDQGWKHGHVLJQLQWHQW
XQGHUVWDQGWKHSURFHVVRI
FRQVWUXFWLRQUHTXLUHGWRDFKLHYHD
ILQLVKHGSURGXFWFRQIRUPLQJZLWK
WKHGHVLJQLQWHQWDQGXQGHUVWDQG
ZKDWEXLOGLQJPDWHULDOVWHFKQLTXHV
DQGPHWKRGVDUHUHTXLUHGWR
DFKLHYHWKDWILQLVKHGSURGXFW

7UHYRU5+RZVH

+LWDQGPLVVEULFN

$
%

&OLHQW 'HYHORSHU

'DWH




5HY

*HQHUDO1RWHV
9HULI\GLPHQVLRQVRQVLWHSULRUWR
FRPPHQFHPHQWRI ZRUN&KHFN
H[LVWLQJ5/ØVRQVLWH$GYLVH
$UFKLWHFWRIDQ\GLVFUHSDQFLHV
EHIRUHFRPPHQFHPHQW$OORZIRU
DGMXVWPHQWVWRVXLWGLVFUHSDQFLHV
&RPSO\ZLWKUHOHYDQWDXWKRULWLHV
UHTXLUHPHQWV&RPSO\ZLWK
%XLOGLQJ&RGHRI$XVWUDOLD
UHTXLUHPHQWV&RPSO\ZLWK
UHOHYDQW$XVWUDOLDQ6WDQGDUGVIRU
PDWHULDOVDQGFRQVWUXFWLRQ
SUDFWLFH&RPSO\ZLWK%DVL[
&HUWLILFDWH'RQRWVFDOHIURP
GUDZLQJV

+LWDQGPLVVEULFN

%

6XLWOHYHO
)RYHDX[6XUU\+LOOV
16:6\GQH\$XVWUDOLD
&RS\ULJKWRZQHGE\7]DQQHV
5LJKWVWRWKLVGRFXPHQWDUHVXEMHFW
WRSD\PHQWLQIXOORIDOO7]DQQHV
IHHV7KLVGRFXPHQWPD\RQO\EH
XVHGIRUWKHH[SUHVVSXUSRVHIRU
ZKLFKLWKDVEHHQFUHDWHGDQGDQ\ 1RPLQDWHG$UFKLWHFWV
XQDXWKRULVHGXVHLVDWWKHXVHUØV
$OHF7]DQQHV
VROHULVNDQGZLWKRXWOLPLWLQJ
7]DQQHVØULJKWVWKHXVHUUHOHDVHV -RQDWKDQ(YDQV
DQGLQGHPQLILHV7]DQQHVIURPDQG 0ODGHQ3UQMDWRYLF
%HQ*UHHQ
DJDLQVWDOOORVVVRDULVLQJ
&KL0HOKHP

&RS\ULJKW

: W]DQQHVFRPDX
7 
( W]DQQHV#W]DQQHVFRPDX

%&$ $FFHVV&RQVXOWDQW

/REE\

/REE\

/REE\

/REE\

/REE\



$SSURYHGEXLOGLQJHQYHORSH
'$12'$VKRZQGDVKHGUHG



3

2

1

1 : 250

B4

1 : 250

1 : 250

G

6

LG

B2

5

1 : 250

B1

1 : 250

4

1 : 250

B3

102

void

9

1 : 250

LEVEL 2-3

1 : 250

LEVEL 1

1 : 250

LEVEL 4-10

8

7

void

1,091 sqm
8,695 sqm
5,369 sqm
8,604.59 sqm
8:1
7.89:1

Maximum GFA (LEP Compliant)
Total GFA post demolition
Proposed Total GFA
Maximum FSR
Proposed FSR

95.97 m²
242.77 m²
80.66 m²
31.72 m²
250.01 m²
206.98 m²
330.16 m²
330.16 m²
238.17 m²
238.17 m²
238.17 m²
238.17 m²
238.17 m²
238.17 m²
238.17 m²
3235.59 m²

GFA
GFA
GFA
GFA
GFA
GFA
GFA
GFA
GFA
GFA
GFA
GFA
GFA
GFA
GFA

Site Area

0.00 m²

GFA

Not
Placed
B3
B2
B1
LG
G
LEVEL 1
LEVEL 2
LEVEL 3
LEVEL 4
LEVEL 5
LEVEL 6
LEVEL 7
LEVEL 8
LEVEL 9
LEVEL 10
Grand total

Area

Name

Level

Suit 5, level 5
2-12 Foveaux Surry Hills
NSW 2010 Sydney Australia

A

For

02 9503 0300
simon@windtechglobal.com

Waste Management Consultant

Elephants Foot
02 9780 3500
ashleigh.armstrong@elephantsfoot.com.au

Landscape Designer

Junglefly
1300 535 644
andrewb@junglefly.com.au

Drawing No.

8000

18024

TZ

09/11/18
Project No.

Drawn

Date Created

GFA Calculation

Drawing

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION

Status

A

Revision

TZ

Checked

208-218 RILEY ST, SURRY HILLS

Address

Cambridge Hotel

Project

1 : 250 @ A1

North

Windtech
gray@grchydro.com.au

Scale

Wind Engineer
0413 631 447

Veris
m.andrew@veris.com.au

Surveyor

JK Geotechnics

GRC Hydro

shensley@wtpartnership.com.au

Geotechnical Engineer

02 9212 4655

02 9929 7422
lsjogren@fjmtstudio.com

Flood Management

WT Partnership
02 9251 7077

pstubbs@jkgeotechnics.com.au

Quantity Surveyor

FJMT

02 9888 5000

02 95576421
jason.cameron@acousticstudio.com.au

Acoustic Studio

Aecom

Interior Designer

Acoustics

Vertical Transport Engineer
02 8934 0000

paul.yannoulatos@ttw.com.au

grahame@warrensmith.com.au
david@warrensmith.com.au

adam.magee@aecom.com

02 9439 7288

02 9299 1312

Warren Smith & Partner TTW

Traffic Engineer

Steensen Varming
02 9967 2200

Mechanical/ Electrical Engineer

Trevor R Howse

michael.fearnley@steensenvarming.com
george.mikolajczyk@steensenvarming.com

viktor.mateffy@mpn.com.au

BCA & Access Consultant

Hydraulic/ Fire Engineer

02 9929 7144
tblythe@urbis.com.au

0430 123 611

MPN Group
02 8233 9959

hayden@trevorhowse.com.au

Structural Engineer

Urbis

Development Application

Notes Regarding
“For Construction Documents”
Tzannes Associates (TZ) believes
that the information shown on this
drawing (when read with the
applicable specification) is
sufficient for a reasonably
competent and experienced builder
to understand the design intent;
understand the process of
construction required to achieve a
finished product conforming with
the design intent and understand
what building materials, techniques
and methods are required to
achieve that finished product

Urban Planner

Cienna Group

Client & Developer

Date
16.11.18

Rev

General Notes
Verify dimensions on site prior to
commencement of work. Check
existing RL’s on site. Advise
Architect of any discrepancies
before commencement. Allow for
adjustments to suit discrepancies.
Comply with relevant authorities
requirements. Comply with
Building Code of Australia
requirements. Comply with
relevant Australian Standards for
materials and construction
practice. Comply with Basix
Certificate. Do not scale from
drawings.

Copyright owned by Tzannes.
Rights to this document are subject
to payment in full of all Tzannes
fees. This document may only be
used for the express purpose for
which it has been created and any Nominated Architects
unauthorised use is at the user’s
Alec Tzannes 4174
sole risk and without limiting
Tzannes’ rights the user releases Jonathan Evans 6613
and indemnifies Tzannes from and Mladen Prnjatovic 7468
Ben Green 7066
against all loss so arising
Chi Melhem 7754

Copyright

W. tzannes.com.au
T. 61 2 9319 3744
E. tzannes@tzannes.com.au

4

1

1 : 400

VIEW FROM SUN 21JUN 0900

1 : 400

VIEW FROM SUN 21JUN 1030

103
5

2

1 : 400

VIEW FROM SUN 21JUN 1100

1 : 400

VIEW FROM SUN 21JUN 0930

6

3

1 : 400

LEGEND

Solar gains

Approved envelope
D/2016/1177/A

VIEW FROM SUN 21JUN 1130

1 : 400

VIEW FROM SUN 21JUN 1000

1.

Solar gains shown are from proposed building
compared to approved envelope D/2016/1177/A

NOTE

Suit 5, level 5
2-12 Foveaux Surry Hills
NSW 2010 Sydney Australia

A

For

Mechanical/ Electrical Engineer

Steensen Varming

Trevor R Howse

Traffic Engineer

WT Partnership
02 9929 7422
shensley@wtpartnership.com.au

Surveyor

Veris
02 9212 4655
m.andrew@veris.com.au

Wind Engineer

Windtech
02 9503 0300
simon@windtechglobal.com

Waste Management Consultant

Elephants Foot
02 9780 3500
ashleigh.armstrong@elephantsfoot.com.au

02 9251 7077
lsjogren@fjmtstudio.com

Geotechnical Engineer

JK Geotechnics
02 9888 5000
pstubbs@jkgeotechnics.com.au

Flood Management

GRC Hydro
0413 631 447
gray@grchydro.com.au

Landscape Designer

Junglefly
1300 535 644
andrewb@junglefly.com.au

TZ
Drawing No.

8100

Project No.

18024

A

Revision

Checked

CM

Drawn

Date Created

15/11/18

Shadow Diagrams - 21 June

Drawing

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION

Status

208-218 RILEY ST, SURRY HILLS

Address

Cambridge Hotel

Project

As indicated @ A1

North

Quantity Surveyor

FJMT

Scale

02 95576421
jason.cameron@acousticstudio.com.au

Acoustic Studio

Aecom

Interior Designer

Acoustics

Vertical Transport Engineer
02 8934 0000

paul.yannoulatos@ttw.com.au

grahame@warrensmith.com.au
david@warrensmith.com.au

adam.magee@aecom.com

02 9439 7288

02 9299 1312

Warren Smith & Partner TTW

Hydraulic/ Fire Engineer

02 9967 2200

viktor.mateffy@mpn.com.au

BCA & Access Consultant

michael.fearnley@steensenvarming.com
george.mikolajczyk@steensenvarming.com

02 9929 7144
tblythe@urbis.com.au

0430 123 611

MPN Group
02 8233 9959

hayden@trevorhowse.com.au

Structural Engineer

Urbis

Development Application

Notes Regarding
“For Construction Documents”
Tzannes Associates (TZ) believes
that the information shown on this
drawing (when read with the
applicable specification) is
sufficient for a reasonably
competent and experienced builder
to understand the design intent;
understand the process of
construction required to achieve a
finished product conforming with
the design intent and understand
what building materials, techniques
and methods are required to
achieve that finished product

Urban Planner

Cienna Group

Client & Developer

Date
16.11.18

Rev

General Notes
Verify dimensions on site prior to
commencement of work. Check
existing RL’s on site. Advise
Architect of any discrepancies
before commencement. Allow for
adjustments to suit discrepancies.
Comply with relevant authorities
requirements. Comply with
Building Code of Australia
requirements. Comply with
relevant Australian Standards for
materials and construction
practice. Comply with Basix
Certificate. Do not scale from
drawings.

Copyright owned by Tzannes.
Rights to this document are subject
to payment in full of all Tzannes
fees. This document may only be
used for the express purpose for
which it has been created and any Nominated Architects
unauthorised use is at the user’s
Alec Tzannes 4174
sole risk and without limiting
Tzannes’ rights the user releases Jonathan Evans 6613
and indemnifies Tzannes from and Mladen Prnjatovic 7468
Ben Green 7066
against all loss so arising
Chi Melhem 7754

Copyright

W. tzannes.com.au
T. 61 2 9319 3744
E. tzannes@tzannes.com.au

4

1

1 : 400

VIEW FROM SUN 21JUN 1200

1 : 400

VIEW FROM SUN 21JUN 1330

104
5

2

1 : 400

VIEW FROM SUN 21JUN 1400

1 : 400

VIEW FROM SUN 21JUN 1230

6

3

1 : 400

LEGEND

Solar gains

Approved envelope
D/2016/1177/A

VIEW FROM SUN 21JUN 1430

1 : 400

VIEW FROM SUN 21JUN 1300

Suit 5, level 5
2-12 Foveaux Surry Hills
NSW 2010 Sydney Australia

A

For

WT Partnership
02 9929 7422
shensley@wtpartnership.com.au

Surveyor

Veris
02 9212 4655
m.andrew@veris.com.au

Wind Engineer

Windtech
02 9503 0300
simon@windtechglobal.com

Waste Management Consultant

Elephants Foot
02 9780 3500
ashleigh.armstrong@elephantsfoot.com.au

02 9251 7077
lsjogren@fjmtstudio.com

Geotechnical Engineer

JK Geotechnics
02 9888 5000
pstubbs@jkgeotechnics.com.au

Flood Management

GRC Hydro
0413 631 447
gray@grchydro.com.au

Landscape Designer

Junglefly
1300 535 644
andrewb@junglefly.com.au

TZ
Drawing No.

8101

Project No.

18024

A

Revision

Checked

CM

Drawn

Date Created

15/11/18
1.

Solar gains shown are from proposed building
compared to approved envelope D/2016/1177/A

NOTE

Shadow Diagrams - 21 June

Drawing

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION

Status

208-218 RILEY ST, SURRY HILLS

Address

Cambridge Hotel

Project

As indicated @ A1

North

Quantity Surveyor

FJMT

Scale

02 95576421
jason.cameron@acousticstudio.com.au

Acoustic Studio

Aecom

Interior Designer

Acoustics

Vertical Transport Engineer
02 8934 0000

paul.yannoulatos@ttw.com.au

grahame@warrensmith.com.au
david@warrensmith.com.au

adam.magee@aecom.com

02 9439 7288

02 9299 1312

Warren Smith & Partner TTW

Traffic Engineer

Steensen Varming
02 9967 2200

Mechanical/ Electrical Engineer

Trevor R Howse

michael.fearnley@steensenvarming.com
george.mikolajczyk@steensenvarming.com

viktor.mateffy@mpn.com.au

BCA & Access Consultant

Hydraulic/ Fire Engineer

02 9929 7144
tblythe@urbis.com.au

0430 123 611

MPN Group
02 8233 9959

hayden@trevorhowse.com.au

Structural Engineer

Urbis

Development Application

Notes Regarding
“For Construction Documents”
Tzannes Associates (TZ) believes
that the information shown on this
drawing (when read with the
applicable specification) is
sufficient for a reasonably
competent and experienced builder
to understand the design intent;
understand the process of
construction required to achieve a
finished product conforming with
the design intent and understand
what building materials, techniques
and methods are required to
achieve that finished product

Urban Planner

Cienna Group

Client & Developer

Date
16.11.18

Rev

General Notes
Verify dimensions on site prior to
commencement of work. Check
existing RL’s on site. Advise
Architect of any discrepancies
before commencement. Allow for
adjustments to suit discrepancies.
Comply with relevant authorities
requirements. Comply with
Building Code of Australia
requirements. Comply with
relevant Australian Standards for
materials and construction
practice. Comply with Basix
Certificate. Do not scale from
drawings.

Copyright owned by Tzannes.
Rights to this document are subject
to payment in full of all Tzannes
fees. This document may only be
used for the express purpose for
which it has been created and any Nominated Architects
unauthorised use is at the user’s
Alec Tzannes 4174
sole risk and without limiting
Tzannes’ rights the user releases Jonathan Evans 6613
and indemnifies Tzannes from and Mladen Prnjatovic 7468
Ben Green 7066
against all loss so arising
Chi Melhem 7754

Copyright

W. tzannes.com.au
T. 61 2 9319 3744
E. tzannes@tzannes.com.au

1

1 : 400

VIEW FROM SUN 21JUN 1500

105
LEGEND

Solar gains

Approved envelope
D/2016/1177/A

Suit 5, level 5
2-12 Foveaux Surry Hills
NSW 2010 Sydney Australia

A

For

WT Partnership
02 9929 7422
shensley@wtpartnership.com.au

Surveyor

Veris
02 9212 4655
m.andrew@veris.com.au

Wind Engineer

Windtech
02 9503 0300
simon@windtechglobal.com

Waste Management Consultant

Elephants Foot
02 9780 3500
ashleigh.armstrong@elephantsfoot.com.au

02 9251 7077
lsjogren@fjmtstudio.com

Geotechnical Engineer

JK Geotechnics
02 9888 5000
pstubbs@jkgeotechnics.com.au

Flood Management

GRC Hydro
0413 631 447
gray@grchydro.com.au

Landscape Designer

Junglefly
1300 535 644
andrewb@junglefly.com.au

TZ
Drawing No.

8102

Project No.

18024

A

Revision

Checked

CM

Drawn

Date Created

15/11/18
1.

Solar gains shown are from proposed building
compared to approved envelope D/2016/1177/A

NOTE

Shadow Diagrams - 21 June

Drawing

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION

Status

208-218 RILEY ST, SURRY HILLS

Address

Cambridge Hotel

Project

As indicated @ A1

North

Quantity Surveyor

FJMT

Scale

02 95576421
jason.cameron@acousticstudio.com.au

Acoustic Studio

Aecom

Interior Designer

Acoustics

Vertical Transport Engineer
02 8934 0000

paul.yannoulatos@ttw.com.au

grahame@warrensmith.com.au
david@warrensmith.com.au

adam.magee@aecom.com

02 9439 7288

02 9299 1312

Warren Smith & Partner TTW

Traffic Engineer

Steensen Varming
02 9967 2200

Mechanical/ Electrical Engineer

Trevor R Howse

michael.fearnley@steensenvarming.com
george.mikolajczyk@steensenvarming.com

viktor.mateffy@mpn.com.au

BCA & Access Consultant

Hydraulic/ Fire Engineer

02 9929 7144
tblythe@urbis.com.au

0430 123 611

MPN Group
02 8233 9959

hayden@trevorhowse.com.au

Structural Engineer

Urbis

Development Application

Notes Regarding
“For Construction Documents”
Tzannes Associates (TZ) believes
that the information shown on this
drawing (when read with the
applicable specification) is
sufficient for a reasonably
competent and experienced builder
to understand the design intent;
understand the process of
construction required to achieve a
finished product conforming with
the design intent and understand
what building materials, techniques
and methods are required to
achieve that finished product

Urban Planner

Cienna Group

Client & Developer

Date
16.11.18

Rev

General Notes
Verify dimensions on site prior to
commencement of work. Check
existing RL’s on site. Advise
Architect of any discrepancies
before commencement. Allow for
adjustments to suit discrepancies.
Comply with relevant authorities
requirements. Comply with
Building Code of Australia
requirements. Comply with
relevant Australian Standards for
materials and construction
practice. Comply with Basix
Certificate. Do not scale from
drawings.

Copyright owned by Tzannes.
Rights to this document are subject
to payment in full of all Tzannes
fees. This document may only be
used for the express purpose for
which it has been created and any Nominated Architects
unauthorised use is at the user’s
Alec Tzannes 4174
sole risk and without limiting
Tzannes’ rights the user releases Jonathan Evans 6613
and indemnifies Tzannes from and Mladen Prnjatovic 7468
Ben Green 7066
against all loss so arising
Chi Melhem 7754

Copyright

W. tzannes.com.au
T. 61 2 9319 3744
E. tzannes@tzannes.com.au







9,(:)520681'(&



9,(:)520681'(&

106







9,(:)520681'(&



9,(:)520681'(&







9,(:)520681'(&



9,(:)520681'(&







9,(:)520681'(&



9,(:)520681'(&

6XLWOHYHO
)RYHDX[6XUU\+LOOV
16:6\GQH\$XVWUDOLD

$

)RU

PLFKDHOIHDUQOH\#VWHHQVHQYDUPLQJFRP
JHRUJHPLNRODMF]\N#VWHHQVHQYDUPLQJFRP

$FRXVWLFV

DVKOHLJKDUPVWURQJ#HOHSKDQWVIRRWFRPDX

DQGUHZE#MXQJOHIO\FRPDX

'UDZLQJ1R



3URMHFW1R



$

7=
5HYLVLRQ

7=



&KHFNHG

'UDZQ

'DWH&UHDWHG

9LHZIURP6XQ'HFHPEHU

'UDZLQJ

'(9(/230(17$33/,&$7,21

6WDWXV

5,/(<676855<+,//6

$GGUHVV

&DPEULGJH+RWHO

3URMHFW

#$

1RUWK



6FDOH

:DVWH0DQDJHPHQW&RQVXOWDQW

(OHSKDQWV)RRW


VLPRQ#ZLQGWHFKJOREDOFRP

-XQJOHIO\


JUD\#JUFK\GURFRPDX

/DQGVFDSH'HVLJQHU

:LQG(QJLQHHU

:LQGWHFK


PDQGUHZ#YHULVFRPDX

SVWXEEV#MNJHRWHFKQLFVFRPDX

*5&+\GUR



)ORRG0DQDJHPHQW

6XUYH\RU

9HULV

OVMRJUHQ#IMPWVWXGLRFRP



VKHQVOH\#ZWSDUWQHUVKLSFRPDX



-.*HRWHFKQLFV



)-07

*HRWHFKQLFDO(QJLQHHU

4XDQWLW\6XUYH\RU

:73DUWQHUVKLS

,QWHULRU'HVLJQHU



$FRXVWLF6WXGLR

$HFRP

MDVRQFDPHURQ#DFRXVWLFVWXGLRFRPDX

9HUWLFDO7UDQVSRUW(QJLQHHU

DGDPPDJHH#DHFRPFRP

SDXO\DQQRXODWRV#WWZFRPDX

JUDKDPH#ZDUUHQVPLWKFRPDX
GDYLG#ZDUUHQVPLWKFRPDX







:DUUHQ6PLWK 3DUWQHU 77:

7UDIILF(QJLQHHU


KD\GHQ#WUHYRUKRZVHFRPDX

+\GUDXOLF)LUH(QJLQHHU

0HFKDQLFDO(OHFWULFDO(QJLQHHU

6WHHQVHQ9DUPLQJ


YLNWRUPDWHII\#PSQFRPDX

WEO\WKH#XUELVFRPDX

7UHYRU5+RZVH





%&$ $FFHVV&RQVXOWDQW

6WUXFWXUDO(QJLQHHU

031*URXS

8UELV

'HYHORSPHQW$SSOLFDWLRQ

1RWHV5HJDUGLQJ
Ú)RU&RQVWUXFWLRQ'RFXPHQWVÛ
7]DQQHV$VVRFLDWHV 7= EHOLHYHV
WKDWWKHLQIRUPDWLRQVKRZQRQWKLV
GUDZLQJ ZKHQUHDGZLWKWKH
DSSOLFDEOHVSHFLILFDWLRQ LV
VXIILFLHQWIRUDUHDVRQDEO\
FRPSHWHQWDQGH[SHULHQFHGEXLOGHU
WRXQGHUVWDQGWKHGHVLJQLQWHQW
XQGHUVWDQGWKHSURFHVVRI
FRQVWUXFWLRQUHTXLUHGWRDFKLHYHD
ILQLVKHGSURGXFWFRQIRUPLQJZLWK
WKHGHVLJQLQWHQWDQGXQGHUVWDQG
ZKDWEXLOGLQJPDWHULDOVWHFKQLTXHV
DQGPHWKRGVDUHUHTXLUHGWR
DFKLHYHWKDWILQLVKHGSURGXFW

8UEDQ3ODQQHU

&LHQQD*URXS

&OLHQW 'HYHORSHU

'DWH



5HY

*HQHUDO1RWHV
9HULI\GLPHQVLRQVRQVLWHSULRUWR
FRPPHQFHPHQWRI ZRUN&KHFN
H[LVWLQJ5/ØVRQVLWH$GYLVH
$UFKLWHFWRIDQ\GLVFUHSDQFLHV
EHIRUHFRPPHQFHPHQW$OORZIRU
DGMXVWPHQWVWRVXLWGLVFUHSDQFLHV
&RPSO\ZLWKUHOHYDQWDXWKRULWLHV
UHTXLUHPHQWV&RPSO\ZLWK
%XLOGLQJ&RGHRI$XVWUDOLD
UHTXLUHPHQWV&RPSO\ZLWK
UHOHYDQW$XVWUDOLDQ6WDQGDUGVIRU
PDWHULDOVDQGFRQVWUXFWLRQ
SUDFWLFH&RPSO\ZLWK%DVL[
&HUWLILFDWH'RQRWVFDOHIURP
GUDZLQJV

&RS\ULJKWRZQHGE\7]DQQHV
5LJKWVWRWKLVGRFXPHQWDUHVXEMHFW
WRSD\PHQWLQIXOORIDOO7]DQQHV
IHHV7KLVGRFXPHQWPD\RQO\EH
XVHGIRUWKHH[SUHVVSXUSRVHIRU
ZKLFKLWKDVEHHQFUHDWHGDQGDQ\ 1RPLQDWHG$UFKLWHFWV
XQDXWKRULVHGXVHLVDWWKHXVHUØV
$OHF7]DQQHV
VROHULVNDQGZLWKRXWOLPLWLQJ
7]DQQHVØULJKWVWKHXVHUUHOHDVHV -RQDWKDQ(YDQV
DQGLQGHPQLILHV7]DQQHVIURPDQG 0ODGHQ3UQMDWRYLF
%HQ*UHHQ
DJDLQVWDOOORVVVRDULVLQJ
&KL0HOKHP

&RS\ULJKW

: W]DQQHVFRPDX
7 
( W]DQQHV#W]DQQHVFRPDX

Attachment C
Competitive Design Process Selection
Panel Recommendations

107

COMPETITIVE DESIGN
ALTERNATIVES PROCESS
REPORT
208-218 RILEY STREET,
SURRY HILLS

108

URBIS STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR THIS REPORT WERE:
Director

Tim Blythe

Senior Consultant

Kate Ryan

Assistant Planner

Shaun De Smeth

Project Code

SA6590

Report Number

208-218 Riley Street, Surry Hills, Competitive Design Alternatives Process Report

SELECTION PANEL MEMBER ENDORSEMENT
Name

Signature

Date

Ken Maher (Chair)

17/08/18

Rachel Neeson

Peter Hing

Maryam Gusheh

© Urbis Pty Ltd
ABN 50 105 256 228
All Rights Reserved. No material may be reproduced without prior permission.
You must read the important disclaimer appearing within the body of this report.
urbis.com.au

109

CONTENTS

TABLE OF CONTENTS
1.
Introduction ........................................................................................................................................... 2
1.1.
Overview ............................................................................................................................................... 2
1.2.
Site Description ..................................................................................................................................... 3
1.3.
The Proponent ...................................................................................................................................... 3
1.4.
The consent Authority ........................................................................................................................... 3
1.5.
Regulatory Framework.......................................................................................................................... 4
1.6.
Assessment of the Scheme and Winning Design ................................................................................. 4
2.
Architectural Design Competition Process ........................................................................................... 5
2.1.
Overview ............................................................................................................................................... 5
2.2.
Participating Architectural Firms ........................................................................................................... 6
2.3.
Technical Advisors ................................................................................................................................ 6
2.4.
Consent Authority Observers ................................................................................................................ 6
2.5.
Selection Panel ..................................................................................................................................... 7
2.6.
Key Dates of Architectural Design Competition .................................................................................... 7
3.
Assessment of Final Submissions ........................................................................................................ 8
3.1.
Overview ............................................................................................................................................... 8
3.2.
FJMT ..................................................................................................................................................... 9
3.3.
CO – AP Architecture.......................................................................................................................... 10
3.4.
Tzannes .............................................................................................................................................. 11
3.5.
Design refinements and second round assessments ......................................................................... 12
4.
Selection Panel recommendations ..................................................................................................... 13
5.
Conclusions ........................................................................................................................................ 14
Disclaimer ........................................................................................................................................................ 15
No table of contents entries found.
FIGURES:
Figure 1 – Lower Campbell Street perspective of FJMT scheme ...................................................................... 9
Figure 2 - Lower Campbell Street perspective of CO-AP scheme ...................................................................10
Figure 3 - Lower Campbell Street perspective of Tzannes scheme ................................................................11

TABLES:
Table 1 – Technical advisors .............................................................................................................................. 6

URBIS
208-218 RILEY STREET SURRY HILLS_DESIGN
COMPETITION REPORT_FINAL (003)

110

111

URBIS
208-218 RILEY STREET SURRY HILLS_DESIGN COMPETITION REPORT_FINAL (003)

112

ERROR! NO TEXT OF SPECIFIED STYLE IN DOCUMENT.

i

1.

INTRODUCTION

1.1.

OVERVIEW

The purpose of this Competitive Design Alternatives Process Report is to inform the City of Sydney Council
(City of Sydney) of the process and outcomes of the Competitive Design Alternatives Process for the
Cambridge Hotel located at 208-218 Riley Street, Surry Hills, and the selection of the winning architectural
design.
Cienna Group (the Proponent) invited three competitors to participate in the Competitive Design Alternatives
Process to prepare design proposals for the site. The three architectural firms that participated in the
Competitive Design Process were:
•

FJMT;

•

CO-AP Architects; and

•

Tzannes.

All three competitors participated in the Competitive Design Alternatives Process and produced a final
submission for consideration and assessment by the Selection Panel.
The Competitive Design Alternatives Process was undertaken in accordance with the Sydney Local
Environmental Plan 2012 (SLEP 2012), the Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 (SDCP 2012), and the
City of Sydney Competitive Design Policy 2012.
Clause 4.3 of the City of Sydney Competitive Design Policy 2012 sets out the requirements for a Competitive
Design Alternatives Report, as follows:
(1) When competitive design alternatives have been prepared and considered, the consent authority
requires the applicant to submit a Competitive Design Alternatives Report prior to the submission
of the relevant Stage 2 Development Application.
(2) The Competitive Design Alternatives Report shall:
(a) include each of the design alternatives considered;
(b) include an assessment of the design merits of each alternative;
(c) set out the rationale for the choice of preferred design and clearly demonstrate how this best
exhibits design excellence in accordance with the provisions of Clause 6.21(4) of the Sydney
Local Environmental Plan 2012 and the approved Design Excellence Strategy.
(d) include a copy of the brief issued to the architectural firms.
(3) The consent authority will advise the applicant whether it endorses the process and outcome and
whether it fulfils the requirements of the competitive design alternatives process in the form of
pre-development application advice.
(4) The consent authority may need to determine whether the resulting development application or
subsequent Section 96 modification is equivalent to, or through design development, an
improvement upon the design qualities of the endorsed outcome. If necessary, further
competitive processes may be required to satisfy the design excellence provisions.
This report has been prepared in accordance with this clause and outlines the Competitive Design
Alternatives Process, the Selection Panel’s assessment of each scheme, and demonstrates the Panel’s
rationale for selection of the winning scheme. Each Panel member has reviewed and endorsed the content
contained within this report.
The Competitive Design Alternatives Process was undertaken in accordance with the approved Design
Excellence Strategy (dated October 2017) for the site, and in accordance with the Competitive Design
Alternatives Brief prepared by Urbis and endorsed by the City of Sydney on 16 May 2018.

2 INTRODUCTION

URBIS
208-218 RILEY STREET SURRY HILLS_DESIGN COMPETITION REPORT_FINAL
(003)

113

1.2.

SITE DESCRIPTION

The site is known as 208-218 Riley Street, Surry Hills Riley Street, Surry Hills. The site is legally described
as Lot 212 in DP 809697. The location and extent of the Competitive Process site is limited to the eastern
portion of the site is identified as the ‘Competitive Process site’ in Figure 1 below. The ‘Competitive Process
Site’ is the location of the additional hotel tower.
Figure 1 - Entire Site and Competitive Process Site

Entire Site

1.3.

Competitive Process Site

THE PROPONENT

Cienna Group is the owner of the Site and the Proponent of this Competitive Process and has invited three
(3) architectural firms to prepare design proposals for the site.

1.4.

THE CONSENT AUTHORITY

The site is located within the City of Sydney Local Government Area. The Consent Authority for the approval
of the Detailed DA resulting from the Competitive Process will be the Council as the cost of the development
is less than $50 million.
The Competition Process Manager liaised with Council officers throughout the Competition. Council officers
observed the Competitive Process and the competitor’s final presentations to ensure the integrity of the
outcomes.

URBIS
208-218 RILEY STREET SURRY HILLS_DESIGN COMPETITION REPORT_FINAL (003)

114

INTRODUCTION

3

1.5.

REGULATORY FRAMEWORK

The key planning instrument that applies to the site is the Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 (SLEP
2012).
Clause 6.21(7) of the SLEP 2012 allows the Consent Authority to grant an amount up to an additional 10% of
floor space or height if it is satisfied that the development is the result of a Competitive Design Process and
that the building exhibits design excellence.
The Proponent is seeking to be granted up to 10% additional floor space in accordance with Clause
6.21(7)(b) of SLEP 2012 that is calculated in accordance with Section 3.3.5 of SDCP 2012.
Section 3.3.5 of SDCP 2012 requires that additional floor space available under the SLEP 2012 is
apportioned on the basis of the area of the part of the site that is the subject of a competitive process. The
maximum potential additional floor space apportioned to the competitive process site (identified in Figure 1
above) has been calculated in accordance with Section 3.3.5 of the SDCP 2012 and consent condition (6).
The potential additional floor space available is 4.92% which is equivalent to 429.12sqm.

1.6.

ASSESSMENT OF THE SCHEME AND WINNING DESIGN

An assessment of the designs was undertaken in accordance with the assessment criteria contained within
the Competitive Design Alternatives Brief. This included the design, planning and commercial objectives of
the Brief, compliance with the relevant planning controls (SEPPs, LEPs, DCPs) and the Concept DA
Approval (D/2016/1177).
The Competitive Design Process has resulted in a winning scheme that was determined by the Panel to
demonstrate high design quality. The panel resolved that the Tzannes scheme best demonstrated the ability
to achieve design excellence as per Clause 6.21 of the Sydney LEP 2012 and the Competitive Design
Alternatives Brief requirements. The Tzannes scheme was selected as the winning scheme of this
Competitive Design Alternatives Process. Detailed within Section 4 of this report are those features that the
Panel considers to be fundamental to the design integrity and those issues that need to be resolved in
design development.
Details of the competitor’s schemes and Selection Panel’s deliberations are discussed in the following
sections.

4 INTRODUCTION

URBIS
208-218 RILEY STREET SURRY HILLS_DESIGN COMPETITION REPORT_FINAL
(003)

115

2.

ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN COMPETITION PROCESS

2.1.

OVERVIEW

The Proponent invited three competitors to prepare submissions in response to a Design Brief as part of the
Competitive Design Alternatives Process. The Brief was prepared by Urbis and endorsed by the City of
Sydney Council. The process undertaken is described in more detail as follows:
•

Three architectural firms were invited to participate in the Competitive Design Alternatives Process, held
over a five week period.

•

A briefing session was held at the Cambridge Hotel on 18 May 2018 to provide an overview of the site,
outline the planning parameters and the Competition Brief, and provide an opportunity for the
competitors to ask questions and seek clarification regarding the Brief and the Competition procedures.
This was followed by a tour of the site.

•

The Selection Panel members were provided with a copy of the Brief on 18 May 2018. A separate
briefing session and site tour was held at the Cambridge Hotel for the Selection Panel on 26 June 2018.

•

An optional meeting with the Quantity Surveyor (QS) was made available to each competitor during the
Competition, and was attended by two out of the three competitors.

•

A Register of Enquiries was kept during the Competition to document questions and responses without
revealing the source of the question.

•

All competitors submitted an A3 Design Report (Final Submission), illustrating their proposed
architectural scheme for the site.

•

Each competitor presented their proposed architectural schemes to the Selection Panel during the Final
Presentation Date held on 29 June 2018. The Selection Panel deliberated on the Final Presentation
Date following the three architectural presentations. The Selection Panel could not arrive at a consensus
in the selection of a winner and concluded that design amendments should be requested of the top two
submissions to address the Panel’s design issues.

•

The architects of the two top submissions where invited in writing to make a further submission by 12pm
on 11 July 2018 addressing the Selection Panel’s comments by way of sketches and simple 3D material.

•

One of the two shortlisted competitors submitted the requested further design material by the due time
and date. The Selection Panel reconvened on 13 July 2018 to consider the two shortlisted submissions.
The Selection Panel reached a decision on 13 July 2018 and chose the winner of the Competitive
Design Alternatives Process.

The Competitive Design Alternatives Process was undertaken in an open and transparent manner in
consultation and disclosure with Council officers in attendance as observers. In accordance with the City’s
Competitive Design Policy 2012, the City was involved in the Competition Process Brief as follows:
•

Reviewed, provided comment and endorsed the Brief.

•

Provided clarification on planning compliance and Competitive Design Process procedures.

•

Council observers were copied into all correspondence between the competitors and the Competition
Process Manager regarding questions or requests for additional information.

•

Attended the Competitor Briefing Session and the Selection Panel Briefing Session, invited to attend the
optional meetings with the QS, attended the Final Presentation date and the two deliberation sessions.

URBIS
208-218 RILEY STREET SURRY HILLS_DESIGN COMPETITION REPORT_FINAL (003)

116

ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN COMPETITION PROCESS

5

2.2.

PARTICIPATING ARCHITECTURAL FIRMS

The three architectural firms that participated in the Competitive Design Process were:
•

FJMT

•

CO-AP Architects

•

Tzannes

All competitors participated in the Competitive Design Process.

2.3.

TECHNICAL ADVISORS

Technical advice was provided to competitors throughout the Competitive Process and an assessment of
schemes was undertaken on the final submissions. The technical advisors involved in the Competitive
Design Process were those outlined in Table 1 below.
Table 1 – Technical advisors

Consultant

Company

Contact Details

Town Planning

Urbis

Kate Ryan E: kvryan@urbis.com.au

Quantity Surveying

WT Partnership

Simon Hansley
E: shensley@wtpartnership.com.au

BCA

Trevor R Howse

Hayden Howes
E: hayden@trevorhowse.com.au

Electrical Services

Steensen Varming

Michael Fearnley
E: Michael.fearnley@steensenvarming.com.au

Hydraulic Services

Warren Smith and Partners

Warren Smith
E: wjs@warrensmith.com.au

Traffic

TTW

Paul Yannoulatous
E: Paul.Yannoulatos@ttw.com.au

2.4.

CONSENT AUTHORITY OBSERVERS

The Competition and assessment was overseen by several observers from the consent authority who
attended the Final Presentation dates and provided planning and procedural clarification to the Panel.
The following observers from the City of Sydney Council were present at various stages of the Competitive
Process:
•

Anita Morandini – Design Excellence Manager

•

Marie Ierufi – Design Excellence Coordinator

•

Ben Chamie – Design Excellence Coordinator

•

David Zabell – Specialist Planner

6 ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN COMPETITION PROCESS

URBIS
208-218 RILEY STREET SURRY HILLS_DESIGN COMPETITION REPORT_FINAL
(003)

117

2.5.

SELECTION PANEL

The Selection Panel appointed by the Proponent for the Competitive Design Alternatives Process included
the following:
•

Ken Maher – Fellow (HASSELL) and Selection Panel Chair

•

Rachel Neeson – Director (Neeson Murcutt Architects)

•

Peter Hing – Director (Cienna Group)

•

Maryam Gusheh – Senior Lecturer (UNSW)

Two Selection Panel members were nominated by the City of Sydney and two were nominated by the
Proponent. All members of the Selection Panel have experience in architectural and urban design, and
development.

2.6.

KEY DATES OF ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN COMPETITION

The key dates for the Competitive Design Alternatives Process were as follows:
Table 2 – Key Dates of Competitive Design Alternatives Process

Date

Milestone

16 May 2018

Commencement Date

18 May 2018

Competitor Briefing Session and Site Visit

21 June 2018

Final Submission Lodgement Date

26 June 2018

Presentation Material Lodgement Date

26 June 2018

Selection Panel Briefing Session and Site Visit

29 June 2018

Final Presentation Date and Deliberations

3 July 2018

Notification to Competitors on Additional Submission Invitation

11 July 2018

Additional Submission Lodgement

13 July 2018

Second Round Deliberations

13 July 2018

Decision Date

19 July 2018

Notification to Competitors

13 August 2018

Competitive Design Alternatives Report

URBIS
208-218 RILEY STREET SURRY HILLS_DESIGN COMPETITION REPORT_FINAL (003)

118

ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN COMPETITION PROCESS

7

3.

ASSESSMENT OF FINAL SUBMISSIONS

3.1.

OVERVIEW

Following the submission of the final competitive design schemes, a technical assessment and compliance
review of the competitor’s submissions was undertaken by the technical advisors. This review was provided
to the Selection Panel three days before the Final Presentation Date.
Each competitor presented their scheme to the Selection Panel explaining their approach to the site, design
concept, compliance with planning controls and the design, planning and commercial objectives of the Brief.
In accordance with the assessment criteria within the Brief, the design schemes presented by the three
competitors were analysed and assessed by the Panel with a focus on design quality, compliance and the
design and commercial objectives of the Brief.
While each proposal had minor compliance issues and/ or briefing requirements and technical issues, the advice
from the review indicated that these were likely to be capable of resolution with further refinement.
The panel deliberated following the presentations on the Final Presentation Date and ranked the
submissions according to the criteria contained in the brief. Following the Final Presentations, the Selection
Panel invited Tzannes and FJMT to provide further clarifications on their design proposals. There
Competitors were allowed 10 days to prepare additional information clarifying certain elements of their
submission.
The following section outlines each of the three design schemes in more detail.

8 ASSESSMENT OF FINAL SUBMISSIONS

URBIS
208-218 RILEY STREET SURRY HILLS_DESIGN COMPETITION REPORT_FINAL
(003)

119

3.2.

FJMT

This bold concept provides strong and simple tower forms to complement the scale of the existing hotel tower
while introducing greater vertical articulation. Horizontal landscape terraces transform the adjacent street and
engage the ground level of the existing hotel. The Riley Street shopfront is reinvented with a bold and
memorable identity.
The layered ‘topographic landscape strata’ to the lower levels, while through setbacks enhances amenity and
privacy, diminishes containment and interrupts the laneway urban morphology and passive surveillance that a
street edge offers.
The tower massing is more comfortable in its context, and stage 1 envelope breaches could be appropriate
subject to further analysis of detailed overshadowing impacts. Timber and copper cladding and screens stand in
contrast to the materials of the existing tower and contribute to a more monolithic scale.
The micro-hotel rooms are inventive, refined, and convincing, and the naturally lit and ventilated hotel hallways
that serve them are generous and spatially interesting.
Figure 1 – Lower Campbell Street perspective of FJMT scheme

Source: FJMT 2018

URBIS
208-218 RILEY STREET SURRY HILLS_DESIGN COMPETITION REPORT_FINAL (003)

120

ASSESSMENT OF FINAL SUBMISSIONS

9

3.3.

CO – AP ARCHITECTURE

The detailed analysis and sensitive response to the local Surry Hills context embodied in this proposal was
appreciated by the Panel. The perforated brick screen podium, evolving out of the analysis, was considered to
be an interesting means to enliven Lower Cambridge Street and protect neighbour amenity.
While this element has potential to define the identity of the hotel, the quality of natural light to hotel rooms set
behind the screen however, is compromised, and the lack of access to the intervening courtyard spaces a
challenge.
The design of the hotel above podium level would benefit from being more cohesive. Recognising the desire to
respond to disparate contexts and orientation, the diversity of materials and expression proposed for the south
north and east facades reduces the integrity of the architecture, and weakens the relationship with the existing
hotel.
While it is recognised the podium treatment to Riley Street is intended to unify the two parts of the hotel, it
introduces a third architectural language, and the more formal vertical “colonnaded” expression feels overscaled within the context.
The integration of landscape throughout the complex is sensitivity handled and commended, as is the design
and amenity provided within the hotel rooms.
Figure 2 - Lower Campbell Street perspective of CO-AP scheme

Source: Co-AP Architects 2018

10 ASSESSMENT OF FINAL SUBMISSIONS

URBIS
208-218 RILEY STREET SURRY HILLS_DESIGN COMPETITION REPORT_FINAL
(003)

121

3.4.

TZANNES

Careful and precise urban analysis convincingly and directly informed the design strategy, allowing this
accomplished design proposal to fit seamlessly into its context and complement the existing hotel tower.
The refined massing of the main body of the hotel equally complements the dominant fine grain of the adjoining
built form, while mediating between this and the tower forms. The new hotel, while sensitive to the architecture
of its existing neighbour, with its refined palette of brickwork, concrete and steel, offers its own distinctive
identity.
The introduction of a street front podium to Riley Street with rooftop vegetation is appropriate although tentative.
The ‘quiet’ engagement with Lower Cambridge Street, through a window to the restaurant, and shaft drawing
light into the subterranean pool is commendable.
The hotel rooms are inviting, although further consideration is needed for privacy to residences to the east. Hotel
hallways are, by comparison, spatially less successful and would benefit from natural light and ventilation.
Interiors within the ground and basement levels are elegant in design and use of materials, and here
architecture driven by sectional considerations and skylights, with the qualities of light this brings to the public
and shared guest spaces is skilfully handled. This makes spaces that can be truly memorable and that define
the experience of the hotel.
Figure 3 - Lower Campbell Street perspective of Tzannes scheme

Source: Tzannes 2018

URBIS
208-218 RILEY STREET SURRY HILLS_DESIGN COMPETITION REPORT_FINAL (003)

122

ASSESSMENT OF FINAL SUBMISSIONS

11

3.5.

DESIGN REFINEMENTS AND SECOND ROUND ASSESSMENTS

The Selection Panel decided to invite further resolution of the proposals from both Tzannes and FJMT. Both
competitors were given 10 days to consider and address the following comments in the form of supplementary
sketches and basic 3D modelling.

FJMT
•

The Selection Panel supports the design strategy and particularly the concept for micro hotel rooms and
the distinctive identity to Riley street entry and shopfront.

•

The Selection Panel has concerns regarding the scale of the building in response to the Surry Hills
context, particularly at podium levels.

•

While recognising the intent to recall the previous landscape condition of the site, the Selection Panel
does not support the erosion of the street frontage to Lower Campbell Street, nor the strongly horizontal
terracing within the podium component.

•

Pool and Gym facilities are for Hotel Guests only as noted in the brief.

•

There should be no breach of the envelope unless it is conclusively demonstrated there is no additional
overshadowing impact on adjacent properties.

Tzannes
•

The Selection Panel is seeking evidence the design of the upper floors can accommodate a majority of
the minimum sized room as noted in the brief, which could result in some 120 rooms (with some able to
be interconnected for flexibility).

•

The Selection Panel was concerned the podium level and street front to Riley Street was not sufficiently
resolved and seeks design refinement of this component.

•

The option of a single reception for all accommodation should be explored – this will allow the existing
hotel ground floor to be upgraded as proposed in the brief and the restaurant to have a Riley Street
address.

•

Pool and Gym facilities are for Hotel Guests only as noted in the brief.

•

Travel distances from guest rooms to fire escapes are to comply with BCA 2016.

•

The Selection Panel considered the privacy issues for the rooms facing east required further resolution,
and while supporting natural ventilation to rooms and corridors, notes these need adequate acoustic and
visual measures.

•

The Selection Panel wishes to emphasise the requirement under section 4.2 of the brief that “The
design should give the hotel a unique identity and branding within its urban context.”

Panel Second Round Assessment
The Panel met on 13 July 2018. Following the second round assessment, the Selection Panel selected
Tzannes as the Competitive Process winner, subject to the recommendations made by the Panel in Section
4 below.

12 ASSESSMENT OF FINAL SUBMISSIONS

URBIS
208-218 RILEY STREET SURRY HILLS_DESIGN COMPETITION REPORT_FINAL
(003)

123

4.

SELECTION PANEL RECOMMENDATIONS

The selection panel commended Tzannes on the positive response to questions raised following the first
submission, and considered the design issues had been satisfactorily addressed subject to the further resolution
of some of the internal planning during the preparation of the detailed DA.
The panel recommends that Tzannes as the winner of the Competitive Design Process, and is of the opinion
that the proposal has the potential to achieve design excellence subject to the resolution of the following:
•

Satisfactory replanning of the escape paths at ground level from the fire stairs.

•

Further refinement of the planning of the upper level hotel rooms including re-orientating rooms in the
south east corner of the tower to face south. This will allow the extension of the east-west corridor to
admit daylight and natural ventilation to the corridor from the east, and improve privacy to the existing
residential properties to the east.

•

Reversion to the previous planning for the podium levels of residential to eliminate the ‘snorkel’ rooms
proposed in the second stage submission.

•

The refinement of the street front treatment to the Riley Street corner as illustrated on the plans is
supported, however replanning is required of the ground floor to locate the main entry and combined
reception in the new extension, and the conversion of the existing lobby to the restaurant.

•

Resolution of the loading dock to comply with Council standards.

•

Maintaining and refining proposals for daylight into the basement levels through the elegant sectional
qualities of the design.

•

In response to section 4.2 of the brief noting “The design should give the hotel a unique identity and
branding within its urban context” adopting the proposal for polished brickwork integrated with
enhancement of elevated “green roof” elements and hanging gardens to the podium, is important to
achieving design excellence.

.

URBIS
208-218 RILEY STREET SURRY HILLS_DESIGN COMPETITION REPORT_FINAL (003)

124

SELECTION PANEL RECOMMENDATIONS

13

5.

CONCLUSIONS

This report provides a summary of the outcomes of the Competitive Design Alternatives Process for the
redevelopment of 208-218 Riley Street, Surry Hills.
The Competitive Design Alternatives Process was undertaken in accordance with the approved Design
Excellence Strategy (dated October 2017) for the site, and in accordance with the Competitive Design
Alternatives Brief prepared by Urbis and endorsed by the City of Sydney on 16 May 2018.
This Report outlines the Competitive Design Process and summaries the Selection Panel’s comments and
recommendations for the preferred scheme, as follows:
•

A Competitive Design Alternatives Process was undertaken for the establishment of an additional hotel
tower on the Cambridge Hotel site at 2018-218 Riley Street, Surry Hills. The relevant provisions of the
Concept DA consent (D/2016/1177), Sydney LEP 2012, Sydney DCP 2012 and the City of Sydney
Competitive Design Policy 2012 have been considered throughout this Competition.

•

The Competition was undertaken in accordance with Clause 6.21 of the Sydney LEP 2012. The
submission of this report to Council also satisfies the reporting requirements of Clause 4.5 of the City of
Sydney Competitive Design Policy 2012.

•

The Tzannes scheme was recommended by the Selection Panel as the winning scheme of this
Competitive Design Process. This scheme is to progress to the preparation of a detailed DA for
lodgement to the City of Sydney. The Selection Panel considered this scheme to best meet the
objectives of the Brief. It also achieved the highest result in terms of the relevant assessment criteria.
The Selection Panel’s final decision was unanimous in this regard.

•

Subject to further refinement as outlined in Section 4, the winning scheme by Tzannes fulfils the design,
commercial and planning objectives of the Brief, and is considered capable of achieving design
excellence.

The Selection Panel confirms that this report is an accurate record of the Competitive Design Process and
endorses the assessment and recommendations.

14 CONCLUSIONS

URBIS
208-218 RILEY STREET SURRY HILLS_DESIGN COMPETITION REPORT_FINAL
(003)

125

DISCLAIMER
This report is dated 10 August 2018 and incorporates information and events up to that date only and excludes
any information arising, or event occurring, after that date which may affect the validity of Urbis Pty Ltd’s
(Urbis) opinion in this report. Urbis prepared this report on the instructions, and for the benefit only, of Cienna
Group (Instructing Party) for the purpose of Competition Report (Purpose) and not for any other purpose or
use. To the extent permitted by applicable law, Urbis expressly disclaims all liability, whether direct or indirect,
to the Instructing Party which relies or purports to rely on this report for any purpose other than the Purpose,
and to any other person which relies or purports to rely on this report for any purpose whatsoever (including
the Purpose).
In preparing this report, Urbis was required to make judgements which may be affected by unforeseen future
events, the likelihood and effects of which are not capable of precise assessment.
All surveys, forecasts, projections and recommendations contained in or associated with this report are made
in good faith and on the basis of information supplied to Urbis at the date of this report, and upon which Urbis
relied. Achievement of the projections and budgets set out in this report will depend, among other things, on
the actions of others over which Urbis has no control.
In preparing this report, Urbis may rely on or refer to documents in a language other than English, which Urbis
may arrange to be translated. Urbis is not responsible for the accuracy or completeness of such translations
and disclaims any liability for any statement or opinion made in this report being inaccurate or incomplete
arising from such translations.
Whilst Urbis has made all reasonable inquiries it believes necessary in preparing this report, it is not
responsible for determining the completeness or accuracy of information provided to it. Urbis (including its
officers and personnel) is not liable for any errors or omissions, including in information provided by the
Instructing Party or another person or upon which Urbis relies, provided that such errors or omissions are not
made by Urbis recklessly or in bad faith.
This report has been prepared with due care and diligence by Urbis and the statements and opinions given by
Urbis in this report are given in good faith and in the reasonable belief that they are correct and not misleading,
subject to the limitations above.

URBIS
208-218 RILEY STREET SURRY HILLS_DESIGN COMPETITION REPORT_FINAL (003)

126

APPENDICES

APPENDICES

127

URBIS
208-218 RILEY STREET SURRY HILLS_DESIGN COMPETITION REPORT_FINAL
(003)

128

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Item 5.
Development Application: 208-218 Riley Street, Surry Hills
File No.:

D/2018/1305

Summary
Date of Submission:

30 October 2018

Applicant/Developer/Owner:

Cienna Group

Architect:

Tzannes

Cost of Works:

$4,125,000

Zoning:

B4 - Mixed Use. The proposed hotel is permissible with
consent.

Proposal Summary:

This application seeks approval for partial demolition,
excavation and early works at the rear of the Cambridge
Hotel on Lower Campbell Street. The development will
facilitate the construction of the new hotel building (refer
below). The excavation will allow for increasing the existing
five level basement which is currently confined in area
under the Cambridge tower on the site.
The application is presented to the Local Planning Panel
concurrently with a detailed design development
application D/2018/1451 for the construction of an 11
storey hotel with five levels of basement accommodating
parking and back of house facilities. The applications are
consistent with concept approval D/2016/1177 granted on
11 December 2017 and amended on 17 June 2019.
The application is accompanied by plans and
documentation regarding the extent of demolition,
excavation and early works proposed, as well as plans to
manage associated noise, vibration and traffic.
The applications are consistent with Clause 7.19 of the
Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 in that demolition
will not result in long term adverse visual impacts.

1

Local Planning Panel

Proposal Summary
(continued):

17 July 2019

The application was notified and advertised for a period of
14 days between 7 December 2018 and 12 January 2019
(the period was extended over the Christmas/New Year
holidays). 277 properties were notified and there were 31
objections (25 unique) and 22 submissions in support (13
unique) received. Generally the objections raised the
following concerns:


construction noise, vibration, dust and traffic impacts
on neighbour's amenity;



dilapidation impacts from excavation;



financial impacts on neighbours;



the development will result in long term adverse
visual impacts; and



the concerns are discussed and resolved within the
report.

Subject to conditions, and the approval of D/2018/1451,
the application is recommended for approval.
On Summary
Recommendation:

The development application is recommended for
approval, subject to conditions.

Development Controls:

(i)

State Environmental Planning Policy 55 Remediation of Land

(ii)

Sydney Regional Environmental Plan (Sydney
Harbour Catchment) 2005 (Deemed SEPP)

(iii)

Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012

(iv)

Sydney Development Control Plan 2012

A.

Recommended Conditions of Consent

B.

Selected Drawings

Attachments:

2

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Recommendation
It is resolved that consent be granted to Development Application No. D/2018/1305 subject
to the conditions set out in Attachment A to the subject report.
Reasons for Recommendation
The application is recommended for approval for the following reasons:
(A)

Subject to the approval of D/2018/1451, demolition, excavation and early works will
not result in long term adverse visual impacts on the streetscape and therefore satisfy
Clause 7.19 of the Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012.

(B)

The development is consistent with relevant planning policies and in the public
interest.

3

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Background
The Site and Surrounding Development
1.

The application site has an area of 1,087sqm with a primary frontage to Riley Street
(west) and secondary frontages to Lower Campbell Street (north and east). A part four,
part 14 storey hotel with five levels of basement parking known as the Cambridge
Hotel occupies the site. The hotel contains 137 guest rooms, a restaurant, pool,
conference rooms and loading dock.

2.

Adjoining the application site to the south is No. 220-222 Riley Street, a 10 storey
building with ground floor cafe and 12 serviced apartments above. The serviced
apartments are operated by the applicant, Nuova Surry Hills. Adjoining the serviced
apartments to the south at No. 224 Riley Street is a building with shop-top housing.

3.

To the north of the site and opposite on Lower Campbell Street is a part three, part 16
storey residential flat building at No. 251-263 Goulburn Street (known as The Darling).
The building contains apartments with balconies overlooking the subject site. A semidetached pair of dwellings is situated on Little Campbell Street to the east of the
apartment building at nos. 58-60 Lower Campbell Street.

4.

A five storey residential flat building with basement level parking is located to the east
of the site on Lower Campbell Street, at No. 265-271 Crown Street. The apartments
have balconies overlooking the application site. Adjoining this building to the south is a
three storey rear wing extension to a commercial terrace. The terrace is occupied by a
commercial premise known as Headquarters. The rear of the building accommodates
a loading dock and the windows are internally screened.

5.

A three storey mixed use building with basement car parking occupies the lot to the
southeast of the application site, known as No. 277-285 Crown Street. The site
contains commercial uses at ground floor level fronting Crown Street and residential
apartments throughout the remainder of the building. A communal pool is located on
the roof.

6.

The following properties adjoin the southern boundary of the four storey component of
the site - a two storey mixed use building with first floor residential is located at No.
166-168 Campbell Street; a pair of two storey sandstone terrace dwellings are located
at Nos. 170-172 Campbell Street; and a three storey commercial building is located at
174-176 Campbell Street with a secondary frontage to Little Campbell Street.

7.

To the west of the site is the Surry Hills Police Station, a prominent pre-cast concrete
building.

8.

The surrounding area is characterised by a mix of commercial and residential
development. The site is not a heritage item and is not located within a heritage
conservation area. The site is located within proximity to the former Crown Street
reservoir to the south on Campbell Street (No. 285A Crown Street item 1490); the
Oxford Street conservation area to the east of the site (C17) and the Reservoir Street
and Fosterville conservation area (C66) to the south.

9.

Photos of the site and surrounds are provided below:

4

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 1: Aerial image of subject site and surrounding area

Figure 2: Aerial view of the subject site and surrounding area with the area of the proposed new
tower outlined in blue

5

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 3: The four storey building on Lower Campbell Street to be demolished and replaced by the
proposed tower. The existing driveway will be retained.

Proposal
10.

The application seeks approval for demolition of the four storey portion of the building
fronting Lower Campbell Street, basement excavation and early works.

11.

The existing basement has five levels, with the first level covering the extent of the
site. The remaining four levels are primarily located under the existing tower. The
proposed excavation works will extend the existing five level basement to the extent of
the site.

12.

Plans of the proposed development are provided below.

6

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 4: The areas of the subject to demolition are outlined in blue, whereas demolition within the
area outlined in red is covered by the detailed design application D/2018/1451

Figure 5: A north-south section plan, illustrating the area of the building to be demolished (in blue)
and the extent of excavation below

7

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 6: An east-west section plan, illustrating the area of the building to be demolished (in blue)
and the extent of excavation below

History Relevant to the Development Application
13.

The proposed extent of excavation is consistent with concept approval D/2016/1177.

14.

A detailed discussion regarding the history of the site is provided within the
assessment report for the detailed design development application D/2018/1451.

Economic/Social/Environmental Impacts
15.

The application has been assessed under Section 4.15 of the Environmental Planning
and Assessment Act 1979, including consideration of the following matters:
(a)

Environmental Planning Instruments and DCPs.

State Environmental Planning Policy No 55 - Remediation of Land
16.

The aim of SEPP 55 is to ensure that a change of land use will not increase the risk to
health, particularly in circumstances where a more sensitive land use is proposed.

17.

An archival search of the site’s history does not reveal a risk of contamination as the
site has been used for a hotel since c.1979 and for residential premises prior to that.
There is therefore no requirement for a preliminary site investigation in accordance
with Clause 7.

18.

Council’s Environmental Health officer has raised no objections to the proposal with
regard to the SEPP. As such the site is considered to be suitable for the proposed
development and satisfies the provisions of the SEPP.

8

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Sydney Regional Environmental Plan (Sydney Harbour Catchment) 2005 (Deemed
SEPP)
19.

The site is located within the designated hydrological catchment of Sydney Harbour
and is subject to the provisions of the above SREP.

20.

The Sydney Harbour Catchment Planning Principles must be considered in the
carrying out of development within the catchment. The key relevant principles include:

21.

(a)

protect and improve hydrological, ecological and geomorphologic processes;

(b)

consider cumulative impacts of development within the catchment;

(c)

improve water quality of urban runoff and reduce quantity and frequency of urban
run-off; and

(d)

protect and rehabilitate riparian corridors and remnant vegetation.

The site is within the Sydney Harbour Catchment and eventually drains into the
Harbour. However, the site is not located in the Foreshores Waterways Area or
adjacent to a waterway and therefore, with the exception of the objective of improved
water quality, the objectives of the SREP are not applicable to the proposed
development. The development is consistent with the controls contained with the
deemed SEPP.

Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012
22.

The site is located within the B4 - Mixed Use zone. The proposed hotel use is
permissible in the zone with consent.

23.

The relevant matters to be considered under Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012
for the proposed development are outlined below.

Clause 7.15 - Flood planning
24.

A flood certificate was submitted during the assessment of D/2018/1451 demonstrating
that the part of the site subject to excavation is below the 1% Annual Exceedance
Probability by between 0.01 metres and 0.06 metres. A condition of consent is
recommended requiring details of flood mitigation during excavation and early works
construction in accordance with the City's Interim Floodplain Management Policy.

25.

Amended plans were received regarding D/2018/1451 demonstrating that the detailed
design complies with the City's Interim Floodplain Management Policy.

Clause 7.19 - Demolition must not result in long term adverse visual impact
26.

27.

An application for demolition will not be granted consent unless there is either
(a)

a site specific development control plan listed under Part 6, Division 5 of the
Sydney LEP 2012 for the site, or

(b)

the site will be comprehensively redeveloped under the application or an existing
consent

Adequate measures to assist in mitigating any adverse visual impacts that may arise
as a result of the demolition with regard to the streetscape and any special character
area are also to be considered.

9

Local Planning Panel

28.

17 July 2019

A detailed design development application D/2018/1451 is submitted to the Local
Planning Panel concurrently and is recommended for approval. Conditions of consent
regarding hoardings during demolition and excavation are proposed to protect the
visual amenity of the streetscape. As such the development satisfies the provisions of
the clause.

Clause 7.20 - Development requiring or authorising preparation of a development control
plan
29.

Concept approval D/2016/1177 was granted in lieu of a site specific development
control plan pursuant to Section 4.23 of the EP&A Act. The proposed early works are
consistent with the concept approval.

Sydney Development Control Plan 2012
30.

The relevant matters to be considered under Sydney Development Control Plan 2012
for the proposed development are outlined below.

2.11.3 Surry Hills North Locality
The subject site is located in the Surry Hills North locality. The proposed early works
facilitate the construction of a hotel which is consistent with the locality.

3. General Provisions

Compliance

Comment

3.1 Public Domain Elements

Yes

A public domain plan is recommended
under the detailed design application.

3.2 Defining the Public Domain

Yes

3.3 Design Excellence and
Competitive Design Processes

Yes

The development is consistent with the
winning scheme of the competitive
design process.

3.14 Waste

No

A waste management plan for
demolition and construction has not
been submitted.
A condition of consent is recommended
requiring a demolition and construction
waste management plan in accordance
with the City of Sydney Guidelines for
Waste Management in New
Developments prior to the
commencement of works.

10

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Construction Impacts
31.

The Geotechnical report accompanying the application states that the subject site is
located on sandy fill over residual silty clay with siltstone and sandstone bedrock.
Demolition and excavation will be require hydraulic rock hammering, ripping hooks,
rotary grinders and rock saws to break up rock and floor slabs. The excavation will
extend the existing four basement levels currently located under the tower to the
extent of the site.

32.

A demolition and excavation noise and vibration management plan prepared by
Acoustic Group accompanies the application and has been drafted in accordance with
Council's standard condition for such plans. The plan has been reviewed by Council's
Environmental Health officer and identifies the use of high powered machinery during
Council's standard construction hours.

33.

It is noted that Council's standard hours differ to those recommended under the NSW
Interim Construction Noise Guideline as shown below:
ICNG

Council

Monday to Friday

7am - 6pm

7.30am - 5.30pm

Saturday

8am - 1pm

7.30am - 3.30pm

Sunday

No work

Total/week

60 hours

58 hours

34.

Council's standard construction hours have been applied consistently across the City
(outside of Central Sydney) and are appropriate in this instance. It is noted that the
City's controls provide two fewer hours of construction during the week.

35.

Furthermore, the use of heavy machinery is recommended to be restricted to between
8am and 3pm Monday to Saturday (within Council's standard hours of construction),
with a one hour respite period from 11am to midday.

36.

Council's Traffic Operations Unit reviewed the Construction Traffic Management Plan
accompanying the application and raised concerns with medium rigid vehicles
obstructing access on Lower Campbell Street. A revised CTMP was submitted during
the assessment of the application which proposes work zones on Riley Street and a
loading platform on the site so as to not obstruct traffic on Lower Campbell Street. A
condition of consent is recommended requiring the CTMP to be resubmitted prior to
the issue of any Construction Certificate once construction traffic management is
confirmed.

37.

A condition of consent is recommended requiring a permit for any crane to be used,
which will be assessed by Council's Construction Regulation Unit to ensure the
protection of the surrounding area.

11

Local Planning Panel

38.

17 July 2019

It is acknowledged that the works associated with the development will impact on
residential amenity, however the recommended conditions ensure that the impacts are
reasonable with regard to the scale of development. Reducing the hours in which
construction is undertaken will lengthen the overall time it will take for the development
to be completed. As such, Council's standard construction hours are recommended,
with respite periods from the use of heavy machinery.

Other Impacts of the Development
39.

The proposed development is capable of complying with the NCC.

40.

The proposal will have no significant detrimental effect relating to environmental, social
or economic impacts on the locality, subject to appropriate conditions being imposed.

Suitability of the site for the Development
41.

The proposal is of a nature in keeping with the overall function of the site. The
premises are in a commercial/residential surrounding and amongst similar uses to that
proposed.

Internal Referrals
42.

The conditions of other sections of Council have been included in the proposed
conditions.

External Referrals
Notification, Advertising and Delegation
43.

In accordance with Schedule 1 the Sydney DCP 2012, the proposed development is
required to be notified and advertised. As such the application was notified and
advertised for a period of 14 days between 7 December 2018 and 12 January 2019
(the period was extended over the Christmas/New Year holidays). As a result of this
notification a total of 277 properties were notified and there were 31 objections (25
unique) and 22 submissions in support (13 unique) received.

44.

Many objections received raised concerns to both the early works and detailed design
development applications. Only those objections relevant to the early works
development application are discussed below.
(a)

The proposed works with regard to construction hours, dust and noise will
adversely impact the amenity of neighbouring properties.
Response - The development is required to comply with Council's standard
hours of construction, which are consistent across the city with the exception of
Central Sydney. As discussed above, Council's Environmental Health Officer has
reviewed the demolition and excavation noise and vibration management plan
and recommended respite periods from the use of heavy machinery during the
day.
The development will be required to comply with construction standards for
managing dust.

12

Local Planning Panel

(b)

17 July 2019

What monitoring procedures will be in place to ensure compliance with stated
mitigation measures during construction?
Response - The demolition and excavation noise and vibration management
plan states that ongoing noise and vibration monitoring will be undertaken during
works. Council officers will be able to request proof of this ongoing monitoring
and results and review the impact of development on neighbours.

(c)

The proposed works must not adversely obstruct vehicular and bicycle access
on Lower Campbell surrounding streets.
Response - The Construction Traffic Management Plan submitted with the
application has been reviewed by Council's Traffic Operations Unit. A revised
CTMP is required to be submitted, prohibiting vehicles from parking and
obstructing traffic on Lower Campbell Street. The majority of deliveries are to be
undertaken from Riley Street. While the development is likely to result in some
impacts to the surrounding area, the revised CTMP subject to conditions will be
reasonable and consistent with Council's policy.

(d)

The demolition and excavation noise and vibration management plan incorrectly
states that residences at 277-285 Crown Street are 10 metres from the site,
when they are actually 7.7 metres away.
Response - The difference of 2.3 metres is not anticipated to adversely affect
the results of the acoustic monitoring. As previously discussed, Council's
Environmental Health officer has reviewed the demolition and excavation noise
and vibration management plan and is satisfied that residential amenity will be
reasonably maintained.

(e)

If approved, a condition of consent should be imposed requiring a dilapidation
report for neighbouring properties.
Response - A condition of consent is recommended accordingly.

(f)

Concern is raised that the applicant has underquoted the cost of development to
avoid the application/s being presented to the Central Sydney Planning
Committee.
Response - The QS report for the detailed design was peer reviewed and found
to be accurate.

(g)

The development will result in financial hardship for adjoining properties.
Response - This is not a matter for consideration under Section 4.15(1) of the
Act.

(h)

Concern is raised regarding the swing of the crane over neighbouring properties.
Response - Council's Construction Regulation team have reviewed the
application and advised that a Luffing crane, rather than a Hammerhead crane,
can be used to avoid swinging over neighbouring buildings. This will be
investigated further when the applicant seeks a crane permit.

(i)

The application is inconsistent with Clause 7.19 of the Sydney LEP 2012, in that
demolition will result in long term impact.

13

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Response - Accompanying this application is a detailed design proposal for
construction of a hotel. If approved together, the applications satisfy the
provisions of the clause.
(j)

The developer should be required to pay for the cleaning of dust incurred by
neighbouring properties.
Response - The applicant will be required to comply with standards to mitigate
dust during construction. However, it is reasonable to anticipate that some dust
may reach neighbouring properties when living beside a construction site.

(k)

Insufficient time was provided for neighbours to review the documentation over
the holiday period and make submissions.
Response - In accordance with Schedule 1 of the Sydney DCP 2012, the
exhibition period was extended to provide adjoining property owners and
occupiers the opportunity to review the application. All submissions received up
to the date this report was written were considered as part of the assessment.

45.

The submissions in support raised the following reasons which are noted:
(a)

The development will contribute to the vitality of Surry Hills' economy and
atmosphere.

(b)

The development will provide passive surveillance and activity in the immediate
vicinity.

(c)

The development is consistent with the concept approval.

Public Interest
46.

The proposal will have no detrimental effect on the public interest, subject to
appropriate conditions being proposed.

Relevant Legislation
47.

The Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

Conclusion
48.

This application seeks approval for partial demolition, excavation and early works at
the rear of the Cambridge Hotel on Lower Campbell Street. The development will
increase the existing five level basement which is currently confined to the area under
the existing tower.

49.

The application is presented to the Local Planning Panel concurrent to a detailed
design development application D/2018/1451 for the construction of an 11 storey hotel
with five level basement parking and facilities. The applications are consistent with
concept approval D/2016/1177 granted on 11 December 2017.

14

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

50.

The application is accompanied by plans and documentation regarding the extent of
demolition, excavation and early works proposed, as well as plans to manage
associated noise, vibration and traffic.

51.

The applications are consistent with Clause 7.19 of the Sydney Local Environmental
Plan 2012 in that demolition will not result in long term adverse visual impacts.

52.

The application was notified and advertised in accordance with Schedule 1 of the
Sydney DCP 2012. 31 objections (25 unique) and 22 submissions in support (13
unique) received. The concerns raised are discussed and resolved within the report.

53.

Subject to conditions and the approval of D/2018/1451, the application is
recommended for approval.

GRAHAM JAHN, AM
Director City Planning, Development and Transport
David Zabell, Senior Planner

15

Attachment A
Recommended Conditions of Consent

16

CONDITIONS OF CONSENT
SCHEDULE 1
APPROVED DEVELOPMENT/DESIGN MODIFICATIONS/COVENANTS AND
CONTRIBUTIONS/USE AND OPERATION
(1)

APPROVED DEVELOPMENT
(a)

Development must be in accordance with Development Application No.
D/2018/1305 dated 30 October 2018 and the following drawings
prepared by Tzannes:
Drawing Number

Plan Name

Date

500

Demolition &
Excavation Plan –
Basement 5

25 October
2018

501

Demolition &
Excavation Plan –
Basement 4

25 October
2018

502

Demolition &
Excavation Plan –
Basement 3

25 October
2018

503

Demolition &
Excavation Plan –
Basement 2

25 October
2018

504

Demolition &
Excavation Plan –
Basement 1

25 October
2018

505

Demolition &
Excavation Plan –
Lower Ground

25 October
2018

506

Demolition &
Excavation Plan –
Ground Floor

25 October
2018

507

Demolition &
Excavation Plan –
Level 1

25 October
2018

17

Drawing Number

Plan Name

Date

508

Demolition &
Excavation Plan –
Level 2-3

22 October
2018

509

Demolition &
Excavation Section

26 October
2018

and as amended by the conditions of this consent.
(b)

(2)

(3)

In the event of any inconsistency between the approved plans and
supplementary documentation, the drawings will prevail.

ALIGNMENT LEVELS - PUBLIC DOMAIN
(a)

Proposed building floor levels, basement levels, basement car park entry
levels and ground levels shown on the approved Development
Application plans are indicative only and have not been approved by this
consent.

(b)

Prior to a Construction Certificate being issued for any excavation, civil
construction, drainage or building work (whichever is earlier), excluding
approved preparatory or demolition work, alignment levels for the
building and site frontages must be submitted to and approved by
Council. The submission must be prepared by a Registered Surveyor
and designed by a suitably qualified engineer, must be in accordance
with the City of Sydney's Public Domain Manual and must be submitted
with a completed and Levels and Gradients Approval Application form
(available on the City’s website).

(c)

These alignment levels, as approved by Council, are to be incorporated
into the plans submitted with the application for a Construction Certificate
for any civil, drainage and public domain work as applicable under this
consent. If the proposed detailed design of the public domain requires
changes to any previously approved Alignment Levels, then an amended
Alignment Levels submission must be submitted to and approved by
Council to reflect these changes prior to a Construction Certificate being
issued for public domain work.

PHOTOGRAPHIC RECORD / DILAPIDATION REPORT - PUBLIC DOMAIN
Prior to an approval for demolition being granted or a Construction Certificate
being issued, whichever is earlier, a photographic recording of the public
domain site frontages is to be prepared and submitted to Council's satisfaction.
The recording must include clear images of the building facade adjoining the
footpath, the footpath, nature strip, kerb and gutter, driveway crossovers and
laybacks, kerb ramps, road carriageway, street trees and plantings, parking
restriction and traffic signs, and all other existing infrastructure along the street.

18

The form of the recording is to be as follows:(a)

A PDF format report containing all images at a scale that clearly
demonstrates the existing site conditions;

(b)

Each image is to be labelled to identify the elements depicted, the
direction that the image is viewed towards, and include the name of the
relevant street frontage;

(c)

Each image is to be numbered and cross referenced to a site location
plan;

(d)

A summary report, prepared by a suitable qualified professional, must
be submitted in conjunction with the images detailing the project
description, identifying any apparent existing defects, detailing the date
and authorship of the photographic record, the method of documentation
and limitations of the photographic record;

(e)

Include written confirmation, issued with the authority of both the
applicant and the photographer that the City of Sydney is granted a
perpetual non-exclusive license to make use of the copyright in all
images supplied, including the right to make copies available to third
parties as though they were Council images. The signatures of both the
applicant and the photographer must be included.

Any damage to the public way including trees, footpaths, kerbs, gutters, road
carriageway and the like must immediately be made safe and functional by the
applicant. Damage must be fully rectified by the applicant in accordance with
the City’s standards prior to a Certificate of Completion being issued for Public
Domain Works or before an Occupation Certificate is issued for the
development, whichever is earlier.
(4)

PRESERVATION OF SURVEY MARKS
All works in City streets must ensure the preservation of existing permanent
survey marks (a brass bolt, or a lead plug holding a brass tack, covered by a
cast iron box). At least forty-eight hours prior to the commencement of any
works in the public way within 1 metre of a permanent survey mark contact
must be made with the City's Project Manager Survey / Design Services to
arrange for the recovery of the mark.
Prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate, a survey plan, clearly showing
the location of all permanent survey marks fronting the site and within 5 metres
on each side of the frontages must be submitted to Council.
At least forty-eight hours prior to the commencement of any works in the public
way within 1 metre of a permanent survey mark contact must be made with
the City’s Senior Surveyor to arrange for the recovery of the mark.
A fee must be paid to the Council for the replacement of any permanent survey
mark removed or damaged in accordance with the City's Schedule of Fees
and Charges (Reinstatement of Survey Box).

19

(5)

PROTECTION OF SURVEY INFRASTRUCTURE
Prior to the commencement of any work on site, a statement prepared by a
Surveyor registered under the Surveying and Spatial Information Act 2002
must be submitted to Council verifying that a survey has been carried out in
accordance with the Surveyor General’s Direction No. 11 – Reservation of
Survey Infrastructure. Any Permanent Marks proposed to be or have been
destroyed must be replaced, and a "Plan of Survey Information" must be
lodged at the NSW Land Registry Services.
Reason: To ensure that the survey control infrastructure and cadastral
framework are preserved for the public benefit and in accordance with the
Surveying and Spatial Information Act 2002.

(6)

PUBLIC DOMAIN WORKS BOND
Public Domain Works Deposit will be required as security for the public domain
works and for repairing damage that may be caused to the public domain in
the vicinity of the site, in accordance with the City of Sydney’s adopted fees
and charges and the Public Domain Manual. The Public Domain Works
Deposit must be submitted as an unconditional bank guarantee or insurance
bond as per the Council’s Performance Bond Policy in favour of Council as
security for completion of the obligations under this consent (Guarantee).
Council's Public Domain section must be contacted to determine the
guarantee amount prior to lodgement of the guarantee. The guarantee must
be lodged with Council prior to a Construction Certificate being issued.
The Guarantee will be retained in full until all Public Domain works, including
rectification of damage to the public domain, are completed to City of Sydney
standards and approval and the required certifications, warranties and worksas-executed documentation are submitted and approved by Council in writing.
On satisfying the above requirements, 90% of the security will be released.
The remaining 10% will be retained for the duration of the specified Defects
Liability Period.

(7)

PUBLIC DOMAIN WORKS – HOLD POINTS AND HANDOVER
(a)

Prior to a Construction Certificate being issued for public domain work,
including civil, drainage and subsurface works, , a set of hold points for
approved public domain, civil and drainage work is to be determined
with and approved by the City's Public Domain section in accordance
with the City of Sydney's Public Domain Manual and Sydney Streets
Technical Specification.

(b)

Prior to a Certificate of Completion being issued for public domain works
and before the issue of any Occupation Certificate for the development
or before the use commences, whichever is earlier, electronic works-asexecuted (as-built) plans and documentation, certified by a suitably
qualified, independent professional must be submitted to and accepted
by Council for all public domain works. Completion and handover of the
constructed public domain works must be undertaken in accordance with
the City of Sydney's Public Domain Manual and Sydney Streets
Technical Specification, including requirements for as-built
documentation, certification, warranties and the defects liability period.

20

(8)

(9)

PUBLIC DOMAIN DAMAGE DEPOSIT
(a)

A Public Domain Damage Deposit calculated on the basis of 30 lineal
metres of asphalt site frontage on Riley Street and 63 lineal metres of
concrete site frontage on Lower Campbell Street must be lodged with
Council in accordance with the City of Sydney’s adopted Schedule of
Fees and Charges. The Public Domain Damage Deposit must be
submitted as an unconditional bank guarantee or insurance bond as per
the Council’s Performance Bond Policy in favour of Council as security
for repairing any damage to the public domain in the vicinity of the site
(Guarantee).

(b)

The Guarantee must be lodged with Council prior to an approval for
demolition being granted or a Construction Certificate being issued,
whichever is earlier.

(c)

The Guarantee in this condition will be retained in full until the Public
Domain Works Deposit Guarantee required by this consent is lodged
with Council. Upon lodgement of the Public Domain Works Deposit
Guarantee, the Guarantee in this condition will be released.

FLOOD MANAGEMENT
Additional information including plans and a statement from a suitably qualified
engineer is to be submitted to and approved by Council’s Area Planning
Manager/Area Planning Coordinator prior to the issue of any Construction
Certificate demonstrating that the site will be protected during excavation and
construction in accordance with the City’s Interim Floodplain Management
Policy.

(10) WASTE AND RECYCLING MANAGEMENT - COMMERCIAL
(a)

A Waste and Recycling Management Plan is to be submitted to and
approved by Council’s Area Planning Manager/Area Planning
Coordinator prior to any Construction Certificate being issued. The plan
must comply with the Council's Guidelines for Waste Management in
New Developments 2018. All requirements of the approved Building
Waste and Recycling Management Plan must be implemented during
construction of the development.

UPON COMPLETION OF THE DEVELOPMENT
(b)

Prior to an Occupation Certificate being issued or the use commencing,
whichever is earlier, the Principal Certifier must ensure that waste
handling works have been completed in accordance with: the Waste and
Recycling Management Plan; other relevant development consent
conditions; and Council's Guidelines for Waste Management in New
Developments 2018.

21

(11) COMPLIANCE WITH DEMOLITION, EXCAVATION & CONSTRUCTION
NOISE AND VIBRATION MANAGEMENT PLAN
(a)

All works conducted on site which form part of this development must be
carried out in accordance with the submitted Demolition and Excavation
Noise and Vibration Management Plan prepared by Acoustic Studio
dated 23 October 2018 TRIM 2018/560391.

(b)

Where all such control measures have been implemented and the
resultant noise and/ or vibration levels at any sensitive receiver still
exceed the council’s applicable criteria stated in the Construction
Hours/Noise Code 1992 and are giving rise to sustained complaints then
the contractor must provide regular, appropriate and sustained periods
of respite in consultation with Council’s Health and Building unit.
Approval to vary the authorised noise and vibration levels must be
received in writing by the proponent from Council prior to activities being
undertaken that exceed sanctioned emission levels. (Use where respite
periods not specified under the approved DEC NMP).
Such periods must be set and agreed to by Council’s Health and Building
Unit.

(12) NOISE – COMMERCIAL PLANT / INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT
(a)

(b)

(c)

Noise from commercial plant and industrial development must not
exceed a project amenity/intrusiveness noise level or maximum noise
level in accordance with relevant requirements of the NSW EPA Noise
Policy for Industry 2017 (NPfI) unless agreed to by the City’s Area
Planning Manager. Further:
(i)

Background noise monitoring must be carried out in accordance
with the long-term methodology in Fact Sheet B of the NPfI unless
otherwise agreed by the City’s Area Planning Manager.

(ii)

Commercial plant is limited to heating, ventilation, air conditioning,
refrigeration and energy generation equipment.

An LAeq,15 minute (noise level) emitted from the development must not
exceed the LA90, 15 minute (background noise level) by more than 3dB when
assessed inside any habitable room of any affected residence or noise
sensitive commercial premises at any time. Further:
(i)

The noise level and the background noise level shall both be
measured with all external doors and windows of the affected
residence closed.

(ii)

Background noise measurements must not include noise from the
development but may include noise from necessary ventilation at
the affected premise.

Corrections in Fact Sheet C of the NPfI are applicable to relevant noise
from the development measured in accordance with this condition,
however duration corrections are excluded from commercial noise.

22

(13) CLASSIFICATION OF WASTE
Prior to the exportation of waste (including fill or soil) from the site, the waste
materials must be classified in accordance with the provisions of the Protection
of the Environment Operations Act 1997 and the NSW DECC Waste
Classification Guidelines, Part1: Classifying Waste (July 2009). The
classification of the material is essential to determine where the waste may be
legally taken. The Protection of the Environment Operations Act 1997 provides
for the commission of an offence for both the waste owner and the transporters
if the waste is taken to a place that cannot lawfully be used as a waste facility
for the particular class of waste. For the transport and disposal of industrial,
hazardous or Group A liquid waste advice should be sought from the EPA.
(14) ASBESTOS REMOVAL WORKS
(a)

All works removing asbestos containing materials must be carried out by
a suitably licensed asbestos removalist duly licensed with Safework
NSW, holding either a Friable (Class A) or a Non- Friable (Class B)
Asbestos Removal Licence which ever applies.
(i)

A copy of the relevant licence shall be made available to any
authorised Council officer on request within 24 hours.

(b)

Five days prior to the commencement of licensed asbestos removal,
Safework NSW must be formally notified of the works. All adjoining
properties and those opposite the development must be notified in
writing of the dates and times when asbestos removal is to be conducted.
The notification must identify the licensed asbestos removal contractor
and include a contact person for the site together with telephone number
and email address.

(c)

All work must be carried out in accordance with the Work Health and
Safety Regulation 2011 and the NSW Government and Work Cover
document entitled How to manage and control asbestos in the work
place: Code of Practice (Safework NSW) December 2011 and the City
of Sydney Managing Asbestos Policy dated 21 October 2013 and
associated guidelines.

(d)

The asbestos removalist must use signs and barricades to clearly
indicate the area where the asbestos removal work is being performed.
Signs must be placed in positions so that people are aware of where the
asbestos removal work area is and should remain in place until removal
is completed and clearance to reoccupy has been granted.
Responsibilities for the security and safety of the asbestos removal site
and removal must be specified in the asbestos removal control plan
(where required). This includes inaccessible areas that are likely to
contain asbestos.

23

(e)

Warning signs must be placed so they inform all people nearby that
asbestos removal work is taking place in the area. Signs must be placed
at all of the main entry points to the asbestos removal work area where
asbestos is present. These signs must be weatherproof, constructed of
light-weight material and adequately secured so they remain in
prominent locations. The signs must be in accordance with AS 1319 1994 Safety Signs for the Occupational Environment for size,
illumination, location and maintenance.

(f)

Asbestos waste must only be transported and disposed of at an EPA
licensed waste facility.

(g)

No asbestos products are to be reused on the site (i.e. packing pieces,
spacers, formwork or fill etc).

(h)

No asbestos laden skips or bins are to be left in any public place without
the written approval of Council.

(i)

A site notice board must be located at the main entrance to the site in a
prominent position and must have minimum dimensions of 841mm x
594mm (A1) with any text on the notice to be a minimum of 30 point type
size.

(j)

The site notice board must include the following:
(i)

contact person for the site;

(ii)

telephone and facsimile numbers and email address; and

(iii)

site activities and time frames.

(15) HOURS OF WORK AND NOISE
The hours of construction and work on the development must be as follows:
(a)

All work, including building/demolition and excavation work, and
activities in the vicinity of the site generating noise associated with
preparation for the commencement of work (eg. loading and unloading
of goods, transferring of tools etc) in connection with the proposed
development must only be carried out between the hours of 7.30am and
5.30pm on Mondays to Fridays, inclusive, and 7.30am and 3.30pm on
Saturdays, with safety inspections being permitted at 7.00am on work
days, and no work must be carried out on Sundays or public holidays.

(b)

All work, including demolition, excavation and building work must comply
with the City of Sydney Code of Practice for Construction Hours/Noise
1992 and Australian Standard 2436 - 2010 Guide to Noise Control on
Construction, Maintenance and Demolition Sites.

(c)

Notwithstanding the above, the use of a crane for special operations,
including the delivery of materials, hoisting of plant and equipment and
erection and dismantling of on site tower cranes which warrant the onstreet use of mobile cranes outside of above hours can occur, subject to
a permit being issued by Council under Section 68 of the Local
Government Act 1993 and/or Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993.

24

Note: Works may be undertaken outside of hours, where it is required to avoid
the loss of life, damage to property, to prevent environmental harm and/or to
avoid structural damage to the building. Written approval must be given by the
Construction Regulation Unit, prior to works proceeding
The City of Sydney Code of Practice for Construction Hours/Noise 1992 allows
extended working hours subject to the approval of an application in
accordance with the Code and under Section 4.55 of the Environmental
Planning and Assessment Act 1979.
(16) USE OF HIGH NOISE EMISSION APPLIANCES / PLANT
(a)

(b)

The operation of high noise emission appliances, plant and/or machinery
such as pile – drivers, rock breakers and hydraulic hammers and those
which are not listed in Groups B, C, D, E or F of Schedule 1 of the City
of Sydney Code of Practice for Construction Hours/Noise 1992 and
Australian Standard 2436-2010 Guide to Noise Control on Construction,
Maintenance and Demolition Sites is restricted to the hours of:


8:00am to 11:00am Monday to Friday



12:00pm to 3:00pm Monday to Friday



8:00am to 11:00am Saturday



12.00pm to 3.00pm Saturday

All reasonable and feasible steps must be undertaken to ensure that the
work, including demolition, excavation and building complies with the
City of Sydney Code of Practice for Construction Hours/Noise 1992 and
Australian Standard 2436- 2010 Guide to Noise Control on Construction,
Maintenance and Demolition Sites.

(17) NOTIFICATION OF EXCAVATION WORKS OR USE OF HIGH NOISE
EMISSION APPLIANCES/PLANT
The immediately adjoining neighbours must be given a minimum of 48 hours
notice that excavation, shoring or underpinning works or use of high noise
emission appliances / plant are about to commence.
(18) HAZARDOUS AND INDUSTRIAL WASTE
Hazardous and/or industrial waste arising from the demolition/operational
activities must be removed and/or transported in accordance with the
requirements of the NSW Work Cover Authority pursuant to the provisions of
the following:
(a)

Protection of the Environment Operations Act 1997

(b)

Protection of the Environment Operations (Waste) Regulation 2005

(c)

Waste Avoidance and Resource Recovery Act 2001

25

(d)

Work Health and Safety Act 2011

(e)

Work Health and Safety Regulation 2011.

(19) COVERING OF LOADS
All vehicles involved in the excavation and/or demolition process and departing
the property with demolition materials, spoil or loose matter must have their
loads fully covered before entering the public roadway.
(20) VEHICLE CLEANSING
Prior to the commencement of work, suitable measures are to be implemented
to ensure that sediment and other materials are not tracked onto the roadway
by vehicles leaving the site. It is an offence to allow, permit or cause materials
to pollute or be placed in a position from which they may pollute waters.
(21) CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT PLAN
(a)

The Construction Traffic Management Plan submitted during the
assessment of the application has not been approved by this consent.

(b)

A Construction Traffic Management Plan must be submitted to and
approved by Council’s Area Planning Manager/Area Planning
Coordinator prior to the issue of any Construction Certificate. The CTMP
must be prepared in accordance with Council’s requirements, located at
–
http://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/business/businessresponsibilities/traffic-management/construction-traffic-managementplans
and in consultation with the Transport for NSW Sydney Coordination
Office.

(c)

The CTMP must not permit vehicles parking on Lower Campbell Street
that will inhibit vehicular ingress and egress from neighbouring
properties.

(d)

The development must be undertaken in accordance with the CTMP
approved under (b) above.

(22) DEMOLITION, EXCAVATION AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT
(a)

Prior to the commencement of demolition and/or excavation work the
following details must be submitted to and be approved by the Principal
Certifier:
(i)

Plans and elevations showing distances of the subject building
from the location of adjoining and common/party walls, and (where
applicable) the proposed method of facade retention.

26

(ii)

A Demolition Work Method Statement prepared by a licensed
demolisher who is registered with the Work Cover Authority. (The
demolition by induced collapse, the use of explosives or on-site
burning is not permitted.)

(iii)

An Excavation Work Method Statement prepared by an
appropriately qualified person.

(iv)

A Waste Management Plan for the demolition and or excavation of
the proposed development.

(v)

Plans and elevations showing the location, construction and
installation of temporary site fencing and any temporary structures
used in connection with the construction of the development.

Note: Temporary structures, including hoardings and scaffolding,
proposed for erection on City-owned and controlled land (footways and
roadways), must comply with the City’s Guidelines for Hoardings and
Scaffolding and be approved by Council under the provisions of the
Local Government Act 1993 and the Roads Act 1993 prior to installation.
(b)

Such statements must, where applicable, be in compliance with AS26012001 Demolition of Structures, the Work, Health and Safety Act 2011
and Regulation; Council’s Policy for Waste Minimisation in New
Developments 2005, the Waste Avoidance and Resource Recovery Act
2001, and all other relevant acts and regulations and must include
provisions for:
(i)

A Materials Handling Statement for the removal of refuse from the
site in accordance with the Waste Avoidance and Resource
Recovery Act 2001.

(ii)

The name and address of the company/contractor undertaking
demolition/excavation works.

(iii)

The name and address of the company/contractor undertaking off
site remediation/disposal of excavated materials.

(iv)

The name and address of the transport contractor.

(v)

The type and quantity of material to be removed from site.

(vi)

Location and method of waste disposal and recycling.

(vii) Proposed truck routes, in accordance with this development
consent.

27

(viii) Procedures to be adopted for the prevention of loose or
contaminated material, spoil, dust and litter from being deposited
onto the public way from trucks and associated equipment and the
proposed method of cleaning surrounding roadways from such
deposits. (Note: With regard to demolition of buildings, dust
emission must be minimised for the full height of the building. A
minimum requirement is that perimeter scaffolding, combined with
chain wire and shade cloth must be used, together with continuous
water spray during the demolition process. Compressed air must
not be used to blow dust from the building site).
(ix)

Measures to control noise emissions from the site.

(x)

Measures to suppress odours.

(xi)

Enclosing and making the site safe.

(xii) Induction training for on-site personnel.
(xiii) Written confirmation that an appropriately qualified Occupational
Hygiene Consultant has inspected the building/site for asbestos,
contamination and other hazardous materials, in accordance with
the procedures acceptable to Work Cover Authority.
(xiv) An Asbestos and Hazardous Materials Clearance Certificate by a
person approved by the Work Cover Authority.
(xv) Disconnection of utilities.
(xvi) Fire Fighting. (Fire fighting services on site are to be maintained at
all times during demolition work. Access to fire services in the
street must not be obstructed).
(xvii) Access and egress. (Demolition and excavation activity must not
cause damage to or adversely affect the safe access and egress
of the subject building or any adjacent buildings).
(xviii) Waterproofing of any exposed surfaces of adjoining buildings.
(xix) Control of water pollution and leachate and cleaning of vehicles
tyres (proposals must be in accordance with the Protection of the
Environmental Operations Act 1997).
(xx) Working hours, in accordance with this development consent.
(xxi) Any Work Cover Authority requirements.
(c)

The approved work method statements and a waste management plan
as required by this condition must be implemented in full during the
period of construction.

28

(23) DILAPIDATION REPORT
(a)

Subject to the receipt of permission of the affected landowner,
dilapidation report/s, including a photographic survey of the properties
adjoining the site to the south, 277-285 Crown Street, 261-265 Crown
Street, 58 and 60 Lower Campbell Street are to be prepared by an
appropriately qualified structural engineer prior to commencement of
demolition/excavation works. A copy of the dilapidation report/s together
with the accompanying photographs must be given to the above property
owners, and a copy lodged with the Principal Certifier and the Council
prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate.

UPON COMPLETION OF EXCAVATION/DEMOLITION
(b)

A second Dilapidation Report/s, including a photographic survey must
then be submitted at least one month after the completion of
demolition/excavation works. A copy of the second dilapidation report/s,
together with the accompanying photographs must be given to the above
property owners, and a copy lodged with the Principal Certifier and the
Council prior to the issue of an Occupation Certificate.

Any damage to buildings, structures, lawns, trees, sheds, gardens and the like
must be fully rectified by the applicant or owner, at no cost to the affected
property owner.
Note: Prior to the commencement of the building surveys, the applicant/owner
must advise (in writing) all property owners of buildings to be surveyed of what
the survey will entail and of the process for making a claim regarding property
damage. A copy of this information must be submitted to Council.
(24) EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL
Prior to the commencement of demolition/excavation/construction work, an
Erosion and Sediment Control Plan (ESCP) must be submitted to and be
approved by the Principal Certifier. The ESCP must:
(a)

Conform to the specifications and standards contained in Managing
Urban Stormwater: Soils and Construction (Landcom, 2004); the
Guidelines for Erosion and Sediment Control on Building Sites (City of
Sydney, 2004); and the NSW Protection of the Environment Operations
Act 1997.

(b)

Include a drawing(s) that clearly shows:
(i)

location of site boundaries and adjoining roads

(ii)

approximate grades and indications of direction(s) of fall

(iii)

approximate location of trees and other vegetation, showing items
for removal or retention

(iv)

location of site access, proposed roads and other impervious areas

(v)

existing and proposed drainage patterns with stormwater
discharge points

29

(vi)
(c)

north point and scale

Specify how soil conservation measures will be conducted on site
including:
(i)

timing of works

(ii)

locations of lands where a protective ground cover will, as far as is
practicable, be maintained

(iii)

access protection measures

(iv)

nature and extent of earthworks, including the amount of any cut
and fill

(v)

where applicable, the diversion of runoff from upslope lands
around the disturbed areas

(vi)

location of all soil and other material stockpiles including topsoil
storage, protection and reuse methodology

(vii) procedures by which stormwater is to be collected and treated prior
to discharge including details of any proposed pollution control
device(s)
(viii) frequency and nature of any maintenance program
(ix)

other site-specific soil or water conservation structures.

(25) TEMPORARY GROUND ANCHORS, TEMPORARY SHORING AND
PERMANENT BASEMENT/RETAINING WALLS AFFECTING THE ROAD
RESERVE
For temporary shoring including ground anchors affecting the road reserve, a
separate application under Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993 must be lodged
with Council.
(26) TEMPORARY STRUCTURES (HOARDINGS, SCAFFOLDING AND OTHER
STRUCTURES) INSTALLED ON PUBLIC ROADS THAT REQUIRE
DEVELOPMENT CONTENT
The following forms of temporary structures (hoardings, scaffolding and other
structures) proposed for installation on public roads and in connection with the
construction of the approved development require Council approval
(development consent):
(a)

Type B hoardings that span over roads such as laneways;

(b)

Type B hoardings that propose more than a single storey of site sheds
installed on a hoarding deck;

(c)

Type A and Type B hoardings with or without scaffolding that project
beyond the side boundaries of adjoining properties;

(d)

fenced work compounds at roadway/footway level;

30

(e)

hoardings/scaffolding associated with works on heritage-listed buildings;
or

(f)

any other large and/or potentially high environmental impact temporary
structures, as determined by Council.

A separate development application must be submitted and approved by
Council prior to the installation of any temporary structure listed above.
(27) APPLICATION FOR HOARDINGS AND SCAFFOLDING INSTALLED ON
OR ABOVE A PUBLIC ROAD AND OPERATING HOISTING DEVICES
INCLUDING BUILDING MAINTENANCE UNITS OVER A PUBLIC ROAD
(a)

A separate application under Section 68 of the Local Government Act
1993 and Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993 is to be made to Council to
erect a hoarding and/or scaffolding (temporary structures) on or above a
public road (footway and/or roadway).

(b)

Where an approval (Permit) is granted allowing the placement of
temporary structures on or above a public road the structures must
comply fully with Council’s Hoarding and Scaffolding Policy; Guidelines
for Hoardings and Scaffolding; and the conditions of approval (Permit)
granted including:
(i)

maintaining a current and valid approval for the full duration that
the temporary structure/s is in place;

(ii)

maintaining temporary structure/s in a structurally sound and
stable condition for the full duration of installation (Clause 2.11.1);

(iii)

bill posters and graffiti being removed within 24 hours of their
placement (Clause 2.11.2);

(iv)

maintaining temporary structures and the public place adjoining
the work site in a clean and tidy condition including repainting
and/or repair of graphics (Clauses 2.11.1, 2.11.4, 2.14.1 and
3.9.3);

(v)

maintaining a watertight deck (Type B hoardings) to prevent liquids
including rainwater, falling onto the footway/roadway surfaces
(Clauses 3.9.1 and 3.9.4);

(vi)

approved site sheds on the decks of a Type B hoarding being fully
screened from the public place (Clause 3.9.5);

(vii) material and equipment not being placed or stored on the deck of
Type B hoardings, unless specifically approved by Council (Clause
3.9.4);
(viii) providing and maintaining operational artificial lighting systems
under Type B hoardings including at high-bay truck entry points
(Clause 3.9.9); and
(ix)

ensuring all required signage is provided and maintained (Clauses
3.9.3, 3.9.6, 3.9.8, 3.10.1 and 4.2).

31

If it is proposed to operate a hoisting device including a building maintenance
unit above a public road which swings, hoists material/equipment and/or slews
any part of the device over the public road, a separate application under
Section 68 of the Local Government Act 1993 and Section 138 of the Roads
Act 1993 must be made to Council to obtain approval.
Note: 'Building maintenance unit' means a power-operated suspended
platform and associated equipment on a building specifically designed to
provide permanent access to the faces of the building for maintenance (Work
Health and Safety Regulation 2011).

32

SCHEDULE 2
PRESCRIBED CONDITIONS
The prescribed conditions in accordance with Division 8A of the Environmental
Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000 apply:
Clause 98

Compliance with Building Code of Australia and insurance requirements
under the Home Building Act 1989

Clause 98A

Erection of signs

Clause 98B

Notification of Home Building Act 1989 requirements

Clause 98C

Conditions relating to entertainment venues

Clause 98D

Conditions relating to maximum capacity signage

Clause 98E

Conditions relating to shoring and adequacy of adjoining property

Refer to the NSW State legislation for full text of the clauses under Division 8A of the
Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000. This can be accessed at:
http://www.legislation.nsw.gov.au

33

Attachment B
Selected Drawings

34

2
0509

B5
+EX RL 24.800

EX
Lift 02

EX
Lift 01

Excavation RL 23.70

Dash red line denotes
proposed extent under
modification

Dash red line denotes
proposed extent under
modification

5450

4853

BOUNDARY

+EX RL 24.800

BOUNDARY

LIFT PIT
EXCAVATION
ZONE

EX Lift 03

BOUNDARY

4201
3150

35

B OU
NDA
RY

Detail of excavation at
boundary to be confirmed
with structural engineer and
contractor
Excavation RL 23.220

EXCAVATION ZONE

1
0509

BOUNDARY

Suit 5, level 5
2-12 Foveaux Surry Hills
NSW 2010 Sydney Australia

A

For

Excavation Zone

Existing Building

Retained Existing

Demolished Existing Structure

Demolished Existing

Drawn

TZ
Drawing No.

0500

Date Created

25/10/18
Project No.

18015

Demolition & Excavation Plan Basement 5

Drawing

A

Revision

TZ

Checked

North

hayden@trevorhowse.com.au

grahame@warrensmith.com.au
david@warrensmith.com.au

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

Status

208 RILEY ST
SURRY HILLS

Address

Cambridge Hotel

Project

1 : 100 @ A1

Scale

Legend

0430 123 611

Trevor R Howse

BCA & Access Consultant

02 9299 1312
-

victor.mateffy@mpn.com.au

tblythe@urbis.com.au

michael.fearnley@steensenvarming.com
george.mikolajczyk@steensenvarming.com

Warren Smith & Partner

Hydraulic/Fire Engineer

02 9967 2200

Steensen Varming

Mechanical/Electrical Engineer

02 9929 7144

MPN Group

Structural Engineer

02 8233 9959

Urbis

Planner

Notes Regarding
“For Construction Documents”
Tzannes Associates (TZ) believes
that the information shown on this
drawing (when read with the
applicable specification) is
sufficient for a reasonably
competent and experienced builder
to understand the design intent;
understand the process of
construction required to achieve a
finished product conforming with
the design intent and understand
what building materials, techniques
and methods are required to
achieve that finished product

Early works DA

CIENNA GROUP

Client

Date
30.10.18

Rev

General Notes
Verify dimensions on site prior to
commencement of work. Check
existing RL’s on site. Advise
Architect of any discrepancies
before commencement. Allow for
adjustments to suit discrepancies.
Comply with relevant authorities
requirements. Comply with
Building Code of Australia
requirements. Comply with
relevant Australian Standards for
materials and construction
practice. Comply with Basix
Certificate. Do not scale from
drawings.

Copyright owned by Tzannes.
Rights to this document are subject
to payment in full of all Tzannes
fees. This document may only be
used for the express purpose for
which it has been created and any Nominated Architects
unauthorised use is at the user’s
Alec Tzannes 4174
sole risk and without limiting
Tzannes’ rights the user releases Jonathan Evans 6613
and indemnifies Tzannes from and Mladen Prnjatovic 7468
Ben Green 7066
against all loss so arising
Chi Melhem 7754

Copyright

W. tzannes.com.au
T. 61 2 9319 3744
E. tzannes@tzannes.com.au

2
0509

B4

+ EX RL 27.400

EX
Lift 02

BOUNDARY

5450

Dash red line denotes
proposed extent under
modification

Dash red line denotes
proposed extent under
modification

B4
+ EX RL 25.800

EX
Lift 01

EX Lift 03

BOUNDARY

4201

4853

BOUNDARY

3150

36

B OU
NDA
RY

Detail of excavation at
boundary to be confirmed
with structural engineer and
contractor

EXCAVATION ZONE

(VOID)

1
0509

Red line denotes excation extents

BOUNDARY

Suit 5, level 5
2-12 Foveaux Surry Hills
NSW 2010 Sydney Australia

A

For

Excavation Zone

Existing Building

Retained Existing

Demolished Existing Structure

Demolished Existing

Drawn

TZ
Drawing No.

0501

Date Created

25/10/18
Project No.

18015

Demolition & Excavation Plan Basement 4

Drawing

A

Revision

TZ

Checked

North

hayden@trevorhowse.com.au

grahame@warrensmith.com.au
david@warrensmith.com.au

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

Status

208 RILEY ST
SURRY HILLS

Address

Cambridge Hotel

Project

1 : 100 @ A1

Scale

Legend

0430 123 611

Trevor R Howse

BCA & Access Consultant

02 9299 1312
-

victor.mateffy@mpn.com.au

tblythe@urbis.com.au

michael.fearnley@steensenvarming.com
george.mikolajczyk@steensenvarming.com

Warren Smith & Partner

Hydraulic/Fire Engineer

02 9967 2200

Steensen Varming

Mechanical/Electrical Engineer

02 9929 7144

MPN Group

Structural Engineer

02 8233 9959

Urbis

Planner

Notes Regarding
“For Construction Documents”
Tzannes Associates (TZ) believes
that the information shown on this
drawing (when read with the
applicable specification) is
sufficient for a reasonably
competent and experienced builder
to understand the design intent;
understand the process of
construction required to achieve a
finished product conforming with
the design intent and understand
what building materials, techniques
and methods are required to
achieve that finished product

Early works DA

CIENNA GROUP

Client

Date
30.10.18

Rev

General Notes
Verify dimensions on site prior to
commencement of work. Check
existing RL’s on site. Advise
Architect of any discrepancies
before commencement. Allow for
adjustments to suit discrepancies.
Comply with relevant authorities
requirements. Comply with
Building Code of Australia
requirements. Comply with
relevant Australian Standards for
materials and construction
practice. Comply with Basix
Certificate. Do not scale from
drawings.

Copyright owned by Tzannes.
Rights to this document are subject
to payment in full of all Tzannes
fees. This document may only be
used for the express purpose for
which it has been created and any Nominated Architects
unauthorised use is at the user’s
Alec Tzannes 4174
sole risk and without limiting
Tzannes’ rights the user releases Jonathan Evans 6613
and indemnifies Tzannes from and Mladen Prnjatovic 7468
Ben Green 7066
against all loss so arising
Chi Melhem 7754

Copyright

W. tzannes.com.au
T. 61 2 9319 3744
E. tzannes@tzannes.com.au

2
0509

EX
Lift 02

B3A

B3

BOUNDARY

5450

Dash red line denotes
proposed extent under
modification

Dash red line denotes
proposed extent under
modification

+EX RL 28.300

EX
Lift 01

+EX RL 29.900

EX Lift 03

BOUNDARY

4201

4853

BOUNDARY

3150

37

B OU
NDA
RY

Detail of excavation at
boundary to be confirmed
with structural engineer and
contractor

EXCAVATION ZONE

(VOID)

1
0509

Red line denotes excation extents

BOUNDARY

Suit 5, level 5
2-12 Foveaux Surry Hills
NSW 2010 Sydney Australia

A

For

Excavation Zone

Existing Building

Retained Existing

Demolished Existing Structure

Demolished Existing

Drawn

TZ
Drawing No.

0502

Date Created

25/10/18
Project No.

18015

Demolition & Excavation Plan Basement 3

Drawing

A

Revision

TZ

Checked

North

hayden@trevorhowse.com.au

grahame@warrensmith.com.au
david@warrensmith.com.au

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

Status

208 RILEY ST
SURRY HILLS

Address

Cambridge Hotel

Project

1 : 100 @ A1

Scale

Legend

0430 123 611

Trevor R Howse

BCA & Access Consultant

02 9299 1312
-

victor.mateffy@mpn.com.au

tblythe@urbis.com.au

michael.fearnley@steensenvarming.com
george.mikolajczyk@steensenvarming.com

Warren Smith & Partner

Hydraulic/Fire Engineer

02 9967 2200

Steensen Varming

Mechanical/Electrical Engineer

02 9929 7144

MPN Group

Structural Engineer

02 8233 9959

Urbis

Planner

Notes Regarding
“For Construction Documents”
Tzannes Associates (TZ) believes
that the information shown on this
drawing (when read with the
applicable specification) is
sufficient for a reasonably
competent and experienced builder
to understand the design intent;
understand the process of
construction required to achieve a
finished product conforming with
the design intent and understand
what building materials, techniques
and methods are required to
achieve that finished product

Early works DA

CIENNA GROUP

Client

Date
30.10.18

Rev

General Notes
Verify dimensions on site prior to
commencement of work. Check
existing RL’s on site. Advise
Architect of any discrepancies
before commencement. Allow for
adjustments to suit discrepancies.
Comply with relevant authorities
requirements. Comply with
Building Code of Australia
requirements. Comply with
relevant Australian Standards for
materials and construction
practice. Comply with Basix
Certificate. Do not scale from
drawings.

Copyright owned by Tzannes.
Rights to this document are subject
to payment in full of all Tzannes
fees. This document may only be
used for the express purpose for
which it has been created and any Nominated Architects
unauthorised use is at the user’s
Alec Tzannes 4174
sole risk and without limiting
Tzannes’ rights the user releases Jonathan Evans 6613
and indemnifies Tzannes from and Mladen Prnjatovic 7468
Ben Green 7066
against all loss so arising
Chi Melhem 7754

Copyright

W. tzannes.com.au
T. 61 2 9319 3744
E. tzannes@tzannes.com.au

2
0509

EX
Lift 02

+ EX RL 30.800

B2

EX
Lift 01

BOUNDARY

5450

Dash red line denotes
proposed extent under
modification

Dash red line denotes
proposed extent under
modification

EX RL 32.400

B2A

EX Lift 03

BOUNDARY

4201

4853

BOUNDARY

3150

38

EX Plant

B OU
NDA
RY

Detail of excavation at
boundary to be confirmed
with structural engineer and
contractor

EXCAVATION ZONE

(VOID)

1
0509

Red line denotes excation extents

BOUNDARY

Suit 5, level 5
2-12 Foveaux Surry Hills
NSW 2010 Sydney Australia

A

For

Excavation Zone

Existing Building

Retained Existing

Demolished Existing Structure

Demolished Existing

Drawn

TZ
Drawing No.

0503

Date Created

25/10/18
Project No.

18015

Demolition & Excavation Plan Basement 2

Drawing

A

Revision

TZ

Checked

North

hayden@trevorhowse.com.au

grahame@warrensmith.com.au
david@warrensmith.com.au

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

Status

208 RILEY ST
SURRY HILLS

Address

Cambridge Hotel

Project

1 : 100 @ A1

Scale

Legend

0430 123 611

Trevor R Howse

BCA & Access Consultant

02 9299 1312
-

victor.mateffy@mpn.com.au

tblythe@urbis.com.au

michael.fearnley@steensenvarming.com
george.mikolajczyk@steensenvarming.com

Warren Smith & Partner

Hydraulic/Fire Engineer

02 9967 2200

Steensen Varming

Mechanical/Electrical Engineer

02 9929 7144

MPN Group

Structural Engineer

02 8233 9959

Urbis

Planner

Notes Regarding
“For Construction Documents”
Tzannes Associates (TZ) believes
that the information shown on this
drawing (when read with the
applicable specification) is
sufficient for a reasonably
competent and experienced builder
to understand the design intent;
understand the process of
construction required to achieve a
finished product conforming with
the design intent and understand
what building materials, techniques
and methods are required to
achieve that finished product

Early works DA

CIENNA GROUP

Client

Date
30.10.18

Rev

General Notes
Verify dimensions on site prior to
commencement of work. Check
existing RL’s on site. Advise
Architect of any discrepancies
before commencement. Allow for
adjustments to suit discrepancies.
Comply with relevant authorities
requirements. Comply with
Building Code of Australia
requirements. Comply with
relevant Australian Standards for
materials and construction
practice. Comply with Basix
Certificate. Do not scale from
drawings.

Copyright owned by Tzannes.
Rights to this document are subject
to payment in full of all Tzannes
fees. This document may only be
used for the express purpose for
which it has been created and any Nominated Architects
unauthorised use is at the user’s
Alec Tzannes 4174
sole risk and without limiting
Tzannes’ rights the user releases Jonathan Evans 6613
and indemnifies Tzannes from and Mladen Prnjatovic 7468
Ben Green 7066
against all loss so arising
Chi Melhem 7754

Copyright

W. tzannes.com.au
T. 61 2 9319 3744
E. tzannes@tzannes.com.au

2
0509

EX Luggage Store

EX
Lift 02

B1A

B1

5450

Dash red line denotes
proposed extent under
modification

Dash red line denotes
proposed extent under
modification

+EX RL 33.300

EX
Lift 01

+EX RL 35.100

EX Lift 03

BOUNDARY

EX Elec

BOUNDARY

4201

4853

EX Plant

BOUNDARY

3150

39

B OU
NDA
RY

Detail of excavation at
boundary to be confirmed
with structural engineer and
contractor

EXCAVATION ZONE

(VOID)

1
0509

Red line denotes excation extents

BOUNDARY

Suit 5, level 5
2-12 Foveaux Surry Hills
NSW 2010 Sydney Australia

A

For

Drawn

TZ
Drawing No.

0504

Date Created

25/10/18
Project No.

18015

Demolition & Excavation Plan Basement 1

Drawing

A

Revision

TZ

Checked

North

hayden@trevorhowse.com.au

grahame@warrensmith.com.au
david@warrensmith.com.au

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

Status

208 RILEY ST
SURRY HILLS

Address

Cambridge Hotel

Project

1 : 100 @ A1

Scale

Excavation Zone

Existing Building

Retained Existing

Demolished Existing Structure

Demolished Existing

Legend

0430 123 611

Trevor R Howse

BCA & Access Consultant

02 9299 1312
-

victor.mateffy@mpn.com.au

tblythe@urbis.com.au

michael.fearnley@steensenvarming.com
george.mikolajczyk@steensenvarming.com

Warren Smith & Partner

Hydraulic/Fire Engineer

02 9967 2200

Steensen Varming

Mechanical/Electrical Engineer

02 9929 7144

MPN Group

Structural Engineer

02 8233 9959

Urbis

Planner

Notes Regarding
“For Construction Documents”
Tzannes Associates (TZ) believes
that the information shown on this
drawing (when read with the
applicable specification) is
sufficient for a reasonably
competent and experienced builder
to understand the design intent;
understand the process of
construction required to achieve a
finished product conforming with
the design intent and understand
what building materials, techniques
and methods are required to
achieve that finished product

Early works DA

CIENNA GROUP

Client

Date
30.10.18

Rev

General Notes
Verify dimensions on site prior to
commencement of work. Check
existing RL’s on site. Advise
Architect of any discrepancies
before commencement. Allow for
adjustments to suit discrepancies.
Comply with relevant authorities
requirements. Comply with
Building Code of Australia
requirements. Comply with
relevant Australian Standards for
materials and construction
practice. Comply with Basix
Certificate. Do not scale from
drawings.

Copyright owned by Tzannes.
Rights to this document are subject
to payment in full of all Tzannes
fees. This document may only be
used for the express purpose for
which it has been created and any Nominated Architects
unauthorised use is at the user’s
Alec Tzannes 4174
sole risk and without limiting
Tzannes’ rights the user releases Jonathan Evans 6613
and indemnifies Tzannes from and Mladen Prnjatovic 7468
Ben Green 7066
against all loss so arising
Chi Melhem 7754

Copyright

W. tzannes.com.au
T. 61 2 9319 3744
E. tzannes@tzannes.com.au

40

2
0509

EX
Lift 02

BOUNDARY

Dash red line denotes
proposed extent under
modification

Dash red line denotes
proposed extent under
modification

+EX RL 36.100

EX
Lift 01

EX Lift 03

BOUNDARY

BOUNDARY

B OU
NDA
RY

1
0509

Deatail of excavation at
boundary to be confirmed
with structural engineer and
contractor

EXCAVATION ZONE

BOUNDARY

Suit 5, level 5
2-12 Foveaux Surry Hills
NSW 2010 Sydney Australia

A

For

Excavation Zone

Existing Building

Retained Existing

Demolished Existing Structure

Demolished Existing

Drawn

TZ
Drawing No.

0505

Date Created

25/10/18
Project No.

18015

A

Revision

TZ

Checked

Demolition & Excavation Plan - Lower
Ground

Drawing

North

hayden@trevorhowse.com.au

grahame@warrensmith.com.au
david@warrensmith.com.au

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

Status

208 RILEY ST
SURRY HILLS

Address

Cambridge Hotel

Project

1 : 100 @ A1

Scale

Legend

0430 123 611

Trevor R Howse

BCA & Access Consultant

02 9299 1312
-

victor.mateffy@mpn.com.au

tblythe@urbis.com.au

michael.fearnley@steensenvarming.com
george.mikolajczyk@steensenvarming.com

Warren Smith & Partner

Hydraulic/Fire Engineer

02 9967 2200

Steensen Varming

Mechanical/Electrical Engineer

02 9929 7144

MPN Group

Structural Engineer

02 8233 9959

Urbis

Planner

Notes Regarding
“For Construction Documents”
Tzannes Associates (TZ) believes
that the information shown on this
drawing (when read with the
applicable specification) is
sufficient for a reasonably
competent and experienced builder
to understand the design intent;
understand the process of
construction required to achieve a
finished product conforming with
the design intent and understand
what building materials, techniques
and methods are required to
achieve that finished product

Early works DA

CIENNA GROUP

Client

Date
30.10.18

Rev

General Notes
Verify dimensions on site prior to
commencement of work. Check
existing RL’s on site. Advise
Architect of any discrepancies
before commencement. Allow for
adjustments to suit discrepancies.
Comply with relevant authorities
requirements. Comply with
Building Code of Australia
requirements. Comply with
relevant Australian Standards for
materials and construction
practice. Comply with Basix
Certificate. Do not scale from
drawings.

Copyright owned by Tzannes.
Rights to this document are subject
to payment in full of all Tzannes
fees. This document may only be
used for the express purpose for
which it has been created and any Nominated Architects
unauthorised use is at the user’s
Alec Tzannes 4174
sole risk and without limiting
Tzannes’ rights the user releases Jonathan Evans 6613
and indemnifies Tzannes from and Mladen Prnjatovic 7468
Ben Green 7066
against all loss so arising
Chi Melhem 7754

Copyright

W. tzannes.com.au
T. 61 2 9319 3744
E. tzannes@tzannes.com.au

41

Existing tree to be
retained

Indicative Tree
Protection Zone - TBC
Arborist report

RILEY ST

2
0509

EX Fire Stairs

EX
Lift 01

Existing Stairs to
Basement

EX
Lift 02

EX S
ubstat
ion

BOUNDARY

Dash red line denotes
proposed extent under
modification

Dash red line denotes
proposed extent under
modification

Lift

BOUNDARY

L OW
ER C

EX Vehicular ramp
BOUNDARY

ST

B OU
NDA
RY

AMP
BELL

No Suvey Information for this area

1
0509

LOWER CAMPBELL ST
BOUNDARY

Suit 5, level 5
2-12 Foveaux Surry Hills
NSW 2010 Sydney Australia

A

For

Excavation Zone

Existing Building

Retained Existing

Demolished Existing Structure

Demolished Existing

Drawn

TZ
Drawing No.

0506

Date Created

25/10/18
Project No.

18015

Demolition & Excavation Plan Ground Floor

Drawing

A

Revision

TZ

Checked

North

hayden@trevorhowse.com.au

grahame@warrensmith.com.au
david@warrensmith.com.au

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

Status

208 RILEY ST
SURRY HILLS

Address

Cambridge Hotel

Project

1 : 100 @ A1

Scale

Legend

0430 123 611

Trevor R Howse

BCA & Access Consultant

02 9299 1312
-

victor.mateffy@mpn.com.au

tblythe@urbis.com.au

michael.fearnley@steensenvarming.com
george.mikolajczyk@steensenvarming.com

Warren Smith & Partner

Hydraulic/Fire Engineer

02 9967 2200

Steensen Varming

Mechanical/Electrical Engineer

02 9929 7144

MPN Group

Structural Engineer

02 8233 9959

Urbis

Planner

Notes Regarding
“For Construction Documents”
Tzannes Associates (TZ) believes
that the information shown on this
drawing (when read with the
applicable specification) is
sufficient for a reasonably
competent and experienced builder
to understand the design intent;
understand the process of
construction required to achieve a
finished product conforming with
the design intent and understand
what building materials, techniques
and methods are required to
achieve that finished product

Early works DA

CIENNA GROUP

Client

Date
30.10.18

Rev

General Notes
Verify dimensions on site prior to
commencement of work. Check
existing RL’s on site. Advise
Architect of any discrepancies
before commencement. Allow for
adjustments to suit discrepancies.
Comply with relevant authorities
requirements. Comply with
Building Code of Australia
requirements. Comply with
relevant Australian Standards for
materials and construction
practice. Comply with Basix
Certificate. Do not scale from
drawings.

Copyright owned by Tzannes.
Rights to this document are subject
to payment in full of all Tzannes
fees. This document may only be
used for the express purpose for
which it has been created and any Nominated Architects
unauthorised use is at the user’s
Alec Tzannes 4174
sole risk and without limiting
Tzannes’ rights the user releases Jonathan Evans 6613
and indemnifies Tzannes from and Mladen Prnjatovic 7468
Ben Green 7066
against all loss so arising
Chi Melhem 7754

Copyright

W. tzannes.com.au
T. 61 2 9319 3744
E. tzannes@tzannes.com.au

42

2
0509

BOUNDARY

Dash red line denotes
proposed extent under
modification

Dash red line denotes
proposed extent under
modification

New Staff
Lift 03

BOUNDARY

BOUNDARY

B OU
NDA
RY

1
0509

Blue hatch denotes demolish
existing building

BOUNDARY

Suit 5, level 5
2-12 Foveaux Surry Hills
NSW 2010 Sydney Australia

A

For

Excavation Zone

Existing Building

Retained Existing

Demolished Existing Structure

Demolished Existing

Drawn

TZ
Drawing No.

0507

Date Created

10/25/18
Project No.

18015

A

Revision

TZ

Checked

Demolition & Excavation Plan - Level
1

Drawing

North

hayden@trevorhowse.com.au

grahame@warrensmith.com.au
david@warrensmith.com.au

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

Status

208 RILEY ST
SURRY HILLS

Address

Cambridge Hotel

Project

1 : 100 @ A1

Scale

Legend

0430 123 611

Trevor R Howse

BCA & Access Consultant

02 9299 1312
-

victor.mateffy@mpn.com.au

tblythe@urbis.com.au

michael.fearnley@steensenvarming.com
george.mikolajczyk@steensenvarming.com

Warren Smith & Partner

Hydraulic/Fire Engineer

02 9967 2200

Steensen Varming

Mechanical/Electrical Engineer

02 9929 7144

MPN Group

Structural Engineer

02 8233 9959

Urbis

Planner

Notes Regarding
“For Construction Documents”
Tzannes Associates (TZ) believes
that the information shown on this
drawing (when read with the
applicable specification) is
sufficient for a reasonably
competent and experienced builder
to understand the design intent;
understand the process of
construction required to achieve a
finished product conforming with
the design intent and understand
what building materials, techniques
and methods are required to
achieve that finished product

Early works DA

CIENNA GROUP

Client

Date
30.10.18

Rev

General Notes
Verify dimensions on site prior to
commencement of work. Check
existing RL’s on site. Advise
Architect of any discrepancies
before commencement. Allow for
adjustments to suit discrepancies.
Comply with relevant authorities
requirements. Comply with
Building Code of Australia
requirements. Comply with
relevant Australian Standards for
materials and construction
practice. Comply with Basix
Certificate. Do not scale from
drawings.

Copyright owned by Tzannes.
Rights to this document are subject
to payment in full of all Tzannes
fees. This document may only be
used for the express purpose for
which it has been created and any Nominated Architects
unauthorised use is at the user’s
Alec Tzannes 4174
sole risk and without limiting
Tzannes’ rights the user releases Jonathan Evans 6613
and indemnifies Tzannes from and Mladen Prnjatovic 7468
Ben Green 7066
against all loss so arising
Chi Melhem 7754

Copyright

W. tzannes.com.au
T. 61 2 9319 3744
E. tzannes@tzannes.com.au

43

2
0509

BOUNDARY

Dash red line denotes
proposed extent under
modification

Dash red line denotes
proposed extent under
modification

New Staff
Lift 04

BOUNDARY

BOUNDARY

ST

B OU
NDA
RY

1
0509

Blue hatch denotes
demolish existing building

BOUNDARY

Suit 5, level 5
2-12 Foveaux Surry Hills
NSW 2010 Sydney Australia

A

For

Excavation Zone

Existing Building

Retained Existing

Demolished Existing Structure

Demolished Existing

Drawn

Author
Drawing No.

0508

Date Created

10/22/18
Project No.

18015

A

Revision

TZ

Checked

Demolition & Excavation Plan - Level
2-3

Drawing

North

hayden@trevorhowse.com.au

grahame@warrensmith.com.au
david@warrensmith.com.au

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

Status

208 RILEY ST
SURRY HILLS

Address

Cambridge Hotel

Project

1 : 100 @ A1

Scale

Legend

0430 123 611

Trevor R Howse

BCA & Access Consultant

02 9299 1312
-

victor.mateffy@mpn.com.au

tblythe@urbis.com.au

michael.fearnley@steensenvarming.com
george.mikolajczyk@steensenvarming.com

Warren Smith & Partner

Hydraulic/Fire Engineer

02 9967 2200

Steensen Varming

Mechanical/Electrical Engineer

02 9929 7144

MPN Group

Structural Engineer

02 8233 9959

Urbis

Planner

Notes Regarding
“For Construction Documents”
Tzannes Associates (TZ) believes
that the information shown on this
drawing (when read with the
applicable specification) is
sufficient for a reasonably
competent and experienced builder
to understand the design intent;
understand the process of
construction required to achieve a
finished product conforming with
the design intent and understand
what building materials, techniques
and methods are required to
achieve that finished product

Early works DA

CIENNA GROUP

Client

Date
30.10.18

Rev

General Notes
Verify dimensions on site prior to
commencement of work. Check
existing RL’s on site. Advise
Architect of any discrepancies
before commencement. Allow for
adjustments to suit discrepancies.
Comply with relevant authorities
requirements. Comply with
Building Code of Australia
requirements. Comply with
relevant Australian Standards for
materials and construction
practice. Comply with Basix
Certificate. Do not scale from
drawings.

Copyright owned by Tzannes.
Rights to this document are subject
to payment in full of all Tzannes
fees. This document may only be
used for the express purpose for
which it has been created and any Nominated Architects
unauthorised use is at the user’s
Alec Tzannes 4174
sole risk and without limiting
Tzannes’ rights the user releases Jonathan Evans 6613
and indemnifies Tzannes from and Mladen Prnjatovic 7468
Ben Green 7066
against all loss so arising
Chi Melhem 7754

Copyright

W. tzannes.com.au
T. 61 2 9319 3744
E. tzannes@tzannes.com.au

1

B5 FFL 23.500 m

B4 FFL 25.800 m

B3 FFL 28.300 m

B2 FFL 30.800 m

B1 FFL 33.300 m

LG FFL 36.100 m

Loading FFL 38.000 m

G FFL 39.210 m

EX. LEVEL 1 FFL 42.700 m

EX. LEVEL 2 FFL UNKNOWN

EX. LEVEL 3 FFL UNKNOWN

1 : 100

Demolition Section NS

44

A

C

D

2

RL 25.500

1 : 100

Demolition Section EW

B5 FFL 23.500 m

B4 FFL 25.800 m

B3 FFL 28.300 m

B2 FFL 30.800 m

B1 FFL 33.300 m

LG FFL 36.100 m

Loading FFL 38.000 m

G FFL 39.210 m

LEVEL 1 FFL 42.700 m

EX. LEVEL 2 FFL UNKNOWN

EX. LEVEL 3 FFL UNKNOWN

Details of excavation at
boundary to be confirmed
with structural engineer and
contractor

EXCAVATION ZONE

Demolished roof and skylight

RL 23.220

B

E

EXISTING

EXISTING

LIFT PIT
EXCAVATION
ZONE
RL 23.700

1

EXISTING

Demolished roof and skylight

2

RL 23.220

3

Details of Excavation at
boundary to be confirmed
with structural engineer and
contractor

EXCAVATION ZONE

4

5

6
BOUNDARY

BOUNDARY

BOUNDARY

BOUNDARY

Suit 5, level 5
2-12 Foveaux Surry Hills
NSW 2010 Sydney Australia

A

For

Excavation Zone

Existing Building

Retained Existing

Demolished Existing Structure

Demolished Existing

Drawing No.

0509

18015

Author

10/26/18
Project No.

Drawn

Date Created

Demolition & Excavation Section

A

Revision

TZ

Checked

North

hayden@trevorhowse.com.au

grahame@warrensmith.com.au
david@warrensmith.com.au

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION
Drawing

Status

208 RILEY ST
SURRY HILLS

Address

Cambridge Hotel

Project

1 : 100 @ A1

Scale

Legend

0430 123 611

Trevor R Howse

BCA & Access Consultant

02 9299 1312
-

victor.mateffy@mpn.com.au

tblythe@urbis.com.au

michael.fearnley@steensenvarming.com
george.mikolajczyk@steensenvarming.com

Warren Smith & Partner

Hydraulic/Fire Engineer

02 9967 2200

Steensen Varming

Mechanical/Electrical Engineer

02 9929 7144

MPN Group

Structural Engineer

02 8233 9959

Urbis

Planner

Notes Regarding
“For Construction Documents”
Tzannes Associates (TZ) believes
that the information shown on this
drawing (when read with the
applicable specification) is
sufficient for a reasonably
competent and experienced builder
to understand the design intent;
understand the process of
construction required to achieve a
finished product conforming with
the design intent and understand
what building materials, techniques
and methods are required to
achieve that finished product

Early works DA

CIENNA GROUP

Client

Date
30.10.18

Rev

General Notes
Verify dimensions on site prior to
commencement of work. Check
existing RL’s on site. Advise
Architect of any discrepancies
before commencement. Allow for
adjustments to suit discrepancies.
Comply with relevant authorities
requirements. Comply with
Building Code of Australia
requirements. Comply with
relevant Australian Standards for
materials and construction
practice. Comply with Basix
Certificate. Do not scale from
drawings.

Copyright owned by Tzannes.
Rights to this document are subject
to payment in full of all Tzannes
fees. This document may only be
used for the express purpose for
which it has been created and any Nominated Architects
unauthorised use is at the user’s
Alec Tzannes 4174
sole risk and without limiting
Tzannes’ rights the user releases Jonathan Evans 6613
and indemnifies Tzannes from and Mladen Prnjatovic 7468
Ben Green 7066
against all loss so arising
Chi Melhem 7754

Copyright

W. tzannes.com.au
T. 61 2 9319 3744
E. tzannes@tzannes.com.au

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Item 6.
Development Application: 306, 308, 310 and 312 Cleveland Street Surry Hills
File No.:

D/2019/149

Summary
Date of Submission:

21 February 2019
(Amended plans received 10 May 2019)

Applicant/Designer:

ES Engineering and Design

Owner/Developer:

Ali Talanehzo

Cost of Works:

$58,300

Zoning:

B4 - Mixed Use zone. The proposed use and works are
permissible with consent.

Proposal Summary:

The application proposes the use of 306 and 308
Cleveland Street in association with the existing brothel at
310 and 312 Cleveland Street. The development would
add eight working rooms to the existing brothel. The
proposed trading hours are consistent with those of the
existing brothel, from 10am to midnight Sunday to
Thursday and from 10am to 2am Friday and Saturday (to
the following day). The works include the fit-out of the
rooms and connecting 308 and 310 internally.
The existing brothel currently operates with 10 rooms but
has permission for 14 rooms pursuant to development
consent D/2018/742. This consent approved alterations
and additions to 310 and 312 Cleveland Street, including
one accessible car space and pedestrian entry located on
Goodlet Lane, with the primary entrance through 310
Cleveland Street. These additions are yet to be
undertaken.
The current application would result in the expansion of the
brothel to include a total of 22 working rooms,
accommodating up to 18 sex workers at any one time.
The premises has a history of unauthorised works and has
been used as a brothel without permission. The use has
ceased pending the outcome of this application.

1

Local Planning Panel

Proposal Summary
(continued):

17 July 2019

The site is located less than 75 metres from an existing
brothel at 278-284 Cleveland Street, and adjoins and is
opposite residential dwellings. Insufficient internal waiting
areas are provided for patrons and the Plan of
Management does not state the patron capacity or how
access will be controlled from Goodlet Lane. Insufficient
information has been provided to demonstrate compliance
with accessibility provisions. The development will
therefore have an adverse impact on the character and
amenity on the surrounding area, and provides inadequate
safety and accessibility for patrons.
The development was notified and advertised for 21 days
and received 19 objections (15 unique), two petitions with
43 signatures in objection and one submission in support.
The objections raised the following concerns:


proximity to an existing brothel;



proximity to residential premises;



proximity to a place of public worship;



acoustics;



heritage impacts;



traffic and parking;



waste;



antisocial behaviour; and



insufficient information.

The application is referred to the Local Planning Panel for
determination as the development is for the purpose of a
sex services premises.
Summary Recommendation:

This proposal is recommended for refusal.

Development Controls:

(i)

State Environmental Planning Policy (Infrastructure)
2007

(ii)

Sydney Regional Environmental Plan (Sydney
Harbour Catchment) 2005

(iii)

Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012

(iv)

Sydney Development Control Plan 2012

A.

Selected Drawings

Attachments:

2

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Recommendation
It is resolved that consent be refused for Development Application No. D/2019/149 for the
following reasons:
(A)

The entrance to the site is located less than 75 metres to the entrance to an existing
brothel at 278-284 Cleveland Street and is located adjacent to and opposite residential
premises and a residential zone. Intensification and expansion of the premises will
have an adverse impact on the streetscape, character and amenity of the surrounding
area and is contrary to the following planning provisions:
Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012
(i)

Clause 1.2(2)(h) - to enhance the amenity and quality of life of local communities

(ii)

Clause 2.3(2) - B4 Mixed Use zone - To provide a mixture of compatible land
uses and to ensure uses support the viability of centres

(iii)

Clause 7.21 - Location of sex services premises

Sydney Development Control Plan 2012

(B)

(iv)

Section 2.13.1 - Cleveland Street locality statement

(v)

Section 4.2.9 - Non-residential land uses in the B4 - Mixed Use zone

(vi)

Section 4.4.6.1 - proximity to residential premises and existing sex services
premises

The internal layout and revised Plan of Management inadequately address the
following matters:


The maximum patron capacity of each room and the premises.



How access will be managed from Goodlet Lane.



The provision of a sufficient break-out area for staff.

The development is therefore likely to adversely impact the character and amenity of
the surrounding area and provide insufficient facilities for the safety and security of
staff, patrons and the general public. The development is therefore inconsistent with
the following planning provisions:
Sydney Development Control Plan 2012
(i)

Section 4.4.6.2 - Access to the premises

(ii)

Section 4.4.6.4 - Health, Safety and Security

(iii)

Section 4.4.6.6 - Plan of Management

3

Local Planning Panel

(C)

17 July 2019

The application fails to demonstrate compliance with relevant planning provisions
regarding accessibility. In particular, the application fails to identify the number of
rooms required with accessible entry and that there is an acceptable path of travel for
guests requiring an accessible entry. The development is therefore contrary to the
following planning provisions:
Sydney Development Control Plan 2012
(i)

(D)

Section 3.12.1 - Accessible design

Unauthorised works have been undertaken to the premises such that it currently
appears dilapidated, adversely impacting on its contribution to the character and
appearance of the Goodlet Street conservation area (C63). The heritage impact
statement submitted during the assessment of the application identifies works required
to rectify these unauthorised works and improve the character and appearance of the
building, however the application does not propose undertaking these works. The
development is therefore contrary to the following planning provisions:
Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012
(i)

Clause 1.2(2)(k) - to conserve the environmental heritage of the City of Sydney

(ii)

Clause 5.10 - Heritage conservation

Sydney Development Control Plan 2012
(iii)
(E)

Section 3.9.7 - Contributory buildings

The application does not include areas for waste storage and is not accompanied by a
demolition, construction and operational waste management plan. The development is
therefore inconsistent with the following planning provisions:
Sydney Development Control Plan 2012
(i)

Section 3.14 - Waste Management

Guidelines for Waste Management in New Development 2018

4

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Background
The Site and Surrounding Development
1.

A site visit was carried out by staff on 14 March 2019.

2.

The site is legally known as Lots A and B DP 443480 and Lots A and B DP 438607,
has a combined site area of 632.3sqm and contains four x two storey Victorian terrace
buildings. The site is located on the north side of Cleveland Street to the west of the
intersection with Wilton Street and with a secondary frontage to Goodlet Lane at the
rear.

3.

A brothel known as the Ginza Club operates 10 rooms within the adjoining sites at
310-312 Cleveland Street. The subject sites being 306 and 308 Cleveland Street are
currently vacant.

4.

304 Cleveland Street adjoins the site to the west and is occupied by a two storey shoptop housing attached building. 314 Cleveland Street adjoins the site to the east and
similarly contain a two storey shop-top housing semi-detached building. To the rear of
the site are residential terraces fronting Wilton Street.

5.

Opposite the site at 295 and 297 Cleveland Street are two residential terraces. A shoptop housing building occupies 299-301 Cleveland Street, and a commercial warehouse
is at 303 Cleveland Street.

6.

A mosque is located to the east of the site at 328-330 Cleveland Street and an existing
brothel containing 10 working rooms is located to the west at 278-284 Cleveland
Street. Both premises are less than 75 metres from the entrance to the subject site.

7.

The site is located within the Goodlet Street conservation area (C63).

8.

Photos of the site and surrounds are provided below:

brothels

mosque

Figure 1: Aerial image of subject site in blue and the surrounding area

5

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 2: 306-308 Cleveland Street

Figure 3: 310-312 Cleveland Street (the existing brothel)

6

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 4: The rear of 312 Cleveland Street from within the site

Figure 5: The rear of 310 Cleveland Street from within the site

7

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 6: The rear of 308 Cleveland Street from within the site

Figure 7: The rear of 306 Cleveland Street from within the site

8

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 8: The rear fences of 306-308 Cleveland Street on Goodlet Lane

Figure 9: The rear fences of 308-312 Cleveland Street on Goodlet Lane

9

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 10: Goodlet Lane looking west from Wilton Street

Proposal
9.

The application proposes the use of 306 and 308 Cleveland Street as a brothel in
association with the existing brothel, Ginza Club, at 310-312 Cleveland Street. Eight
additional working rooms will be provided within 306 and 308 Cleveland Street, in
addition to the 10 working rooms within 310-312 Cleveland Street (as discussed
below, 310-312 Cleveland Street has extant approval for a total of 14 working rooms).

10.

The revised Plan of Management submitted during the course of the assessment
proposes to continue the existing trading hours of the Ginza Club which are as follows:
Proposed Trading Hours
Sunday to Thursday

10.30am - midnight

Friday and Saturday

10.30am - 2am (Sunday morning)

11.

The revised Plan of Management states that a maximum of 18 sex workers will be
employed per day.

12.

The proposed works include partial demolition of internal walls between 306-310
Cleveland Street to provide internal access between the buildings. No external works
or additional floor space are proposed.

10

Local Planning Panel

13.

17 July 2019

Plans of the proposed development are provided below and at Attachment A.

Figure 11: The proposed ground floor layout

11

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 12: The proposed first floor layout

History Relevant to the Development Application
Development consents
306 and 308 Cleveland Street
14.

On 22 March 2018, applications HWC/2018/50 and HWC/2018/51 were granted to
remove the render from the rear elevation of both terraces and replace the timber
windows like-for-like. Alterations to the width of the internal stairs were not approved.
Based on the Heritage Impact Statement accompanying the application, the windows
have not been replaced with timber frames.

15.

On 21 November 2017, applications HWC/2017/316 and HWC/2017/317 were granted
to paint the buildings.

12

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

16.

On 24 November 2017, development applications D/2017/1093 and D/2017/1094 were
refused for alterations and additions including demolition of the rear wings and
construction of three storey additions and semi-detached two storey secondary
dwelling fronting Goodlet Lane. It appears that some demolition has occurred.

17.

On 8 July 2015, development consents D/2015/793 and D/2015/795 were granted for
the removal of the rear boundary walls and construction of roller doors to Goodlet
Lane.

18.

On 21 November 2003, development consent U03/00321 was granted to convert the
existing boarding house at 306 Cleveland Street to a single dwelling. This is the most
recent approved use of this property.

19.

On 10 February 2003, development consent U02/01284 was granted to regularise the
use of 308 Cleveland Street as a boarding house containing five boarding rooms. This
is the most recent approved use of this property.

310-312 Cleveland Street
20.

On 10 October 2018, development consent D/2018/742 was granted for alterations
and additions to the existing brothel including ground and first floor rear additions to
provide four new work rooms and a laundry. The approved works and layout are
shown hatched in figures 11 and 12 above.

21.

On 24 March 1999, development consent U98/01208 was granted to regularise the
use of the premises as a brothel (bondage and discipline), trading from 10.30am to
midnight Sunday to Thursday and from 10.30am to 2am Fridays and Saturdays
(including the following day). The approval was for 10 work rooms.

278-284 Cleveland Street
22.

A current development application is under assessment, D/2019/357 which seeks to
regularise the use of an additional four working rooms. The premises had received
approval for six rooms pursuant to U97/00541. Unauthorised internal alterations have
been undertaken to accommodate the work rooms. The existing approved hours for
the brothel are from 11am to 3am every day.

Compliance history
23.

On 22 January 2019, a brothel closure order was issued for 306-308 Cleveland Street.
The premises has ceased use, pending determination of the subject application.

24.

On 21 March 2019, a Notice of Intention to Give an Order was issued to the owners of
306-308 Cleveland Street for unauthorised works to the properties. The works are
generally internal, with the exception of changes to openings at the rear, and
associated with the unauthorised use of the premises as a brothel.

Economic/Social/Environmental Impacts
25.

The application has been assessed under Section 4.15 of the Environmental Planning
and Assessment Act 1979, including consideration of the following matters:
(a)

Environmental Planning Instruments and DCPs.

13

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

State Environmental Planning Policy 55 - Remediation of Land
26.

The aim of SEPP 55 is to ensure that a change of land use will not increase the risk to
health, particularly in circumstances where a more sensitive land use is proposed.

27.

A search of the City's archives indicates that the sites have historically been used for
residential purposes and are therefore unlikely to be contaminated. The proposed use
is not listed under clause 7 as requiring a preliminary site investigation to be
undertaken. Council's Environmental Health officer raised no concerns with the
proposal with regard to contamination. As such, the site does not require remediation
and, insofar as the SEPP is concerned, the site is suitable for the proposed
development.

State Environmental Planning Policy (Infrastructure) 2007
28.

The provisions of SEPP (Infrastructure) 2007 have been considered in the assessment
of the development application.

Clause 101
29.

The application is subject to Clause 101 of the SEPP as the site has frontage to
Cleveland Street, which is a classified road. The proposed use is not sensitive to
vehicle noise and emissions and does not require vehicular access to Cleveland
Street. As such the development satisfies the provisions of the SEPP.

Sydney Regional Environmental Plan (Sydney Harbour Catchment) 2005 (Deemed
SEPP)
30.

The site is located within the designated hydrological catchment of Sydney Harbour
and is subject to the provisions of the above SREP.

31.

The Sydney Harbour Catchment Planning Principles must be considered in the
carrying out of development within the catchment. The key relevant principles include:

32.

(a)

protect and improve hydrological, ecological and geomorphologic processes;

(b)

consider cumulative impacts of development within the catchment;

(c)

improve water quality of urban runoff and reduce quantity and frequency of urban
run-off; and

(d)

protect and rehabilitate riparian corridors and remnant vegetation.

Part of the site is within the Sydney Harbour Catchment and eventually drains into the
Harbour. However, the site is not located in the Foreshores Waterways Area or
adjacent to a waterway and therefore, with the exception of the objective of improved
water quality, the objectives of the SREP are not applicable to the proposed
development. The development is consistent with the controls contained with the
deemed SEPP.

Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012
33.

The relevant matters to be considered under Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012
for the proposed development are outlined below.

14

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Zoning
34.

The site is located within the B4 - Mixed Use zone. The proposed sex services
premises (brothel) is permissible in the zone with consent. Notwithstanding, the
development by way of intensifying an existing brothel and its proximity to an existing
brothel is contrary to the objective of the zone to ensure it is compatible with
surrounding land uses. Further discussion is provided within the report.

Clause 5.10 Heritage conservation
35.

The site is located within the Goodlet Street conservation area (C63) and is not a
heritage item. Opposite the site on Cleveland Street are seven heritage items, which
will not be adversely affected by the proposal.

36.

A heritage impact statement was submitted during the assessment of the application.
The statement identifies a schedule of works required to rectify unsympathetic
unauthorised alterations to the property, which are not addressed by the proposal.

37.

Further discussion is provided under the Issues heading.

Clause 7.21 Location of sex services premises
38.

The objective of this clause is to minimise land use conflicts and adverse amenity
impacts relating to sex services premises.

39.

In deciding whether to grant development consent to development for the purposes of
sex services premises, the consent authority must consider whether the operation of
the sex services premises is likely to cause a disturbance in the neighbourhood:
(a)

because of its size, location, hours of operation or number of employees, or

(b)

taking into account the cumulative impact of the sex services premises along
with other sex services premises operating in the neighbourhood during similar
hours.

40.

The site is located less than 75 metres (refer to DCP section below) from the entrance
to an existing brothel at 278-284 Cleveland Street and, by way of substantially
increasing the number of rooms and employees of the existing Ginza club, will have an
adverse impact on the neighbourhood.

41.

Further discussion is provided under the Issues heading.

Sydney Development Control Plan 2012
42.

The relevant matters to be considered under Sydney Development Control Plan 2012
for the proposed development are outlined below.

15

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

2.13.1 Cleveland Street Locality
The subject site is located in the Cleveland Street locality. The character statement seeks
to enhance the function of the street as a place for people. Commercial and retail uses are
encouraged to support a greater pedestrian focus, while retaining the residential
component to sustain those uses.
The conversion of 306 and 308 Cleveland Street from residential to sex services premises
is contrary to the desired future character of the Cleveland Street locality, in that the
nature of brothels require inactive frontages. The loss of residential accommodation also
hinders the locality to sustain commercial uses. Therefore extending the existing brothel to
occupy 306 and 308 Cleveland Street is contrary to the desired future character of the
locality.

3. General Provisions

Compliance

Comment

3.2 Defining the Public Domain

No

Brothels by nature present inactive
frontages for discretion and to protect
the amenity of the surrounding area. In
addition to blocking out windows, the
proposal will not permit entry from the
primary frontage through 306 and 308
Cleveland Street.

3.9 Heritage

No

The site is located within the Goodlet
Street conservation area (C63) with the
terrace dwellings identified as
contributory buildings.
A heritage impact assessment was
submitted during the course of the
assessment.
The amended plans do not reflect the
recommendations of the heritage impact
statement and will not rectify the
adverse unauthorised works undertaken
to the property.
Further discussion is provided under the
Issues heading.

3.11 Transport and Parking

No

3.12 Accessible Design

No

Schedule 7.8.5 Accessible car
parking spaces

Partial
compliance

While the plans indicate an accessible
car space is provided at the rear of 310
Cleveland Street, no discussion is
provided to demonstrate that the site
provides accessible egress and facilities
for people with disability.
No cycle parking is provided.

16

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

3. General Provisions

Compliance

Comment

3.14 Waste

No

The Plan of Management states that the
existing waste contractor will continue to
service the site weekly. However, the
plans do not indicate where waste will
be stored and separated.

4.2 Residential flat,
commercial and mixed use
developments

Compliance

Comment

4.2.9 Non-residential
development in the B4 Mixed
Uses Zone

No

The provisions regard protecting the
amenity of residential properties located
within the B4 - Mixed Use zone. Of
relevance to the application,
considerations include noise impacts,
operating hours and privacy. The
proposal is not considered to adequately
address potential impacts on residential
amenity of adjoining residential
premises.

The application proposes the intensification of an existing brothel by occupying adjoining
sites (and thereby an increase in floor area) and increasing the number of working rooms.
The Sydney DCP 2012 states that the provisions for sex industry premises apply not only to
new premises but equally to proposals that intensify an existing adult entertainment or sex
industry premises.

17

Local Planning Panel

4.4.6 Sex industry premises
and adult entertainment

17 July 2019

Compliance

Comment

4.4.6.1 Location of Premises
Adult entertainment and sex industry premises must not be located:
(a) within buildings containing
a residential use

No

The site is located less than 75 metres
from an existing brothel at 278
Cleveland Street (currently seeking
approval to regularise the unauthorised
increase in working rooms) and adjoins
and is opposite residential dwellings on
Cleveland Street and Goodlet Lane.

(b) immediately adjacent or
directly opposite land
developed for residential
purposes
(c) adjacent or directly
opposite a sensitive land use
as defined in the definitions
above unless separated by at
least:

As discussed further under the Issues
heading, the proposal is contrary to the
principles of the control which seeks to
avoid a clustering of sex industry
premises and protect residential
amenity.

(i) one other non-sensitive land
use
or
(ii) a waterway, an undeveloped site or a road, each
of which are to be greater than
30 metres in width
(iii) within a radius of 75m of
an existing, approved adult
entertainment or sex industry
premise as measured from the
centre of the primary access to
the proposed and existing
premises. This includes
premises located within a
neighbouring local government
area.

18

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

4.4.6.2 Design of Premises
(1) All entrances and exits are
to be:

No

The development relies on the existing
entry from Cleveland Street through 310
Cleveland Street which is safe yet
discreet. The submitted plans maintain
two separate pedestrian access points
from Goodlet Lane.

(a) designed to facilitate the
privacy of staff and visitors
without compromising personal
safety

Concern has been raised with the
applicant during the assessment of the
application regarding access from
Goodlet Lane. If the application were to
be supported, access from the rear
would only be permitted for people with
disability, as the Cleveland Street
entrance is not suitable for accessible
entry. It is noted that this matter was not
previously raised during the assessment
of D/2018/742, however the matter is
significant as the subject application
proposes a substantial intensification of
the use and has been raised in
submissions.

(b) visible from public areas
and not obstructed by any
existing or proposed
landscaping
(c) provided with adequate
lighting
(d) designed to maximise
surveillance and safety

(2) The external appearance of
the premises must ensure the
brothel is not a prominent
feature in the street.

Yes

The development would maintain the
existing facades of the buildings.

(3) Premises are to be clearly
numbered, with the number
clearly visible from the street,
subject to the signage
provisions under Section 3.16.

Yes

The existing premises and entrance is
clearly numbered and complies with
Section 3.16.

(4) There must be no display
of restricted material, sexrelated products, sex workers,
performers, or nude or semidressed staff in windows or
doors, or outside the premises.

Yes

The premises does not display products
and services offered.

19

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

4.4.6.2 Design of Premises
(5) The interior of the premises
must not be visible from any
place in the public domain.

Yes

(6) Where the interior is visible
from neighbouring buildings,
adequate measures are to be
taken to screen the interior of
the building, for example
through the use of blinds or
screens.

Yes

4.4.6.4 Health, safety and
security

No

4.4.6.6 Management of
operations

No

The windows are internally covered. If
the application were to be approved, a
condition would be recommended
requiring the blinds to be closed at all
times.

A revised Plan of Management for the
entire venue has been submitted during
the course of the assessment. Concern
is raised that the development does not
provide an increased waiting area for
patrons, and does not provide sufficient
break-out space for staff. The Plan does
not state the maximum number of
guests permitted on site and does not
specify the maximum number of guests
per room.
The Plan also provides insufficient
information regarding rear lane access
as discussed further under the Issues
heading.

Issues
Anti-clustering provisions
43.

Clause 7.21 (Location of sex services premises) of the Sydney LEP 2012 states:
In deciding whether to grant development consent to development for the purposes of
sex services premises, the consent authority must consider whether the operation of
the sex services premises is likely to cause a disturbance in the neighbourhood:
(a)

because of its size, location, hours of operation or number of employees, or

(b)

taking into account the cumulative impact of the sex services premises along
with other sex services premises operating in the neighbourhood during similar
hours.

20

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

44.

Section 4.4.6.1(1)(c) of the Sydney DCP 2012 restricts the location of new and
intensified brothels such that they are a minimum 75 metres from the entrance to
existing brothels measured as a radius and not opposite or adjoining residential
premises. The minimum separation requirement aims to protect the character and
amenity of the neighbourhood by ensuring that sex services premises do not cluster in
certain locations and are adequately separated from residential properties. As such
clause 7.21 of the Sydney LEP 2012 and section 4.4.6.1 of the Sydney DCP 2012 are
intrinsically linked.

45.

The entrance to the existing brothel is located approximately 60 metres from the
entrance to 278, the brothel located at 278-284 Cleveland Street, and the premises
operate at similar times. While the entrances to the premises are located on different
streets and not visible to each other, intensifying the existing brothel by expanding to
adjoining sites is contrary to Section 4.4.6.1(1)(c)(iii) of the Sydney DCP 2012.

46.

The subject site also adjoins residential uses at 304 and 314 Cleveland Street, and
opposite residential uses at 295 and 297 Cleveland Street and 115 Wilton Street
(located within the R1 - General Residential zone). Intensifying the existing brothel is
contrary to Section 4.4.6.1(1)(b) of the Sydney DCP 2012 which aims to separate sex
services premises and residential premises.

47.

Development consent D/2018/742 approved the addition of four working rooms to the
existing premises at 310-312 Cleveland Street, creating a total of 14 work rooms. The
additions were considered acceptable as there was no increase in sex workers on site
and the premises would remain of a small scale. In contrast, the proposed
development would occupy two adjoining sites, nearly doubling the site area and street
frontage, increasing the number of working rooms from 14 to 22 and increase the
number of sex workers on site from 10 to 18.

48.

It is noted that development application D/2019/357 is currently under assessment to
regularise the use of four unauthorised additional work rooms at 278, which may also
further intensify the cumulative impact of brothels on the local area. This proposal
differs from the subject application however as the intensified use is contained within
the existing building.

21

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 13: The entrance to the brothel at 278 Cleveland Street (located on Perry Street and in red) is
within a 75 metre radius of the entrance to the subject brothel (located at 310 Cleveland Street in
blue). 306 and 308 Cleveland Street are in yellow

49.

The existing proximity between the two brothels does not accord with the community's
expectations regarding the location of sex services premises. Intensifying the use by
occupying the adjoining two properties and increasing the number of work rooms and
sex workers will exacerbate this existing non-compliance and is therefore not
supported.

50.

That the premises are located adjoining and opposite residential properties contributes
to the cumulative impact of the proposal on the local area.

Planning principle
51.

The Land and Environment Court in Yao v Liverpool City Council [2017] NSWLEC
1167 revised the planning principle for the assessment of brothels established in
Martyn v Hornsby Shire Council [2004] NSWLEC 614. The revision has resulted in the
planning principle requiring consideration of the following matters:
When considering whether to grant consent for a development application for a “sex
services premises” a consent authority should to take into consideration such of the
following matters as are relevant to the development application:
1.

the proximity to any sensitive land uses, such as, but not exclusively educational
establishments, places of public worship, child care centres etc

2.

the proximity to any premises used for residential accommodation

22

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

3.

paths of travel for different members of the community near the premises

4.

the hours of operation

5.

signage

6.

means of access to the premises

7.

safety of patrons and employees

8.

streetscape appearance

9.

the existing or anticipated character of the area

10.

car parking and public transport access

11.

social impact

12

impacts of clustering multiple sex services premises

52.

The applicant was requested to address the planning principle, and responded by
addressing provisions (1) with regard to the proximity of the site to the mosque at 328330 Cleveland Street; (3) with regard to paths of travel for nearby uses and (6) with
regard to accessing the site.

53.

With regard to (1), the applicant states that the brothel has been operating since 1999
without incident, and while 40 metres away is adequately separated from the mosque
by neighbouring properties and Wilton Street.

54.

With regard to (3), the applicant states that Cleveland Street is used by a large crosssection of the community, the site is discreet in appearance and traffic noise on
Cleveland Street obscures any potential acoustic impacts.

55.

With regard to (6), the entrance to the subject site will remain at 310 Cleveland Street
and is adequately separated from adjoining properties.

56.

The applicant has not adequately addressed any other relevant matters of the
principle.

Response
57.

Section 4.4.6.1(c) of the Sydney DCP 2012 states that sex services premises should
not be located adjacent or directly opposite sensitive land uses, which includes places
of public worship, and should be separated by a minimum of one non-sensitive land
use. As sufficient separation is provided between the mosque and brothel in
accordance with Council's controls, the proximity is considered acceptable and
satisfies part (1) of the planning principle.

58.

With regard to (2), the proximity of residential premises to the site is contrary to
Section 4.4.6.1(b) of the Sydney DCP 2012 and is not supported. Concern is raised
that the small waiting room will fail to accommodate patrons and may intensify loitering
in the surrounding streets, disrupting the amenity of residents.

23

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

59.

With regard to (3), concern has been raised within submissions regarding the use of
Goodlet Lane by children and deem this an incongruous mix of uses. Furthermore, a
submission has been received from the NSW Department of Education raising
concerns that school children will travel past the brothel following the completion of the
new Inner Sydney High School on the corner of Cleveland Street and Chalmers Street,
approximately 290 metres to the west of the subject site. The applicant has stated
verbally that approval for pedestrian access was granted under U98/01208 however
the conditions of consent and approved Plan of Management do not specify this.
Concern is raised that permitting pedestrian access from Goodlet Lane, which adjoins
a residential zone. The Plan of Management does not adequately address how
patrons accessing the site from the rear will be monitored and whether this would be
limited to those patrons requiring an accessible entrance.

60.

With regard to (4), the premises will maintain the existing trading hours of 10.30am to
midnight Sunday to Thursday and from 10.30am to 2am Friday and Saturday (and
Sunday morning). While the late night trading management provisions of Section 3.15
of the Sydney DCP 2012 do not apply to brothels, it is noted that the draft controls
endorsed by Council and currently under final exhibition will identify the subject
premises as within a local centre zone, permitting late night trading up to 2am.

61.

The development does not propose additional signage to that existing and as such
satisfies (5).

62.

With regard to (6) and as previously discussed, concern is raised from the community
towards providing means of access from Goodlet Lane.

63.

As previously discussed, concern is raised that the existing waiting room is insufficient
to accommodate patrons and as such may result in patrons loitering. The application
provides no discussion on the number of people expected to frequent the premises
and how patrons will be managed during peak periods. The poor internal layout will
therefore compromise the safety of patrons and fails to satisfy (7).

64.

No works are proposed to the front of the buildings, and the development seeks to
retain the existing single entry from Cleveland Street through 310. However, as
previously discussed, the development is incompatible with the Cleveland Street
locality statement which encourages active frontages to improve the experience of
pedestrians. That brothels are required to obscure windows and are by nature discreet
is contrary to this control. As such, expanding the brothel into the adjoining two terrace
buildings doubles the extent of inactive frontage in this location and does not satisfy (8)
and (9).

65.

With regard to (10), the site is located within 800 metres of Central Station, while
Cleveland Street is well serviced by buses and taxis. The development provides one
car space (within the existing approved premises) at the rear for patrons requiring
accessible entry. It is unclear how patrons requiring accessible entry would access the
site from Goodlet Lane, exacerbating concerns regarding loitering and impacts on the
adjoining residential area.

24

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

66.

With regard to (11) and (12), the anti-clustering provisions under Section 4.4.6.1 of the
Sydney DCP 2012 and the desire to locate premises away from residences aim to
avoid the creation of red light districts, protect the desired character and amenity of
local areas and limit anti-social behaviour associated with brothels. Intensifying the use
of the brothel by substantially increasing the number of working rooms, sex workers on
site, expanding from two terrace buildings to four separated less than 75 metres from
an existing brothel (which is also seeking to regularise an intensification of use) is
contrary to the controls for the site.

67.

The development is therefore deemed to be contrary to the planning principle for
brothels established in Yao v Liverpool City Council [2017] NSWLEC 1167.

Heritage
68.

The site is located within the Goodlet Street conservation area (C63) with the buildings
identified as contributory items. D/2018/742 approved extensive alterations and
additions to the rear of 310-312 Cleveland Street including the addition of lanewaystyle buildings. Unauthorised works have been undertaken to 306 and 308 Cleveland
Street, none of which the subject application proposes to rectify.

69.

Section 3.9.7 of the Sydney DCP 2012 regards development to contributory items and
specifies that development should reinstate significant features and building elements,
and remove unsympathetic alterations. Works are to use appropriate materials,
finishes and colours and respect the pattern, style and dimensions of original doors
and windows.

70.

The Heritage Impact Statement accompanying the application specifies the following
schedule of conservation works are required to restore the contributory features of the
rear of the terraces:

71.

(a)

The rear wing brickwork is generally in poor condition. Render has recently been
removed and should be reinstated. Some areas of mortar have degraded and
require repointing. Missing bricks, flashings and sills should be replaced.

(b)

Original timber windows have recently been removed from the rear of the
principal form and the rear wing. The vertical proportions of the replacement
aluminium windows are unsympathetic to the terraces and the Conservation
Area and should be removed and replaced with double hung timber windows of
the same dimensions as the original. Refer to Figure 8(above) for details of the
original window configurations.

As the application does not seek to undertake the necessary works listed in the
applicant's Heritage Impact Statement, the development fails to satisfy Section 3.9.7 of
the Sydney DCP 2012.

Access
72.

The application proposes to maintain the main entrance to the expanded premises
from the front of 310 Cleveland Street and the secondary, accessible car space and
pedestrian access from Goodlet Lane. The Plan of Management states that
surveillance cameras will be placed at both entrances and entry provided by staff at
the front counter.

73.

Insufficient information is provided regarding patrons accessing the site from Goodlet
Lane, including the following:

25

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

(a)

Will patrons be directed to access the site from Cleveland Street and only those
requiring an accessible entry from Goodlet Lane? How?

(b)

Will patrons have to ring in advance if they wish to park on site? How will
management provide access for vehicles without requiring patrons to obstruct
the lane?

(c)

The path from the rear of the site to the front desk passes the laundry and
working rooms. Will staff collect patrons at the Goodlet Lane door to ensure
supervision when walking through the venue?

74.

Furthermore, the application is not accompanied by an access report, demonstrating
that a sufficient number of rooms are provided for workers and patrons with disability in
accordance with DDA and the NCC.

75.

The development therefore fails to satisfy Section 3.12 of the Sydney DCP 2012 with
regard to accessible design.

Other Impacts of the Development
76.

The revised architectural plans do not specify the unauthorised works previously
undertaken, and any necessary rectification works.

77.

The development does not provide sufficient evidence to demonstrate compliance with
the NCC, particularly regarding accessibility.

Suitability of the site for the Development
78.

The development is contrary to Section 4.4.6.1 which seeks to avoid the clustering of
sex services premises within a 75 metre radius of each other, and separate residential
uses from sex services premises. The development is contrary to these controls by
substantially increasing the number of working rooms, sex workers on site and
increasing the number of buildings occupied from two to four. The site is therefore not
suitable for the proposed development.

Internal Referrals
79.

Council's Environmental Health officer reviewed the application and raised no
objections subject to the imposition of conditions.

80.

Council's Safe City and Waste officers reviewed the application and raised concerns
as discussed within the report.

81.

In particular, Council's Safe City officer states that the waiting room is too small to
accommodate guests while the staff facilities are inadequate and it is unacceptable to
expect workers to take respite in their rooms. Goodlet Lane is not recommended as an
entry point to the premises so that impacts on noise, safety and amenity are kept to a
minimum. Cleveland Street has greater sightlines and natural surveillance, making it
safer for people accessing the business. Cleveland Street entrance is appropriate to
screen patrons accessing the premises.

26

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

External Referrals
Notification, Advertising and Delegation
82.

In accordance with Schedule 1 the Sydney DCP 2012, the proposed development is
required to be notified and advertised. As such the application was notified and
advertised for a period of 21 days between 26 February 2019 and 20 March 2019. As
a result of this notification a total of 506 properties were notified and there were 19
objections (15 unique), two petitions with 43 signatures in objection and one
submission in support received. The submissions objecting to the proposal raised the
following concerns:
(a)

The site is located within 75 metres of an existing brothel contrary to Council's
controls. The surrounding area is overburdened with sex services premises.
Response - The intensification and expansion of the brothel is incompatible with
Section 4.4.6.1(c)(iii) having regard to its proximity to an existing brothel (also
seeking to intensify) and is therefore not supported.

(b)

The development is incompatible with the surrounding residential area,
particularly as children use the back lane to play.
Response - The site is located adjoining and opposite residential properties and
as such the scale of the development is incompatible with Section 4.4.6.1(c) and
the planning principle established in Yao v Liverpool City Council [2017]
NSWLEC 1167.

(c)

The premises is within proximity to the mosque and will have an adverse impact
on the amenity of the congregation.
Response - The premises is adequately separated from the mosque in
accordance with Council's controls.

(d)

The existing brothel adversely impacts the acoustic amenity of neighbouring
properties, particularly where patrons access the site from Goodlet Lane.
Response - It is noted that no noise complaints have been received regarding
the existing brothel during the previous three years, however concern is raised
that the intensification and expansion of the use, particularly regarding providing
access from Goodlet Lane and the limited waiting area internally for patrons, is
likely to adversely impact the surrounding area.

(e)

The development will adversely impact the safety and security of school students
attending the soon to be completed Inner Sydney High School on the corner of
Cleveland Street and Chalmers Street.
Response - The proximity of the school is not raised as a reason for refusal.

(f)

The development will contribute to needles in the surrounding area.
Response - The Plan of Management provides adequate measures to manage
needle waste.

(g)

The development does not adequately address Council's waste policy.

27

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Response - The development does not identify an area for waste and does not
adequately discuss waste collection.
(h)

Insufficient parking is provided and, with additional traffic, will adversely impact
the amenity of the surrounding area.
Response - The development is not required to provide parking, and is well
served by public transport. However, concern is raised regarding managing
access to the accessible car space at the rear.

(i)

The development will have an adverse heritage impact on the premises and
conservation area.
Response - The development does not propose the rectification works identified
in the accompanying heritage impact statement and as such fails to demonstrate
compliance with heritage conservation provisions under Section 3.9.7 of the
Sydney DCP 2012.

(j)

The development application lacks details and is unclear as to the proposed
works and number of rooms.
Response - Amended plans were received during the course of the assessment,
in response to concerns raised by Council officers. Notwithstanding, the
application is not supported.

Public Interest
83.

For the reasons provided in this report, the development is contrary to Council's
relevant planning controls and is therefore not in the public interest.

Relevant Legislation
84.

The Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

Conclusion
85.

The application proposes the expansion of the existing brothel, located at 310-312
Cleveland Street, into the adjoining buildings at 306 and 310 Cleveland Street. Having
regard development consent D/2018/742, the brothel will increase from 10 to 22
working rooms and from 10 to 18 workers on site at any one time. The existing trading
hours from 10am to midnight Sunday to Thursday and from 10am to 2am Friday to
Saturday would be maintained.

86.

The development is located approximately 60 metres of the existing brothel at 278-284
Cleveland Street, and adjoins and is opposite residential premises on Cleveland Street
and Goodlet Lane, contrary to Section 4.4.6.1 of the Sydney DCP 2012. The
development is therefore likely to have an adverse impact on the character and
amenity of the surrounding area, contrary to Clause 7.21 of the Sydney LEP 2012.

28

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

87.

A heritage impact statement was submitted during the assessment of the application
which identifies rectification works to improve the appearance of the building. The
application does not propose undertaking these works and as such will have an
adverse heritage impact on the Goodlet Street conservation area (C63).

88.

The development provides insufficient information patron management, staff facilities,
access and waste management with regard to relevant planning controls.

89.

The application was notified and advertised for 21 days and received 19 objections (15
unique), two petitions with 43 signatures in opposition and one submission in support.

90.

The development will adversely impact on the character and amenity of the
surrounding area and is therefore not in the public interest.

GRAHAM JAHN, AM
Director City Planning, Development and Transport
David Zabell, Senior Planner

29

Attachment A
Selected Drawings

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Item 7.
Development Application: 117-119 Foveaux Street, Surry Hills
File No.:

D/2018/761

Summary
Date of Submission:

6 July 2018
(Amended plans received 7 November 2018, 4 February
2019 and 4 June 2019)

Applicant/Architect:

Bureau SRH Pty Ltd

Developer/Owner:

Foveaux Surry Hills Pty Ltd

Cost of Works:

$2,687,676

Zoning:

B4 - Mixed Use. The proposed mixed use residential and
retail development is permissible with consent.

Proposal Summary:

The application proposes partial demolition, adaptive reuse
of existing terraces with accompanying alterations and
additions and construction of a residential apartment
building to the rear of the site. Two retail premises would
be located on the ground floor of the terraces, one
apartment located on the first floor and attic of the terraces
and three within the apartment building to the rear.
The development has been amended during the course of
assessment including a reduction in the height of the
development, reduction in the number of apartments from
five to four and increase the upper level setbacks fronting
Sophia Lane at the rear.
The development exceeds the maximum 15 metre height
of buildings development standard by 2.1 metres (14%). A
request to vary the standard in accordance with Clause 4.6
of the Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 has been
submitted, demonstrating that compliance with the
standard is unreasonable and unnecessary having regard
to the objectives of the height of buildings development
standard and that there are sufficient environmental
planning grounds to justify the variation. The statement
has adequately addressed the provisions of the clause and
demonstrated that the variation is in the public interest.

1

Local Planning Panel

Proposal Summary
(continued):

17 July 2019

The development as amended complies with the maximum
permitted floor space ratio of 2.5:1.
The development has been assessed with regard to the
design quality principles of the State Environmental
Planning Policy 65 - Design Quality of Residential
Apartment Development and the accompanying Apartment
Design Guide. The development generally meets the
design criteria of the relevant objectives, with the exception
of the provision of deep soil and communal open space.
Sufficient landscaping and private open space is provided
to mitigate non-compliance and meets the design guidance
of the relevant objectives.
The upper level setbacks have been introduced to the rear
of the building to provide a transition in height to the
adjoining terraces on Sophia Lane. The extent of
overshadowing caused by the development on 70 and 72
Sophia Street is acceptable having regard to the built form
controls for the sites, the modifications undertaken to those
properties and the degree to which the building has been
modified to reduce overshadowing and maintain solar
access to habitable room windows during midwinter.
Therefore while the development does not comply with
Section 4.2.3.1 of the Sydney Development Control Plan
2012, it is acceptable in this context.
The development as amended achieves design excellence
having regard to the form and scale of the apartment
building, its relationship to the streetscape and
neighbouring buildings, the provision of landscaping and
consideration of neighbour’s amenity.
The application was notified and advertised for 28 days
and received four objections. The application was renotified for 14 days following the first submission of
amended plans and received three submissions. The
submissions raised the following concerns:


non-compliance with the height standard;



overshadowing;



noise;



loss of sky views;



privacy;



heritage;



water pressure; and



the concerns are addressed within the report.

2

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

The development is therefore recommended for approval.
Summary Recommendation:

The development application is recommended for
approval, subject to conditions.

Development Controls:

(i)

State Environmental Planning Policy 65 - Design
Quality of Residential Apartment Development

(ii)

Apartment Design Guide 2015

(iii)

State Environmental Planning Policy 55 Remediation of Land

(iv)

Sydney Regional Environmental Plan (Sydney
Harbour Catchment) 2005 (Deemed SEPP)

(v)

State Environmental Planning Policy (Building
Sustainability Index: BASIX) 2004

(vi)

Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012

(vii) Sydney Development Control Plan 2012
(viii) City of Sydney Development Contributions Plan 2015
Attachments:

A.

Recommended Conditions of Consent

B.

Selected Drawings

C.

Solar Access Diagrams

D.

Clause 4.6 Variation Request

3

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Recommendation
It is resolved that:
(A)

The written request seeking a variation to Clause 4.3 'height of buildings' development
standard in accordance with Clause 4.6 'Exceptions to development standards' of the
Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 be supported in this instance.

(B)

Consent be granted to Development Application No. D/2018/761 subject to the
conditions set out in Attachment A to the subject report.

Reasons for Recommendation
The application is recommended for approval for the following reasons:
(A)

The development is permissible in the B4 – Mixed Use zone and consistent with the
zone objectives.

(B)

The requested variation to the height of buildings development standard is upheld
because the consent authority is satisfied that the applicant's written request has
adequately addressed the matters required to be addressed by Clause 4.6 of the
Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 and the proposed development would be in
the public interest because it is consistent with the objectives of height of buildings
development standard and the B4 - Mixed Use zone.

(C)

The development as amended achieves design excellence having regard to the form
and scale of the apartment building, its relationship to the streetscape and
neighbouring buildings, the provision of landscaping and consideration of neighbour’s
amenity.

(D)

The development will have an acceptable impact on the character and appearance on
the Little Riley Street conservation area (C65) in accordance with Clause 5.10 of the
Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 and Section 3.9 of the Sydney Development
Control Plan 2012.

(E)

The development addresses the design quality principles of State Environmental
Planning Policy 65 - Design Quality of Residential Apartment Development and the
accompanying Apartment Design Guide, providing a good standard of amenity for
residents and protecting the character and amenity of the surrounding area.

(F)

The extent of overshadowing caused by the proposal has been reduced through
amendments during the assessment of the application and meets Objective 3B-2 of
the Apartment Design Guide. Non-compliance with overshadowing controls under
Section 4.2.3.1 of the Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 are acceptable in
accordance with Section 1.1.

(G)

For the reasons above, the development is in the public interest.

4

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Background
The Site and Surrounding Development
1.

Site visits were carried out by staff on 23 July and 6 August 2018.

2.

The site, legally known as Lot A DP 436160, is located on the south side of Foveaux
Street with a secondary frontage to Sophia Lane at the rear. The site area is 224.4sqm
and slopes from Sophia Lane to Foveaux Street and from east to west.

3.

Two Victorian terrace buildings fronting Foveaux Street with an attached garage to the
rear occupy the site and contain two retail units at ground floor and one residential unit
above. The site is not a heritage item and does not contain any significant vegetation.

4.

The surrounding area, forming part of the Little Riley Street conservation area (C65), is
characterised by a mix of terraces to south, apartment buildings adjoining the east and
west and commercial towers opposite. Foveaux Street is a one way thoroughfare and
secondary commercial strip within Surry Hills.

5.

Photos of the site and surrounds are provided below:

Figure 1: Aerial image of subject site in red and surrounding area

5

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 2: Site viewed from Foveaux Street

Figure 3: Site viewed from Sophia Lane

6

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 4: The rear elevation of the terrace

Figure 5: The view looking west on Sophia Lane

7

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Proposal
6.

Consent is sought for alterations and additions to the terrace buildings and
construction of a four storey apartment building with basement to the rear of the site.
Four apartments and two retail tenancies will occupy the site.

7.

The terrace buildings will accommodate two retail tenancies and a two bedroom
apartment above. Dormer windows will be constructed within the front roof plane with
internal alterations to accommodate the proposed uses.

8.

The apartment building at the rear will accommodate services, storage and the
residential lobby (accessed from Foveaux Street through the terrace at no. 119
Foveaux Street). Three apartments will be located above, with secondary access
provided from Sophia Lane.

9.

The overall building height is 17.1 metres (measured to the height of the parapet of the
apartment building at the northwest corner). The gross floor area of the building is
561sqm (the accompanying gross floor area plans incorrectly exclude internal, noncommon stairs).

10.

The materials schedule accompanying the application proposes constructing the
apartment building with off-form concrete and charcoal aluminium doors, window
frames and screens.

Figure 6: A photomontage of the Foveaux Street frontage

8

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 7: A photomontage of the rear elevation on Sophia Lane

History Relevant to the Development Application
11.

12.

The application was amended during the assessment of the application in response to
concerns raised by Council staff. The primary modifications are highlighted below:
(a)

the height of the apartment building has been reduced from 18.2 metres to 17.1
metres;

(b)

the number of apartments has been reduced from five to four;

(c)

the bulk fronting Sophia Lane has been reduced creating a stepped appearance;
and

(d)

removal of communal open space.

The form of the building as originally proposed is illustrated below:

9

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 8: A front view of the development as originally proposed (an extract from the original CAD
model)

Figure 9: A view of the rear of the development as originally proposed (an extract from the original
CAD model)

10

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

121-123 Foveaux Street
13.

On 26 June 2002, deferred commencement consent U01/01069 was granted by South
Sydney City Council for demolition of two terrace houses and the construction of a
building containing six flats and two shops.

74 Sophia Street
14.

On 13 March 2014, development consent D/2013/1769 was granted for alterations and
additions to including the construction of a two storey rear addition.

70 Sophia Street
15.

On 19 October 2009, development consent D/2009/1177 was granted for a two storey
rear addition, three rear roof skylights, new front ground verandah and first floor
balcony balustrade, new landscaped rear courtyard and brick boundary wall to Sophia
Lane.

16.

On 28 November 2017, development consent D/2017/1306 was granted for a rear roof
extension to the dwelling.

Economic/Social/Environmental Impacts
17.

The application has been assessed under Section 4.15 of the Environmental Planning
and Assessment Act 1979, including consideration of the following matters:
(a)

Environmental Planning Instruments and DCPs.

State Environmental Planning Policy 55 - Remediation of Land
18.

The aim of SEPP 55 is to ensure that a change of land use will not increase the risk to
health, particularly in circumstances where a more sensitive land use is proposed.

19.

An archival search of the site’s history does not reveal a risk of contamination. As the
existing uses on site include residential, there is no requirement for a preliminary site
investigation in accordance with Clause 7.

20.

Council’s Environmental Health officer has raised no objections to the proposal with
regard to the SEPP. As such the site is considered to be suitable for the proposed
development and satisfies the provisions of the SEPP.

State Environmental Planning Policy No 65 - Design Quality of Residential Apartment
Development
21.

SEPP 65 provides that in determining an application for a residential apartment
development of three or more floors and containing four or more apartments, that the
consent authority take into consideration a number of matters relating to design
quality, including 9 design quality principles. These principles are addressed below.

22.

A Design Verification Statement by registered architect Simon Hanson (#6739) has
been submitted, demonstrating consideration of the design quality principles for
residential development under Schedule 1 of the SEPP 65 and the objectives of Parts
3 and 4 of the Apartment Design Guide.

11

Local Planning Panel

(a)

17 July 2019

Principle 1: Context and Neighbourhood Character
The site is located within the Little Riley Street conservation area (C65) and the
Surry Hills Central locality, a description of which is provided below - see
discussion under Section 2.11.7 of the Sydney DCP 2012. Foveaux Street
contains an eclectic range of built forms, with terraces adjoining residential
apartment buildings, pubs, warehouses and office buildings. The existing
terraces are identified as contributory items to the conservation area, and their
retention and adaptive reuse is supported. Immediately adjoining the site are two
residential apartment buildings.

(b)

Principle 2: Built Form and Scale
The development, as amended, has reduced the height and bulk of the
apartment building, resulting in a stepped appearance at the rear which provides
a transition to the terraces on Sophia Lane. Sufficient separation is provided
between the rear of the terraces and the apartment building so as to conserve
their setting and contribution to the streetscape.
The development is of an appropriate scale having regard to the controls for the
site and the height and prominence of the residential apartment buildings
immediately adjoining.

(c)

Principle 3: Density
The development complies with the maximum floor space ratio for the site and
provides sufficient amenity for the four apartments proposed.

(d)

Principle 4: Sustainability
Amended BASIX certificates have been submitted demonstrating a commitment
to reducing energy and water consumption. A condition of consent is
recommended requiring a demolition, excavation and construction waste
management plan to be submitted prior to the issue of a construction certificate.

(e)

Principle 5: Landscape
A condition of consent is recommended requiring the landscaping to the rear to
comply with the City's Landscape Code to ensure sufficient soil depth and profile
is provided to support the tree and planter boxes.

(f)

Principle 6: Amenity
As discussed in the table below, the development as amended provides a good
standard of amenity with regard to the objectives of the Apartment Design Guide.

(g)

Principle 7: Safety
The development provides passive surveillance of the public domain. Subject to
conditions of consent separating the retail premises from the residential lobby
and for the hit-and-miss brickwork to be designed to deter climbing, the
development will provide adequate safety for residents.

(h)

Principle 8: Housing Diversity and Social Interaction
A mix of apartment type and sizes are provided.

12

Local Planning Panel

(i)

17 July 2019

Principle 9: Aesthetics
The building has a simple form to provide the best amenity possible for the
apartments, with recessive materials so as not to detract from the character and
appearance of the terraces.

23.

The development is considered generally acceptable when assessed against the
above stated principles and the SEPP generally, which are replicated in large part
within Council’s planning controls. As shown in the table below, the development
satisfactorily addresses the objectives of the Apartment Design Guide.

Apartment Design Guide
2E Building Depth

Compliance

Comment

12-18m (glass to glass)

Yes

The buildings have a maximum
depth of 13 metres.

2F Building Separation

Compliance

Comment

Up to four storeys (approximately
12 metres):

Partial
compliance

The apartment building is setback
1.5 metres from the rear of the
contributory terraces.



12m between habitable
rooms / balconies



9m between habitable and
non-habitable rooms



6m between non-habitable
rooms

While non-compliant, the building
separation provided is a result of the
retention of a contributory item and
it achieves the objective of this
control, resulting in an acceptable
level of amenity being achieved.

No building separation is
necessary where building types
incorporate blank party walls

Partial
compliance

3B Orientation

Compliance

Comment

Overshadowing of neighbouring
properties is minimised during
midwinter

Partial
compliance

The development will overshadow
terrace dwellings to the south on
Sophia Lane. Further discussion is
provided under the Issues heading.

Where an adjoining property does
not currently receive the required
hours of solar access, the
proposed building ensures solar
access to neighbouring properties
is not reduced by more than 20%

Partial
compliance

13

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

3D Communal and Public Open
Space

Compliance

Comment

Communal open space has a
minimum area equal to 25% of the
site.

No

Developments achieve a minimum
of 50% direct sunlight to the
principal usable part of the
communal open space for a
minimum of two (2) hours between
9am and 3pm on 21 June
(midwinter).

No

Communal open space has not
been provided having regard to the
small lot size and constraints of
adjoining development, that is,
potential privacy impacts from the
communal open space being
located on the roof.

3E Deep Soil Zones

Compliance

Comment

Deep soil zones are to have a
minimum area equivalent to 7% of
the site and have a minimum
dimension of 6m

No

The site is constrained by the small
lot size, retention of the existing
terraces to the front and location of
services in the basement.
Conditions of consent are
recommended to manage
stormwater and ensure the success
of the proposed tree planting.

The development only
accommodates four apartments and
is suitably located within walking
distance of public parks at Shannon
Reserve and Frog Hollow Reserve.
The apartments are provided private
open space exceeding the minimum
requirements as recommended
under the design guidance where
common open space is not
provided. Non-compliance is
therefore considered reasonable in
this instance.

Separation between windows and balconies is required to ensure visual privacy is achieved.
Minimum separation distances from buildings to the side and rear boundaries are outlined
below.

14

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

3F Visual Privacy

Compliance

Comment

Up to four storeys (12 metres):

Partial
compliance

Sufficient visual separation is
provided between windows within
the proposed development and
neighbouring properties.



6m between habitable rooms
/ balconies



3m between non-habitable
rooms

An external privacy screen has been
provided to the courtyard window of
unit 3 to mitigate overlooking of unit
2, and privacy screens have been
erected to the private open space of
unit 4 to mitigate overlooking of 121123 Foveaux Street

Bedrooms, living spaces and other
habitable rooms should be
separated from gallery access and
other open circulation space by the
apartment's service areas.

Partial
compliance

4A Solar and Daylight Access

Compliance

Comment

70% of units to receive a minimum
of 2 hours of direct sunlight in
midwinter to living rooms and
private open spaces.

Yes

Three of four apartments receive at
least two hours solar access to
living rooms and balconies during
midwinter.

Maximum of 15% of apartments in
a building receive no direct sunlight
between 9am and 3pm at
midwinter.

Yes

All apartments receive some
sunlight during midwinter.

Design incorporates shading and
glare control, particularly for
warmer months

Partial
compliance

The plans provide sun shades to the
upper level apartment. A condition
of consent is recommended
requiring similar sun shades to the
north facing windows of apartments
2 and 3.

4B Natural Ventilation

Compliance

Comment

All habitable rooms are naturally
ventilated.

Yes

All habitable rooms are provided
windows on external elevations.

Minimum 60% of apartments in the
first nine (9) storeys of the building
are naturally cross ventilated.

Yes

Three of four apartments achieve
natural cross ventilation.

Overall depth of a cross-over or
cross-through apartment does not
exceed 18m, measured glass line
to glass line.

Yes

All apartments are less than 18
metres deep.

15

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Measured from finished floor level to finished ceiling level, minimum ceiling heights are as
follows in the table below.
4C Ceiling Heights

Compliance

Comment

Habitable rooms: 2.7m

Yes

All habitable rooms, with the
exception of the attic within the
terrace, are provided floor to ceiling
heights of 2.7 metres.

Non-habitable rooms: 2.4m

Yes

All non-habitable rooms are
provided a ceiling height of at least
2.4 metres.

Two-storey apartments: 2.7m for
main living area floor, 2.4m for
second floor, where it does not
exceed 50% of the apartment area.

Yes

The second storey of apartment 4 is
provided a floor to ceiling height of
2.7 metres.

Attic spaces – 1.8m at edge of
room with a 30 degree minimum
ceiling slope

Yes

The attic (unit 1) is designed with
sufficient floor area and ceiling
heights.

If located in mixed use areas –
3.3m for ground and first floor to
promote future flexibility of use.

Yes

The proposed floor to ceiling height
of the retail premises is 3.2 metres.
This minor non-compliance is
acceptable with regards to
protecting the contributory status of
the terraces.

16

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

4D Apartment Size and Layout

Compliance

Comment

Minimum unit sizes:

Yes

Apartment 1 – Two bedrooms
(two bathrooms)



Studio: 35m2



1 bed: 50m2



2 bed: 70m2



2

95.15sqm
Apartment 2 – One bedrooms
70.1sqm
3 bed: 90m

Apartment 3 – One bedroom

The minimum internal areas
include only one bathroom.
Additional bathrooms increase the
minimum internal area by 5m2
each.

55sqm
Apartment 4 – Two bedrooms
(two bathrooms)
104sqm

A fourth bedroom and further
additional bedrooms increase the
minimum internal area by 12m2
each.
Every habitable room is to have a
window in an external wall with a
minimum glass area of 10% of the
floor area of the room.

Yes

All habitable rooms are provided
windows in external walls with
compliant openable areas.

Habitable room depths are to be no
more than 2.5 x the ceiling height.

Yes

Habitable room depths do not
exceed more than 8 metres and
comply with the recommended ratio.

8m maximum depth for open plan
layouts.

Yes

Minimum area for bedrooms
(excluding wardrobes):

Yes



master bedroom: 10m2



all other bedrooms: 9m2

Dimensions have been illustrated on
the proposed plans demonstrating
bedrooms and living rooms comply
with the minimum recommended
areas and dimensions.

Minimum dimension of any
bedroom is 3m (excluding
wardrobes).
Living and living/dining rooms
minimum widths:


Studio and one-bedroom:
3.6m



Two-bedroom or more: 4m

Yes

17

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

4E Private Open Space and
Balconies

Compliance

Comment

Studio apartments are to have a
minimum balcony area of 4m2 with
a minimum depth of 1m.

Yes

The development has been
amended to provide compliant
balcony sizes with good solar
access for all apartments.

4F Common Circulation and
Spaces

Compliance

Comment

The maximum number of
apartments off a circulation core on
a single level is eight (8).

Yes

The development accommodates
four apartments.

Primary living room or bedroom
windows should not open directly
onto common circulation spaces,
whether open or enclosed. Visual
and acoustic privacy from common
circulation spaces to any other
rooms should be carefully
controlled.

Yes

Windows are separated from the
adjoining external stair by a fin wall.

Daylight and natural ventilation are
provided to all common circulation
spaces.

Partial
compliance

A skylight is provided to the
residential lobby within the
basement of the apartment building,
however no natural ventilation is
provided (except for when people
are entering and exiting the
building). This minor noncompliance will not adversely impact
the amenity of the apartment
building and is deemed acceptable.

One bed apartments are to have a
minimum balcony area of 8m2 with
a minimum depth of 2m.
Two bed apartments are to have a
minimum balcony area of 10m2
with a minimum depth of 2m.
Three bed apartments are to have
a minimum balcony area of 12m2
with a minimum depth of 2.4m.

18

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

4G Storage

Compliance

Comment

Minimum storage provision
facilities:

Yes

Storage diagrams accompany the
amended plans demonstrating
sufficient storage provided within the
apartments and basement.

4J Noise and Pollution

Compliance

Comment

Have noise and pollution been
adequately considered and
addressed through careful siting
and layout of buildings?

Yes

The site is not located on a busy
road (defined as having less than
40,000 vehicles a day), within close
proximity to late night trading
premises or industry. As such the
site is not acoustically impacted.



Studio: 4m3



1 bed: 6m3



2 bed: 8m3



3 bed: 10m3

(Minimum 50% storage area
located within unit)

However, insufficient information
has been provided regarding the
impact of A/C units (located at
various points within the
development) on the acoustic
privacy of apartments. As discussed
with regard to Section 4.2.7, A/C
units are required to be located
within the basement.
Sydney Regional Environmental Plan (Sydney Harbour Catchment) 2005 (Deemed
SEPP)
24.

The site is located within the designated hydrological catchment of Sydney Harbour
and is subject to the provisions of the above SREP.

25.

The Sydney Harbour Catchment Planning Principles must be considered in the
carrying out of development within the catchment. The key relevant principles include:
(a)

protect and improve hydrological, ecological and geomorphologic processes;

(b)

consider cumulative impacts of development within the catchment;

(c)

improve water quality of urban runoff and reduce quantity and frequency of urban
run-off; and

(d)

protect and rehabilitate riparian corridors and remnant vegetation.

19

Local Planning Panel

26.

17 July 2019

The site is within the Sydney Harbour Catchment and eventually drains into the
Harbour. However, the site is not located in the Foreshores Waterways Area or
adjacent to a waterway and therefore, with the exception of the objective of improved
water quality, the objectives of the SREP are not applicable to the proposed
development. The development is consistent with the controls contained with the
deemed SEPP.

State Environmental Planning Policy (Building Sustainability Index: BASIX) 2004
27.

A revised BASIX Certificate has been submitted during the assessment of the
application.

28.

The BASIX certificate lists measures to satisfy BASIX requirements which have been
incorporated in the proposal. A condition is recommended ensuring the measures
detailed in the BASIX certificate are implemented.

Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012
29.

The site is located within the B4 - Mixed Use zone. The mixed use development
proposes retail premises and four apartments as shop top housing which is
permissible with consent.

30.

The relevant matters to be considered under Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012
for the proposed development are outlined below.

Compliance Tables
Development Control

Compliance

Comment

4.3 Height of Buildings

No

The site is permitted a maximum
building height of 15 metres.

4.6 Exceptions to development
standards

Yes

The amended building height will be up
to 17.1 metres above ground level
(existing).
The applicant has submitted a revised
request to vary Clause 4.3, the height of
buildings development standard. The
variation to the standard is acceptable
and supported.
Further discussion is provided under the
Issues heading.

4.4 Floor Space Ratio

Yes

The site is permitted a maximum floor
space ratio of 2.5:1.
The proposed building as amended has
a floor space ratio of 2.5:1.

20

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Development Control

Compliance

Comment

5.10 Heritage conservation

Yes

The site, while not a heritage item, is
located within the Little Riley Street
conservation area (C65). A heritage
impact statement accompanied the
application.
Further discussion is provided with
regard to Section 3.9 of the Sydney DCP
2012. See discussion under the heading
Issues.

Part 6 Local Provisions Height and Floor Space

Compliance

Comment

6.21 Design excellence

Yes

The development as amended provides
an appropriate transition in scale relative
to the maximum height and floor space
controls and the character and scale of
adjoining buildings. In particular, the
building transitions in scale from the
taller buildings on Foveaux Street to the
terrace dwellings on Sophia Street to the
rear. As discussed under the issues
heading, the development enhances the
character and appearance of the
terraces, while the apartment building
has an acceptably neutral impact on the
conservation area.
Appropriate landscaping is provided on
the building and at the rear, softening
the building's presentation to the public
domain. Sufficient consideration has
been given to the amenity of the
surrounding area and for occupants of
the building. The development also
complies with BASIX to reduce water
and energy consumption.
As such the development achieves
design excellence.

21

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Part 7 Local Provisions General

Compliance

Comment

7.15 Flood planning

Yes

The site is affected by overland flows on
Sophia Lane during flood events.
An amended flood statement has been
submitted and demonstrates that the
flood planning levels comply with the
City’s Interim Floodplain Management
Plan. Council’s Public Domain team
have recommended conditions of
consent.

Sydney Development Control Plan 2012
31.

The relevant matters to be considered under Sydney Development Control Plan 2012
for the proposed development are outlined below.

2.11.7 Surry Hills Central Locality
The subject site is located in the Surry Hills Central locality. The area incorporates the
main retail centre of Surry Hills, with active frontages to be maintained on Foveaux Street.
The heritage character, in particular late Victorian terraces and warehouse style outlets, is
to be maintained, with new development to respond to their scales.
The development as amended retains the existing Victorian terraces with the form of the
dormer windows and internal alterations having an acceptable heritage impact. The
apartment building to the rear is of an appropriate scale having regard to the primary built
form controls for the site and the relationship with surrounding development. Subject to
conditions discussed further in the report, the development is compatible with the
character and principles of the Surry Hills Central locality.

3. General Provisions

Compliance

Comment

3.2 Defining the Public Domain

Yes

The Foveaux Street frontage is identified
on the active frontages map. The
proposed retail uses are consistent with
the active frontages control.

22

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

3. General Provisions

Compliance

Comment

3.5 Urban Ecology

Yes

A tree is proposed at the rear fronting
Sophia Lane. Concern is raised that the
southern orientation and insufficient soil
depth (with regard to the City’s
Landscape Code) will not support a tree
in this location.
A condition of consent is recommended
requiring 1000mm of soil depth to be
provided to accommodate a tree, the
species of which is to be determined
prior to the issue of any Construction
Certificate.

3.6 Ecologically Sustainable
Development

Yes

Amended BASIX certificates have been
submitted and satisfy the relevant
requirements. A condition of consent is
recommended requiring the Principal
Certifier to ensure the measures listed in
the certificates are undertaken.

3.7 Water and Flood
Management

Yes

A condition of consent is recommended
regarding connecting the site to the
City’s stormwater drainage system.
The floor levels have been designed to
mitigate flooding and comply with the
City’s Interim Floodplain Management
Plan.

23

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

3. General Provisions

Compliance

Comment

3.9 Heritage

Yes

The site, while not a heritage item, is
located within the Little Riley Street
conservation area (C65). The terrace
buildings are identified as contributory
items within the conservation area. A
heritage impact statement accompanied
the application.
The apartment building as amended is
sufficiently setback from the terraces to
provide adequate visual separation, with
the stepped form at the rear ensuring an
appropriate transition to the lane and
adjacent terrace dwellings.
The amended plans identify the location
of services to the front setback and are
acceptable. Further information is to be
provided regarding the fire separation
works to the front of the balconies. A
condition is recommended requiring the
front dormers to comply with the
provisions of Section 4.1.5.4. A
materials sample board is also required
to be submitted prior to the issue of any
Construction Certificate.

3.11 Transport and Parking

Yes

A condition of consent is recommended
requiring the provision of four class 2
bike spaces within the basement for
residents.

3.12 Accessible Design

Yes

Conditions of consent are recommended
requiring the development to comply
with relevant DDA legislation.

24

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

3. General Provisions

Compliance

Comment

3.13 Social and Environmental
Responsibilities

Yes

An assessment with regard to the
provisions of CPTED was submitted
during the assessment of the
application.
While the development as amended
improves passive surveillance of Sophia
Lane, a condition of consent is
recommended to address the following:


The hit-and-miss brickwork
provides a means to climb the rear
of the building. A minimum two
metres separation is to be
provided between the top of the
hit-and-miss brickwork at ground
level and the bottom of the hit-andmiss brickwork at first floor level.



The ground floor retail units are to
be consolidated and access
restricted to the existing entrance
to no. 117 Foveaux Street. Access
from the retail unit into the
residential lobby shall not be
permitted.

3.14 Waste

Yes

A condition of consent is recommended
requiring the bin store and bulk waste
area to be relocated to an area in front
of the residential lobby. Access to the
residential waste room is to be separate
from the commercial waste room. The
internal layout of the lobby and back of
the retail tenancies will require
amendments.

4.2 Residential flat,
commercial and mixed use
developments

Compliance

Comment

4.2.1 Building height

Yes

The site is permitted a maximum
building height of four storeys.
The proposed apartment building to the
rear is four storeys and acceptable.

25

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

4.2 Residential flat,
commercial and mixed use
developments

Compliance

Comment

4.2.2 Building setbacks

Yes

The proposal as amended provides a
1.5 metre separation between the
apartment and terrace buildings, and a
stepped form at the rear compatible with
the adjoining apartment building at no.
121-123 Foveaux Street.
The setbacks are sufficient with regard
to the character and significance of the
Little Riley Street conservation area
(C65), providing a transition in scale
between the taller buildings on Foveaux
Street and the terrace houses to the
south.
Furthermore the stepped form to the
rear enables the retention of sufficient
solar access to neighbouring properties
to the south. Further discussion is
provided under the Issues heading.

4.2.3.1 Solar access

No

The development is required to maintain
a minimum two hours solar access to
living rooms and private open spaces of
neighbouring properties, measured
between 9am and 3pm during midwinter.
The development has been modified to
reduce overshadowing impacts to
neighbouring properties, however
private open spaces and some living
areas will not receive the minimum
recommended solar access.
Further discussion is provided under the
Issues heading.

4.2.3.4 Design features to
manage solar access

Yes

The plans provide sun shades to the
upper level apartment. A condition of
consent is recommended requiring
similar sun shades to the north facing
windows of apartments 2 and 3.

4.2.3.5 Landscape

Partial
compliance

A landscape plan is recommended
requiring details of the planters and
1000mm of soil depth to be provided to
accommodate a tree, the species of
which is to be determined prior to the
issue of any Construction Certificate.

26

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

4.2 Residential flat,
commercial and mixed use
developments

Compliance

Comment

4.2.7 Heating and Cooling
Infrastructure

Yes

The application proposes individual A/C
units to apartments, with units located
on balconies and in the rear courtyard.
While the control regards large
residential developments, it is accepted
that centrally located services,
preferably in the basement, are more
efficient than individual and dispersed
systems. It also improves the
presentation of the development.
The proposed A/C units will be visible
from the public domain and potentially
cause acoustic impacts. A condition is
recommended requiring the A/C units to
be consolidated in a central area within
or adjacent to the basement.

4.2.8 Letterboxes

Yes

The letterboxes are located adjacent to
the entrance and are acceptable.

4.2.9 Non-residential
development in the B4 Mixed
Uses Zone

Yes

The application proposes to retain retail
uses at the ground floor of the terraces.
The existing trading hours, from 9am7pm Monday to Friday, 9am-2pm
Saturday and 9am-5pm Sunday will be
retained. It is anticipated that a
Complying Development application will
be lodged for fit-out of the consolidated
retail tenancy.
Conditions of consent are recommended
to regulate the trading hours and noise.

Issues
Clause 4.6 request to vary a development standard
32.

The site is subject to a maximum height control of 15 metres. The proposed
development has a height of 17.1 metres (14% over) as shown in the figures below.

27

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 10: Section CC showing the extent of the non-compliance, circled in red

Figure 11: A revised model of the proposed development with the roof protruding beyond the height
plane in red

33.

By deleting the lift overrun and roof top communal open space, the overall height of
the building and extent of non-compliance has been reduced from 18.2 metres (21.3%
over) to 17.1 metres (14% over).

34.

A written request has been submitted to Council in accordance with Clause 4.6(3)(a)
and (b) of the Sydney LEP 2012 seeking to justify the contravention of the
development standard by demonstrating:
(a)

That compliance with the development standard is unreasonable or unnecessary
in the circumstances of the case; and

28

Local Planning Panel

(b)
35.

17 July 2019

That there are sufficient environmental planning grounds to justify contravening
the standard.

A copy of the applicants written request is provided at Attachment C.

Applicants Written Request - Clause 4.6(3)(a) and (b)
36.

The applicant seeks to justify the contravention of the height of buildings development
standard on the following basis:
(a)

That compliance with the development standard is unreasonable or unnecessary
in the circumstances of the case:
(i)

The applicant has referred to Wehbe v Pittwater, whereby Preston CJ
establishes the test for determining whether compliance with a standard is
unreasonable or unnecessary. A summary of the applicant’s request and
assessment is provided below.

(ii)

The applicant states that the development is consistent with the objectives
of Clause 4.3 – the height of buildings development standard,
notwithstanding non-compliance with the numerical standard, and
therefore satisfies the first test under Wehbe. The objectives of the clause
are provided below:
(a) to ensure the height of development is appropriate to the condition of
the site and its context,
(b) to ensure appropriate height transitions between new development and
heritage items and buildings in heritage conservation areas or special
character areas,
(c) to promote the sharing of views,
(d) to ensure appropriate height transitions from Central Sydney and
Green Square Town Centre to adjoining areas,
(e) in respect of Green Square:
(i) to ensure the amenity of the public domain by restricting taller buildings
to only part of a site, and
(ii) to ensure the built form contributes to the physical definition of the
street network and public spaces.

(iii)

In particular, with regard to objective (a), the non-compliant height is
confined to a small portion of the building and is appropriate (that is,
compatible) to the condition of the site and surrounding area with
consideration of the scale of adjoining buildings. The development has
been amended to step down towards Sophia Lane and the shorter terrace
houses to the south. The building height is less than that of adjoining
buildings and is setback from Foveaux Street. Generally the building
reflects the desired future character reflected in other LEP and DCP
controls.

29

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

(iv)

With regard to objective (b), the development maintains the contributory
terraces to the front of the site and provides sufficient building separation
so as to maintain their contribution to the streetscape and Little Riley Street
conservation area. The non-compliance height of the apartment building to
the rear will not overwhelm the terraces, and has been amended to
transition in height at the rear towards Sophia Lane and the terraces on
Sophia Street. Furthermore the building will not obstruct the curtilage and
views of nearby heritage items.

(v)

With regard to (c), the development will not impact on views.

(vi)

With regard to (d), the development reflects the transition in scale from
Foveaux Street to the surrounding street network.

(vii) Objective (e) is not relevant to the proposal.
(viii) The applicant also asserts that the extent of non-compliance is not
antipathetic to the objectives of the B4 – Mixed Use zone.
(b)

That there are sufficient environmental planning grounds to justify contravening
the standard:
(i)

The extent of non-compliance is confined to a portion of the roof of the
apartment building, which is setback 10.9 metres from Foveaux Street,
minimising the impact on the public domain.

(ii)

The form of the building responds to the topography of the site (which has
a steep gradient from Sophia Lane towards Foveaux Street and from east
to west), the preservation and restoration of the contributory terrace
buildings fronting Foveaux Street and steps the building at the rear towards
the lower scale buildings on Sophia Lane to the south.

(iii)

Having regard to these conditions, the extent of the non-compliance will be
indiscernible from the public domain.

(iv)

The applicant has made reference to the recent decision of Preston CJ in
Initial Action Pty Ltd v Woollahra Municipal Council, stating that strict
compliance would result in a poor outcome for the site. In particular, strict
compliance with the standard would encourage redistribution of floor space
and potentially have an adverse impact on the amenity and heritage
conservation of the surrounding area.

Consideration of Applicants Written Request - Clause 4.6(4) (a) (i) and (ii)
37.

Development consent must not be granted unless the consent authority is satisfied
that:
(a)

The applicant’s written request has adequately addressed the matters required
to be demonstrated by subclause 3 of Clause 4.6 being that compliance with the
development standard is unreasonable or unnecessary in the circumstances of
the case, and that there are sufficient environmental planning grounds to justify
contravening the standard; and

(b)

The proposed development will be in the public interest because it is consistent
with the objectives of the particular standard and the objectives for development
within the zone in which the development is proposed to be carried out.

30

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Does the written request adequately address those issues at Clause 4.6(3)(a)?
38.

In demonstrating that compliance with the standard is unreasonable or unnecessary in
the circumstances of the case, the applicant has appropriately referred to the test
established by Preston CJ in Wehbe v Pittwater. Specifically, the applicant has
addressed the first part of the test by demonstrating that, notwithstanding noncompliance with the numerical standard, the development meets the objectives of
Clause 4.3.

39.

A detailed discussion of the applicant’s submission with regard to the objectives of the
height standard has been provided and satisfies the test under Clause 4.6(3)(a), in that
compliance with the height of buildings development standard, to the extent of the
variation proposed, is both unreasonable and unnecessary.

Does the written request adequately address those issues at clause 4.6(3)(b)?
40.

The applicant has relied on the constraints of the site and surrounding area to
demonstrate that there are sufficient environmental planning grounds to justify
contravening the height of buildings development standard.

41.

To summarise the applicant’s submission, there is a nexus between the retention and
restoration of the contributory heritage terraces at the front, the topography of the site
(particularly the gradient), and the design providing a transition in scale between the
taller buildings on Foveaux Street and the terraces on Sophia Street to the south. The
development also has an acceptable environmental impact with consideration of built
form and amenity impacts as discussed further within this report.

42.

The applicant has therefore demonstrated that there are sufficient environmental
planning grounds to support the extent of the variation proposed.

Is the development in the public interest?
43.

With regard to varying development standards, the public interest is conceived as
being protected where a development meets the objectives of the zone and the
development standard sought to be varied. As has been discussed already, the
development is consistent with the objectives of Clause 4.3 notwithstanding the
variation to the numerical standard.

44.

The objectives of the B4 – Mixed Use zone are provided below:

45.



To provide a mixture of compatible land uses.



To integrate suitable business, office, residential, retail and other development in
accessible locations so as to maximise public transport patronage and
encourage walking and cycling.



To ensure uses support the viability of centres.

With regard to the first objective, the development provides a mix of retail and
residential land uses, consistent with the existing use of the site and adjoining
properties. The land uses are permissible in the zone.

31

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

46.

With regard to the second objective, the development is able to provide sufficient bike
parking for residents in accordance with the minimum requirements of Section 3.11.3
of the Sydney DCP 2012. The site is located approximately 450 metres from Central
Station, including the Sydney and NSW Trains networks, the CBD and South East and
Inner West light rail lines, as well as city and intercity buses. The site is also within 175
metres of the retail strip on Crown Street. No onsite parking is proposed, and
occupants will not be eligible to participate in the City’s parking permit (on-street)
scheme. The site is therefore appropriate for the proposed uses with regards to
maximise public transport patronage and encourage walking and cycling.

47.

With regard to the final objective, Foveaux Street is identified in the Surry Hills Central
locality statement as being a retail centre in Surry Hills. An active frontage control
encourages retail premises at ground floor, which is proposed and supported. The
increased number of apartments on site will support the viability of the Surry Hills
Central locality.

48.

The application demonstrates that the extent of non-compliance with the height of
buildings development standard is consistent with the objectives of Clause 4.3 and the
B4 – Mixed Use zone and is therefore in the public interest.

Conclusion
49.

For the reasons provided above the requested variation to the height of building
development standard is supported as the applicant's written request has adequately
addressed the matters required to be addressed by cl 4.6 of the Sydney Local
Environmental Plan 2012 and the proposed development would be in the public
interest because it is consistent with the objectives of height of building development
standard and the B4 – Mixed Use zone.

Overshadowing
50.

Section 4.2.3.1 of the Sydney DCP 2012 requires development to maintain a minimum
two hours solar access to one sqm of living rooms and balconies of neighbouring
residential properties between 9am and 3pm at midwinter. Where neighbouring
properties do not currently receive the minimum two hours solar access to habitable
rooms and 50% of private open space between 9am and 3pm at midwinter, no
additional overshadowing is permitted.

51.

Objective 3B-2 of the ADG requires “overshadowing of neighbouring properties is
minimised during midwinter”. A provision within the design guidance states: “Where an
adjoining property does not currently receive the required hours of solar access, the
proposed building ensures solar access to neighbouring properties is not reduced by
more than 20%.”

52.

Views from the sun and overshadowing diagrams accompany the amended plans,
illustrating the existing and proposed amount of solar access provided to neighbouring
properties. The table below identifies the impact of the proposal on the provision of
solar access at midwinter to affected properties at nos. 70-72 Sophia Street based on
these diagrams. It is noted that no. 74 Sophia Street will continue to receive two hours
solar access to their living room, and no additional overshadowing to their private open
space.

32

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Site

Area

Existing (approx.)

Proposed

No. 70 Sophia St

Living room

1hr, 45min

0

Private open space

1hr, 45min

0

Other habitable rooms

<2 hours

<2 hours

Living room

1hr, 45min

30min

Private open space

1hr, 45min

0

Other habitable rooms

<2 hours

<2 hours

No. 72 Sophia St

53.

The development will therefore reduce solar access to these neighbouring properties,
contrary to the provisions of the Sydney DCP control and the a provision of the design
guidance of Objective 3B-2 of the ADG.

54.

In effect, the affected neighbouring properties currently rely on the ‘gap’ provided by
the application site. Importantly, at no. 70 Sophia Street, the area of private open
space has been reduced and the rear building line of brought closer to the rear
property boundary (see further discussion provided under the heading History
Relevant to the Development Application above). This has reduced the capability of
the site to retain solar access and accommodate development in the surrounding area,
and is exacerbated by the narrow width of Sophia Lane (separating the subject site
from the affected neighbours). Similarly, the diagrams do not include a shed located at
no. 72 Sophia Street which would self-shadow that property’s private open space.

55.

The procedure for varying a development control is contained at Section 1.1 of the
Sydney DCP 2012. In short, variations to controls are to demonstrate:


how compliance with the objectives of the DCP is achieved,



how it will result in a better outcome than would otherwise be achieved through
strict compliance with the control, and



how it will not adversely impact the amenity of neighbouring properties.

56.

The DCP requires the applicant to prepare a statement to this effect where a variation
is proposed, which has not strictly been undertaken. Notwithstanding, an assessment
has been provided below.

57.

In this densely built area, having regard to the planning controls for the subject site and
the works that have been undertaken to the affected properties, it is reasonable in this
instance for overshadowing to occur. Furthermore, the planning controls for these
terraces envisage redevelopment, with a four storey height control applicable.

58.

The development has been amended to reduce the height of the building and set the
building back from Sophia Lane, thereby reducing the extent of overshadowing
proposed.

33

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

59.

The proposal complies with the maximum height in storeys control, whilst the area of
the building that exceeds the height of buildings development standard does not in
itself adversely overshadow neighbours' private open space and living rooms. The
amended plans now maintain more than two hours solar access to habitable rooms
(bedrooms as opposed to living rooms and private open spaces) within the affected
properties at midwinter.

60.

While the development will overshadow neighbouring properties, the development
satisfies Objective 3B-2 of the ADG and is reasonable with regard to Section 1.1 of the
Sydney DCP 2012 considering the amendments made to the building envelope,
compliance with the height in storeys control, the dense character of the immediate
area and the redevelopment of the affected terraces envisaged by the controls.

Heritage
61.

The site is located within the Little Riley Street conservation area (C65) with the
terraces identified as a contributory item within the Sydney DCP 2012. Local heritage
items are located to the east of the site fronting Riley Street however they are visually
separated from the site and as such their curtilage will not be impacted by the
proposal. The buildings to the west and north are identified as detracting items and the
terraces to the south are contributory. The apartment building to the east is identified
on the maps as being contributory however this is thought to be a carryover from
before the site was redeveloped. The building is therefore considered neutral. A
heritage impact statement accompanied the application.

62.

Section 3.9 of the Sydney DCP 2012 requires new development to respect the
character and appearance of the heritage conservation area and be neutral in
appearance. Works to contributory items are to respect their significant features.

63.

The application has undergone three significant modifications during the assessment
period, with the first modification proposing to cantilever the apartment building over
the contributory terraces, which was not supported. The cantilever has been removed
in the most recent set of amended plans and the separation between the apartment
building and the terraces (generally 1.5 metres) is now acceptable.

64.

The development proposes dormer windows to the terraces to accommodate the attic
conversion. The dormers are acceptable in form and scale and generally comply with
the provisions of Section 4.1.5.4 of the Sydney DCP 2012, which regards roof
additions to terraces. A condition of consent is recommended requiring the dormers to
be set down from the ridge and be vertically proportioned in accordance with Section
4.1.5.4.

65.

The internal works to the terraces include amending the floor and ceiling height of level
1 to accommodate the proposed apartment and using the entrance of no. 119 Foveaux
Street for the residential lobby. The internal layout has been significantly modified to
accommodate the retail tenancies at ground level and the apartment upstairs. The
works will not disrupt the legibility of the terraces as, formerly, two separate buildings.

66.

The BCA report recommends works to the front verandah to provide fire separation
between the retail and residential units, which may impact on the architectural integrity
of the balconies. A condition of consent is therefore recommended for construction
level details of these elements to be provided prior to the issue of any Construction
Certificate.

67.

Subject to conditions, the development is able to comply with Section 3.9 of the
Sydney DCP 2012.

34

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Other Impacts of the Development
68.

The proposed development is capable of complying with the NCC.

69.

The proposal will have no significant detrimental effect relating to environmental, social
or economic impacts on the locality, subject to appropriate conditions being imposed.

Suitability of the site for the Development
70.

The proposal is of a nature in keeping with the overall function of the site.

Internal Referrals
Design Advisory Panel
71.

The application was presented to the Design Advisory Panel prior to any amendments
being made. The Panel raised concerns regarding the height exceedance and
associated overshadowing caused to the properties to the south. As such the
application was not supported with amendments to improve the development’s
compliance with relevant controls encouraged.

Design Advisory Panel Residential Subcommittee
72.

The first set of amended plans were presented to the Design Advisory Panel
Residential Subcommittee. The following comments and recommendations were
made:
(a)

The committee did not support the apartment building cantilevering over the
terraces, and recommended that the northern building line be brought back and
the upper two apartments consolidated.
Response: The building has been brought back from over the terraces as
recommended. The upper two apartments were consolidated.

(b)

An area of landscaping having a minimum dimension of three x three metres was
recommended to accommodate a tree at the rear fronting Sophia Lane. Deep
soil and a consistent three metre setback along the Sophia Lane frontage was
recommended.
Response: Deep soil has not been provided as discussed previously. A
condition of consent is recommended requiring the landscaping area to provide a
minimum 1000mm of soil depth to accommodate a tree in accordance with the
City’s Landscape Code.

(c)

The panel recommended the deletion of the lift to improve internal layout and
reduce the height of the building. Individual lobbies were recommended if the lift
was to be retained.
Response: The lift has been retained, however the lift overrun no longer extends
above the roof line following the amalgamation of the upper level apartments. Lift
lobbies are provided to units.

(d)

The need for further information was highlighted regarding fire separation
between the retail and residential uses.

35

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Response: The development is required to comply with the National
Construction Code. A condition of consent is recommended requiring additional
information regarding the impact to the balconies to achieve fire separation.
(e)

The walkway between the rear of the terrace and the retail bin store was
recommended to be open to the sky to improve the amenity of this space.
Response: A skylight has been provided for daylight, however it will remain
enclosed to prevent noise and odours affecting the residences above.

(f)

Additional information was recommended to confirm that the proposed hit-andmiss brickwork was not climbable.
Response: Insufficient information has been provided to demonstrate that the
hit-and-miss brickwork is not climbable. A design modification condition is
recommended accordingly.

Heritage
73.

Council’s Heritage officer has reviewed the amended plans and recommended further
information be provided regarding the works to the balconies and the demolition of the
entrance to 117 Foveaux Street for the residential lobby.

Urban Design
74.

Council’s Urban Designer has reviewed the amended plans and made the following
recommendations (where supported, conditions of consent are recommended as
noted):
(a)

The balcony overhang to apartment 4 will reduce light to lower apartments and is
not supported.
Response: The views from the sun diagrams demonstrate that the overhang will
not obstruct solar access to living rooms and balconies during midwinter.

(b)

The retail premises are to be separated from the residential lobby, and the retail
premises consolidated into one tenancy. A condition of consent is recommended
accordingly.

(c)

The rear building line of apartment 4 should be setback to increase the depth of
the balcony to two metres in accordance with Objective 4E-1 of the ADG. A
condition is recommended accordingly.

(d)

Concern is raised regarding the location of A/C units and acoustic amenity. A
condition is recommended requiring the units to be centrally located within the
basement.

(e)

Additional privacy measures are required to bedroom and living room windows of
apartments 2 and 3 and Sophia Lane. Conditions are recommended accordingly.

(f)

Concern is raised regarding the proximity of openable windows to property
boundaries, which may require separation by way of blade walls. Blade walls are
not supported, and a condition is recommended requiring the windows to be
either provided drenchers or to be setback from the boundary sufficiently.

36

Local Planning Panel

(g)

17 July 2019

Conditions are recommended requiring a materials sample board, details of the
hydrant booster, privacy treatments, storage and operable window details. The
conditions are supported.

Public Domain
75.

Council’s Public Domain team has reviewed the application and amended flood study
and raised no objections subject to conditions.

Environmental Health
76.

Council’s Environmental Health officer raised no concerns regarding site
contamination, and recommended an acoustic report be submitted with amended
plans.

Landscape
77.

Council’s Landscape officer has reviewed the amended plans and raised concerns
regarding the lack of detailed plans, soil depth to accommodate the tree at the rear
and that the development does not provide any communal open space. Conditions of
consent are recommended requiring plans in accordance with Council’s Landscape
Code.

Waste
78.

Conditions of consent are recommended requiring the residential retail waste rooms to
be separated, for the distance between the residential waste room and entrance to be
no more than 10 metres and for demolition, excavation and construction and
operational waste management plans to be submitted.

79.

The conditions of other sections of Council have been included in the proposed
conditions.

External Referrals
Notification, Advertising and Delegation
80.

In accordance with Schedule 1 the Sydney DCP 2012, the proposed development is
required to be notified and advertised. As such the application was notified and
advertised for a period of 28 days between 11 July 2018 and 9 August 2018. As a
result of this notification a total of 584 properties were notified and there were four
submissions received raising the following concerns.
(a)

Overshadowing of properties fronting Sophia Street.
Response - The development has been amended to reduce overshadowing of
properties to Sophia Street with regard to the ADG and Sydney DCP 2012.
Further discussion is provided under the Issues heading.

(b)

The development will overlook neighbouring properties.
Response - The development has been amended to:


provide screening to rear windows;



reorient living areas to the north elevation;

37

Local Planning Panel

(c)

17 July 2019



remove the roof top communal open space;



provide a physical separation and level difference between the external
stair and roof terraces of no. 121-123 Foveaux Street; and



setback the balcony of apartment 4 and provide a privacy screen to protect
the roof terraces of no. 121-123 Foveaux Street.

The apartments will acoustically impact neighbouring properties.
Response - The noise from the apartments is unlikely to result in any greater
impact than existing residential properties and is acceptable.

(d)

The development should comply with the maximum height standard.
Response - The height of the development has been reduced and the Sophia
Street elevation setback. Further discussion is provided under the Issues
heading.

(e)

Loss of views of the sky from neighbouring properties.
Response - The bulk of the building fronting Sophia Street has been setback,
reducing the sense of overbearing on the terraces to the south.

(f)

The development will adversely impact the heritage significance of the terraces.
Response - The development as amended provides sufficient building
separation between the terraces and the apartment building. The works to the
terraces, subject to conditions, is acceptable with regard to Council’s heritage
conservation controls.

(g)

The development will impact water mains.
Response - A condition of consent is recommended requiring a Section 73
certificate from Sydney Water.

(h)

The upper level apartment will overlook the north facing roof terrace of no. 121123 Foveaux Street.
Response - A condition of consent is recommended requiring external sun
shades to these windows, which will reduce overlooking, noting that any potential
overlooking between these properties would be limited to oblique angles.

81.

Following the submission of amended plans on 7 November 2018, the application was
re-notified for 14 days. As a result of this notification there were three submissions
received raising the following concerns, in addition to those raised previously:
(a)

The upper level apartment will overlook the north facing roof terrace of no. 121123 Foveaux Street.
Response - A condition of consent is recommended requiring external sun
shades to these windows, which will reduce overlooking.

(b)

The modifications do not adequately improve solar access and the impact of the
bulk to Sophia Lane.
Response - The matter is discussed in detail under the Issues heading.

38

Local Planning Panel

82.

17 July 2019

Further modifications were made to the application on 7 February and 4 June 2019
however these were not notified in accordance with Schedule 1.3 of the Sydney DCP
2012 as they would not result in significant additional environmental impacts.

Public Interest
83.

The proposal will have no detrimental effect on the public interest, subject to
appropriate conditions being proposed.

S7.11 Contribution
84.

The development is subject of a section 7.11 contribution under the provisions of the
City of Sydney Development Contributions Plan 2015. This contribution is calculated
on the basis of the development’s net increase in resident, worker and/or visitor
populations.

85.

Credits have been applied for the most recent past uses of the site, including the retail
premises at ground floor and apartment located upstairs.

86.

The following monetary contribution is required towards the cost of public amenities:

(a)

Open Space

$32,851.96

(b)

Community Facilities

$16,081.80

(c)

Traffic and Transport

$1,029.84

(d)

Stormwater Drainage

$0

Total

$49,963.60

87.

A condition relating to this development contribution has been included in the attached
Decision Notice. The contribution is to be paid prior to the issue of any Construction
Certificate.

Relevant Legislation
88.

The Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

Conclusion
89.

The development as amended proposes partial demolition, adaptive reuse of the
contributory terraces with accompanying alterations and additions and construction of
a residential apartment building to the rear of the site. One (consolidated) retail
premises will be located on the ground floor of the terraces, one apartment located on
the first floor and attic of the terraces and three within the apartment building to the
rear.

39

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

90.

The development exceeds the maximum 15 metre height of buildings development
standard by 2.1 metres (14%). A request to vary the standard in accordance with
Clause 4.6 of the Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 has been submitted,
demonstrating that compliance with the standard is unreasonable and unnecessary
having regard to the objectives of the height of buildings development standard and
that there are sufficient environmental planning grounds to justify the variation. The
statement has adequately addressed the provisions of the clause and is in the public
interest.

91.

The development as amended achieves design excellence having regard to the form
and scale of the apartment building, its relationship to the streetscape and
neighbouring buildings, the provision of landscaping and consideration of neighbour's
amenity.

92.

The built form and amenity provided for residents and the surrounding area is
consistent with the relevant controls of State Environmental Planning Policy 65, the
accompanying Apartment Design Guide, the Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012
and the Sydney Development Control Plan 2012.

93.

The application was notified and advertised for 28 days and received four objections.
The application was re-notified for 14 days following the first submission of amended
plans and received three submissions. The concerns are addressed within the report.

94.

The development is therefore in the public interest and therefore recommended for
approval.

GRAHAM JAHN, AM
Director City Planning, Development and Transport
David Zabell, Senior Planner

40

Attachment A
Recommended Conditions of Consent

41

CONDITIONS OF CONSENT
SCHEDULE 1
APPROVED DEVELOPMENT/DESIGN MODIFICATIONS/COVENANTS AND
CONTRIBUTIONS/USE AND OPERATION
(1)

APPROVED DEVELOPMENT
(a)

Development must be in accordance with Development Application No.
D/2018/761 dated 6 July 2018 and the following drawings prepared by
Bureau SRH Architects:
Drawing Number

Drawing Name

Date

DA000 Rev 4

Title Page

29 January 2019

DA002 Rev 2

Storage Plan

29 January 2019

DA103 Rev 7

Lower Ground Floor

29 January 2019

DA104 Rev 7

Ground Floor

29 January 2019

DA105 Rev 7

First Floor

29 January 2019

DA106 Rev 7

Second Floor

29 January 2019

DA107 Rev 7

Third Floor

29 January 2019

DA108 Rev 5

Roof Plan

29 January 2019

DA200 Rev 6

North Elevation

29 January 2019

DA201 Rev 6

South Elevation

29 January 2019

DA203 Rev 4

East Elevation

29 January 2019

DA301 Rev 7

Section AA

29 January 2019

DA302 Rev 6

Section BB

29 January 2019

DA303 Rev 6

Section CC

29 January 2019

DA304 Rev 5

Section DD

29 January 2019

42

Drawing Number

Drawing Name

Date

EX100 Rev 3

Existing Lower Ground Floor
Plan

29 January 2019

EX101 Rev 3

Existing Ground Floor

29 January 2019

EX102 Rev 3

Existing and Demolition Roof

29 January 2019

EX200 Rev 2

Existing Section i + ii

29 January 2019

EX201 Rev 2

Existing Section iii

29 January 2019

and as amended by the conditions of this consent.
(b)

(2)

In the event of any inconsistency between the approved plans and
supplementary documentation, the drawings will prevail.

SECTION 7.11 CONTRIBUTIONS PAYABLE - CONTRIBUTION TOWARDS
PUBLIC
AMENITIES
–
CITY
OF
SYDNEY
DEVELOPMENT
CONTRIBUTIONS PLAN 2015 – EAST PRECINCT
Council has identified the development will increase demand for public
amenities and facilities. Pursuant to Section 7.11 of the Environmental
Planning and Assessment Act, 1979 (as amended), and the City of Sydney
Development Contributions Plan 2015 the following monetary contributions
are required towards the cost of public amenities.
Contribution Category

Amount

Open Space

$32,851.96

Community Facilities

$16,081.80

Traffic and Transport

$1,029.84

Total

$49,963.60

The City of Sydney will index the above contribution for inflation at the time of
payment using the following formula.
Cpayment

= Cconsent x (CPIpayment ÷ CPIconsent)

Where:
Cpayment

= Is the contribution at time of payment;

Cconsent

= Is the contribution at the time of consent, as shown above;

43

CPIpayment

= Is the Consumer Price Index (All Groups Index) for Sydney
published by the Australian Bureau of Statistics that
applies at the time of payment; and

CPI1consent

= Is the Consumer Price Index (All Groups Index) for Sydney
at the date the contribution amount above was calculated
being – 115.1 for the March 2019 quarter.

The contribution must be paid prior to the issue of any Construction Certificate
in relation to this development.
Please
contact
Council’s
Planning
Administration
staff
at
planningsystemsadmin@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au to request a letter
confirming the indexed contribution amount payable.
Once the letter confirming the indexed contribution is obtained, payment may
be made at any of the City’s Neighbourhood Service Centres or the One Stop
Shop at Town Hall House. Acceptable payment methods are EFTPOS (debit
card only), cash (up to 10K only), Credit Card (up to 50K only) or a bank
cheque made payable to the City of Sydney. Personal or company cheques
will not be accepted.
(3)

DESIGN MODIFICATIONS
The design of the building must be modified as follows:
(a)

A minimum distance of two metres (measured vertically and diagonally)
is to be provided between the top of the hit-and-miss brickwork at ground
level and the bottom of the hit-and-miss brickwork at first floor level.

(b)

The retail units are to be consolidated into one. No access is to be
provided between the retail unit and the residential lobby corridor.

(c)

The air conditioning units as shown on the stamped plans are not
approved.

(d)

The balustrades to the rear of balconies of apartment 4 are to be
removed, and the top of the planter boxes raised to a minimum height of
1.1 metres from finished floor level.

(e)

The residential waste room and bulky waste room are to be consolidated
and the entrance located between the lift lobby and rear of the terrace.
The commercial waste room is to be accessed from the rear of the retail
premises. Access from the retail unit to the toilet and commercial waste
room is to be amended accordingly.

The modifications are to be submitted to and approved by Council’s Area
Coordinator Planning Assessments / Area Planning Manager prior to the issue
of any Construction Certificate.
(4)

IMPACT ON HERITAGE FABRIC
Elevations are to be provided at a scale of 1:10 illustrating:

44

(a)

The works required to the front balconies of the terraces to provide fire
separation between the retail and residential uses.

The works are to be designed in consultation with a qualified heritage architect
to ensure the contributory features of the terraces are not adversely impacted
by the works listed above. Amended plans are to be submitted to and approved
by Council’s Area Coordinator Planning Assessments / Area Planning
Manager prior to the issue of any Construction Certificate.
(5)

(6)

GENERAL HERITAGE
(a)

The proposed works are to be carried out in a manner that minimises
demolition, alterations and new penetrations/fixings to the significant
fabric of the existing building which is listed as a Heritage Item.

(b)

New services are to be surface mounted rather than chased-in to existing
walls to minimise impact on heritage fabric.

(c)

Appropriately qualified tradespersons (as appropriate) are to be
commissioned who are skilled in traditional building and engineering
trades to carry out the proposed scope of works.

(d)

Where internal partitions meet external walls they must abut window
mullions, columns or other such building elements and not glazing.

MATERIALS FOR MAKING GOOD
New materials for making good and repairs, are to match the existing in terms
of colours, finishes, sizes, profile and properties.

(7)

FLOOR SPACE RATIO
The following applies to Floor Space Ratio:

(8)

(a)

The Floor Space Ratio for the development use must not exceed 2.5:1
calculated in accordance with Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012.
For the purposes of the calculation of FSR, the maximum Gross Floor
Area is 561sqm.

(b)

Prior to an Occupation Certificate being issued, a Registered Surveyor
must provide certification of the total and component Gross Floor Areas
(by use) in the development, utilising the definition under Sydney Local
Environmental Plan 2012, applicable at the time of development
consent, to the satisfaction of the Principal Certifier.

EXTERNAL SHADE SCREENS
Operable shade screens are to be provided to north facing windows of
apartments 2-4. The screens are to be compatible with the architecture of the
building and be of high quality material. Details of the screens are to be
approved by Council’s Area Coordinator Planning Assessments / Area
Planning Manager prior to any Construction Certificate being issued.

45

(9)

CONSOLIDATION OF AIR CONDITIONING UNITS IN THE BASEMENT
Approval is not granted for the installation of individual air conditioning units to
the facade or balconies of the building.
If air conditioning units are to be provided for the residential or retail units, they
must be located within a consolidated area of the basement to the satisfaction
of the Principal Certifier.

(10) MATERIALS AND SAMPLES BOARD
A physical material sample board which specifies all proposed materials,
finishes and colours, (including visible rainwater goods and services) keyed to
each building elevation must be submitted to and approved by Council’s Area
Coordinator Planning Assessments / Area Planning Manager prior to any
Construction Certificate being issued. The materials and samples board must
not include generic material or colour descriptions, or use terminology such as
‘or similar’.
(11) COMPLIANCE WITH SUBMITTED MATERIALS AND SAMPLES BOARD
The design details of the proposed building facade including all external
finishes, colours and glazing must be in accordance with the materials
schedule and sample board, and specifications approved under condition 10.
(12) LANDSCAPING OF THE SITE
(a)

(b)

A detailed landscape plan, drawn to scale by a qualified landscape
architect or landscape designer, must be submitted to and approved by
Council’s Area Coordinator Planning Assessments / Area Planning
Manager prior to the issue of any Construction Certificate for above
ground building works. The plan must include:
(i)

Location of existing and proposed structures on the site including,
but not limited to, existing and proposed trees, paved areas,
planted areas on slab, planted areas in natural ground, lighting and
other features;

(ii)

Details of earthworks and soil depths including mounding and
retaining walls and planter boxes (if applicable). The minimum soil
depths for planting on slab must be 1000mm for trees, 450mm for
shrubs and 200mm for groundcovers;

(iii)

Location, numbers, type and supply of plant species, with
reference to NATSPEC (if applicable);

(iv)

Details of planting procedure and maintenance;

(v)

Details of drainage, waterproofing and watering systems.

Prior to the issue of any Construction Certificate, a maintenance plan is
to be submitted to and approved by the Principal Certifier. The
maintenance plan is to be complied with during occupation of the
property.

46

(c)

All landscaping in the approved plan is to be completed prior to an
Occupation Certificate being issued.

(13) TIMBER FRONT DORMERS
(a)

The front dormer must use timber joinery and double-hung windows and
must be a rectangular, timber framed, vertically proportioned, double
hung sash window with a ratio of 1.5:1 measured from base to top of the
window frame.

(b)

The dormers must be symmetrically placed on the roof plane.

(c)

The total external width of the dormer including frames must not exceed
1200mm (exclusive of eave overhangs and gutters) and the eave and
gable overhang must not exceed 100mm.

(d)

Glazing must not be used in the gable or sides of the dormer.

(e)

Roof materials must match the roof material and the roof pitch must be
between 32 degrees and 45 degrees.

(f)

The external joinery must be detailed in a manner appropriate to the style
and period of the building.

(g)

The architraves that cover the side walls and boxed window frames
should not exceed 150mm in width.

Details of the dormer (at a scale of 1:20) and profile must be submitted to and
approved by the Principal Certifier prior to the issue of any Construction
Certificate.
(14) WINDOWS LOCATED WITHIN THREE METRES OF A BOUNDARY
Where any window located within proximity of a property boundary requires
treatment for fire separation, blade walls not already shown on the plan are not
to be constructed without receiving the approval of Council’s Area Coordinator
Planning Assessments / Area Planning Manager prior to any Construction
Certificate being issued. Alternatively, the windows are to be either protected
by drenchers or relocated.
(15) GROUND FLOOR HOURS OF OPERATION
The hours of operation for the retail premises are restricted to between 9am
and 7pm Monday to Friday, 9am and 2pm Saturday and 9am and 5pm
Sunday.
(16) ALIGNMENT LEVELS
(a)

Proposed building floor levels, basement levels, basement car park entry
levels and ground levels shown on the approved Development
Application plans are indicative only and have not been approved by this
consent.

47

(b)

Prior to a Construction Certificate being issued for any excavation, civil
construction, drainage or building work (whichever is earlier), excluding
approved preparatory or demolition work, alignment levels for the
building and site frontages must be submitted to and approved by
Council. The submission must be prepared by a Registered Surveyor
and designed by a suitably qualified engineer, must be in accordance
with the City of Sydney's Public Domain Manual and must be submitted
with a completed and Levels and Gradients Approval Application form
(available on the City’s website).

(c)

These alignment levels, as approved by Council, are to be incorporated
into the plans submitted with the application for a Construction Certificate
for any civil, drainage and public domain work as applicable under this
consent. If the proposed detailed design of the public domain requires
changes to any previously approved Alignment Levels, then an amended
Alignment Levels submission must be submitted to and approved by
Council to reflect these changes prior to a Construction Certificate being
issued for public domain work.

(17) PHOTOGRAPHIC RECORD / DILAPIDATION REPORT (PUBLIC DOMAIN)
Prior to an approval for demolition being granted or a Construction Certificate
being issued, whichever is earlier, a photographic recording of the public
domain site frontages is to be prepared and submitted to Council's satisfaction.
The recording must include clear images of the building facade adjoining the
footpath, the footpath, nature strip, kerb and gutter, driveway crossovers and
laybacks, kerb ramps, road carriageway, street trees and plantings, parking
restriction and traffic signs, and all other existing infrastructure along the street.
The form of the recording is to be as follows:(a)

A PDF format report containing all images at a scale that clearly
demonstrates the existing site conditions;

(b)

Each image is to be labelled to identify the elements depicted, the
direction that the image is viewed towards, and include the name of the
relevant street frontage;

(c)

Each image is to be numbered and cross referenced to a site location
plan;

(d)

A summary report, prepared by a suitable qualified professional, must
be submitted in conjunction with the images detailing the project
description, identifying any apparent existing defects, detailing the date
and authorship of the photographic record, the method of documentation
and limitations of the photographic record;

(e)

Include written confirmation, issued with the authority of both the
applicant and the photographer that the City of Sydney is granted a
perpetual non-exclusive license to make use of the copyright in all
images supplied, including the right to make copies available to third
parties as though they were Council images. The signatures of both the
applicant and the photographer must be included.

48

Any damage to the public way including trees, footpaths, kerbs, gutters, road
carriageway and the like must immediately be made safe and functional by the
applicant. Damage must be fully rectified by the applicant in accordance with
the City’s standards prior to a Certificate of Completion being issued for Public
Domain Works or before an Occupation Certificate is issued for the
development, whichever is earlier.
(18) PUBLIC DOMAIN PLAN
(a)

A detailed Public Domain Plan must be prepared by a suitably qualified
architect, urban designer, landscape architect or engineer and must be
lodged with Council’s Public Domain Section and be approved by
Council prior to a Construction Certificate being issued for public domain
work or above ground building work, whichever is later.

(b)

The Public Domain Plan must document all works required to ensure
that the public domain complies with the City of Sydney’s Public Domain
Manual, Sydney Streets Code and Sydney Streets Technical
Specification, including requirements for road pavement, traffic
measures, footway pavement, kerb and gutter, drainage, vehicle
crossovers, pedestrian ramps, lighting, street trees and landscaping,
signage and other public domain elements. If an Alignment Levels
condition applies to the development, the Public Domain Plan
submission must incorporate the approved Alignment Levels. If the
proposed detailed design of the public domain requires changes to any
previously approved Alignment Levels, then an amended Alignment
Levels submission must be submitted to and approved by Council to
reflect these changes prior to a Construction Certificate being issued for
public domain work.

(c)

The works to the public domain are to be completed in accordance with
the approved Public Domain Plan and Alignment Levels plans and the
Public Domain Manual before any Occupation Certificate is issued in
respect of the development or before the use commences, whichever is
earlier.

(d)

A Public Domain Works Deposit will be required for the public domain
works, in accordance with the City of Sydney’s adopted fees and charges
and the Public Domain Manual. The Public Domain Works Deposit must
be submitted as an unconditional bank guarantee in favour of Council as
security for completion of the obligations under this consent.

(e)

Council's Public Domain section must be contacted to determine the
guarantee amount prior to lodgement of the guarantee. The guarantee
must be lodged with Council prior to a Construction Certificate being
issued.

(f)

The Bank Guarantee will be retained in full until all Public Domain works
are completed and the required certifications, warranties and works-asexecuted documentation are submitted and approved by Council in
writing. On satisfying the above requirements, 90% of the total securities
will be released. The remaining 10% will be retained for the duration of
the specified Defects Liability Period.

49

(19) PUBLIC DOMAIN WORKS - HOLD POINTS AND HANDOVER
(a)

Prior to a Construction Certificate being issued for public domain work,
including civil, drainage and subsurface works, , a set of hold points for
approved public domain, civil and drainage work is to be determined
with and approved by the City's Public Domain section in accordance
with the City of Sydney's Public Domain Manual and Sydney Streets
Technical Specification.

(b)

Prior to a Certificate of Completion being issued for public domain works
and before the issue of any Occupation Certificate for the development
or before the use commences, whichever is earlier, electronic works-asexecuted (as-built) plans and documentation, certified by a suitably
qualified, independent professional must be submitted to and accepted
by Council for all public domain works. Completion and handover of the
constructed public domain works must be undertaken in accordance with
the City of Sydney's Public Domain Manual and Sydney Streets
Technical Specification, including requirements for as-built
documentation, certification, warranties and the defects liability period.

(20) STORMWATER AND DRAINAGE
(a)

(b)

Prior to an approval or Construction Certificate being issued for
excavation, civil construction, drainage or building work (whichever is
earlier), excluding approved preparatory or demolition work a detailed
drainage engineering design, calculations and design for the stormwater
overland flow path for the development must be:
(i)

prepared by a suitably qualified hydraulic or civil engineer to show
the proposed method of collection and disposal of stormwater; and

(ii)

prepared in accordance with the City of Sydney’s Stormwater
Drainage Manual, technical specifications, standards and policies,
as amended from time to time; and

(iii)

submitted to and be approved by the City of Sydney and a copy of
the City’s letter of approval must be provided to the Principal
Certifying Authority.

For approval of a connection into the City of Sydney’s drainage system
an “Application for Approval of Stormwater Drainage Connections" must
be submitted to the City, together with an application fee in accordance
with the City of Sydney’s adopted Schedule of Fees and Charges.
(i)

The application must be approved by the City of Sydney prior to
an approval or Construction Certificate being issued for
excavation, civil construction, drainage or building work (whichever
is earlier), excluding approved preparatory or demolition work.

(ii)

All proposed connections to the City's underground drainage
system require the owner to enter into a Deed of Agreement with
the City of Sydney and obtain registration on Title of a Positive
Covenant prior to an Occupation Certificate being issued, including
an Interim Occupation Certificate.

50

On-site Detention
(c)

The requirements of Sydney Water with regard to the on-site detention
of stormwater must be ascertained and complied with.
(i)

Evidence of the approval by Sydney Water of the detailed design
of the on-site detention must be submitted to and be accepted by
the City of Sydney and a copy of the City’s letter of acceptance
must be provided to the Principal Certifying Authority prior to a
Construction Certificate being issued, excluding for any approved
preparatory, demolition or excavation works.

(ii)

Prior to the issue of an Occupation Certificate, including an Interim
Occupation Certificate, a Positive Covenant must be registered on
the property title for all drainage systems involving On-Site
Detention (OSD) to ensure maintenance of the approved OSD
system regardless of the method of connection.

Stormwater Quality Assessment
(d)

Prior to a Construction Certificate being issued for any excavation, civil
construction, drainage or building work (whichever is earlier), but
excluding approved preparatory or demolition work, a stormwater quality
assessment must be undertaken and must be approved by City of
Sydney and a copy of the City’s letter of approval must be provided to
the Principal Certifying Authority.
A stormwater quality assessment must be undertaken by a suitably
qualified drainage engineer to demonstrate how the development will be
designed to ensure that the flow of post-development pollutants from the
site due to stormwater will be reduced. The water quality assessment
must be submitted to and be approved by the City of Sydney and a copy
of the City’s letter of approval must be provided to the Principal Certifying
Authority prior to a Construction Certificate being issued for any
excavation, civil construction, drainage or building work (whichever is
earlier), excluding approved preparatory or demolition work.
Prior to the issue of an Occupation Certificate, maintenance schedules
of the proposed water sensitive urban design and drainage measures
must be submitted to and be approved by the Principal Certifying
Authority and a copy provided to the City of Sydney.

Completion / Works-as-Executed Documentation
(e)

Prior to a Certificate of Completion being issued by the City of Sydney
for stormwater drainage works:
(i)

All works for the disposal of stormwater and drainage are to be
implemented in accordance with the approved plans, City of
Sydney technical specifications. Standards and policies, approval
letters and the requirements of this consent.

51

(f)

(ii)

a Works-As-Executed survey, prepared, signed and dated by a
Registered Surveyor, must be submitted to and be accepted by the
City of Sydney. The plan must be overlaid on a copy of the
approved stormwater drainage plans issued with the Construction
Certificate, with variations to locations, dimensions, levels and
storage volumes clearly marked.

(iii)

Electronic works-as-executed (as-built) details, certifications,
warranties, inspection reports (including Closed Circuit Television
reports) and associated documentation for the completed work
must be prepared and certified by a suitably qualified hydraulic
engineer, in accordance with the requirements of the City of
Sydney’s technical specifications, the Public Domain Manual, the
Stormwater Drainage Manual, the conditions of this consent and
all letters of approval issued by the City of Sydney for works in the
public domain, and must be submitted to and be accepted by the
City of Sydney.

Prior to the issue of the first Occupation Certificate, including an Interim
Occupation Certificate, or before the use commences (whichever is
earlier):
(i)

A copy of the City’s Certificate of Completion for all stormwater and
drainage work undertaken in the public domain must be provided
to the Principal Certifying Authority;

(ii)

a Works-As-Executed survey, must be prepared, signed, dated
and certified by a Registered Surveyor and must be submitted to
and be accepted by the Principal Certifying Authority. The Worksas-Executed plan must be overlaid on a copy of the approved
stormwater drainage plans issued with the Construction
Certificate, with variations to locations, dimensions, levels and
storage volumes clearly marked;

(iii)

a Hydraulic Compliance Certificate and Calculation Sheet must be
prepared by a suitably qualified hydraulic engineer (minimum
NER), showing approved versus installed hydraulic calculations,
and must be submitted to and be accepted by the Principal
Certifying Authority;

(iv)

evidence of Sydney Water’s acceptance of the Works-AsExecuted documentation, certification and Hydraulic Compliance
Certificate and Calculation Sheet must be provided to the Principal
Certifying Authority;

(v)

The Principal Certifying Authority must submit a copy of the WorksAs-Executed plans, certifications, Hydraulic Compliance
Certificate and Calculation Sheet to the City of Sydney.

52

(21) ALCOVE LIGHTING
The proposed alcove(s) must be fitted with a sensor-activated vandal proof
security light. The light shall be maintained in good working order to Council's
satisfaction. The intensity, colour, and illumination must be varied if, at any
time in the opinion of the consent authority, adverse impact or Obtrusive Light
in accordance with the definition in Australian Standard AS4282-1997 Control
of the obtrusive effects of outdoor is being caused to the amenity of the area.
(22) NOISE
(a)

(b)

(c)

Noise from commercial plant and industrial development must not
exceed a project amenity/intrusiveness noise level or maximum noise
level in accordance with relevant requirements of the NSW EPA Noise
Policy for Industry 2017 (NPfI) unless agreed to by the City’s Area
Planning Manager. Further:
(i)

Background noise monitoring must be carried out in accordance
with the long-term methodology in Fact Sheet B of the NPfI unless
otherwise agreed by the City’s Area Planning Manager.

(ii)

Commercial plant is limited to heating, ventilation, air conditioning,
refrigeration and energy generation equipment.

An LAeq,15 minute (noise level) emitted from the development must not
exceed the LA90, 15 minute (background noise level) by more than 3dB when
assessed inside any habitable room of any affected residence or noise
sensitive commercial premises at any time. Further:
(i)

The noise level and the background noise level shall both be
measured with all external doors and windows of the affected
residence closed.

(ii)

Background noise measurements must not include noise from the
development but may include noise from necessary ventilation at
the affected premise.

Corrections in Fact Sheet C of the NPfI are applicable to relevant noise
from the development measured in accordance with this condition,
however duration corrections are excluded from commercial noise.

(23) BICYCLE PARKING AND END OF TRIP FACILITIES
(a)

The minimum number of bicycle parking spaces to be provided for the
development must comply with the table below.
Bicycle Parking Type

Number Requirements

Residential

4

Notes:

53

Spaces must be Class 2 bicycle
facilities

(i)

(b)

If a basement storage area on title that is large enough to store a
bike and is no smaller than a class 1 bike locker this can be
counted as a space.

The layout, design and security of bicycle facilities must comply with the
minimum requirements of Australian Standard AS 2890.3 Parking
Facilities Part 3: Bicycle Parking Facilities. The details must be submitted
to and approved by the Principal Certifier confirming prior to the
Construction Certificate being issued.

(24) WASTE AND RECYCLING MANAGEMENT
(a)

A Waste and Recycling Management Plan is to be submitted to and
approved by Council’s Area Coordinator Planning Assessments / Area
Planning Manager prior to a Construction Certificate being issued. The
plan must comply with the Council's Guidelines for Waste Management
in New Developments 2018. All requirements of the approved Waste and
Recycling Management Plan must be implemented during construction
of the development.

(b)

The building must incorporate designated areas or separate garbage
rooms constructed in accordance with Council’s Guidelines for Waste
Management in New Developments 2018, to facilitate the separation of
commercial waste and recycling from residential waste and recycling.

UPON COMPLETION OF THE DEVELOPMENT
(c)

Prior to an Occupation Certificate being issued or the use commencing,
whichever is earlier, the Principal Certifier must obtain Council’s
approval of the waste and recycling management facilities provided in
the development and ensure arrangements are in place for domestic
waste collection by Council.

(25) WASTE ROOM AND WASTE COLLECTION
(a)

The nominated waste and recycling storage areas must be constructed
to meet the relevant conditions required by the City’s Waste Minimisation
in New Developments Policy 2005.

(b)

A minimum 8m2 in dedicated space(s) for residential bulky waste storage
must be provided.

(c)

Commercial waste and recycling receptacles and bulky waste must be
stored on the property at all times and must not be placed on kerbside
for collection.

(d)

Commercial waste and recycling receptacles must be stored in a
separated area from residential waste and recycling receptacles and
commercial tenants must not have access to residential bins or waste
rooms.

(e)

Unimpeded access must be provided for collection from the waste and
recycling storage location(s) at all times.

54

(f)

Waste and recycling containers will not be supplied until construction in
developments is completed unless otherwise organised with waste
services.

(g)

The development must have a residential rating or applied for a
residential rating prior to a City Of Sydney waste service commencing.

(h)

Commercial and residential waste service collections and waste storage
arrangements must be conducted in accordance with the City’s Waste
Policy – Local Approvals Policy for Managing Waste in Public Places
(2013).

(i)

Waste receptacles or garbage bins must not be stored on the public
footways adjoining the development prior to collection or at any other
time

(26) WASTE AND RECYCLING COLLECTION CONTRACT
(a)

The collection of waste and recycling must only occur between 7.00am
and 8.00pm weekdays and 9.00am and 5.00pm weekends and public
holidays, to avoid noise disruption to the surrounding area.

(b)

Prior to an Occupation Certificate being issued and/or commencement
of the use, whichever is earlier, the building owner must ensure that there
is a contract with a licensed contractor for the removal of all waste. No
garbage is to be placed on the public way, e.g. footpaths, roadways,
plazas, reserves, at any time.

(27) LAND SUBDIVISION
Any proposal to subdivide the site, including any stratum subdivision of the
building, will require a separate application to Council to obtain development
consent for the proposal and subsequent issue of the Subdivision Certificate
under Section 109J of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.
(28) STRATA SUBDIVISION
Any proposal for strata subdivision of the site will require development consent
and therefore the lodgment of a separate development application or
complying development application, and subsequent approval from Council,
or an accredited certifier, of the Strata Plan and issue of a Strata Certificate
under the Strata Schemes Development Act 2015.
(29) CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT PLAN
(a)

A Construction Traffic Management Plan (CTMP) must be submitted to
and approved by Council prior to a Construction Certificate being issued.

(b)

The CTMP must be prepared in accordance with the City’s guidelines
found at:
https://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/business/doing-business-withus/business-responsibilities/traffic-management/construction-trafficmanagement-plans

55

(c)

The development must be undertaken in accordance with the approved
CTMP.

(30) DEMOLITION, EXCAVATION AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT
(a)

Prior to the commencement of demolition and/or excavation work the
following details must be submitted to and be approved by the Principal
Certifier:
(i)

Plans and elevations showing distances of the subject building
from the location of adjoining and common/party walls, and (where
applicable) the proposed method of facade retention.

(ii)

A Demolition Work Method Statement prepared by a licensed
demolisher who is registered with the Work Cover Authority. (The
demolition by induced collapse, the use of explosives or on-site
burning is not permitted.)

(iii)

An Excavation Work Method Statement prepared by an
appropriately qualified person.

(iv)

A Waste Management Plan for the demolition and or excavation of
the proposed development.

(v)

Plans and elevations showing the location, construction and
installation of temporary site fencing and any temporary structures
used in connection with the construction of the development.

Note: Temporary structures, including hoardings and scaffolding,
proposed for erection on City-owned and controlled land (footways and
roadways), must comply with the City’s Guidelines for Hoardings and
Scaffolding and be approved by Council under the provisions of the
Local Government Act 1993 and the Roads Act 1993 prior to installation.
(b)

Such statements must, where applicable, be in compliance with AS26012001 Demolition of Structures, the Work, Health and Safety Act 2011
and Regulation; Council’s Policy for Waste Minimisation in New
Developments 2005, the Waste Avoidance and Resource Recovery Act
2001, and all other relevant acts and regulations and must include
provisions for:
(i)

A Materials Handling Statement for the removal of refuse from the
site in accordance with the Waste Avoidance and Resource
Recovery Act 2001.

(ii)

The name and address of the company/contractor undertaking
demolition/excavation works.

(iii)

The name and address of the company/contractor undertaking off
site remediation/disposal of excavated materials.

(iv)

The name and address of the transport contractor.

(v)

The type and quantity of material to be removed from site.

56

(vi)

Location and method of waste disposal and recycling.

(vii) Proposed truck routes, in accordance with this development
consent.
(viii) Procedures to be adopted for the prevention of loose or
contaminated material, spoil, dust and litter from being deposited
onto the public way from trucks and associated equipment and the
proposed method of cleaning surrounding roadways from such
deposits. (Note: With regard to demolition of buildings, dust
emission must be minimised for the full height of the building. A
minimum requirement is that perimeter scaffolding, combined with
chain wire and shade cloth must be used, together with continuous
water spray during the demolition process. Compressed air must
not be used to blow dust from the building site).
(ix)

Measures to control noise emissions from the site.

(x)

Measures to suppress odours.

(xi)

Enclosing and making the site safe.

(xii) Induction training for on-site personnel.
(xiii) Written confirmation that an appropriately qualified Occupational
Hygiene Consultant has inspected the building/site for asbestos,
contamination and other hazardous materials, in accordance with
the procedures acceptable to Work Cover Authority.
(xiv) An Asbestos and Hazardous Materials Clearance Certificate by a
person approved by the Work Cover Authority.
(xv) Disconnection of utilities.
(xvi) Fire Fighting. (Fire fighting services on site are to be maintained at
all times during demolition work. Access to fire services in the
street must not be obstructed).
(xvii) Access and egress. (Demolition and excavation activity must not
cause damage to or adversely affect the safe access and egress
of the subject building or any adjacent buildings).
(xviii) Waterproofing of any exposed surfaces of adjoining buildings.
(xix) Control of water pollution and leachate and cleaning of vehicles
tyres (proposals must be in accordance with the Protection of the
Environmental Operations Act 1997).
(xx) Working hours, in accordance with this development consent.
(xxi) Any Work Cover Authority requirements.
(c)

The approved work method statements and a waste management plan
as required by this condition must be implemented in full during the
period of construction.

57

(31) STREET TREE PROTECTION
Street trees must be protected in accordance with the Australian Standard
4970 Protection of Trees on Development Sites. All street trees must be
protected during the construction works as follows:
(a)

Tree trunk and major limb protection must be undertaken prior to or
during the installation of any hoarding or scaffoldings. The protection
must be installed by a qualified Arborist (AFQ 2 or 3) and must include:
(i)

An adequate clearance, minimum 250mm, must be provided
between the structure and tree branches, limbs and truck at all
times;

(ii)

Tree trunk/s and/or major branches, located within 500mm of any
hoarding or scaffolding structure, must be protected by wrapped
hessian or similar material to limit damage, and

(iii)

Timber planks (50mm x 100mm or similar) must be placed around
tree trunk/s. The timber planks must be spaced at 100mm
intervals, and must be fixed against the trunk with tie wire, or
strapping. The hessian and timber planks must not be fixed to the
tree in any instance, or in any fashion,

(iv)

Tree trunk and major branch protection is to remain in place for the
duration of construction and development works, and must be
removed at the completion of the project.

(b)

All hoarding support columns are to be placed a minimum of 300mm
from the edge of the existing tree pits/setts, so that no sinking or damage
occurs to the existing tree setts. Supporting columns must not be placed
on any tree roots that are exposed.

(c)

Materials or goods, including site sheds, must not be stored or placed:
(i)

around or under the tree canopy; or

(ii)

within two (2) metres of tree trunks or branches of any street trees.

(d)

Protective fencing (1.8 metre chain wire mesh fencing) must be erected
on top of the hoarding [Tree Management Team to insert location of
hoarding and affected trees] to protect branches during the construction
works.

(e)

Any damage sustained to street tree/s as a result of the erection of
hoardings, scaffolding, or due to the loading/unloading of vehicles
adjacent the site, must be immediately reported to the Council's Street
Tree Contract Coordinator on 9265 9333, in order to determine the
appropriate action for maintaining the health and structural integrity of
any damaged street tree.

58

(32) DEMOLITION, EXCAVATION AND
VIBRATION MANAGEMENT PLAN

CONSTRUCTION

NOISE

AND

A site specific noise management plan shall be submitted to the Council for
comment and approval prior to issue of any Construction Certificate.
The Plan must be prepared by a suitably qualified person who possesses the
qualifications to render them eligible for membership of the Australian Acoustic
Society, Institution of Engineers Australia or the Australian Association of
Acoustic Consultants.
The plan must include but not be limited to the following:(a)

identification of noise sensitive receivers near to the site.

(b)

A prediction as to the level of noise impact likely to affect the nearest
noise sensitive receivers from the use and proposed number of high
noise intrusive appliances intended to be operated onsite. A statement
should also be submitted outlining whether or not predicted noise levels
will comply with the noise criteria stated within the City of Sydney
Construction Hours /Noise Code of Practice 1992 for the typical
construction hours of 07.00am to 7.00pm. Where resultant site noise
levels are likely to be in exceedance of this noise criteria then a suitable
proposal must be given as to the duration and frequency of respite
periods that will be afforded to the occupiers of neighbouring property.(c)
A representative background noise measurement (LA90, 15 minute) should
be submitted, assessed in the vicinity of any potentially affected receiver
locations and measured in accordance with AS 1055:1.2.1997.(d)
Confirmation of the level of community consultation that has/is and will
be undertaken with Building Managers/ occupiers of the main adjoining
noise sensitive properties likely to be most affected by site works and
the operation of plant/machinery particularly during the demolition and
excavation phases.(e) Confirmation of noise monitoring methodology
that is to be undertaken during the main stages of work at neighbouring
noise sensitive properties in order to keep complaints to a minimum and
to ensure that noise from site works complies with the noise criteria
contained within City's Construction Noise Code.(f) What course of
action will be undertaken following receipt of a complaint concerning
offensive noise.(g)
Details of any noise mitigation measures that
have been outlined by an acoustic consultant or otherwise that will be
deployed on site to reduce noise impacts on the occupiers of
neighbouring noise sensitive property to a minimum.(h) What plant
and equipment is to be used on site, the level of sound mitigation
measures to be undertaken in each case and the criteria adopted in their
selection taking into account the likely noise impacts on the occupiers of
neighbouring property and other less intrusive technologies available.

(33) COMPLIANCE WITH DEMOLITION, EXCAVATION & CONSTRUCTION
NOISE AND VIBRATION MANAGEMENT PLAN
(a)

All works conducted on site which form part of this development must be
carried out in accordance with the submitted Demolition, Excavation and
Construction Management Plan approved under condition 34.

59

(b)

Where all such control measures have been implemented and the
resultant noise and/ or vibration levels at any sensitive receiver still
exceed the council’s applicable criteria stated in the Construction
Hours/Noise Code 1992 and are giving rise to sustained complaints then
the contractor must provide regular, appropriate and sustained periods
of respite in consultation with Council’s Health and Building unit.
Approval to vary the authorised noise and vibration levels must be
received in writing by the proponent from Council prior to activities being
undertaken that exceed sanctioned emission levels. (Use where respite
periods not specified under the approved DEC NMP)
Such periods must be set and agreed to by Council’s Health and Building
Unit.

60

SCHEDULE 1B
PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION CERTIFICATE/COMMENCEMENT OF WORK/HEALTH
AND BUILDING
(34) DEFECTS LIABILITY PERIOD – PUBLIC DOMAIN WORKS
All works to the City’s public domain, including rectification of identified defects,
are subject to a 12 month defects liability period from the date of final
completion. The date of final completion will be nominated by Council on the
Certificate of Completion for public domain works.
(35) DRAINAGE AND SERVICE PIT LIDS
Drainage and service pit lids throughout the public domain shall be heelguard
and bicycle safe, finish flush with the adjacent pavement to avoid trip hazards
and be clear of obstructions for easy opening and cleaning. Pit lids shall be in
accordance with the City of Sydney’s Sydney Streets Design Code and
Sydney Streets Technical Specification. Details of drainage and service pit lids
shall be submitted and approved by Council prior to a Construction Certificate
being issued for the relevant stage of work.
(36) PUBLIC DOMAIN DAMAGE DEPOSIT
A Public Domain Damage Deposit calculated on the basis of 13 lineal metres
of Asphalt site frontage on Foveaux Street and 13 lineal metres of Asphalt site
frontage on Sophia Lane must be lodged with Council in accordance with the
City of Sydney’s adopted Schedule of Fees and Charges. The Public Domain
Damage Deposit must be submitted as an unconditional bank guarantee in
favour of Council as security for repairing any damage to the public domain in
the vicinity of the site.
The guarantee must be lodged with Council prior to an approval for demolition
being granted or a Construction Certificate being issued, whichever is earlier.
The Bank Guarantee will be retained in full until the final Occupation Certificate
has been issued and any rectification works to the footway and Public Domain
are completed to Council’s satisfaction. On satisfying the above requirements
90% of the total securities will be released, with the remaining 10% to be
retained for the duration of the 12 months Defect Liability Period.
(37) TACTILE GROUND SURFACE INDICATORS AND HANDRAILS
All tactile ground surface indicators, handrails and other elements required to
provide access into the building / property must be located entirely within the
private property boundary.

61

(38) PUBLIC DOMAIN LIGHTING
(a)

(b)

Prior to a Construction Certificate for public domain works or above
ground building works being issued, whichever is later, a detailed Public
Domain Lighting Plan for pedestrian and street lighting in the public
domain must be prepared by a suitably qualified, practicing lighting
engineer or lighting designer and must be submitted to and approved by
Council. The Lighting Plan must be prepared in accordance with the City
of Sydney’s Sydney Lights Design Code, Sydney Streets Code, Sydney
Streets Technical Specification and Public Domain Manual and must
include the following:
(i)

Vertical and horizontal illuminance plots for the public domain
lighting design to demonstrate compliance with all relevant
Australian Standards and to meet the lighting categories and
requirements specified by the City;

(ii)

The location, type and category of existing and proposed lights,
including details of luminaire specifications, required to ensure
compliance with City policies and Australian Standards;

(iii)

Footing locations and structural details;

(iv)

Location and details of underground electrical reticulation,
connections and conduits;

(v)

Certification by a suitably qualified, practicing lighting engineer or
lighting designer to certify that the design complies with City
policies and all relevant Australian Standards including AS 1158,
AS 3000 and AS4282;

(vi)

Structural certification for footing designs by a suitably qualified,
practicing engineer to certify that the design complies with City of
Sydney policies and Australian Standards.

The public domain lighting works are to be completed in accordance with
the approved plans and the City of Sydney's Public Domain Manual
before any Occupation Certificate is issued in respect of the
development or before the use commences, whichever is earlier.

(39) SYDNEY WATER CERTIFICATE
A Section 73 Compliance Certificate under the Sydney Water Act 1994 must
be obtained from Sydney Water Corporation.
Application must be made through an authorised Water Servicing Coordinator.
Please refer to the Building Developing and Plumbing section on the web site
www.sydneywater.com.au then refer to “Water Servicing Coordinator” under
“Developing Your Land” or telephone 13 20 92 for assistance.
Following the submission of the application a “Notice of Requirements” will
advise of water and sewer infrastructure to be built and charges to be paid.
Please make early contact with the Coordinator, since building of water/sewer
infrastructure can be time consuming and may impact on other services and
building, driveway or landscape design.

62

The Section 73 Certificate must be submitted to Council or the Principal
Certifier prior to an Occupation Certificate or subdivision/strata certificate
being issued.
(40) ACCESS AND FACILITIES FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES
The building must be designed and constructed to provide access and facilities
for people with a disability in accordance with the Building Code of Australia.
If, in complying with this condition, amendments to the development are
required, the design changes must be submitted to and approved by Council
prior to a Construction Certificate being issued.
(41) ACCESS FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES - OFFICE / SHOP FITOUTS
In accordance with the Building Code of Australia the proposed office / shop
layout and design must comply with Australian Standard 1428.1: General
requirements for access - New building works.
(42) DILAPIDATION REPORT
Subject to the receipt of permission of the affected landowner, dilapidation
report/s of adjoining buildings are to be prepared by an appropriately qualified
practising structural engineer and submitted for the approval of the Principal
Certifier:
(a)

prior to the commencement of demolition/excavation works; and

(b)

on completion of construction demolition/excavation works.

(43) EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL - LESS THAN 250SQM
Where less than 250 square metres are being disturbed, no formal plan is
required however, the site is to be provided with sediment control measures
and these must be implemented so that sediment, including soil, excavated
material, building material or other materials cannot fall, descend, percolate,
be pumped, drained, washed or allowed to flow to the street, stormwater
system or waterways.
(44) ROAD OPENING PERMIT
A separate Road Opening Permit under Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993
must be obtained from Council prior to the commencement of any:
(a)

Excavation in or disturbance of a public way, or

(b)

Excavation on land that, if shoring were not provided, may disturb the
surface of a public road (including footpath).

63

(45) APPLICATION FOR HOARDINGS AND SCAFFOLDING INSTALLED ON
OR ABOVE A PUBLIC ROAD AND OPERATING HOISTING DEVICES
INCLUDING BUILDING MAINTENANCE UNITS OVER A PUBLIC ROAD
(a)

A separate application under Section 68 of the Local Government Act
1993 and Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993 is to be made to Council to
erect a hoarding and/or scaffolding (temporary structures) on or above a
public road (footway and/or roadway).

(b)

Where an approval (Permit) is granted allowing the placement of
temporary structures on or above a public road the structures must
comply fully with Council’s Hoarding and Scaffolding Policy; Guidelines
for Hoardings and Scaffolding; and the conditions of approval (Permit)
granted including:
(i)

maintaining a current and valid approval for the full duration that
the temporary structure/s is in place;

(ii)

maintaining temporary structure/s in a structurally sound and
stable condition for the full duration of installation (Clause 2.11.1);

(iii)

bill posters and graffiti being removed within 24 hours of their
placement (Clause 2.11.2);

(iv)

maintaining temporary structures and the public place adjoining
the work site in a clean and tidy condition including repainting
and/or repair of graphics (Clauses 2.11.1, 2.11.4, 2.14.1 and
3.9.3);

(v)

maintaining a watertight deck (Type B hoardings) to prevent liquids
including rainwater, falling onto the footway/roadway surfaces
(Clauses 3.9.1 and 3.9.4);

(vi)

approved site sheds on the decks of a Type B hoarding being fully
screened from the public place (Clause 3.9.5);

(vii) material and equipment not being placed or stored on the deck of
Type B hoardings, unless specifically approved by Council (Clause
3.9.4);
(viii) providing and maintaining operational artificial lighting systems
under Type B hoardings including at high-bay truck entry points
(Clause 3.9.9); and
(ix)

ensuring all required signage is provided and maintained (Clauses
3.9.3, 3.9.6, 3.9.8, 3.10.1 and 4.2).

If it is proposed to operate a hoisting device including a building maintenance
unit above a public road which swings, hoists material/equipment and/or slews
any part of the device over the public road, a separate application under
Section 68 of the Local Government Act 1993 and Section 138 of the Roads
Act 1993 must be made to Council to obtain approval.

64

Note: 'Building maintenance unit' means a power-operated suspended
platform and associated equipment on a building specifically designed to
provide permanent access to the faces of the building for maintenance (Work
Health and Safety Regulation 2011).
(46) WORKS REQUIRING USE OF A PUBLIC PLACE
Where construction/building works require the use of a public place including
a road or footpath, approval under Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993 is to be
obtained from Council prior to the commencement of work. Details of any
barricade construction, area of enclosure and period of work are required to
be submitted to the satisfaction of Council.
(47) ELECTRICITY SUBSTATION
If required by the applicable energy supplier, the owner must dedicate to the
applicable energy supplier, free of cost, an area of land within the development
site, but not in any landscaped area or in any area visible from the public
domain, to enable an electricity substation to be installed. The size and
location of the substation is to be submitted for approval of Council and
Ausgrid, prior to a Construction Certificate being issued or the commencement
of the use, whichever is earlier.
(48) TELECOMMUNICATIONS IN NEW DEVELOPMENTS
Prior to the issue of the Subdivision or Construction Certificate in connection
with a development, the developer (whether or not a constitutional corporation)
is to provide evidence satisfactory to the Principal Certifier that arrangements
have been made for:
(a)

the installation of fibre-ready facilities to all individual lots and/or
premises in a real estate development project so as to enable fibre to be
readily connected to any premises that is being or may be constructed
on those lots. Demonstrate that the carrier has confirmed in writing that
they are satisfied that the fibre ready facilities are fit for purpose; and

(b)

the provision of fixed-line telecommunications infrastructure in the fibreready facilities to all individual lots and/or premises in a real estate
development project demonstrated through an agreement with a carrier.

Note: real estate development project has the meanings given in section 372Q
of the Telecommunications Act.
(49) TELECOMMUNICATIONS PROVISIONS
(a)

Appropriate space and access for ducting and cabling is to be provided
within the plant area and to each apartment within the building within for
a minimum of three telecommunication carriers or other providers of
broad-band access by ground or satellite delivery. The details must be
submitted for the approval of the Principal Certifier prior to a Construction
Certificate being issued.

65

(b)

A separate DA must be submitted prior to the installation of any external
telecommunication apparatus, or the like.

(50) UTILITY SERVICES
To ensure that utility authorities are advised of the development:
(a)

Prior to the issue of any Construction Certificate a survey is to be carried
out of all utility services within and adjacent to the site including relevant
information from utility authorities and excavation if necessary, to
determine the position and level of services.

(b)

Prior to the commencement of work the applicant is to obtain written
approval from the utility authorities (e.g. Energy Australia, Sydney Water,
and Telecommunications Carriers) in connection with the relocation
and/or adjustment of the services affected by the construction of the
underground structure. Any costs in the relocation, adjustment or
support of services are to be the responsibility of the developer.

66

SCHEDULE 1C
DURING CONSTRUCTION/PRIOR TO OCCUPATION/COMPLETION
(51) OCCUPATION CERTIFICATE TO BE SUBMITTED
An Occupation Certificate must be obtained from the Principal Certifier and a
copy submitted to Council prior to commencement of occupation or use of the
whole or any part of a new building, an altered portion of, or an extension to
an existing building.
(52) HOURS OF WORK AND NOISE
The hours of construction and work on the development must be as follows:
(a)

All work, including building/demolition and excavation work, and
activities in the vicinity of the site generating noise associated with
preparation for the commencement of work (eg. loading and unloading
of goods, transferring of tools etc) in connection with the proposed
development must only be carried out between the hours of 7.30am and
5.30pm on Mondays to Fridays, inclusive, and 7.30am and 3.30pm on
Saturdays, with safety inspections being permitted at 7.00am on work
days, and no work must be carried out on Sundays or public holidays.

(b)

All work, including demolition, excavation and building work must comply
with the City of Sydney Code of Practice for Construction Hours/Noise
1992 and Australian Standard 2436 - 2010 Guide to Noise Control on
Construction, Maintenance and Demolition Sites.

(c)

Notwithstanding the above, the use of a crane for special operations,
including the delivery of materials, hoisting of plant and equipment and
erection and dismantling of on site tower cranes which warrant the onstreet use of mobile cranes outside of above hours can occur, subject to
a permit being issued by Council under Section 68 of the Local
Government Act 1993 and/or Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993.

Note: Works may be undertaken outside of hours, where it is required to avoid
the loss of life, damage to property, to prevent environmental harm and/or to
avoid structural damage to the building. Written approval must be given by the
Construction Regulation Unit, prior to works proceeding
The City of Sydney Code of Practice for Construction Hours/Noise 1992 allows
extended working hours subject to the approval of an application in
accordance with the Code and under Section 4.55 of the Environmental
Planning and Assessment Act 1979.
(53) BUILDING HEIGHT
(a)

The height of the building must not exceed RL 52.28 (AHD) to the top of
the building.

(b)

Prior to an Occupation Certificate being issued, a Registered Surveyor
must provide certification that the height of the building accords with (a)
above, to the satisfaction of the Principal Certifier.

67

(54) BASIX
All commitments listed in each relevant BASIX Certificates (935533M-04 and
A339525_02) for the development must be fulfilled prior to an Occupation
Certificate being issued.
(55) LOADING AND UNLOADING DURING CONSTRUCTION
The following requirements apply:
(a)

All loading and unloading associated with construction activity must be
accommodated on site, where possible.

(b)

If, it is not feasible for loading and unloading to take place on site, a
Works Zone on the street may be considered by Council.

(c)

A Works Zone may be required if loading and unloading is not possible
on site. If a Works Zone is warranted an application must be made to
Council at least 8 weeks prior to commencement of work on the site. An
approval for a Works Zone may be given for a specific period and certain
hours of the days to meet the particular need for the site for such facilities
at various stages of construction. The approval will be reviewed
periodically for any adjustment necessitated by the progress of the
construction activities.

(d)

Where hoisting activity over the public place is proposed to be
undertaken including hoisting from a Works Zone, a separate approval
under Section 68 of the Local Government Act 1993 must be obtained.

(56) NO OBSTRUCTION OF PUBLIC WAY
The public way must not be obstructed by any materials, vehicles, refuse, skips
or the like, under any circumstances. Non-compliance with this requirement
will result in the issue of a notice by Council to stop all work on site.
(57) STREET NUMBERING – SINGLE DWELLINGS/MINOR DEVELOPMENT
Prior to an Occupation Certificate being issued, a street number must be
clearly displayed at in accordance with the Policy on Numbering of Premises
within the City of Sydney. If new street numbers or a change to street numbers
is required, a separate application must be made to Council.
(58) COVERING OF LOADS
All vehicles involved in the excavation and/or demolition process and departing
the property with demolition materials, spoil or loose matter must have their
loads fully covered before entering the public roadway.

68

(59) ARCHAEOLOGICAL DISCOVERY DURING EXCAVATION
(a)

Should any relics be unexpectedly discovered on the site during
excavation, all excavation or disturbance to the area is to stop
immediately and the Heritage Council of NSW should be informed in
accordance with section 146 of the Heritage Act 1977.

(b)

Should any Aboriginal objects be unexpectedly discovered then all
excavation or disturbance of the area is to stop immediately and NSW
Government Office of Environment and Heritage is to be informed in
accordance with Section 89A of the National Parks and Wildlife Act 1974

(c)

Should any archaeological remains or Aboriginal objects be discovered,
a copy of recording of the finds and the final archaeological summary
report is to be submitted to Council prior to the Occupational Certificate;

(d)

if the discovery is on Council’s land, Council must be informed.

(60) SUBMISSION OF ELECTRONIC CAD MODELS PRIOR TO OCCUPATION
CERTIFICATE
(a)

Prior to an Occupation Certificate being issued, an accurate 1:1
electronic CAD model of the completed development must be submitted
to Council for the electronic Visualisation City Model.

(b)

The data required to be submitted within the surveyed location must
include and identify:
(i)

building design above and below ground in accordance with the
development consent;

(ii)

all underground services and utilities, underground structures and
basements, known archaeological structures and artefacts;

(iii)

a current two points on the site boundary clearly marked to show
their Northing and Easting MGA (Map Grid of Australia)
coordinates, which must be based on Established Marks
registered in the Department of Lands and Property Information’s
SCIMS Database with a Horizontal Position Equal to or better than
Class C.

The data is to be submitted as a DGN or DWG file on a Compact Disc.
All modelling is to be referenced to the Map Grid of Australia (MGA)
spatially located in the Initial Data Extraction file.
(c)

The electronic model must be constructed in accordance with the City’s
3D CAD electronic model specification. The specification is available
online at http://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/development/applicationguide/application-process/model-requirements Council’s Modelling staff
should be consulted prior to creation of the model. The data is to comply
with all of the conditions of the Development Consent.

69

SCHEDULE 2
PRESCRIBED CONDITIONS
The prescribed conditions in accordance with Division 8A of the Environmental
Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000 apply:
Clause 98

Compliance with Building Code of Australia and insurance requirements
under the Home Building Act 1989

Clause 98A

Erection of signs

Clause 98B

Notification of Home Building Act 1989 requirements

Clause 98C

Conditions relating to entertainment venues

Clause 98D

Conditions relating to maximum capacity signage

Clause 98E

Conditions relating to shoring and adequacy of adjoining property

Refer to the NSW State legislation for full text of the clauses under Division 8A of the
Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000. This can be accessed at:
http://www.legislation.nsw.gov.au

70

Attachment B
Selected Drawings

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

81

82

83

84

85

86

87

88

89

90

Attachment C
Solar Access Diagrams

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

Attachment D
Clause 4.6 Variation Request

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

120

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Item 8.
Development Application: Junction Street, Woolloomooloo - D/2019/467
File No.:

D/2019/467

Summary
Date of Submission:

10 May 2019

Applicant:

Mr D Picklum - Project Officer, City of Sydney

Owner:

City of Sydney

Cost of Works:

$6,600

Zoning:

B4 Mixed Use Zone - the proposed installation and
operation of a chicken coop is ancillary to the use of the
site as a community garden and which is permitted with
consent in the zone.

Proposal Summary:

Installation of a chicken coop within the Bourke Street
Community Garden.
The application is referred to the Local Planning Panel as
Council is the applicant and land owner of the subject site.
The proposed development complies with the relevant
provisions of the Sydney LEP 2012, the Sydney DCP 2012
and the relevant SEPPs.
The proposal has been reviewed by Council's
Environmental Health, Heritage and Tree Management
Specialists and Legal. Each of these referrals support the
proposal, subject to recommended conditions.

Summary Recommendation:

The development application is recommended for
approval, subject to conditions.

Development Controls:

(i)

Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012

(ii)

Sydney Development Control Plan 2012

A.

Recommended Conditions of Consent

B.

Selected Drawings

Attachments:

1

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Recommendation
It is resolved that consent be granted to Development Application No. D/2019/467 subject to
the conditions set out in Attachment A to the subject report.
Reasons for Recommendation
The application is recommended for approval for the following reasons:
(A)

The proposed installation and operation of a chicken coop is ancillary to the use of the
site as a community garden and which is permitted with consent in the zone.

(B)

The proposed development is suitable to its setting and satisfies the relevant
provisions of the Sydney LEP 2012, the Sydney DCP 2012 and the relevant SEPPs.

(C)

Subject to the recommended conditions the proposed development will not detract
from the amenity of nearby residences.

2

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Background
The Site and Surrounding Development
1.

The site is a portion of land at the western end of Junction Street as identified in DP
1018485 and is commonly known as the Bourke Street Community Garden.

2.

Bourke Street Community Garden is located adjacent and to the east of the Eastern
Distributor and occupies parts of several lots including Lot 2 in DP 78050, Lot 1 in DP
1018485, and Lots 3 and 4 in DP 536017. The landscaped area south of Junction
Street is commonly known as Bourke Street Park and the landscaped area north of
Junction Street is commonly known as Viaduct Area #2.

3.

Bourke Street Community Garden runs parallel to and is set back by 24 metres behind
a landscaped strip of land, from the western edge of the carriageway of Bourke Street.
The eastern suburbs railway viaduct passes over part of the northern end of the
community garden.

4.

Surrounding land uses are predominantly residential in character to the north, south
and east. The site is not a heritage item and is not in the vicinity of a heritage item, but
is located within the Woolloomooloo conservation area (C71).

5.

A site visit was carried out on 15 May 2019. Photos of the site are provided below:

Figure 1: Aerial image of subject site.

3

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 2: Fenced off community garden viewed from Bourke Street.

Figure 3: Garden beds and trellises within existing community garden, to the south of the location of
the proposed chicken coop.

4

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 4: Approximate location of proposed chicken coop within the community garden.

Figure 5: View to unplanted area to the north of the location of the proposed chicken coop within the
fenced off community garden.

5

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

History Relevant to the Development Application
6.

The portion of land on which the chicken coop is located is still legally public road as
this portion of Junction Street has not been formally closed. Notwithstanding this
Council records indicate that Junction Street was effectively closed to traffic in the late
1990s to accommodate the construction of the Eastern Distributor.

7.

The Bourke Street Community Garden was established in 2011 as part of the upgrade
of Bourke Street Park. This consisted of the construction of a high surrounding fence,
picnic tables, garden beds, pathways, pergolas, toilets and garden sheds.

8.

It is noted that works associated with the establishment of the community garden, with
the exception of the subject chicken coop, are development without consent under
Part 5 of the Act and have been subject to a self-assessment by the City Greening and
Leisure unit.

9.

The Bourke Street Community Garden Group formed in early 2012 and led community
consultation for the design of the garden. The garden was completed in August 2013.

10.

On 25 July 2016, Council resolved to extend the Bourke Street Community Garden to
the north to take in the western end of Junction Street and the area beneath the
viaduct to form the current configuration of the site as identified in Figure 1 above.

Proposal
11.

The application seeks consent for the installation of a chicken coop, as follows:
(a)

Construction of a reinforced 110mm thick floating concrete slab on the surface of
the ground upon which the prefabricated metal chicken coop will be based;

(b)

The prefabricated structure comprises:
(i)

dimensions 2.5m x 1.6m and a height of 2.2m;

(ii)

aluminium frame;

(iii)

2.5mm gauge galvanised mesh;

(iv)

galvanised mini-corrugated iron walls to one side and rear elevations; and

(v)

two wooden laying boxes and two wooden perches.

12.

On 18 June 2019, the proposal was amended to incorporate a reinforced floating
concrete slab so as to avoid the need for any excavation of the site.

13.

Drawings of the proposed development are provided on the following pages.

6

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 6: Future intended occupant, perched on wooden laying box.

Figure 7: Prefabricated chicken coop.

7

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Figure 8: Elevations and axonometric drawings.

Figure 9: Site plan.

Economic/Social/Environmental Impacts
14.

The application has been assessed under Section 4.15 of the Environmental Planning
and Assessment Act 1979, including consideration of the following matters:

8

Local Planning Panel

(a)

17 July 2019

Environmental Planning Instruments and DCPs.

State Environmental Planning Policy No 55—Remediation of Land
15.

The aim of SEPP 55 is to ensure that a change of land use will not increase the risk to
human health, particularly in circumstances where a more sensitive land use is
proposed.

16.

The applicant submits that Council's records do not indicate any previous uses that
would cause contamination of the site. The City’s Environmental Health Specialist has
reviewed the proposal and raises no objection in terms of the site being unsuitable for
the proposed development.

State Environmental Planning Policy (Vegetation in Non-Rural Areas)
17.

The aim of the SEPP is to protect the biodiversity values and amenity of non-rural
areas of the State through the preservation of trees and other vegetation.

18.

Council's Tree Management Specialist has reviewed the proposal and has
recommended conditions to address the protection of trees adjacent to the location of
the proposed chicken coop and which is in accordance with the objectives of the
SEPP.

19.

Refer to the assessment against provision 3.5.3 of the Sydney DCP 2012 (the DCP) in
the compliance tables below.

Sydney Regional Environmental Plan (Sydney Harbour Catchment) 2005 (Deemed
SEPP)
20.

The site is located within the designated hydrological catchment of Sydney Harbour
and is subject to the provisions of the above SREP.

21.

The Sydney Harbour Catchment Planning Principles have been considered in this
assessment. The site is within the Sydney Harbour Catchment and eventually drains
into the Harbour. However, it is not located in the Foreshores Waterways Area or
adjacent to a waterway. Therefore, with the exception of the objective of improved
water quality, the objectives of the SREP are not applicable to the proposed
development.

22.

The development is consistent with the relevant controls contained within the deemed
SEPP.

Sydney LEP 2012
23.

The site is located within the B4 Mixed Use Zone. The proposed construction and use
of a chicken coop is ancillary to the use of the site as a community garden and which
is permitted with consent in the zone.

24.

The relevant matters to be considered under Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012
for the proposed development are outlined below.

9

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

Compliance Tables
Development Control

Compliance

Comment

4.3 Height of Buildings

n/a

There is no maximum height shown for
the subject site on the Height of
Buildings Map.

5.10 Heritage conservation

Yes

The site is not a heritage item and is not
in the vicinity of a heritage item, but is
located within the Woolloomooloo
Conservation Area (C71).
Council's Heritage Specialist has
reviewed the proposal and raises no
objection.

6.21 Design excellence

Yes

The proposed development satisfies the
requirements of this provision in so far
as they are relevant to the construction
of a prefabricated chicken coop.

7.14 Acid Sulphate Soils

Yes

The site is identified as containing Class
2 Acid Sulphate Soil.
No works are proposed below the
natural ground surface. The proposal is
unlikely to have any effects upon the
water table.
The proposal is consistent with the
objectives of this provision.

7.15 Flood planning

Yes

The subject site is not identified as being
flood prone.

Sydney DCP 2012
25.

The relevant matters to be considered under Sydney Development Control Plan 2012
for the proposed development are outlined below.

2. Locality Statements – Woolloomooloo
The subject site is located in the locality of Woolloomooloo. The proposal is considered to
be in keeping with the unique character of the area and adopted design principles.

10

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

3. General Provisions

Compliance

Comment

3.5.3 Urban Ecology - Tree
Management

Able to
comply

The proposed development is in close
proximity to several significant trees
located at the western edge of the
community garden.
The proposal has been reviewed by
Council's Tree Management Officer and
is supported subject to the conditions
discussed further in the Issues section in
this report below.

3.9 Heritage

Yes

Refer to comments against provision
5.10 in the LEP compliance table above.

3.14 Waste

Able to
comply

A condition has been recommended for
the proposed development to comply
with the relevant provisions of the City of
Sydney Guidelines for Waste
Management in New Development.

4. Development Types

Compliance

Comment

Yes

Subject to the recommended conditions
the proposed development will not have
any adverse impacts upon the amenity
of adjacent residences.

4.2 Residential flat,
commercial and mixed use
developments
4.2.3 Amenity

Refer to the Chicken Coop Management
heading in the Issues section of this
report below.
4.2.6 Waste and Recycling
Management

Yes

The proposed development will assist in
the recycling of organic waste within the
community garden.
Refer to the Chicken Coop Management
heading in the Issues section of this
report below.

11

Local Planning Panel

4. Development Types

17 July 2019

Compliance

Comment

Yes

Subject to the recommended conditions
the proposed development will not
detract from the amenity of nearby
residences.

4.2 Residential flat,
commercial and mixed use
developments
4.2.9 Non-residential
development in the B4 Mixed
Uses Zone

Refer to the Chicken Coop Management
heading in the Issues section of this
report below.

Issues
Location of Development
26.

As detailed in the History section of this report, Junction Street was effectively closed
to traffic in the late 1990's to accommodate the construction of the Eastern Distributor.
Since its closure it has been altered through various phases of public works to its
current condition as a community garden and public open space.

27.

Although the portion of land on which the chicken coop is located is still legally public
road as this portion of Junction Street has not been formally closed it has been
confirmed that there is no legal impediment to the granting of consent for the proposed
development.

Chicken Coop Management
28.

The submitted DA documentation includes a Chicken Project Management Plan that
specifies design features of the coop as well as procedures for feeding and caring for
chickens, cleaning, managing waste, establishing a maximum number of chickens to
be housed and banning roosters. A condition is recommended for the coop to be
managed in accordance with the management plan.

29.

Council's Environmental Health Specialist has reviewed the proposal and raises no
objection subject to the recommended condition which specifies some additional coop
management requirements.

Tree Management
30.

As shown in Figure 10 below, several trees are located in close proximity to the
location of the proposed chicken coop and may be affected by the proposed
construction of a chicken coop.

31.

The trees are semi-mature to mature specimens of Casuarina cunninghamiana (River
She Oak) which stand along the western edge of the community garden, immediately
adjacent to the Eastern Distributor. Given the location of these trees it is important
that their stability is not compromised by the proposed works.

12

Local Planning Panel

17 July 2019

32.

As mentioned in the Proposal section of this report above, following consultation
between Council's Tree Management Officer and the applicant it was decided that the
concrete slab on which the chicken coop is to be constructed is to be laid above the
existing soil surface, as opposed to being dug into the soil.

33.

The amended proposal is unlikely to compromise the stability of these trees, so long
as tree-sensitive construction methods are utilised as prescribed by the recommended
conditions.

Figure 10: Approximate location of proposed chicken coop within the community garden and adjacent
trees.

Other Impacts of the Development
34.

The proposed development is capable of complying with the BCA.

35.

It is considered that the proposal will have no significant detrimental effect relating to
environmental, social or economic impacts on the locality, subject to appropriate
conditions being imposed.

Suitability of the site for the Development
36.

The proposal is of a nature in keeping with the overall function of the site.

Internal Referrals
37.

The assessment process has been informed by advice from Council’s Environmental
Health Specialist, Heritage Specialist, Tree Management Specialist and Legal Officer.

13

Local Planning Panel

38.

17 July 2019

Where appropriate, conditions recommended by these referrals have been included for
imposition on any consent given.

External Referrals
Notification, Advertising and Delegation
39.

In accordance with Schedule 1 the Sydney DCP 2012, the subject application was
notified and advertised for a period of 21 days between 13 May 2019 and 4 June 2019.
As a result of this notification a total of 287 properties were notified. Two submissions
in support of the proposal were received.

40.

The submissions support the proposal on the basis that the community garden is an
important and unique feature of the neighbourhood and the addition of a chicken coop
will further extend the benefits and enjoyment of the community garden.

Public Interest
41.

It is considered that the proposal will have no detrimental effect on the public interest,
subject to appropriate conditions being proposed.

S7.11 Contribution
42.

The development is not subject to a S7.11 development contribution as it is for work
undertaken by or on behalf of Council which is a type of development listed in Table 2
of the City of Sydney Development Contributions Plan 2015 and is excluded from the
need to pay a contribution. A contribution is therefore not payable.

Relevant Legislation
43.

The Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

Conclusion
44.

The subject DA proposes installation of a chicken coop within the Bourke Street
Community Garden.

45.

The application is referred to the Local Planning Panel as Council is the applicant and
land owner of the subject site.

46.

The proposed development complies with the relevant provisions of the Sydney LEP
2012, the Sydney DCP 2012 and relevant SEPPs.

47.

The proposal, including the Chicken Project Management Plan has been reviewed by
Council's Environmental Health, Heritage and Tree Management Specialists and
Legal. Each of the referrals from these experts support the proposal, subject to
recommended conditions.

14

Local Planning Panel

48.

17 July 2019

The subject DA is recommended for approval, subject to conditions.

GRAHAM JAHN, AM
Director City Planning, Development and Transport
Ben Chamie, Senior Planner

15

Attachment A
Recommended Conditions of Consent

16

CONDITIONS OF CONSENT
SCHEDULE 1
APPROVED DEVELOPMENT / USE AND OPERATION / DURING CONSTRUCTION /
COMPLETION
(1)

APPROVED DEVELOPMENT
(a)

(2)

Development must be in accordance with Development Application No.
D/2019/467 dated 10 May 2019 and:
(i)

drawing number CD-1912-101, Issue A, dated 19.03.2019 and
prepared by Sturt Noble Associates;

(ii)

drawing titled ROYAL ROOSTER – CHICKEN PALACE; and

(iii)

as amended by the conditions of this consent.

(b)

Only the chicken coop structure as annotated in red on the stamped
approved plans is approved by this consent. No other structures shown on
the stamped approved plans are approved by this consent; and

(c)

In the event of any inconsistency between the approved plans and
supplementary documentation, the plans will prevail.

DESIGN MODIFICATIONS
The design of the chicken coop must be modified as follows:

(3)

(a)

The concrete slab upon which the prefabricated chicken coop is to be
mounted and must not be dug or excavated into the ground, as annotated in
red on the stamped approved plans.

(b)

The concrete slab upon which the prefabricated chicken coop is to be
mounted must be a reinforced floating slab 110mm thick, constructed on the
surface of the ground, as annotated in red on the stamped approved plans.

KEEPING OF POULTRY
(a)

Poultry must not be kept under such conditions as to create a nuisance or to
be dangerous or injurious to human health.

(b)

Poultry yards must be kept clean and free from offensive odours at all times.

(c)

No roosters are to be kept on site at any time.

(d)

Measures must be put in place to ensure chickens are contained within the
community garden area.

17

(4)

PLAN OF MANAGEMENT
The chicken coop must always be managed in accordance with the Chicken
Project Management Plan, dated June 2016 that has been approved by Council.
In the event of any inconsistency, the conditions of this consent will prevail over
the Chicken Project Management Plan.

(5)

COPIES OF CONSENTS AND MANAGEMENT PLANS
A full and current copy of this development consent for the installation and
operation of the chicken coop, and the Chicken Project Management Plan must
be retained by Bourke Street Community Garden Group and made available to
any relevant public authority upon request.

(6)

TREES THAT MUST BE RETAINED
The existing trees at the site must be retained and protected in accordance with
the following conditions of consent throughout the construction and development.

(7)

TREE PROTECTION ZONES
(a)

Before the commencement of works, Tree Protection Zone (TPZ) fencing
must be established on the western side of the existing retaining wall
between the site of the chicken coop and the boundary wall to the Eastern
Distributor, for the entire length of the proposed works. TPZ fencing must be
installed and maintained in accordance with the Australian Standard
‘AS4970:2009 Protection of Trees on Development Sites’.

(b)

TPZ fencing must be:

(c)

(i)

1.8m high fully supported chainmesh protective fencing. The fencing
shall be secure and fastened to prevent movement. Woody roots shall
not be damaged during the establishment or maintenance of the
fencing.

(ii)

Kept free of weed and grass for the duration of works.

(iii)

Have two signs stating “Tree Protection Zone” and “No Access”
attached facing outwards in a visible position. The signs must remain
in place until works are completed on site.

The following works shall be excluded from within 5 metres of any tree:
(i)

Soil cut or fill including excavation and trenching.

(ii)

Soil cultivation, disturbance or compaction.

(iii)

Stockpiling storage or mixing of materials.

(iv)

The parking, storing, washing and repairing of tools, equipment and
machinery.

(v)

The disposal of liquids and refuelling.

18

(vi)

The disposal of building materials.

(vii) The siting of temporary site offices or sheds.
(viii) Any action leading to impacts on tree health or structure.

(8)

(d)

Excavation and/or regrading must not occur within 5 metres of any tree. If
excavation is proposed within this zone, the Council’s Tree Management
Officer must be contacted immediately and the excavation must be carried
out in accordance with Council’s direction.

(e)

All work undertaken within or above the TPZ must be undertaken in
accordance with all directions given by the Council’s Tree Management
Officer.

(f)

The consent from Council’s Tree Management Officer must be obtained prior
to the undertaking of any tree pruning works, including tree roots greater
than 40mm in diameter. Only minor pruning works will be approved by
Council.

(g)

Any tree pruning works, including tree roots greater than 40mm in diameter
which have been approved by the Council’s Tree Management Officer must
be undertaken by a qualified Arborist (AQF Level 3 minimum).

OCCUPATION CERTIFICATE TO BE SUBMITTED
An Occupation Certificate must be obtained from the Principal Certifier and a copy
submitted to Council prior to commencement of occupation or use of the whole or
any part of a new building, an altered portion of, or an extension to an existing
building.

(9)

HOURS OF WORK AND NOISE – OUTSIDE CBD
The hours of construction and work on the development must be as follows:
(a)

All work, including building/demolition and excavation work, and activities in
the vicinity of the site generating noise associated with preparation for the
commencement of work (eg. loading and unloading of goods, transferring of
tools etc) in connection with the proposed development must only be carried
out between the hours of 7.30am and 5.30pm on Mondays to Fridays,
inclusive, and 7.30am and 3.30pm on Saturdays, with safety inspections
being permitted at 7.00am on work days, and no work must be carried out
on Sundays or public holidays.

(b)

All work, including demolition, excavation and building work must comply
with the City of Sydney Code of Practice for Construction Hours/Noise 1992
and Australian Standard 2436 - 2010 Guide to Noise Control on
Construction, Maintenance and Demolition Sites.

19

(c)

Notwithstanding the above, the use of a crane for special operations,
including the delivery of materials, hoisting of plant and equipment and
erection and dismantling of on site tower cranes which warrant the on-street
use of mobile cranes outside of above hours can occur, subject to a permit
being issued by Council under Section 68 of the Local Government Act 1993
and/or Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993.

Note: Works may be undertaken outside of hours, where it is required to avoid the
loss of life, damage to property, to prevent environmental harm and/or to avoid
structural damage to the building. Written approval must be given by the
Construction Regulation Unit, prior to works proceeding
The City of Sydney Code of Practice for Construction Hours/Noise 1992 allows
extended working hours subject to the approval of an application in accordance
with the Code and under Section 4.55 of the Environmental Planning and
Assessment Act 1979.
(10) NO OBSTRUCTION OF BOURKE STREET FOOTPATH
The public footpath on Bourke Street must not be obstructed by any materials,
vehicles, refuse, skips or the like, under any circumstances. All loading and
unloading associated with construction activity must be accommodated on site.

SCHEDULE 2
PRESCRIBED CONDITIONS
The prescribed conditions in accordance with Division 8A of the Environmental
Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000 apply:
Clause 98

Compliance with Building Code of Australia and insurance requirements
under the Home Building Act 1989

Clause 98A

Erection of signs

Clause 98B

Notification of Home Building Act 1989 requirements

Clause 98C

Conditions relating to entertainment venues

Clause 98D

Conditions relating to maximum capacity signage

Clause 98E

Conditions relating to shoring and adequacy of adjoining property

Refer to the NSW State legislation for full text of the clauses under Division 8A of the
Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000. This can be accessed at:
http://www.legislation.nsw.gov.au

20

Attachment B
Selected Drawings

21

TERRACE

NO. 6

RITAGE-LISTED
GEORGIAN
TERRACES
ITEM 566
DMAN PLACE'

TOW RL 4.20

22

GRAFFITI MURAL
ALONG ENTIRE
NORTHERN WALL
OF NO. 117

STORE
ROOM

'THE WALLAMULLAH'
POLITICAL MURAL
1982

RL 3.910

RL 3.975

FIXED EXERCISE
EQUIPMENT

EXISTING LAWN

RL 3.84

RL 3.75

RL 3.85

EXISTING CONCRETE FOOTING
AND STEEL PALISADE FENCE.

TOW RL 4.40

RL 4.42

GARDEN SHED

FENCE RL 5.55

TOW RL 4.55

RL 4.56

2500

3500

EXISTING
SOFT FALL

PB

FENCE RL 5.55

PB

TOW RL 3.80

PT

RL 3.56

RL 3.43

CB

RA

PB

EA

AY

EA

M
SE

EN

T

E

NT

DOUBLE GATE

AY

EXISTING LAWN

RL 3.50

LW

M
SE

3000

GS

RL 2.56

FENCE RL 5.55

RL 3.22

ISE T
NO UC
IN IAD
A
V
R
FT Y
O WA
LS I L
VE RA
LE H E
H T
G
HI ROM
F

RL 2.51

RAISED BEDS

ISE T
NO UC
N D
AI VIA
R
FT Y
O WA
LS I L
VE RA
LE H E
H T
G
HI ROM
F

EXISTING TRANSPARENT
STEEL FENCE.

RL 3.50

RL 3.20

EXISTING CONCRETE FOOTING
AND STEEL PALISADE FENCE.

RAILWAY VIADUCT
ABOVE SHOWN DASHED

103-107 BOURKE ST
WOOLLOOMOOLOO
RAIL CORPORATION, NSW SERVICES
LOT 3-4, DP 536017

RAISED BEDS

ILW

I
RA
RL 3.50

800

CC

1500

RL 3.47

1000

EXISTING AMENITIES BUILDINGS

PB

PB

PB

EXISTING
CONCRETE
FOOTPATH

WC

RB

RB

PB

RB

RB

RB

RB

RB

RB

RB

1000

RL 2.59
UNFORMED PART OF JUNCTION STREET
WOOLLOOMOOLOO
CITY OF SYDNEY
1600

RB

CHICKEN COUP

RL 3.93

RL 3.35

TOW RL 6.05

1200

TOW RL 4.70

RL 4.65

RL 4.29

EXISTING CONCRETE
RETAINING WALL.
109-115 BOURKE ST
WOOLLOOMOOLOO
RAIL CORPORATION, NSW SERVICES
LOT 1, DP 532105

RL 3.80

EXISTING COMMUNITY GARDEN

EXISTING PERGOLA ABOVE
SHOWN DASHED

TOW RL 3.75

EXISTING CONCRETE
RETAINING WALL.

RL 2.69

WALL + PALLISADE FENCE

NO. 99

EM

E

PLANTER BOXES

NO. 101

AY

EXISTING
TERRACE
HOUSES

RA

ILW

S
EA

EN

M
SE

COMPOST BAYS

NO. 117

NO. 7

RL 3.45

RL 2.78

1000

RL 3.14
RL 3.03
56-64 PALMER STREET
WOOLLOOMOOLOO
ROADS AND TRAFFIC AUTHORITY, NSW
LOT 2, DP 78050

1200

SUMMER SUNSET

2300

EASTERN DISTRIBUTOR

5000

HIGH LEVELS OF TRAFFIC NOISE
FROM THE EASTERN DISTRIBUTOR

TE
RE N
NC M
O LU
C CO

TOW RL 3.65

ILW
EA

3000

RA
AY

TE
RE N
NC M
O OLU
CC

ISSUE FOR TENDER / REVIEW

ACN: 164 245 514

STURT NOBLE ASSOCIATES PTY LTD.

2

ln

ln
5m

ABN: 99 164 245 514

1

mos

1:100 @ A1
1:200 @ A3
0

A

CD-1912-101

BOURKE STREET COMMUNITY GARDEN
GENERAL ARRANGEMENT PLAN

CITY OF SYDNEY

BOURKE STREET COMMUNITY GARDEN

T.

19.03.2019

TOP OF WALL
LEVELS
PLANTER BOX
RAISED BED
GARDEN SHED
CHICKEN COUP
PICNIC TABLE (RELOCATED)
COMPOST BAYS

BOUNDARY OF WORKS
LAND OWNERSHIP BOUNDARY
EXISTING COMMUNITY GARDEN

MULCH SURFACE

VEHICLE ACCESS

DECOMPOSED GRANITE

EXISTING TREE

Sturt Noble

A

TOW
+RL
PB
RB
GS
CC
PT
CB

LEGEND

SETOUT
All setout to be approved by Superintendent prior to construction.

SERVICES
Services to be confirmed on site. Before landscape work is
commenced, Landscape contractor is to establish the positions of
all service lines and protect them from damage during construction.

Refer to Engineer's Drawings for precise information regarding
paving, finished levels, roadworks, fences and drainage details.

Refer to drawings;
CD-1912-101 - General Arrangement Plan 01
CD-1912-102 - Chicken Coup Location Plan 01

GENERAL
Read drawings in conjunction with the specification notes & details.

NOTES

23





0LQLIOXWH6WDQGDUG

52<$/52267(5&+,&.(13$/$&(



*DOYDQLVHG0HVK

0HVK3DQHO
DQG'RRUQRWVKRZQ




'RRU2SHQLQJ


